
CITY COUNCIL MEETING 
PACKET 

FOR

Tuesday, September 1, 2020 

Sherwood City Hall 
22560 SW Pine Street 

Sherwood, Oregon 

6:00 pm City Council Work Session 

7:00 pm City Council Regular Meeting 

Pursuant to Executive Order 20-16, this meeting will be conducted electronically and 

will be live streamed at https://www.youtube.com/user/CityofSherwood 

https://www.youtube.com/user/CityofSherwood


 

City Council Agenda                                                                                                                                                        
September 1, 2020 
Page 1 of 2 

 
 

6:00 PM WORK SESSION 

 
1. Diversity, Equity and Inclusion (DEI) Efforts (Joe Gall, City Manager) 

 

7:00 PM REGULAR SESSION 

 

1. CALL TO ORDER 

 

2. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 

 

3. ROLL CALL 

 

4. APPROVAL OF AGENDA 

 

5. CONSENT AGENDA 

 

A. Approval of August 18, 2020 City Council Meeting Minutes (Sylvia Murphy, City Recorder) 

B. Resolution 2020-056 Appointing Brian Dorsey to the Police Advisory Board 

(Jeff Groth, Police Chief) 

C. Resolution 2020-057 Authorizing the City Manager to execute a contract with OTAK to update 

the Sherwood Zoning and Community Development Code to implement House Bill 2001 

(Joy Chang, Senior Planner) 

D. Proclamation, September as National Preparedness Month and September 1-7, 2020 as Home 

Inventory Week (Keith Mays, Mayor) 

 

6. CITIZEN COMMENTS 
 
Pursuant to Executive Order 20-16, citizen comments must be submitted in writing to CityRecorder@Sherwoodoregon.gov. To 
be included in the record for this meeting, the email must clearly state that it is intended as a citizen comment for this meeting 
and must be received at least 24 hours in advance of the scheduled meeting time.   Per Council Rules Ch. 2 Section (V)(D)(5), 
Citizen Comments, “Speakers shall identify themselves by their names and by their city of residence.” Anonymous comments 
will not be accepted into the meeting record. 

 

7. PUBLIC HEARINGS 

 

A. Ordinance 2020-007 Approving annexation into the City of Sherwood and Clean Water 

Services District of approximately 29.61 acres, comprised of 2 tax lots and adjacent SW 

Tonquin Avenue right-of-way within the Tonquin Employment Area  

(First reading) (Joy Chang, Senior Planner) 

 

AGENDA 
 

SHERWOOD CITY COUNCIL 
September 1, 2020 

 
 

6:00 pm Work Session 
 

7:00 pm Regular City Council Meeting 
 

 
Pursuant to Executive Order 20-16, this meeting  

will be conducted electronically and will be  
live streamed at 

https://www.youtube.com/user/CityofSherwood 
 

1

mailto:CityRecorder@Sherwoodoregon.gov
https://www.youtube.com/user/CityofSherwood


 

City Council Agenda                                                                                                                                                        
September 1, 2020 
Page 2 of 2 

B.  Ordinance 2020-008 Approving annexation of 10.90 acres to the City of Sherwood and 10.50 

acres to Clean Water Services within the Tonquin Employment Area, comprised of one tax lot 

and the adjacent SW Oregon Street and SW Tonquin Road right-of-way 

(First reading) (Eric Rutledge, Associate Planner) 

 

8. CITY MANAGER REPORT 

 

9. COUNCIL ANNOUNCEMENTS 

 
10.  ADJOURN  

 

 

 

 

 
How to Find out What's on the Council Schedule: City Council meeting materials and agenda are posted to the City web page at www.sherwoodoregon.gov, by the 

Thursday prior to a Council meeting. Council agendas are also posted at the Sherwood Library/City Hall, the Sherwood YMCA, the Senior Center, and the Sherwood Post 

Office. Council meeting materials are available at the Sherwood Public Library.  

To Schedule a Presentation to the Council: If you would like to schedule a presentation to the City Council, please submit your name, phone number, the subject of 

your presentation and the date you wish to appear to the City Recorder, 503-625-4246 or MurphyS@sherwoodoregon.gov. If you require an ADA accommodation for this 

public meeting, please contact the City Recorder’s Office at (503) 625-4246 or MurphyS@sherwoodoregon.gov at least 48 hours in advance of the scheduled meeting 

time. 

 
 

2

http://www.sherwoodoregon.gov/
mailto:MurphyS@sherwoodoregon.gov
mailto:MurphyS@sherwoodoregon.gov


DRAFT 

City Council Minutes  
August 18, 2020 
Page 1 of 10 

 
 

SHERWOOD CITY COUNCIL MEETING MINUTES 

22560 SW Pine St., Sherwood, Or 
Pursuant to Executive Order 20-16, this meeting was conducted electronically and live streamed at 

https://www.youtube.com/user/CityofSherwood 

August 18, 2020 

 

 

WORK SESSION 

 

1. CALL TO ORDER: Mayor Mays called the work session to order at 6:00 pm. 

 

2. COUNCIL PRESENT: Mayor Keith Mays, Council President Tim Rosener, Councilors Doug Scott, Renee 

Brouse, Kim Young, Sean Garland, and Russell Griffin.  

 

3. STAFF PRESENT: City Manager Joe Gall, City Attorney Josh Soper, IT Director Brad Crawford, 

Community Development Director Julia Hajduk, Police Chief Jeff Groth, Finance Director David Bodway, 

Economic Development Manager Bruce Coleman, Public Works Director Craig Sheldon, HR Manager 

Christina Jones, and City Recorder Sylvia Murphy. 

 

4. OTHERS PRESENT: Chris Bell with Bell and Associates, Kristin Leichner, Eric Anderson, Mike Leichner, 

and Cindy Leichner with Pride Disposal. 

 
5. TOPICS 

 

A. Solid Waste Rate Review 

 

Chris Bell with Bell and Associates presented the “City of Sherwood Solid Waste & Recycling Collection: 

An Overview of the City’s Current System and Rate Alternatives for Council Direction” PowerPoint 

presentation (see record, Exhibit A) and stated that the current rates were implemented in January 2020 

and explained that the container rates were projected to finish 1.2% lower than in 2019. He explained that 

the Drop Box increase of 2.8% was due to additional disposal, not additional rates. He recapped that in 

the 2019 work session they had discussed the potential impact on recycling processing and reported that 

the actual cost for recycling was $83 per ton, not $95.50 per ton they had previously projected. Mr. Bell 

explained that the ongoing collective bargaining agreement with the Teamsters would continue to have 

an impact on rates. He reported that disposal rates would increase by $4 per ton for operational costs and 

there would also be an increase in taxes. He reported that Metro was planning on introducing a rate 

increase to the regional system fee starting on October 1st, but the start date of the rate increase was 

subject to change as the Metro council had not yet met to approve the rate or implementation date. Mr. 

Bell reviewed the adjusted 2019 results on page 3 of the presentation and explained that the adjusted 

results for 2019 came in at 7.97%, and reported that the projected results for 2021 would be just under 

10%. He explained that they calculated the rate of service increase by reviewing what it would take to get 

3

https://www.youtube.com/user/CityofSherwood


DRAFT 

City Council Minutes  
August 18, 2020 
Page 2 of 10 

the allowable expenses to 10%. He reviewed the Drop Box cost of service and explained that they 

proposed a $4.87 increase per haul. He outlined that the proposed 2021 commercial rates were calculated 

using 6/10ths of a percent and were based on the assumption that there would not be an increase in the 

regional system fee. He explained that Metro was anticipating rate increases over the next three to five 

years. He reported that Metro was proposing a $8.85 increase, of which $3.75 would be passed down to 

other transfer facilities located throughout the metro region. He reported that most jurisdictions in the 

metro area were asking that Metro wait until July 1st of 2021 to implement the rate increase instead of the 

October 2020 start date due to the uncertainty caused by the business shutdown. Mr. Bell reported that 

Metro was seeking to increase rates to generate revenue for a west side transfer station to be built in 

Cornelius and cost roughly $70 million. Mr. Bell remarked that there were already three transfer stations 

in the immediate west side area and felt that there was no issue getting rid of waste from commercial 

haulers, but commented that there was a need to address a transfer station for self-haulers. He explained 

that if a new transfer station was built, it would pull tonnage from the other local transfer stations which 

would result in rate increases to customers. Mr. Bell explained that if the rate increase from Metro did 

occur between October 2020 and June 1st there would be a .22 cent increase on 35-gallon cart users per 

customer per month and an increase of .23 cents per yard collected for commercial customers. He advised 

that if the Metro rate increase passed, that the rates be adjusted and passed on to the ratepayers. He 

reviewed the container collection rates with the Metro RSF increase table and recapped next steps and 

explained that Pride Disposal would submit a rate package for Council to review and vote on in September, 

with the new rates going into effect in January 2021. 

 

Mayor Mays asked Pride Disposal President Kristin Leichner her main concerns regarding the new 

transfer station in Cornelius that Metro was proposing. Ms. Leichner said her main concerns were that 

years ago there was no public facilities on the west side, so Pride and other private companies invested 

in creating that service and it felt misguided to duplicate those services that had been provided by private 

facilities for years. She added that there was a demand for a facility further south for residents who did 

not want to subscribe to a garbage service but wanted to haul their own waste to a facility, as well as a 

demand for a hazardous waste disposal facility, a service Pride did not provide. She commented that both 

types of facilities would be much smaller and cost less than the proposed $70 million facility Metro was 

proposing. She explained that Metro allocated how much waste each transfer station could accept, which 

was currently at a minimum of 40% between their two public facilities, and would likely be impacted by 

the creation of the Cornelius facility. She explained that the change in waste acceptance would impact 

their customer rates as well as the Community Enhancement Grants that Sherwood granted them 

because Pride paid a dollar a ton for every ton that went through their facility, and every ton they are not 

allowed to accept, would reduce that by one dollar. Mayor Mays asked if Metro had created an analysis 

report to defend a staff recommendation. Ms. Leichner replied that she was unsure if that work was 

complete. Mr. Bell replied that the City of Hillsboro had been very vocal about wanting supporting 

documentation about how Metro was arriving at their rate calculations and costs, but Metro had not given 

that information to the City of Hillsboro staff. He commented that cities on the east side have been 

adamant about wanting supporting documentation because they had also invested in creating their own 

infrastructure on the east side and did not want to pay for the construction of a west side transfer station. 

Council President Rosener asked if Metro had done any public outreach to local haulers. Mr. Bell replied 

that he believed that Metro had put together an initial task force with some people from Cornelius who 

would be impacted, but industries and cities who would be impacted were not really represented. Ms. 

Leichner commented that there was a Regional Waste Advisory Committee that met monthly and had one 

industry representative on a committee of roughly 13 people. She explained that half of the committee 

was local governments (the City of Lake Oswego, Clackamas County, and the City of Portland), and the 

4



DRAFT 

City Council Minutes  
August 18, 2020 
Page 3 of 10 

other half was community members. She stated that the committee did not vote on anything, just shared 

information amongst each other. Cindy Leichner reported that a group from Metro attended the 

Washington County Hauler’s meeting where Metro gave a presentation about different facilities in the 

northwest area, but when asked for details about how the new facility would impact other local transfer 

stations, Metro did not offer an answer. She remarked that the Sherwood City Council could ask for a 

presentation from Metro and ask them about their plans. Council President Rosener ask Mayor Mays if 

this topic was on the Metro Mayors Association’s radar yet. Mayor Mays replied it was not at this moment, 

but would be. Mr. Bell remarked that Clark County had spec’d-out a new transfer station that could handle 

200,000 tons of material for $30 million. Mayor Mays commented that government and regional 

government needed to take into account the impact to the everyday person. City Manager Gall asked 

what will happen to the rates if there is not a rate increase from Metro in October. Ms. Leichner replied 

that because the Metro Council was in recess all of August and it was unlikely that there would be a 

definitive answer from the Metro Council regarding rates by September, she recommended pushing back 

the submittal of the rate package to the Sherwood City Council to October instead of September because 

they would have a better general idea of when Metro was going to enact the new rates. Council President 

Rosener replied he would prefer to wait as well. Mayor Mays voiced that a resolution should be drafted 

for August or September that voiced Council’s concerns and opposition to the construction of a new 

transfer station in the near term. Ms. Leichner clarified that if there was no Metro rate increase, Pride 

Disposal proposed a small increase on commercial customers and an increase of $5 on the haul fees for 

Drop Boxes, but no increase on residential.  

 

City Manager Gall asked that Ms. Leichner report on what Metro was previously proposing regarding glass 

recycling that could result in a future change. Ms. Leichner replied that Metro was completing various 

administrative rules updates, one of which was a mandate that stated that glass had to be picked up at 

least every other week as of July 2022. She stated this would have an impact on Sherwood, Tigard, and 

Durham as they were all jurisdictions that had monthly glass pickup. She explained that Pride Disposal 

began alerting the affected jurisdictions of the upcoming change and contemplating how Pride could make 

those changes with minimal impact to the ratepayers. She stated that Metro had since pulled back on their 

mandate to enforce glass pickup every other week, and commented that Pride realized that glass pickup 

has consistently been a confusing point for their customers. She explained that if Pride determined that 

they could modify their trucks to accept glass pickups more frequently without an increase in rates, they 

would look into doing so. She commented that they would have to modify their trucks, make route 

changes, and send out notices, but felt confident that Pride would be able to make those changes by April 

1, 2021. Council President Rosener asked what the reasoning was behind Metro’s proposal for increasing 

the frequency of glass pickup. Ms. Leichner replied that Metro had completed a study that was based on 

the different frequencies of glass pickup in the region to determine how much recyclables ended up in the 

garbage or how much garbage ended up in recycling. She explained that based on that study, jurisdictions 

that had monthly glass pickups had more glass in their garbage which could lead to the determination that 

not enough pickup services were being provided. Mayor Mays commented that he did not support the 

notion that Metro had any influence on the level of service in the community and that it was solely a 

community discussion and evaluation. Ms. Leichner replied that Pride Disposal frequently made that 

argument to Metro, but Metro rebutted the argument saying that the Metro Regional Waste Plan, which 

Metro wrote, allows them the authority to dictate minimum service standards. City Manager Gall asked if 

Council would be supportive of twice monthly glass pickup if it was locally driven and did not have an 

impact on rates. Mayor Mays replied he was not convinced and commented he was hearing that a fourth 

bin was being proposed. Ms. Leichner replied that there would not be a new cart, but Pride would be 

adding a container to the back of their trucks to allow the driver to collect the glass. Council President 

5



DRAFT 

City Council Minutes  
August 18, 2020 
Page 4 of 10 

Rosener stated that he was not in favor of the idea if it resulted in a rate increase and commented that he 

had heard from community members that they would prefer to have cardboard pickup go to once a week 

than glass go to twice a week. Councilor Young asked if the new containers Pride was retrofitting their 

trucks with required that the driver get out of the truck and physically dump the glass containers 

themselves. Ms. Leichner replied that was correct and clarified that that was also the current method for 

collecting the glass pickup containers from customers. Councilor Scott commented that the driver having 

to get out of the truck every other week instead of monthly would slow down the route. Ms. Leichner 

replied that was correct but there would be a savings from Pride removing the trucks that only picked up 

glass from circulation. Mayor Mays thanked Ms. Leichner, Mike Leichner and Cindy Leichner for their 

time.  

 

6. RECESSED: 

 

Mayor Mays recessed the work session at 6:33 pm and convened an executive session. 

 

 

EXECUTIVE SESSION 

 

1. CALL TO ORDER: Mayor Mays called the meeting to order at 6:35 pm. 

 

2. COUNCIL PRESENT: Mayor Keith Mays, Council President Tim Rosener, Councilors Doug Scott, Renee 

Brouse, Kim Young, Sean Garland, and Russell Griffin.  

 

3. STAFF PRESENT: City Manager Joe Gall, City Attorney Josh Soper, IT Director Brad Crawford, Public 

Works Director Craig Sheldon, and Finance Director David Bodway. 

 
4. TOPICS 

 

A. ORS 192.660(2)(f), Exempt Public Records. 

 

5. ADJOURN: 

 

Mayor Mays adjourned the executive session at 7:01 pm and convened a regular session. 

 

 

REGULAR SESSION 

1. CALL TO ORDER: Mayor Mays called the meeting to order at 7:03 pm. 

 

2. COUNCIL PRESENT: Mayor Keith Mays, Council President Tim Rosener, Councilors Doug Scott, Renee 

Brouse, Kim Young, Sean Garland, and Russell Griffin.  

 

3. STAFF PRESENT: City Manager Joe Gall, City Attorney Josh Soper, IT Director Brad Crawford, 

Community Development Director Julia Hajduk, Police Chief Jeff Groth, Finance Director David Bodway, 

Economic Development Manager Bruce Coleman, Public Works Director Craig Sheldon, HR Manager 

Christina Jones, and City Recorder Sylvia Murphy. 

 

6



DRAFT 

City Council Minutes  
August 18, 2020 
Page 5 of 10 

4. APPROVAL OF AGENDA: 

 

MOTION: FROM COUNCILOR YOUNG TO APPROVE THE AGENDA. SECONDED BY COUNCIL 

PRESIDENT ROSENER. MOTION PASSED 7:0, ALL MEMBERS VOTED lN FAVOR.  

 

Mayor Mays addressed the next agenda item. 

 

5. CONSENT AGENDA: 

  
A. Approval of August 4, 2020 City Council Meeting Minutes  

B. Resolution 2020-051 Reappointing Lana Painter to the Sherwood Budget Committee 

C. Resolution 2020-052 Reappointing Nancy Taylor to the Sherwood Budget Committee 

D. Resolution 2020-053 Reappointing Thomas Sherwood to the Sherwood Budget Committee  

E. Resolution 2020-054 Approving Intergovernmental Agreement between Washington County 

and City of Sherwood for Cities and Special District Assistance Program 

F. Resolution 2020-055 Authorizing the City Manager to Execute a Construction Contract with The 

Saunders Co., Inc. to Construct the Galbreath Sanitary Sewer Extension (411SS) 

 

MOTION: FROM COUNCILOR BROUSE TO ADOPT THE CONSENT AGENDA. SECONDED BY 

COUNCILOR GRIFFIN. MOTION PASSED 7:0, ALL MEMBERS VOTED lN FAVOR.  

 

Mayor Mays addressed the next agenda item. 

 

6. CITIZEN COMMENTS: 

 

The City Recorder read aloud the written comments received from Sherwood resident Megan Thornton 

regarding the recent pro-police rally in Sherwood (see record). Mayor Mays commented that there was a 

rally in Sherwood which was promoted as an opportunity for citizens to peacefully exercise their First 

Amendment rights and express their support for the Sherwood Police. He reported that no one who 

attended was cited or arrested at the rally and that no laws were broken. He stated that, “the City Council 

supports our police department and the excellent work they do for our community and supports the right 

to freedom of speech. Just as importantly, the City Council does not condone or support any group or 

organization or individual from any side of the political spectrum that engages in hate, threatening, criminal 

or violent behavior of any kind. Those behaviors have no place in this community and are contrary to the 

values of the City of Sherwood and the Sherwood Police Department.” 

 

7. CITY MANAGER REPORT: 

 

City Manager Joe Gall reported that an additional round of business grants would become available on 

Monday, August 24th. He explained there were two funding sources. One was a $35,000 source from the 

state agency Business Oregon, the other was $280,000 in federal CARES Act funding from Washington 

County. He stated that the grants would be made available to businesses that have been affected by the 

COVID-19 pandemic. Mayor Mays asked Economic Development Manager Bruce Coleman what the 

general timeline was from the start of the process to when an applicant can expect to be notified of 

receiving funding. Mr. Coleman replied that applications would become available on Monday, August 24th 

and would close on Friday, August 28th after which they would begin reviewing the applications. He 

explained that the process for reviewing applications would be more complex than the last time because 

7



DRAFT 

City Council Minutes  
August 18, 2020 
Page 6 of 10 

they were not using their own funds to award grants to businesses. He commented that the goal was to 

be able to award funding roughly two weeks after the application closing date. City Manager Gall reported 

that the Chamber of Commerce’s guest speaker would be Commissioner Roy Rogers.  

 

Mayor Mays addressed the next agenda item. 

 

8. COUNCIL ANNOUNCEMENTS: 

 

Councilor Griffin announced that the Parks and Recreation Board would soon hold interviews for 

candidates to fill two board vacancies.  

 

Councilor Garland asked City Manager Gall if the application deadline for vacancies on various boards 

and commissions was extended to August 21st. Mr. Gall replied that only a few of the boards that had 

vacancies had extended their deadlines as the other boards and commissions had received a sufficient 

number of applications.  

 

Councilor Young reported that the Police Advisory Board had recently interviewed 11 candidates to fill one 

vacancy. She reported she was unable to attend the most recent Community Development Block Grant 

meeting. 

 

Council President Rosener reported he attended the School Board meeting where they discussed 

reopening plans and the online Cloud Campus for students.  

 

Mayor Mays reported he attended the virtual Oregon Mayors Association annual conference. He attended 

the Washington County Coordinating Committee meeting where they received an update on a study of 

tolling on I-5 and I-205. He reported he would attend the upcoming League of Oregon Cities special board 

meeting.  

 

9. ADJOURN: 

 

Mayor Mays adjourned the regular session at 7:23 pm and reconvened a work session.  

 

WORK SESSION 

 

1. CALL TO ORDER: Mayor Mays called the work session to order at 7:24 pm. 

 

2. COUNCIL PRESENT: Mayor Keith Mays, Council President Tim Rosener, Councilors Doug Scott, Renee 

Brouse, Kim Young, Sean Garland, and Russell Griffin.  

 

3. STAFF PRESENT: City Manager Joe Gall, City Attorney Josh Soper, IT Director Brad Crawford, 

Community Development Director Julia Hajduk, Police Chief Jeff Groth, Finance Director David Bodway, 

Economic Development Manager Bruce Coleman, Public Works Director Craig Sheldon, HR Manager 

Christina Jones, and City Recorder Sylvia Murphy. 

 

4. Others Present: Consultants Nick Popenuk with Tiberius Solutions and Elaine Howard with Elaine 

Howard Consulting.  

 

8



DRAFT 

City Council Minutes  
August 18, 2020 
Page 7 of 10 

5. TOPICS 

 

B. URA Boundary Finalization 

 

Community Development Director Julia Hajduk recapped that at the previous work session to discuss the 

URA boundary, Council had asked for more detail about the proposed boundaries and the option to 

potentially reduce the existing URA. She explained that consultant Nick Popenuk had worked with 

Economic Manager Bruce Coleman, Finance Director David Bodway, and herself to review the parcels 

and to try to strike a balance. Mr. Popenuk presented the “City of Sherwood Urban Renewal Feasibility 

Study” PowerPoint presentation (see record, Exhibit B) and recapped that in the previous meetings 

Council had asked him to refine the boundaries so that the two originally proposed boundaries combined 

with the existing URA boundary would be in compliance with the statutory limits on assessed value and 

acreage citywide. He explained that the goal was to ensure that the city had the option to adopt either 

both of the new boundaries (Boundary 1 and 2), or the option to combine Boundary 1 and Boundary 2 

into a consolidated URA that was connected via cherry stem, while avoiding removing significant acreage 

from the potential new Urban Renewal Areas. He reported that there were two key limits they were 

reviewing. The first limit was to maintain the existing financial capacity in the existing URA, with the plan 

to pay off the debt in fiscal year ending in 2023. He explained that this required that the existing Urban 

Renewal Area needed to bring in roughly $2.6 million worth of revenue over the next few years on an 

annual basis. He remarked that when he was reviewing revisions to the boundary, his goal was to create 

a plan that would bring in more than $2.6 million annually to ensure the financial security of the area and 

to protect the city in the event of a decrease in property values or a company going out of business. He 

explained that he used a 1.25 coverage ratio to secure that the area would bring in $3.25 million each 

year to ensure the city could continue to make the scheduled debt service payments of $2.6 million. He 

reported that the city could reduce the current URA down to $240 million in assessed value from the 

current $425 million in assessed value and continue to maintain the annual TIF revenue of $3.25 million 

per year. He summarized that the city could cut out $185 million worth of property from the existing URA 

without sacrificing the ability to make the planned debt service payments. Mr. Popenuk reviewed the 

updated URA acreage limits on page 4 of the presentation and explained that he had revised the numbers 

to include the properties that would be shortly annexed into the city. He explained that this would increase 

the city’s size and acreage limit which resulted in a total of 565 acres needing to be cut from the Urban 

Renewal Areas to meet the statutory limits on acreage. He outlined the three refined boundary scenarios 

as: 1.) Reducing the acreage of existing URA as much as possible, while maintaining sufficient financial 

capacity. 2.) In addition to Scenario 1, retain all properties owned by the URA, and necessary ROW to 

connect them. 3.) In addition to Scenario 2, connect new boundaries 1 and 2 with a cherry stem, for one 

contiguous URA boundary. Mayor Mays asked what the argument was for retaining the URA-owned 

properties in option 2. Mr. Popenuk replied that there was not a tangible benefit to retaining the properties 

unless the city wanted to use any revenues from the sale of the property to invest back into a URA. He 

commented that there was not any real benefit from a legal perspective to keep the properties in the Urban 

Renewal Agency because the area was so close to closing down. Council President Rosener asked how 

many acres would be freed up if they transferred the properties out of the URA. Mr. Popenuk replied that 

he did not have the exact figure in front of him. City Manager Gall interjected that his best guess would 

be roughly 20-30 acres maximum. Mr. Popenuk reviewed the new refined boundary for Scenario 1 on 

page 7 of the presentation and explained that the smaller pieces of property that had been removed from 

both of the proposed new URAs were because the properties were tax exempt, utility owned, or vacant 

land that did not have a near-term development potential. He clarified that the reductions shown in the 

new URAs were not necessarily permanent, but were removed to hit the statutory limit, and could be re-

9



DRAFT 

City Council Minutes  
August 18, 2020 
Page 8 of 10 

added after the existing URA expired in 2023. He reviewed the refined boundary for Scenario 2 and 

Scenario 3. He reviewed the existing URA Scenario 1 and explained that they focused on what properties 

had the highest assessed value per acre to help determine what land to keep in the existing URA to free 

up acreage wile retaining assessed value. He reviewed Scenarios 2 and 3 for the existing URA and 

commented that it appeared that the best course of action would be to transfer Urban Renewal Agency 

owned properties to city ownership to help free up acreage. Mr. Popenuk outlined that all three scenarios 

in the existing URA maintained the TIF capacity of 3.25 million per year and removed 432-442 acres which 

included areas of overlap, rights-of-way, tax exempt properties, and properties with lower value per acre. 

He reported that if the Urban Renewal Agency transferred ownership of the properties to the city, it would 

free up 10 acres of land. He explained that if the city was ready to transfer URA-owned properties into city 

ownership it would make for a cleaner boundary and allow for a more direct cherry stem if Council wanted 

to proceed with one consolidated URA boundary. Mayor Mays commented he did not see any value in 

retaining the 10 acres in the URA. Community Development Director Julia Hajduk commented that based 

on conversations with Mr. Popenuk and City Attorney Josh Soper, it appeared that there were no real 

legal impacts of having URA-owned property transferred to city-ownership and that Council would retain 

the ability to influence the direction of how the properties were ultimately disposed of and developed in 

the future. Council President Rosener asked if it was possible to have IT Director Brad Crawford evaluate 

the routes of the “pipe stems” that connected areas to determine if there was a need for significant 

infrastructure for the installation of Sherwood Broadband. City Manager Gall replied yes, that was 

possible. Mayor Mays asked to ensure that the cherry stem went through Old Town, and commented that 

he felt there was value in having the cherry stem go down part of 1st Street or Pine Street in the event that 

Council wanted to expand the district to include the Robin Hood Theater lot. Mayor Mays asked what the 

acreage was for the proposed new district today and then what amount of acreage could be added in the 

future by Council if it was to be expanded. Mr. Popenuk replied that Scenario 3 of the refined boundary 

options had the capacity to be expanded by 120 acres in the future. 

 

Mr. Popenuk reviewed Boundary 1 Scenario 1 on page 13 of the presentation and explained that the 

majority of the acreage they had removed was utility-owned property, some tax-exempt properties, and 

land associated with the proposed wastewater treatment facility. Mayor Mays asked which lots were not 

in the city limits at this time and which lots were not having active conversations about being brought into 

the city. Community Development Director Hajduk replied most properties not currently in the city limits 

and were not actively being discussed were in the middle of the Tonquin Employment Area. Mayor Mays 

asked if property not located within the city limits could be brought into the URA. Ms. Hajduk replied that 

it was possible to bring in property outside of the city limits into URA, but it required an IGA with 

Washington County. Elaine Howard stated it was not an IGA that was needed, but the county had to 

approve the adoption of the Urban Renewal Plan by resolution of their county commission. Ms. Howard 

commented that Washington County had done that before for cities within their jurisdiction. Mr. Popenuk 

explained that refining and adjusting could occur during the Urban Renewal Plan process, so the Council 

could move forward with adopting a new plan and an advisory committee could discuss goals, objectives, 

and project lists for the boundary. He explained that revisions to the existing URA, including removing as 

much acreage as possible, would be a minor amendment that would remove the acreage ahead of time 

and provide the city with the capacity to adopt a new plan and would therefore be more time sensitive. 

Mr. Popenuk reviewed Boundary 1 Scenarios 2 and 3 and explained that Boundary 1 Scenario 3 would 

provide the city with the potential to expand the URA by 118.6 acres in the future. He reviewed Boundary 

2 Scenarios 1 and 3 and explained that they had removed the YMCA facility from the boundary. Council 

President Rosener asked if the area needed for the construction of the pedestrian bridge was accounted 

for in Boundary 2 Scenarios 1 and 2. Ms. Hajduk replied that the area needed for the bridge was located 

10



DRAFT 

City Council Minutes  
August 18, 2020 
Page 9 of 10 

within the right-of-way and was accounted for in the scenarios. Council President Rosener asked if the 

Cedar Creek underpass was also included. Ms. Hajduk replied that that was why they had removed some 

of the ODOT right-of-way but not all of the ODOT right-of-way to make sure that the area needed for the 

undercrossing was accounted for. Mr. Popenuk recapped that Boundary 2 removed 26.4 acres from the 

area, with the option to expand the area in the future by 21.1 acres. He summarized the presentation and 

stated that: substantial reductions to the existing URA was possible without jeopardizing debt service 

payments, additional cuts to Boundaries 1 and 2 were needed in order to comply with statutory limits, that 

the cuts that were needed could be achieved with minimal reduction to the frozen base, that there was 

significant potential for future expansion, and that there was the possibility for one combined URA 

boundary. He explained that one boundary was more efficient because it required one plan, one budget, 

one annual audit, and one advisory committee. He advised that the challenge with one boundary versus 

two boundaries was the need to balance competing needs and stakeholders. 

 

Mayor Mays asked Council if they preferred one combined boundary or two separate boundaries. Council 

President Rosener, Councilor Young, and Councilor Brouse replied they preferred one boundary. 

Councilor Griffin commented one boundary would be easier. Mayor Mays asked if URA-owned property 

should be transferred to city-ownership now or in two years. Councilor Brouse replied that optically it would 

be better to wait to transfer ownership. Mayor Mays replied that from a process standpoint it would be 

better to transfer the properties now so a cherry stem would not be necessary to connect them. Community 

Development Director Hajduk replied that as far as referring to the optics or transferring ownership, city 

staff did not want to make that decision for Council and wanted it to be a Council decision. Council 

President Rosener voiced that he preferred to remove the properties now so the cherry stem could capture 

the infrastructure needed for the expansion of Sherwood Broadband. Council members voiced their 

agreement with Council President Rosener’s statement. Mr. Popenuk asked for Council’s comments 

regarding specific boundary tweaks. Council President Rosener asked how difficult it would be to tweak 

boundaries later on in the process. Mr. Popenuk replied that if Council was making actual changes to the 

boundary, it would require an amendment to the plan. He explained that if Council wished to pursue 

removing acreage from the existing URA, the next step would be a minor amendment to the plan to 

remove the acreage and ensure that the boundary was right. He explained that for the proposed new 

boundaries, Council would want to have the boundaries right before it was adopted but commented it 

would not be particularly difficult to change it in the future. He explained that Council would have plenty of 

opportunities between now and when the plan was adopted to provide additional comments and make 

tweaks to the area. Ms. Hajduk asked that once the existing URA was closed and there was additional 

acreage available to expand the new URA, could Council amend and expand the area multiple times until 

the maximum acreage was reached. Mr. Popenuk replied that was correct, but amendments to expand 

the boundary would be substantial plan amendments, not minor plan amendments. Elaine Howard 

clarified that the way the statute was written stated for a minor amendment, a city may add up to 1% of its 

acreage, not 1% multiple times. She explained that a substantial amendment required that the boundary 

go through the entire process again.  

 

Mayor Mays summarized the next steps in the process and confirmed that Council agreed to shrink the 

existing URA down, and simultaneously adopt the new URA plan(s). Mr. Popenuk explained that the 

contract for Ms. Howard to prepare the minor amendment was already in place and would be quick to 

execute. Mr. Popenuk reviewed the recommended next steps and timeline on page 22 of the presentation. 

Ms. Howard advised that if the Council wanted to transfer ownership of URA properties to the city, they 

would want to do so at the same time as they completed the minor amendment. She outlined the minor 

amendment timeline and schedule for the adoption of a new plan. Mayor Mays asked if it had been 

11



DRAFT 

City Council Minutes  
August 18, 2020 
Page 10 of 10 

determined when a new URA project could be started and have the new district repay the city for the 

project. Ms. Howard replied that that had not yet been calculated and commented that it was an option for 

a city to loan a URA the funding needed to complete a project and have the URA pay the city back. Mayor 

Mays asked if the district had to exist for that to be an option. Ms. Howard replied that the district had to 

exist before a city could expect to be paid back for the project with URA funds. Mayor Mays commented 

that with that in mind, he believed moving the timeline up one month was a good idea and asked if task 

force meetings could be held multiple times a month. Ms. Howard replied that meeting once a month 

allowed her team to complete the work that was discussed in the task force meetings and then bring the 

work back to the task force for comment. Mayor Mays commented he hoped to have a finalized plan by 

April 2021. Mr. Popenuk replied that an April 2021 deadline was feasible if Council wanted to begin the 

process after the minor amendment to the existing plan was complete. Community Development Director 

Hajduk asked who typically served on the task force. Ms. Howard replied that the task force was usually 

comprised of members of the main taxing districts (TVF&R, Washington County, the City of Sherwood, a 

Planning Commission member, and community stakeholders). Councilor Griffin stated he liked the more 

aggressive timeline if it was appropriate and feasible. Mayor Mays commented he wanted to have the 

process complete before there were budget meetings and conversations. Ms. Hajduk asked if the new 

URA boundary had been adopted but was not yet in effect, could the city loan money to the URA to 

complete a project. Ms. Howard replied that the area had to be in effect for repaying loans using URA 

funds. City Attorney Soper replied he agreed with Ms. Howard’s assertion. City Manager Gall commented 

that the goal of having the process completed before budget conversations was a good idea and was 

achievable. Discussion occurred. Ms. Howard explained that due to the COVID-19 pandemic, an open 

house for the public to attend was probably not feasible but publishing the content online was an option. 

She explained that because her team had to produce the material to publish online, it was an additional 

cost that needed to be considered. She explained that she would provide Council with a menu of options 

to publish the URA proposal online. Council President Rosener thanked the consultants and city staff for 

their hard work.  

 

6. ADJOURN: 

 

Mayor Mays adjourned the work session at 8:15 pm. 

 

 

 

 

Attest: 

 

              

Sylvia Murphy, MMC, City Recorder   Keith Mays, Mayor 

 

 

 

12



Resolution 2020-056, Staff Report 
September 1, 2020 
Page 1 of 1 

City Council Meeting Date: September 1, 2020  
 

 Agenda Item: Consent Agenda 
 
 
TO:  Sherwood City Council 
 
FROM: Jeff Groth, Police Chief 
Through: Joseph Gall, ICMA-CM, and City Manager 
 
SUBJECT:     Resolution 2020-056, Appointing Brian Dorsey to the Sherwood Police 

Advisory Board 
 

 
Issue:  

Should the City Council appoint Brian Dorsey to the Sherwood Police Advisory Board? 

 

Background: 

A vacancy exists on the Police Advisory Board, position #9, due to a recent resignation. The term of 

office for this vacancy expires in June 2022. The City advertised the vacancy and received 11 

applications. Brian Dorsey submitted an application for consideration of appointment and was 

interviewed by the interview panel. The interview panel, consisting of City Council Liaison Kim 

Young, Board Chair Ralph Lohman and Police Chief Jeff Groth, unanimously recommended 

appointment of Brian Dorsey to fill the vacancy. The Mayor has recommended this appointment to 

Council. In accordance with City Council Rules of Procedure, all such appointments are subject to 

the approval of City Council by resolution. 

 

Financial Impacts:  

There are no financial impacts from this proposed action. 

 

Recommendation: 

Staff respectfully recommends City Council’s adoption of Resolution 2020-056, appointing Brian 

Dorsey to the Sherwood Police Advisory Board. 

13



DRAFT 

Resolution 2020-056 
September 1, 2020 
Page 1 of 1 

 
 

RESOLUTION 2020-056 
 

APPOINTING BRIAN DORSEY TO THE SHERWOOD POLICE ADVISORY BOARD 
 
WHEREAS, a vacancy exists on the Police Advisory Board, position #9, due to a recent resignation; and 

 

WHEREAS, the term of office for this vacancy expires in June 2022; and 

 

WHEREAS, the City advertised the vacancy on the City website and social media; and 

 

WHEREAS, Brian Dorsey applied to be appointed and was interviewed by the interview panel; and 

 

WHEREAS, the interview panel considered all of the applicants and recommended to the Mayor that Brian 

Dorsey be appointed to fill the vacancy; and 

 

WHEREAS, the Mayor has recommended to Council that Brian Dorsey be appointed; and 

 

WHEREAS, in accordance with Council Rules of Procedure, all such appointments are subject to the 

approval of the City Council by resolution. 

 

NOW, THEREFORE, THE CITY OF SHERWOOD RESOLVES AS FOLLOWS: 

 

Section 1.  The Sherwood City Council hereby appoints Brian Dorsey to the Sherwood Police Advisory 

Board, position #9, for a term expiring at the end of June 2022. 

 

Section 2.  This Resolution shall be effective upon its approval and adoption. 

 

Duly passed by the City Council this 1st day of September, 2020. 

 

 

             

        Keith Mays, Mayor 

 

Attest: 

 

      

Sylvia Murphy, MMC, City Recorder 

14



 

Resolution 2020-057, Staff Report 
September 1, 2020 
Page 1 of 2 

City Council Meeting Date: September 1, 2020 

 

Agenda Item: Consent Agenda 

 

 

TO:  Sherwood City Council 

 

FROM: Joy Chang, Senior Planner 

Through: Julia Hajduk, Community Development Director; Joseph Gall, ICMA-CM, City 

Manager; and Josh Soper, City Attorney 

 

SUBJECT: Resolution 2020-057, Authorizing the City Manager to execute a contract with 

Otak to update the Sherwood Zoning and Community Development Code to 

implement House Bill 2001 

 

 

Issue: 

Shall the City Council authorize the City Manager to execute a contract with Otak to update the 

Sherwood Zoning and Community Development Code to implement House Bill 2001? 

 

Background: 

In 2019, the Oregon legislature passed, and the Governor signed into law, HB 2001 and HB 

2003—legislation aimed at increasing the production of needed housing in the state. All cities in 

the Metro area are required to implement House Bill 2001 by June 30, 2022.  

 

Oregon Department of Land Conservation and Development (DLCD) established a program to 

provide planning assistance to communities to implement the requirements of HB 2001 and was 

accepting applications to fund consulting services for planning efforts to complete these projects. 

The City has identified consulting services as a need to support an update to the Sherwood Zoning 

and Community Development Code to comply with House Bill 2001.  

 

Last June, the City applied for grant funding to help implement HB 2001 through the Planning 

Assistance Grant from the DLCD. In July, the City was awarded a $100,000 Planning Assistance 

Grant to implement HB 2001.    

  

On July 21, 2020, the City issued a Request for ‘Letters of Interest’ from Sherwood’s on-call 

planning consultant firms, asking interested firms to submit their qualifications and proposed scope 

of work. Community Development Staff reviewed the five submitted proposals and unanimously 

recommended Otak as the most qualified consultant for the project. 

 

Otak and Community Development staff with input from the city’s local DLCD representative have 

prepared and refined a scope of work, schedule, and budget that provides a process and product 

that reflects the City’s needs.   

 

Approval of the resolution will authorize the City Manager to enter into a contract with Otak, not to 

exceed $100,000.  

15



 

Resolution 2020-057, Staff Report 
September 1, 2020 
Page 2 of 2 

 

Financials: 

The funding for the cost of this consultant work is included FY 2020-2021 budget and will be 

reimbursed through the DLCD planning assistance grant.   

 

Recommendation: 

Staff respectfully requests City Council adoption of Resolution 2020-057 authorizing the City 

Manager to execute and sign a contract with Otak to update the Sherwood Zoning and Community 

Development Code to implement House Bill 2001.  

16



DRAFT 

Resolution 2020-057 
September 1, 2020 
Page 1 of 1, with Exhibit A (10 pgs) 

 
 
 
 
 
 

 
RESOLUTION 2020-057 

 
AUTHORIZING THE CITY MANAGER TO EXECUTE A CONTRACT WITH OTAK TO UPDATE  

THE SHERWOOD ZONING AND COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT CODE TO  
IMPLEMENT HOUSE BILL 2001 

 
WHEREAS, the Oregon legislature passed, and the Governor signed into law, HB 2001 and HB 2003 

(2019)--legislation aimed at increasing the production of needed housing in the state; and 

 

WHEREAS, all cities in the Metro area are required to implement House Bill 2001 by June 30, 2022; and 

 

WHEREAS, the City applied for grant funding to help implement HB 2001 through the Planning Assistance 

Grant from the Department of Land Conservation and Development; and 

 

WHEREAS, the City was awarded a $100,000 Planning Assistance Grant to implement HB 2001; and 

 

WHEREAS, the City issued a Request for ‘Letters of Interest’ from Sherwood’s on-call planning consultant 

firms, asking interested firms to submit their qualifications and proposed scope of work.; and 

 

WHEREAS, the Community Development Staff reviewed the five submitted proposals and unanimously 

recommended Otak as the most qualified consultant for the project; and 

 

WHEREAS, Otak, and Community Development staff worked collaboratively to prepare and refine a scope 

of work, schedule, and budget that provides a process and product that reflects the City’s needs, all of 

which are included in the contract attached hereto as Exhibit A.  

 

NOW, THEREFORE, THE CITY OF SHERWOOD RESOLVES AS FOLLOWS: 

 

Section 1. The Sherwood City Council hereby authorizes the City Manager to execute a contract with 

Otak in a form substantially similar to Exhibit A, attached hereto. 

 

Section 2. This Resolution shall be effective upon its approval and adoption.  

 

Duly passed by the City Council this 1st day of September, 2020. 

 
              
        Keith Mays, Mayor 
Attest: 
 
      
Sylvia Murphy, MMC, City Recorder 

17



Professional Services Contract 
Revised February 2019 

Page 1 of 7 

[Insert Division] 
[Insert Department] 

22560 SW Pine St. 
Sherwood, OR  97140 

503-925-2308

Home of the Tualatin River National Wildlife Refuge

CONTRACT FOR PROFESSIONAL SERVICES 
PROJECT NAME:  Sherwood HB 2001 Code Update  

CONTRACT PARTIES: City of Sherwood 
[hereafter called City] 

and  Otak 

[hereafter called Consultant] 

C.O.S. PROJECT MANAGER:  Erika Palmer, Planning Manager 

ACCOUNT #: FUND #: DEPT: JOB #: 

VENDOR #: URA RES: PHASE: 

SCOPE of WORK: Attached as Exhibit A FEE SCHEDULE: Attached as Exhibit B 

SCHEDULE of  WORK: effective date: September 1, 2020 expiration date: June 30, 2020 

PAYMENT: City agrees to pay Consultant based on 
the Fee Schedule an amount not to exceed 

$100,000 
for the Scope of Work. 

A performance bond in the amount of the maximum contract payment amount set forth immediately above, and a payment 
bond in the amount of 50% of the performance bond amount,  are  are not required for this Contract. 

CONSULTANT DATA, REGISTRATION, and SIGNATURE 

CONSULTANT FIRM: Otak LIC #: 

ADDRESS: 

808 SW Third Avenue, 
Suite 800 
Portland, OR 97204 

VOICE: 
Phone (503) 287-6825 

FAX: 
Fax (503) 415-2304 

CONTACT: Li Aligood TITLE: Senior Planner / Project Manager 

I, the undersigned, agree to perform the work outlined in this Contract in accordance with the terms and conditions listed on pages 2-6 and 
made part of this Contract, and in accordance with the exhibits attached and made part of this Contract.  I certify, under penalty of perjury, 
that I/my business is not in violation of any Oregon tax laws; and certify that I am an independent contractor as defined in ORS 670.600. 

CONSULTANT: 

signature date 

CITY OF SHERWOOD APPROVALS (consult the City’s Delegation of Contracting Authority policy for requirements) 

PROJECT MANAGER: 

signature date 

DEPARTMENT DIRECTOR: 

signature date 

FINANCE DIRECTOR: 

signature date 

CITY MANAGER: 

CITY ATTORNEY 
Approved as to Form: 

signature date 

18



Professional Services Contract 
Revised February 2019 

Page 2 of 7 

  signature 
 

 date 

19



Professional Services Contract 
Revised February 2019 

Page 3 of 7 

 
STANDARD CONTRACT PROVISIONS 

(These provisions not to be altered without approval of the City Attorney.) 

 
1. Access to Records 

The Consultant shall maintain, and the City of Sherwood ("City") and its duly authorized representatives shall have 
access during normal business hours to the books, documents, papers, and records of the Consultant which are 
directly pertinent to the specific Contract for the purpose of making audit, examination, excerpts, and transcripts for a 
period of three years after final payment.  Copies of applicable records shall be made available upon reasonable 
request.  Payment for cost of copies is reimbursable by the City. 

 
2. Audits 

(a) The City, either directly or through a designated representative, at City’s expense except as provided in 

subsection 2(b), may conduct financial and performance audits of the billings and services specified in this 
Contract at any time in the course of the Contract and during the three (3) year period established by section 1, 
Access to Records.  Audits will be conducted in accordance with generally accepted auditing standards as 

promulgated in Government Auditing Standards by the Comptroller General of the United States General 
Accounting Office. 

(b) If an audit discloses that payments to the Consultant were in excess of the amount to which the Consultant was 

entitled, then the Consultant shall repay the amount of the excess to the City. If the payments to the Consultant 
were in excess of the amount to which the Consultant was entitled by five percent (5%) or more, then 
Consultant shall additionally repay to the City the reasonable costs of the audit performed under subsection 
2(a). 

(c) If any audit shows performance of services is not efficient in accordance with Government Auditing Standards, 

or that the program is not effective in accordance with Government Auditing Standards, the City may pursue 
remedies provided under section 5, Early Termination of Contract and section 7, Remedies. 

 
3. Effective Date and Duration 

The passage of the Contract expiration date, or early termination of this Contract, shall not extinguish, prejudice, or 
limit either party's right to enforce this Contract with respect to any default or defect in performance that has not 
been cured. 

 
4. Payments 

City agrees to pay Consultant based on the fee schedule in Exhibit B, attached hereto and incorporated herein by 
reference, in a total sum not to exceed the amount indicated on the cover page of this Contract, for the scope of 
work identified in Exhibit A, attached hereto and incorporated herein by reference. Consultant shall submit detailed 
written invoices to City for work performed, referencing the work performed and the fee schedule in Exhibit B, at a 
frequency not to exceed one invoice per calendar month, and no later than sixty (60) calendar days after 
performance of the work referenced in the invoice. Within thirty (30) calendar days of receipt of each invoice, City 
shall submit payment to Consultant or shall notify Consultant in writing of any dispute with regard to such invoice.  

 
5. Early Termination of Contract 

(a) The City and the Consultant, by mutual written agreement, may terminate this Contract at any time. 
(b) The City, by written notice to the Consultant, may terminate this Contract for any reason deemed appropriate in 

its sole discretion, such termination to be effective thirty (30) calendar days after the effective date of such 
notice or at such later date as specified in such notice. 

(c) City may terminate this Contract by written notice to Consultant, such termination to be effective immediately 

upon the effective date of such notice or at such later date as specified in such notice, upon the occurrence of 
any of the following events: 

(1) City fails to receive funding, or appropriations, limitations, or other expenditure authority at levels 
sufficient to pay for Consultant's work; 

(2) Federal or state laws, regulations, or guidelines are modified or interpreted in such a way that either the 
work under this Contract is prohibited or City is prohibited from paying for such work from the planned 
funding source; 

(3) Consultant no longer holds any license or certificate that is required to perform the work, or any license 
or certificate required by statute, rule, regulation, or other law to be held by the Consultant to provide 
the services required by this Contract is for any reason denied, revoked, suspended, not renewed, or 
changed in such a way that Consultant no longer meets requirements for such license or certificate. 

(4) City determines, in its sole discretion, that Consultant has violated section 25, Information 
Technology. 

(d) Either the City or the Consultant may terminate this Contract in the event of a breach of the Contract by the 

other.  Prior to such termination, however, the party seeking the termination shall give to the other party written 
notice of the breach and of the party's intent to terminate.  If the party has not entirely cured the breach within 
fifteen (15) calendar days of the notice, then the party giving the notice may terminate the Contract at any time 
thereafter by giving a written notice of termination. 

20



Professional Services Contract 
Revised February 2019 

Page 4 of 7 

(e) Upon receiving a written notice of termination of this Contract, Consultant shall immediately cease all activities 

under this Contract, unless City expressly directs otherwise in such notice.  Upon termination of this Contract, 
Consultant shall deliver to City all documents, information, works in progress, and other property that are or 
would be deliverables had the Contract been completed.   

 
6. Payment on Early Termination  

(a) In the event of termination under subsection 5(a) or 5(b), Early Termination of Contract hereof, the City shall 

pay the Consultant for work performed in accordance with the Contract prior to the termination date. 
(b) In the event of termination under subsection 5(d), Early Termination of Contract hereof, by the Consultant due 

to a breach by the City, the City shall pay the Consultant as provided in subsection (a) of this section. 
(c) In the event of termination under subsection 5(d), Early Termination of Contract hereof, by the City due to a 

breach by the Consultant, the City shall pay the Consultant as provided in subsection (a) of this section, subject 
to set off of excess costs, as provided for in section 7(a), Remedies. 

(d) In the event of early termination, all of the Consultant's work product will become and remain property of the 

City. 
 
7. Remedies 

(a) In the event of termination under subsection 5(d), Early Termination of Contract, hereof, by the City due to a 

breach by the Consultant, the City may complete the work itself, by contract with another consultant, or by a 
combination thereof.  In the event the cost of completing the work exceeds the remaining unpaid balance of the 
total compensation provided under this Contract, then the Consultant shall pay to the City the amount of the 
reasonable excess. 

(b) The remedies provided to the City under section 5, Early Termination of Contract and section 7, Remedies 

for a breach by the Consultant shall not be exclusive.  The City also shall be entitled to any other equitable and 
legal remedies that are available. 

(c) In the event of breach of this Contract by the City, the Consultant's remedy shall be limited to termination of the 
Contract and receipt of payment as provided in section 5(d), Early Termination of Contract and section 6(b), 
Payment on Early Termination hereof. 

 
8. Subcontracts and Assignment 

Consultant shall not subcontract, assign or transfer any of the work scheduled under this Contract, without the prior 
written consent of the City.  Notwithstanding City approval of a sub-consultant, the Consultant shall remain obligated 
for full performance hereunder, and the City shall incur no obligation other than its obligations to the Consultant 
hereunder.  The Consultant agrees that if sub-consultants are employed in the performance of this Contract, the 
Consultant and its sub-consultants are subject to the requirements and sanctions of ORS Chapter 656, Workers’ 
Compensation. Consultant further agrees that Consultant will be solely responsible for ensuring any sub-consultants 
fully comply with the terms of this Contract, and that Consultant will be solely liable for actions or omissions of sub-
consultants under this Contract. 

 
9. Compliance with Applicable Law 

In connection with its activities under this Contract, Consultant shall use the standard of care in its profession to 
comply with all applicable federal, state and local laws and regulations.   
 

10. Indemnity - Standard of Care 

If Consultant's services involve engineering or planning consulting, the standard of care applicable to Consultant's 
service will be the degree of skill and diligence normally employed by professional engineers or planning consultants 
performing the same or similar services at the time such services are performed.  Consultant will re-perform any 
services not meeting this standard without additional compensation.  Consultant acknowledges responsibility for 
liability arising out of the performance of this Contract and shall defend, indemnify, and hold harmless City and its 
officers, agents, volunteers, and employees against any and all liability, settlements, loss, damage, costs, and 
expenses arising from or in connection with any action, suit, demand, or claim resulting or allegedly resulting from, 
attributable in whole or in part to, or in any way connected with Consultant's and Consultant’s officers’, agents’, 
volunteers’, and employees’ acts, omissions, activities, or services in the course of performing this Contract. 
Consultant's activities are deemed to include those of subcontractors. This section will survive the termination or 
revocation of this Contract, regardless of cause. 

 
11. Insurance 

Consultant shall obtain at its expense, and maintain for the term of this contract, occurrence form commercial 
general liability and commercial automobile liability insurance, including coverage for all owned, hired, and non-
owned automobiles, for the protection of Consultant, the City, its Councilors, officers, agents, volunteers, and 
employees. Such coverage shall be primary and non-contributory. Coverage shall include personal injury, bodily 
injury, including death, and broad form property damage, including loss of use of property, occurring in the course of 
or in any way related to Consultant's operations, in an amount not less than $2,000,000 combined single limit per 
occurrence and $2,000,000 aggregate.  Such insurance shall name the City as an additional insured.  Consultant, its 
subcontractors, if any, and all employers providing work, labor, or materials under this Contract, who are subject 
employers under the Oregon Workers’ Compensation Law, shall comply with ORS 656.017, which requires them to 
provide workers compensation coverage that satisfies Oregon law for all their subject workers. Out-of-state 

21



Professional Services Contract 
Revised February 2019 

Page 5 of 7 

employers must provide workers' compensation coverage for their workers that complies with ORS 656.126. 
Employers' Liability Insurance with coverage limits of not less than $1,000,000 each accident shall be included. 
Consultant shall obtain at its expense and maintain for the term of this contract, professional errors and omissions 
liability insurance for the protection of Consultant and its employees, insuring against bodily injury and property 
damage and arising out of or resulting from Consultant's errors, negligent acts, omissions, activities or services, in 
an amount not less than $2,000,000 combined single limit per occurrence, with an annual aggregate limit not less 
than $2,000,000.  Such insurance shall be endorsed to include contractual liability. If Consultant obtains professional 
errors and omissions liabliity insurance on a claims made form, Consultant shall maintain three (3) years of tail 
coverage for the three (3) years after the accepted completion of the Contract by the City. All policies will provide for 
not less than thirty (30) calendar days' written notice to the City before they may be canceled. Prior to commencing 
work under this Contract, and thereafter upon request, Consultant shall furnish the City certificates of insurance and 
necessary endorsements evidencing the effective dates, amounts, and types of insurance required by this Contract.  
Additionally, if Consultant is subject to the professional errors and omissions liability insurance tail coverage 
requirement under this section, Consultant shall furnish the City, upon the accepted completion of the Contract by 
the City,  a certificate of insurance and necessary endorsements evidencing the effective dates, amounts, and types 
of insurance meeting said requirement. 

 
12. Ownership of Work Product 

All work products of the Consultant, which result from this Contract, are the exclusive property of the City; provided, 
that Consultant is hereby granted an irrevocable, royalty free, worldwide, perpetual license to use, reproduce, copy, 
distribute and make derivatives of its work product, regardless of whether Consultant has resigned, this Contract has 
been terminated, Consultant’s scope of services has been modified, or Consultant’s services under this Contract 
have been completed. 

 
13. Nondiscrimination 

Consultant agrees to comply with all applicable requirements of federal and state civil rights and rehabilitation 
statutes, rules, and regulations.  Consultant also shall comply with the Americans With Disabilities Act of 1990 (Pub 
I. No. 101-336) including Title II of that Act, ORS 659A.142, and all regulations and administrative rules established 
pursuant to those laws. 

 
14. Successors in Interest 

The provisions of this Contract shall be binding upon and shall inure to the benefit of the parties hereto, and their 
respective successors and approved assigns. 

 
15. Severability 

The parties agree that if any term or provision of this Contract is declared by a court of competent jurisdiction to be 
illegal or in conflict with any law, the validity of the remaining terms and provisions shall not be affected, and the 
rights and obligations of the parties shall be construed and enforced as if the Contract did not contain the particular 
term or provision held to be invalid. 

 
16. Waiver 

The failure of the City to enforce any provision of this Contract shall not constitute a waiver by the City of that or any 
other provision. 

 
17. Errors 

The Consultant shall perform such additional work as may be necessary to correct errors in the work required under 
this Contract without undue delays and without additional cost. 

 
18. Governing Law; Forum 

The provisions of this Contract shall be construed in accordance with the provisions of the laws of the State of 
Oregon, without regard to conflicts of law principles.  Any action or suits involving any question arising under this 
Contract must be brought in the appropriate court in Washington County, Oregon or, only if there is no Oregon state 
court jurisdiction, the United States District Court for the District of Oregon, and each party hereby submits to the 
exclusive jurisdiction of those courts for purposes of any such proceeding. Any trial will be to the court without a jury. 

 
19. Amendments 

The City and the Consultant may amend this Contract at any time only by written amendment executed by the City 
and the Consultant.   

 

22



Professional Services Contract 
Revised February 2019 

Page 6 of 7 

20. License 

Prior to beginning work under this Contract, the Consultant shall provide a professional registration number in the 
space provided on page one of this Contract, if required by the City. 

 
21. Payment to Vendors and Sub-consultants 

Consultant must promptly pay any persons supplying services, material, or equipment to Consultant in its 
performance of the work under this Contract.  Consultant shall not take or fail to take any action in a manner that 
causes the City or any materials that the Consultant provides hereunder to be subject to any claim or lien of any 
person without the City's prior written consent. 
 

22. Exhibits 

Each document that is attached to this Contract as an Exhibit shall be labeled with an Exhibit letter and listed below.  
Provisions and covenants contained in Exhibits are hereby incorporated by reference and shall become a part of this 
Contract as if fully set forth herein.  If any item in an Exhibit contradicts this Contract, this Contract shall take 
precedence over the conflicting item in the Exhibit. 
 
 List of Exhibits 

Exhibit A – Scope of Work 
Exhibit B – Fee Schedule 
 

23. Merger Clause 

This Contract and attached exhibits constitutes the entire agreement between the parties.  No waiver, consent, 
modification, or change of terms of this Contract shall bind either party unless in writing and signed by both parties.  
Such waiver, consent, modification, or change, if made, shall be effective only in specific instances and for the 
specific purpose given.  There are no understandings, agreements, or representations, oral or written, not specified 
herein regarding this Contract.  Consultant, by the signature of its authorized representative, hereby acknowledges 
that he or she has read this Contract, understands it and agrees to be bound by its terms and conditions. 

 
24. Mediation 

(a) Should any dispute arise between the parties to this Contract it is agreed that such dispute will be submitted to a 
mediator prior to any litigation and the parties hereby expressly agree that no claim or dispute arising under the 
terms of this Contract shall be resolved other than first through mediation and only in the event said mediation 
efforts fail, through litigation.  

(b) The parties shall exercise good faith efforts to select a mediator who shall be compensated equally by both 
parties.  Mediation will be conducted in Portland, Oregon, unless both parties agree in writing otherwise.  Both 
parties agree to exercise good faith efforts to resolve disputes covered by this section through this mediation 
process.  If a party requests mediation and the other party fails to respond within ten (10) calendar days, or if 
the parties fail to agree on a mediator within ten (10) calendar days, a mediator shall be appointed by the 
presiding judge of the Washington County Circuit Court upon the request of either party.  The parties shall have 
any rights at law or in equity with respect to any dispute not covered by this Section. 
 

25. Information Technology 

If Consultant access to City’s information technology systems is necessary for the performance of this Contract: 
(a) Consultant agrees to sign and be bound by the terms of the City’s then-current Contractor Security Policy, as it 

may be amended by City from time to time during the course of this Contract. 
(b) Consultant shall use the standard of care in its profession to safeguard any and all usernames, passwords, and 

other confidential information relating to accessing said systems; will limit access to such information to the 
smallest number of Consultant’s employees and/or subcontractors as is reasonably practical; and will provide 
City with the names of all such employees and/or subcontractors who will be provided such information; 

(c) Consultant will not attempt to access any City information technology resources beyond those necessary for 
performance of this Contract; and 

(d) Consultant will be solely liable for any damages to City’s information technology systems, data breaches, and 
any other losses or damages relating to Consultant’s access to City’s information technology systems. 

 
26. Notice 

Any notice required to be provided to City under this Contract shall be provided to the City Project Manager specified 
on the cover page of this Contract at the address for the City specified on the cover page of this Contract. Any 
notices required to be provided to Consultant under this Contract shall be provided to the Consultant Contact 
specified on the cover page of this Contract at the address for the Consultant specified on the cover page of this 
Contract. Notices shall be made by personal service, in which case they are effective on the date of service, or by 
certified mail, in which case they are effective on the date of delivery, or if delivery is refused, upon the date of 
delivery refusal. Either party may alter the person designated for receipt of notices under this Contract by written 
notice to the other party. 

 
27. Miscellaneous Terms 

23



Professional Services Contract 
Revised February 2019 

Page 7 of 7 

(a) Consultant Identification.  Consultant shall furnish to City Consultant's employer identification number, as 
designated by the Internal Revenue Service, or, if the Internal Revenue Service has designated no employer 
identification number, Consultant's Social Security number. 

(b) Duty to Inform.  Consultant shall give prompt written notice to City if, at any time during the performance of this 
Contract, Consultant becomes aware of actual or potential problems, faults, or defects in the project, any 
nonconformance with the Contract, or with any federal, state, or local law, rule, or regulation, or has any 
objection to any decision or order made by City.  Any delay or failure on the part of City to provide a written 
response to Consultant shall constitute neither agreement with nor acquiescence in Consultant's statement or 
claim, and shall not constitute a waiver of any of City’s rights. 

(c) Independent Contractor.  Consultant is an independent contractor for all purposes and shall be entitled to no 
compensation other than the compensation expressly provided by this Contract. 

(d) Time is of the Essence. Time is of the essence under this Contract. 
(e) Authority. The parties signing this Contract are authorized to sign and to bind their respective contracting parties 

to the terms of the Contract. 
(f) Conflict of Interest. Except with City’s prior written consent, Consultant shall not engage in any activity, or 

accept any employment, interest or contribution that would, or would reasonably appear, to compromise 
Consultant’s professional judgment with respect to this Contract, including, without limitation, concurrent 
employment on any project in direct competition with the subject of this Contract. 

(g) No Third-Party Beneficiaries. City and Consultant are the only parties to this Contract and are the only parties 
entitled to enforce its terms. Nothing in this Contract gives, is intended to give, or shall be construed to give or 
provide, any benefit or right, whether directly or indirectly or otherwise, to third persons unless such third 
persons are individually identified by name herein and expressly described as intended beneficiaries of the 
terms of this Contract. 

 
28. Statutory Provisions 

(a) As provided by ORS 279B.220, Consultant shall: 
(1) Make payment promptly, as due, to all persons supplying to Consultant labor or material for the 

performance of the work provided for in this Contract. 
(2) Pay all contributions or amounts due the Industrial Accident Fund from the Consultant or subcontractor 

incurred in the performance of this Contract. 
(3) Not permit any lien or claim to be filed or prosecuted against the state or a county, school district, 

municipality, municipal corporation or subdivision thereof, on account of any labor or material furnished. 
(4) Pay to the Department of Revenue all sums withheld from employees under ORS 316.167. 

(b) As provided by ORS 279B.230, Consultant shall promptly, as due, make payment to any person, copartnership, 
association, or corporation furnishing medical, surgical, and hospital care services or other needed care and 
attention, incident to sickness or injury, to the employees of Consultant, of all sums that Consultant agrees to 
pay for the services and all moneys and sums that Consultant collected or deducted from the wages of 
employees under any law, contract, or agreement for the purpose of providing or paying for the services.  It is a 
condition of this Contract that all employers working under this Contract are either subject employers that will 
comply with ORS 656.017 or employers that are exempt under ORS 656.126. 

(c) As provided by ORS 279A.110, Consultant may not discriminate against a subcontractor in the awarding of a 
subcontract because the subcontractor is a minority, women, or an emerging small business enterprise certified 
under ORS 200.055 or a business enterprise that is owned or controlled by or that employs a disabled veteran, 
as defined in ORS 408.225. If Consultant violates this subsection, City may regard the violation as a breach of 
contract that permits the City to: (1) terminate this Contract; or (2) exercise any remedies for breach of contract 
that are reserved in this Contract. 

(d) As required by ORS 279B.235: 
i. Consultant's employees shall be paid at least time and a half for all overtime worked, except for 

individuals under personal services contracts who are excluded under ORS 653.010 to 653.261 or 
under 29 U.S.C. 201 to 209 from receiving overtime. Consultant must give notice in writing to 
employees who work on this Contract, either at the time of hire or before commencement of work on 
this Contract, or by posting a notice in a location frequented by employees, of the number of hours per 
day and days per week that the employees may be required to work. 

ii. Consultant must comply with ORS 652.220 and shall not unlawfully discriminate against any of 
Consultant's employees in the payment of wages or other compensation for work of comparable 
character on the basis of an employee’s membership in a protected class. Consultant's compliance 
with this section constitutes a material element of this Contract and a failure to comply constitutes a 
breach that entitles City to terminate this Contract for cause. 

iii. Consultant may not prohibit any of Consultant's employees from discussing the employee’s rate of 
wage, salary, benefits, or other compensation with another employee or another person.  Consultant 
may not retaliate against an employee who discusses the employee’s rate of wage, salary, benefits, or 
other compensation with another employee or another person. 

[SIGNATURES ON COVER PAGE TO CONTRACT] 

24



Scope of Work – Exhibit A 
 
 
Task 1: Project Kickoff, Planning and Management 
The Otak team will work closely with City staff to understand the context for this work and identify City 
goals and expectations for specific outcomes, as well as to develop key messages for the project. At the 
start of the project, Li will schedule a kick-off meeting (via virtual platform) with our team and City staff to 
establish a mutual understanding of project scope, timeline, key milestones and communication protocols. 
Li will also prepare a detailed project schedule to help track progress and ensure timeliness of 
deliverables and reviews throughout. 
 
This task includes project management elements including team coordination, regular communication 
with City staff, invoicing, and documentation to ensure the project remains on schedule and meets 
budget expectations. 
 
Task 1 Deliverables 

 Summary of major tasks and action items 
  Detailed project schedule 
 Key messages for the project 

 
Task 2: Review of Existing Conditions (Code Audit) and Initial Outreach 
Serah and Li will review existing documents provided by the City, including the Housing Needs Analysis, 
Comprehensive Plan, Title 16, Municipal Code (Sherwood Zoning and Community Development Code), 
and any other relevant materials. Using this information, Serah will prepare a brief memo that 
summarizes the findings, evaluates the City’s current level of compliance with HB 2001, and 
recommends approaches to resolving areas that do not meet HB 2001 requirements. 
In coordination with City staff, the Otak team will determine the appropriate stakeholders to interview 
and/or conduct focus groups with. In addition to the stakeholder groups identified in the Letter of Intent, 
it may be useful to convene a focus group of middle housing developers to discuss the unique 
opportunities and challenges middle housing presents, including regulatory pathways. 
The Otak team will conduct the interviews and/or focus groups and will share the findings of the code 
audit with them. These discussions will also provide valuable information about the community’s desires 
and concerns related to middle housing. 
 
Task 2 Deliverables 

 Draft and Final Memorandum: Code Audit 
Assumes one round of City review and comment on the draft memo before it is finalized. 

 List of stakeholder interviewees and summary of stakeholder interview/focus group 
comments and themes 

 
Task 3: Initial Draft Code and Design Standards 
In addition to the Code Audit and stakeholder interviews/focus groups occurring in Task 2, the draft 
development and design standards will be informed by the results of a community survey. Ben and Li 
will work with City staff to identify images for an online survey or visual preference survey and will 
provide a summary of the survey results and recommended implementation. 
 
Li and Serah will work closely with City staff to evaluate the Code Audit and stakeholder responses and 
will prepare recommendations and draft initial development and design code language that will 
addresses the form and scale of middle housing types. The Otak team will also provide an evaluation of 
the consistency of the draft code language with the Community Vision and the results of the housing 
survey. Serah and Li, with support from Otak’s architecture group, will lead creation of new design 
standards for small lots and multifamily projects. These design standards will focus on providing the 
appropriate mass and scale for new housing types being introduced to existing neighborhoods and 
include façade articulation elements for visual interest and compatibility. The draft code will also include 
a clear and objective path to approval, which Robin will assist with drafting and review for ease of 
implementation. 

25



 
Ben will lead the Otak design team in preparing code graphics and design type prototypes to illustrate 
the design and development standards. These graphics can be included in the code to clarify the City’s 
intent for the standards and can support the public workshop/open house. 
Li will work closely with City staff to arrange a public workshop/open house. Due to the current COVID- 
19 precautions, it is assumed that this workshop/open house will be conducted virtually. The Otak team 
will prepare an online platform using a GIS story map, graphics, documents, and other information as 
needed to tell the story of the proposed code. A summary of public input will be prepared for the City. 
 
Task 3 Deliverables 

 Images for online survey/visual preference survey 
  Summary of results from online survey/visual preference survey 
  Draft development and design standards for middle housing 

Assumes one round of City review and comment on the draft before it is finalized. 
 Draft objective review and approval standards 

Assumes one round of City review and comment on the draft before it is finalized. 
 Design standard graphics 

Assumes one round of City review and comment on the draft graphics before they are 
finalized. 

 Presentation materials for the public workshop/open house Web-based workshop for 
community review of the proposal and a method to submit comments and question 

 Summary of comments from public workshop/open house 
 
Task 4: Final Draft Development Code Recommendations and Design Standards 
Serah and Li will incorporate input from the public workshop/open house and City staff review into a 
hearings-ready code amendment package. This package will include development standards for middle 
housing on small lots; design standards to address the form and scale of these housing types; graphics 
to illustrate the standards (optional but recommended); and clear and objective review procedures. 
The code and standards will be reviewed against HB 2001 and the City’s documents to confirm 
consistency between the community’s vision and the draft regulations. 
 
Task 4 Deliverables 

 Adoption-ready code package 
 
Project Schedule and Budget 
We are prepared to begin work immediately upon receiving a Notice-to-Proceed and signed 
Professional Service Agreement. We understand that these amendments must be adopted by 
June 20, 2022. The project schedule and budget in Exhibit B are based on that timeline and the scope of 
work, and assuming a September 1notice to proceed. 
 
Our estimated fee is slightly below the City’s maximum budget, which allows for additional 
graphics or consultant support during the adoption process, such as attendance at public 
hearings, as needed. 

Otak Key Staff  

Li Alligood, AICP, LEED ND AP, Senior Planner/Project Manager as Project Manager. Li will 
serve as the day-to-day project manager and Otak contact person. Li has more than 12 years’ 
experience in public and private sector planning, managing projects of various sizes and levels of 
complexity. Li’s experience includes code development and adoption and public-sector development 
review with the City of Milwaukie, as well as private-sector due diligence and development risk 
assessment. Li’s work with the development community in jurisdictions around the state provides 
insight into how development and design standards can either support or contravene the types of 
development envisioned by the community. She will apply that perspective to the draft code to 
ensure that the proposed standards do not inadvertently discourage the types of middle housing the 
City is trying to accommodate. 

26



 

Serah Breakstone, AICP, Senior Planner/Project Manager as Lead Code Analyst. Serah will 
serve as lead code analyst. Serah has over 14 years of experience helping cities across Oregon 
evaluate and update their zoning codes to achieve desired outcomes. She has worked in a number 
of jurisdictions in the Portland Metro area and beyond, and brings a toolbox of best practices to all 
her code development work. Many of those code update projects involved identifying needed code 
graphics and working with designers to create illustrative representations of clear and objective 
standards, particularly for housing. Serah is very familiar with the middle housing regulatory 
framework in Oregon and recently worked with the Department of Land Conservation and 
Development on implementing rule language for House Bill 2001. 

 

Ben Bortolazzo, Int’l. AIA Assoc., Director of Planning & Design as Urban Design Lead. Ben 
will lead the urban design efforts and identification and development of the middle housing form and 
scale that complements existing neighborhoods and implements the community’s vision. Ben is 
trained as an architect and urban designer and has designed many middle housing types in his 
career. Ben has experience in bridging the gap between code language and its concrete application 
through his involvement in private and public development at different scales. Ben is also a member 
of the Portland Planning and Sustainability Commission which recently drafted the Residential Infill 
Project, a project that has informed missing middle housing legislation at the State level. 

 

Robin Scholetzky, AICP, LEED ND AP, Land Use Planner as Implementation Reviewer. Robin 
will apply her extensive experience as an on-call planner for several small jurisdictions to evaluate 
the draft code and identify potential challenges to staff implementation. The City of Sherwood has a 
small Planning department and an overly complex review process could be onerous for applicants 
and reviewers alike. Robin has provided on-call development review services for the City of 
Tillamook, the City of Astoria, and communities in Washington County. Her role will be to provide 
suggestions and recommendations for how to strike the appropriate balance between regulations 
and implementation for the City of Sherwood. 

 

Fee Schedule Exhibit B 

Task Start Complete Fee 

1: Project Kickoff, Planning & 

Management 

 

(project management is ongoing) 

Sept. 2020 June 2020 $7,000 

2a: Code Audit Sept. 2020 Nov. 2020 $8,000 

City Review Nov. 2020 Dec. 2020 - 

2b: Stakeholder Interviews/Workshops Jan. 2021 Feb. 2021 $4,500 

3a: Initial Draft Code and Design 

Standards 

Feb. 2021 Apr. 2021 $60,000 

City Review Apr. 2021 May 2021 - 

3b: Public Workshop/Open House June 2021 June 2021 $7,000 

4: Final Draft Code and Design 

Standards 

May 2021 June 2021 $12,000 

City Review July 2021 Sept. 2021 - 

City Adoption Process Oct. 2021 June 2022 - 

Total Otak Timeline Sept. 2020 June 2021 $98,500 

 

27



 

 

Proclamation 
 

September as National Preparedness Month 

And September 1-7, 2020 as Home Inventory Week 
 

WHEREAS, each September is recognized as National Preparedness Month; and 

 

WHEREAS, Oregonians have witnesses and experienced natural disasters in our own community; 

and 

 

WHEREAS, every community member can take active steps to protect their families and neighbors 

from natural and manmade disasters; and 

 

WHEREAS, every family and business in Sherwood, Oregon is encouraged to take active steps to 

be financially secure after a disaster; and 

 

WHEREAS, every community member sis encouraged to make sure they are properly insured 

against, fire, flood, earthquake and storms; and  

 

WHEREAS, every community member is encouraged to create a home inventory to include as part 

of their disaster preparedness kit, 

 

NOW THEREFORE I, Keith Mays, Mayor of the City of Sherwood, do hereby declare September 

as National Preparedness Month and September 1-7, 2020 as 

 

Home Inventory Week 
 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I have hereunto set my hand and caused the seal of the City of 

Sherwood, Oregon to be affixed this 1st day of September, 2020. 

 

 

 

 

 

              

         Keith Mays, Mayor 

        

28



 

Ordinance 2020-007, Staff Report 
September 1, 2020 
Page 1 of 2, with Exhibit 1 (162 pgs)  
 

       Council Meeting Date: September 1, 2020 
 

Agenda Item: Public Hearing (First Reading) 
 

TO:  Sherwood City Council 
 
FROM: Joy Chang, Senior Planner, Planning Staff 
 
Through: Josh Soper, City Attorney, Joseph Gall, ICMA-CM, City Manager and Julia Hajduk, 

Community Development Director 
 
SUBJECT:    Ordinance 2020-007, approving Annexation into the City of Sherwood and 

Clean Water Services District of approximately 29.61 Acres, Comprised of 2 
Tax Lots and Adjacent SW Tonquin Road Right-of-Way within the Tonquin 
Employment Area (First Reading) 

 

 

Issue:  

Shall the City Council approve the proposed annexation (Case File No. LU 2020-012 AN) of 

approximately 29.61 acres of land within the Tonquin Employment Area? 

 

Background:  

The City of Sherwood approved the concept plan for the Tonquin Employment Area in 2010 via 

Ordinance 2010-014. The area remains in Washington County and under County jurisdiction until 

annexation to the City. Under current zoning and agreements, urban development within the area 

cannot occur until annexation occurs. The applicant, Woodburn Industrial Capital Group, is 

proposing to annex two (2) parcels of land and the adjacent right-of-way totaling ±29.61 acres into 

the City of Sherwood under the annexation method detailed in Senate Bill 1573 (2016) and ORS 

Chapter 222. Under this method, a vote of electors in the City is not required as long as 100% of 

the owners of the property proposed to be annexed have petitioned the City to be annexed and 

certain other criteria have been met.  However, it should be noted that, prior to the adoption of 

Senate Bill 1573, in 2012 Sherwood voters authorized annexation of properties in the Tonquin 

Employment Area into the City subject to Council public hearing and approval, thus a public vote 

would not be required regardless of the annexation method proposed. Upon annexation, the 

existing Comprehensive Plan designation of Employment Industrial (EI) will be applied to the 

property, consistent with the adopted Comprehensive Plan/Zone Map.   

 

Clean Water Services provides sanitary sewer treatment and water quality services to urban 

areas within Washington County including within the Sherwood city limits.  The subject properties 

are not currently within the Clean Water Services district boundary.  ORS 199.510(2)(c) stipulates 

that when a city receives services from a district, such as Clean Water Services, the territory 

annexed to the city is also automatically added to the boundaries of the service district.  

Therefore, approval of the annexation ordinance will result in adding the annexed territory to the 

Clean Water Services district.  

 

This application has been submitted under SB 1573 and ORS 199.510(2)(c) and the staff report 

(Exhibit 1) finds that the criteria have been met. The attached staff report reviews the applicable 

criteria that must be considered for annexations and documents how the application meets the 

29



 

Ordinance 2020-007, Staff Report 
September 1, 2020 
Page 2 of 2, with Exhibit 1 (162 pgs)  
 

criteria that make it eligible for annexation under SB 1573. Based on this information and 

analysis, staff recommends approval of the annexation to the City of Sherwood and Clean Water 

Services District. 

 

Alternatives:  

If the City Council finds that the proposed annexation does not meet the criteria identified in SB 

1573 and ORS 199.510(2)(c), it could not approve the Ordinance.  

 

Financial Impacts:  

There are upfront and staff costs associated with processing an annexation; however, the 

applicant is required to pay 100% of costs associated with the annexation, including staff time. 

The applicant has paid a deposit of $7,500 to initiate this annexation.  

 

Should the Council approve this application, the property would be in need of City services, the 

cost of which would be mostly borne by implementing development. The development of the site 

will require the extension of City services (transportation, water, sewer, etc.); however, impacts 

and potential mitigations would be addressed by future land use applications.   

 

Recommendation:  

Staff respectfully recommends that the City Council hold the first public hearing on Ordinance 

2020-007 approving Annexation into the City of Sherwood and Clean Water Services District of 

approximately 29.61 Acres, Comprised of 2 Tax Lots and adjacent SW Tonquin Road Right-of-

Way within the Tonquin Employment Area.  

 

30



LU 2020-012 AN Woodburn Industrial Capital Group Annexation Page 1 of 17 

Staff Report: August 17, 2020 City of Sherwood 

Staff Report for Woodburn Industrial Capital 
Group (Kerr) Annexation

Hearing:  September 1, 2020 

Case File No: LU 2020-012 AN 

Signed: 
Joy Chang, Senior Planner 

Proposal: The applicant/property owners is seeking approval to annex ±28.17 acres of 
land, including right-of-way into the City of Sherwood under the annexation method 
detailed in Senate Bill 1573 and ORS 222.  Under this method, 100% of the landowners 
have petitioned the City to be annexed. The applicant is also requesting annexation into 
the boundaries of Clean Water Services for the provision of sanitary sewer, storm, and 
surface water management pursuant to ORS 199.510(2)(c).  

I. BACKGROUND

A. Applicant: Woodburn Industrial Capital Group, LLC 
395 Shenandoah Lane NE  
Woodburn, OR 97071 
Contact:  Tim Kerr 
Phone: (971) 235-5003 

Applicant’s Rep.: Read Stapleton, AICP, DOWL 
720 SW Washington Street, Suite 750  
Portland, Oregon 97205  
Phone: (971) 280-8641 rstapleton@dowl.com 

B. Location: The subject property is composed of tax lots 2S133BB00100 and
2S1330000400, located on the east side of SW Tonquin Road, approximately 350-
feet south of Oregon Street. The site is located within the Tonquin Employment
Area. A map of the project area is attached as Exhibit A.

C. Review Type: The City Charter requires a vote on annexation if approved by the
City Council. However, Senate Bill 1573 includes language that supersedes the
City’s Charter, requiring the City Council to take action on an annexation petition
of land submitted by all owners without submitting the proposal to the electors if
the criteria outlined in Section 2(2)(a)-(d) are met. Senate Bill 1573 provides
specific criteria that the City Council must consider and act upon. Consequently,
this application is being processed as a quasi-judicial action. The applicant is also
requesting annexation into the boundaries of Clean Water Services for the
provision of sanitary sewer, storm, and surface water management pursuant to

Exhibit 1Ordinance 2020-007, Exh to Staff Report 
September 1, 2020, Page 1 of 162

31

mailto:rstapleton@dowl.com


 

LU 2020-012 AN Woodburn Industrial Capital Group Annexation Page 2 of 17 

ORS 199.510(2)(c). 

 
D. Public Notice and Hearing:  Notice of the September 1, 2020, and tentative 

September 15, 2020, City Council hearing on the proposed annexation was posted 
in five public locations around town on August 12, 2020, and provided to affected 
agencies and service providers on July 27, 2020. Notice was posted on the subject 
properties on August 12, 2020.  While ORS only requires mailed notice within 250 
feet, the City mailed notice to all property owners within 1,000 feet of the area 
proposed to be annexed on August 12, 2020, in accordance with Sherwood land 
use public hearing notice standards. Notice of the hearing was also provided on 
the August 13, 2020 and August 27, 2020 edition of The Times, a local newspaper. 

 

E. Review Criteria: There are three levels of criteria and requirements, State, 
Regional and City.  For the State, Oregon Revised Statutes (ORS 222) guide the 
process for annexations. Senate Bill 1573 was added to and made a part of ORS 
222.111 to 222.180 and provides specific criteria for deciding city boundary 
changes. ORS 199.510(2)(c) guides the process for annexing to Clean Water 
Services Service district. For the regional level, Metro, the regional government for 
this area, has criteria for reviewing annexations (Metro Code 3.09). In addition, the 
City of Sherwood Comprehensive Plan policies, including the Conceptual Plan for 
the Tonquin Employment Area (which includes the subject site), which are 
applicable and are addressed within this report. 

 
F. History: The project site is 28.17 acres of private properties plus 1.44 acres of right-

of-way for a total of 29.61 acres and is within the Tonquin Employment Area (TEA) 
Concept Plan.   

 
 The Tonquin Employment Area (previously referred to as Study Area 48) was 

brought into the Sherwood Urban Growth Boundary in 2004 via Metro Ordinance 
04-1040B to provide for needed industrial land. The entire TEA is comprised of 
approximately 300 acres. In October 2010, the City approved the concept plan and 
associated implementing Comprehensive Plan and Map Amendments via 
Ordinance 2010-014. 

 

Even though the TEA was not in the City of Sherwood boundary, in 2012 under 
Measure No. 34-202, residents of Sherwood voted to support annexation when 
property owners choose to submit requests to the City Council. 

 
 A TEA market analysis, business recruitment strategy and implementation plan 

were completed in June 2015 and formally accepted by the City Council under 
Resolution 2015-051.  The implementation plan provides an in-depth analysis of 
issues and opportunities along with specific recommendations that the City could 
consider to help provide incentives or remove obstacles to encourage 
development in the area.  

 

In 2016, Senate Bill 1573 changed the requirements for areas where 100% of the 

Ordinance 2020-007, Exh to Staff Report 
September 1, 2020, Page 2 of 162

32



 

LU 2020-012 AN Woodburn Industrial Capital Group Annexation Page 3 of 17 

owners petition the City.  Public votes are no longer required or permitted in the 
annexation requests assuming certain criteria laid out in SB1573 are satisfied.  

 
G. Site Characteristics and Existing Zoning: The proposed annexation area includes 

approximately 29.61 acres of land, including right-of-way (extending to the west 
line of SW Tonquin Road and the Section 33 line to the north). The site is currently 
vacant and undeveloped.  The properties north, east, and south of the site are in 
Unincorporated Washington County.  The parcel to the west of the site is within 
the city boundary with a zoning designation of Medium Density Residential High.  

 
Currently, the properties are zoned Future Development 20-Acre District (FD-20) 
by Washington County. According to Washington County’s code, the FD-20 District 
applies to the unincorporated urban lands added to the urban growth boundary by 
Metro through a Major or Legislative Amendment process after 1998. The FD-20 
District recognizes the desirability of encouraging and retaining limited interim uses 
until the comprehensive planning for future urban development of these areas is 
complete.  
 
The subject site is within the Tonquin Employment Area, which is reflected in the 
City’s Comprehensive Plan.  The City zoning for the site has already been adopted 
with the approved Concept Plan and becomes effective upon annexation. The 
adopted City zoning for the site is Employment Industrial (EI). The EI zoning district 
provides employment areas that are suitable for, and attractive to, key industries 
and industry clusters that have been identified by the State of Oregon and the 
City's economic development strategy as important to the state and local economy. 
The following are preferred industry sectors for areas zoned EI: Clean Technology,  
Technology and Advanced Manufacturing, and Outdoor Gear and Active Wear.  
   
Land zoned EI shall provide for large and medium-sized parcels for industrial 
campuses and other industrial sites that can accommodate a variety of industrial 
companies and related businesses. Areas zoned EI are also intended to provide 
the opportunity for flex building space within small and medium-sized industrial 
campuses and business parks to accommodate research and development 
companies, incubator/emerging technology businesses, related materials and 
equipment suppliers, and/or spin-off companies and other businesses that derive 
from or are extensions of, larger campus users and developments. Retail and 
commercial uses are allowed only when directly supporting area employers and 
employees.  
   
Industrial establishments and support services shall not have objectionable 
external features and shall feature well-landscaped sites and attractive 
architectural design, as determined by the Hearing Authority. Any future 
development would not be approved unless an applicant submits a formal land use 
proposal to develop the site that is consistent with the Sherwood Zoning and 
Community Development Code. 
 

Ordinance 2020-007, Exh to Staff Report 
September 1, 2020, Page 3 of 162

33



 

LU 2020-012 AN Woodburn Industrial Capital Group Annexation Page 4 of 17 

 
 

II. AFFECTED AGENCY, PUBLIC NOTICE, AND PUBLIC COMMENTS 
 
Agencies 
 
Notice was provided to the following agencies on July 27, 2020:  Tri-Met, NW Natural 
Gas, Sherwood Broadband, Bonneville Power Administration (BPA), City of Sherwood 
Public Works, City of Sherwood Police Department, Tualatin Valley Fire and Rescue 
(TVFR), Sherwood School District, Oregon Department of Transportation (ODOT), 
Oregon Department of State Lands, Pride Disposal, Allied Waste, Waste Management, 
City of Sherwood Engineering, City of Sherwood Economic Development, Kinder Morgan, 
Raindrops2Refuge, Portland Gas and Electric (PGE), Washington County, Portland 
Western Railroad, Metro, and Clean Water Services (CWS). 
 
At the time this staff report was drafted, the Planning Department had heard back from 
three agencies/departments: BPA, ODOT Outdoor Advertising Sign Program, and 
Sherwood Engineering.  BPA and ODOT Outdoor Advertising Sign Program had no 
comments. 
 
Sherwood Engineering Department – Bob Galati, City of Sherwood Engineer, provided 
the following comments with regard to the proposed annexation (Exhibit E):  

 
Generally speaking, the site (Tax Lot 100 and Tax Lot 400) currently has access to 
SW Tonquin Road, which is a public WACO transportation facility and meets the 
criteria for annexation. 
 
Generally speaking, the site currently has access to public sanitary sewer due to the 
ability to extend public sanitary mainlines within public rights-of-ways, and meets the 
criteria for annexation. 
 
Generally speaking, the site currently has the ability to access an existing public 
wetland and stream corridor for discharge of storm water runoff, via crossing of 
public right-of-way, and meet the criteria for annexation. 
 
Generally speaking, the site currently has access to public water systems due to the 
ability to extend public water system mainlines within public right-of-way, and meets 
the criteria for annexation. 

 
 
Public Notice and Comments 
 
At the time the staff report was published, August 17, 2020, staff did not receive any 
comments from the public.  
 
 

Ordinance 2020-007, Exh to Staff Report 
September 1, 2020, Page 4 of 162

34



 

LU 2020-012 AN Woodburn Industrial Capital Group Annexation Page 5 of 17 

 
III. REQUIRED CRITERIA AND FINDINGS FOR ANNEXATION AND BOUNDARY 

CHANGE 

 
A. State Standards 
Oregon Revised Statute 222 authorizes and guides the process for annexations of 
unincorporated and adjacent areas of land into the incorporated boundary of the City. In 
this particular instance, the property owners of the area, Woodburn Industrial Capital 
Group (Tim Kerr as authorized signee), are petitioning the City to annex under the 
annexation provisions outlined in Senate Bill 1573, which was added to ORS 222.111 to 
222.180. Senate Bill 1573, Subsection 2(4) states that when the legislative body (City 
Council) determines that the annexation petition meets the criteria described in 
subsection (2), the territory is to be annexed to the City by ordinance. Assuming the City 
Council determines that the annexation petition meets the prescribed criteria, an 
ordinance annexing the territory and forwarding notification to the Secretary of State, 
Department of Revenue and affected agencies and districts will be prepared for Council 
approval. 
 
Senate Bill 1573, Section 2. 

(1) This section applies to a city whose laws require a petition proposing 
annexation of territory to be submitted to the electors of the city. 

(2) Notwithstanding a contrary provision of the city charter or a city ordinance, 
upon receipt of a petition proposing annexation of territory submitted by 
all owners of land in the territory, the legislative body of the city shall annex 
the territory without submitting the proposal to the electors of the city if: 
 
The annexation petition is proposed by Woodburn Industrial Capital, 
representing 100% of the property owners within the ±28.17 acre territory 

proposed for annexation. Tim Kerr is an authorized signee on behalf of 
Woodburn Industrial Capital Group LLC has signed the annexation petition. 
 
(a) The territory is included within an urban growth boundary adopted by 

the city or Metro, as defined in ORS 197.015; 
 
The territory proposed for annexation is located within the Urban Growth 
Boundary, in what is known as the Tonquin Employment Area Concept 
Plan. The Tonquin Employment Area was brought into the Sherwood Urban 
Growth Boundary in 2004 via Metro Ordinance 04-1040B to provide for 
needed industrial land.  
 

(b) The territory is, or upon annexation of the territory into the city will be, 
subject to the acknowledged comprehensive plan of the city; 
 
The entire Tonquin Employment area is comprised of approximately 300 
acres. In October 2010, the City approved the concept plan and associated 
implementing Comprehensive Plan and Zone Map Amendments via 

Ordinance 2020-007, Exh to Staff Report 
September 1, 2020, Page 5 of 162

35



 

LU 2020-012 AN Woodburn Industrial Capital Group Annexation Page 6 of 17 

Ordinance 2010-014. Thus, the Comprehensive Plan applies and the 
established zoning for the properties will take effect upon adoption of the 
Ordinance for the annexation.    
 

(c) At least one lot or parcel within the territory is contiguous to the city 
limits or is separated from the city limits only by a public right-of-way 
or body or water; and 
 
The western boundary of the site is separated from Sherwood city limits by 

right-of-way (SW Tonquin Road). The parcel west of the site (across SW 

Tonquin Road) is Open Space land with City land use designation of Medium 

Density Residential High and served by the City.   

 
(d) The proposal conforms to all other requirements of the City’s 

ordinances. 
 
The annexation petition was prepared in accordance with the City’s 
requirements, and all information required in the City’s “Checklist for 
Annexation Request to the City of Sherwood” has been submitted.  
Additional review of the City Comprehensive Plan is shown below.  
 

(3) The territory to be annexed under this section includes any additional 
territory described in ORS 222.111 (1) that must be annexed in order to 
locate infrastructure and right-of-way access for services necessary for 
development of the territory described in subsection (2) of this section at 
a density equal to the average residential density within the annexing city. 
 

Because  the  subject  site abuts the  City boundary (SW Tonquin Road right-of-

way) and various services are available to serve the properties, it is not 

necessary that any other property be annexed or other offsite works involved to 

serve the site besides the 1.44 acres of right-of-way required. 

 
(4) When the legislative body of the determines that the criteria described in 

subsection (2) of this section apply to territory proposed for annexation, 
the legislative body may declare that the territory described in subsections 
(2) and (3) of this section is annexed to the city by an ordinance that 
contains a description of the territory annexed. 
 
As discussed above, the criteria described in subsection (2) apply to the territory 
proposed for annexation.  
 

 
 
 
 
Oregon Revised Statue Chapter 199.510 - Clean Water Services Boundary 

Ordinance 2020-007, Exh to Staff Report 
September 1, 2020, Page 6 of 162

36



 

LU 2020-012 AN Woodburn Industrial Capital Group Annexation Page 7 of 17 

 
Oregon Revised Statue Chapter 199.510 Financial effects of transfer or 
withdrawal; exceptions 
*** 
(2)(c) When a city receives services from a district and is part of that district, any 
territory thereafter annexed to the city shall be included in the boundaries of the 
district and shall be subject to all liabilities of the district in the same manner and 
to the same extent as other territory included in the district. 
*** 
Clean Water Services provides sanitary sewer treatment and water quality services to 
urban areas within Washington County, including within the Sherwood city limits.  The 
subject properties are not currently within the Clean Water Services district boundary.  
Oregon Revised States Chapter 199.510(2)(c) stipulates that when a city receives 
services from a district, such as Clean Water Services, the territory annexed to the City 
is also automatically added to the boundaries of the service district.  Therefore, approval 
of the annexation ordinance will result in adding the annexed territory to the Clean 
Water Services district.  
 

B. Regional Standards 
In addition to the specific criteria for deciding city boundary changes within Senate Bill 
1573, the Legislature has directed Metro to establish criteria, which must be used by all 
cities within the Metro boundary. This area is both within the Urban Growth Boundary and 
within Metro’s Boundary.  The site and the entire Tonquin Employment Area are within 
the Metro Boundary.   As such, below is a review of the annexation for compliance with 
the applicable Metro Code Chapter, Chapter 3.09 (Local Government Boundary 
Changes). 

 
3.09.050 Hearing and Decision Requirements for Decisions Other Than Expedited 
Decisions 

A. The following requirements for hearings on petitions operate in addition to 
requirements for boundary changes in ORS Chapters 198, 221 and 222 and 
the reviewing entity's charter, ordinances or resolutions. 

B. Not later than 15 days prior to the date set for a hearing the reviewing entity 
shall make available to the public a report that addresses the criteria in 
subsection (d) and includes the following information: 
1. The extent to which urban services are available to serve the affected 

territory, including any extra territorial extensions of service; 

 
The application is not an expedited decision pursuant to Metro rules.  The 
Tonquin Employment Area Concept Plan, adopted in 2010, identifies the 
location and size of urban services, including water, sanitary, and storm sewer. 
The Water System Master Plan, Storm Water Master Plan, and Sanitary Sewer 
Master Plan already include assumptions for the Tonquin Employment area, 
and upgrades needed to serve the TEA are already programmed.  
 
Water Per City Engineering Department, Tax Lot 100 fronts directly onto SW 

Ordinance 2020-007, Exh to Staff Report 
September 1, 2020, Page 7 of 162

37



 

LU 2020-012 AN Woodburn Industrial Capital Group Annexation Page 8 of 17 

Tonquin Road and is located approximately 365’ south of the nearest public 
sanitary sewer system infrastructure.  Tax Lot 400 abuts Tax Lot 100 along its 
east property line.  An easement over the entirety of Tax Lot 100 for the benefit 
of Tax Lot 400 has been recorded (Recording No. 2020-071205) for access to 
public utilities.  Provision of public water system facilities can be obtained by 
extension of the public water system within the public right-of-way of Oregon 
Street and Tonquin Road. 

 

Sewer Per City Engineering Department, Tax Lot 100 fronts directly onto SW 
Tonquin Road and is located approximately 365’ south of the nearest public 
sanitary sewer system infrastructure.  Tax Lot 400 abuts Tax Lot 100 along its 
east property line.  An easement over the entirety of Tax Lot 100 for the benefit 
of Tax Lot 400 has been recorded for access to public utilities (Recording No. 
2020-071205).  The provision of public sanitary sewer facilities, can be 
obtained by extension of the public sanitary sewer system within the public 
right-of-way of Oregon Street and Tonquin Road. 

 
The project site is not within the Clean Water Services County Service District.  
ORS 199.510(2)(c) stipulates that when a city receives services from a district, 
such as Clean Water Services, the territory annexed to the City is also 
automatically added to the boundaries of the service district.   
 
Storm Drainage Per City Engineering Department, Tax Lot 100 fronts directly 
onto SW Tonquin Road and is located east of and adjacent to the Rock Creek 
wetland and stream corridor. Tax Lot 400 abuts Tax Lot 100 along its east 
property line.  The site will have the ability to discharge stormwater to the Rock 
Creek wetland and stream corridor by extension of public storm water mains 
across public right-of-way (Tonquin Road). 
 
Parks and Recreation The City of Sherwood maintains a number of 
developed parks and open spaces. Additionally, the City maintains over 300 
acres of greenway/greenspace/natural areas. Dedication and construction of 
new parks and trails generally occurs with development or with system 
development charges required of new development. Maintenance and 
operations of the parks and open space system is funded out of the General 
Fund.  An annexation alone does not trigger any park requirements.  At the 
time development is proposed, likely with a Site Plan application, the applicant 
will be required to comply with park requirements, including any required 
System Development Charges (SDC’s).   

 

Transportation Per City Engineering Department, a high-level transportation 
analysis was performed as part of the Tonquin Employment Area (TEA) 
Concept Plan, which dates back more than 9-years to 2010.  As stated in the 
Concept Plan Report, the transportation portion of the plan was not forecasted 
to develop as an urban industrial area in the year 2020 forecasts that were 
utilized to develop the Sherwood and Washington County TSPs.  The land use 

Ordinance 2020-007, Exh to Staff Report 
September 1, 2020, Page 8 of 162

38



 

LU 2020-012 AN Woodburn Industrial Capital Group Annexation Page 9 of 17 

forecasts were used to develop the 2030 and 2035 forecasts for Metro RTP 
updates. 

 

Tax Lot 400 abuts Tax Lot 100 along its east property line.  An easement over 
the entirety of Tax Lot 100 for the benefit of Tax Lot 400 has been recorded 
(Recording No. 2020-071204) for access to public transportation facilities. 
 
Fire The territory is within the boundary of the Tualatin Valley Fire and Rescue 
District, which is served by Station 33 located on SW Oregon Street. Station 35 
in King City and Station 34 in Tualatin are also in close proximity. This will not 
change with annexation. 

 
Police According to online County records, the proposed property to be 
annexed is within the Washington County Enhanced Sheriff's Patrol District 
(ESPD). If it is subsequently found that the property is within Washington 
County ESPD, the City will withdraw the territory from the District upon 
annexation in accordance with ORS 222.520 and 222.120(5). If the City 
declares the territory withdrawn from the District on the effective date of the 
annexation the District’s tax levy will no longer apply. 
 

Upon annexation police services will be provided by the Sherwood Police 
Department which provides 24-hour/day protection. 

 
2. Whether the proposed boundary change will result in the withdrawal of 

the affected territory from the legal boundary of any necessary party; and 

 
As discussed above, the properties proposed to be annexed are within the 
Washington County Enhanced Sherriff’s Patrol District. If the County’s records 
are correct, it is expected that the parcels will be withdrawn from the district 
upon annexation into the City. 

 
3. The proposed effective date of the boundary change. 

 
The effective date of annexation will be finalized after Council adoption of the 
ordinance annexing the territory and filing of the approval with the Secretary of 
State, Department of Revenue, and other affected agencies. 

 
C. The person or entity proposing the boundary change has the burden to 

demonstrate that the proposed boundary change meets the applicable 
criteria. 

 
The applicant has submitted the annexation application and narrative explaining 
how the project meets all criteria.  The applicant has submitted certified petitions 
and legal descriptions required to initiate the request. This staff report evaluates 
the applicant’s materials, the Tonquin Employment Area Concept Plan and 
applicable standards to determine whether the applicable criteria have been met. 

Ordinance 2020-007, Exh to Staff Report 
September 1, 2020, Page 9 of 162

39



 

LU 2020-012 AN Woodburn Industrial Capital Group Annexation Page 10 of 17 

 
D. To approve a boundary change, the reviewing entity shall apply the criteria 

and consider the factors set forth in Subsections (D) and (E) of Section 
3.09.045. 

 
The criteria are evaluated immediately below. 

 
 
Metro Criteria § 3.09.045 (D) 

 
1. Find that the change is consistent with expressly applicable provisions in: 

a. Any applicable urban service agreement adopted pursuant to ORS 
195.065; 

 
Under the Washington County/Sherwood Urban Planning Area Agreement 
(UPAA), the City was responsible for preparing the comprehensive plan and 
public facilities plan within the regional Urban Growth Boundary surrounding 
the City limits. In the UPAA the County agreed that the City would be 
responsible for comprehensive planning within the Urban Planning Area and 
would be responsible for the preparation, adoption and amendment of the 
public facility plan required by OAR 660-11 within the Urban Planning Area. 
The UPAA also identifies the City as the appropriate provider of local water, 
sanitary sewer, storm sewer and transportation facilities within the urban 
planning area. 

 
As discussed within this report, the concept plan for the area was developed 
consistent with the UPAA. The agreement specifies that the City of Sherwood 
is the appropriate urban service provider for this area and that Washington 
County will not oppose annexation. Therefore, the annexation is fully consistent 
with Washington County policies and agreements. 

 
b. Any applicable annexation plan adopted pursuant to ORS 195.205 

 

This section of ORS code provided for a vote to be taken by the electorate. This 

provision has now been superseded by Senate Bill 1573 and the City Council 

now votes to provide for the annexation of properties to the City.  

 

Furthermore, in 2012 under Measure No. 34-202, residents of Sherwood voted 

to support annexation when property owners choose to submit requests to the 

City Council.  

 

This criterion is not applicable. 

 
c. Any applicable cooperative planning agreement adopted pursuant to 

ORS 195.020(2) between the affected entity and a necessary party 

Ordinance 2020-007, Exh to Staff Report 
September 1, 2020, Page 10 of 162

40



 

LU 2020-012 AN Woodburn Industrial Capital Group Annexation Page 11 of 17 

 

ORS 195.020(2) explains that the City must enter into cooperative agreements 
with all urban services providers.  In the case of the subject parcel, the land is 
within the boundaries of all required urban services.  The City has agreements 
with all providers.   

 

The City is inside the Clean Water Services District and the site will be in CWS 
Service District once annexed into the city boundary.  The City and CWS have 
cooperative agreements that will not be affected by this annexation. The 
territory is also in the TVF&R service district which will not change upon 
annexation. The proposed annexation area is within the Enhanced Sheriff 
Patrol District and is expected to be withdrawn upon annexation. 

 
Both the City and Washington County will continue to honor the mutual aid 
agreements which ensure coverage of law enforcement regardless of the 
jurisdictional boundary. The area to be annexed will be withdrawn from all 
County districts as the City of Sherwood provides these services and the 
County special district services are no longer necessary. As affected agencies, 
Washington County, CWS and TVF&R received notice of the proposed 
annexation and the opportunity to provide comments. 

 
d. Any applicable public facility plan adopted pursuant to a Statewide 

planning goal on public facilities and services; and 

 
The Sherwood City Council reviewed and adopted the Tonquin Employment 
Area Concept Plan in October 2010. The Tonquin Employment Area Concept 
Plan incorporated the recommendations found in the City’s water, sanitary 
sewer and storm water master plan and the Transportation System Plan. At 
that hearing, the Council evaluated the Plan’s consistency with the 
Comprehensive Plan, applicable master plans and all State Planning Goals and 
found that these were met/satisfied; however, the discussions and findings in 
this report also demonstrate that the proposed annexation can feasibly comply 
with those plans. 

 
e. Any applicable comprehensive plan; and 

 
Compliance with the local Comprehensive Plan is discussed further in this 
report under the “Local Standards” section. 

 
f. Any applicable concept plan. 

 
Compliance with the Tonquin Employment Area Concept Plan is discussed 
further in this report under the “Local Standards” section. 

 
2. Consider whether the boundary change would: 

Ordinance 2020-007, Exh to Staff Report 
September 1, 2020, Page 11 of 162

41



 

LU 2020-012 AN Woodburn Industrial Capital Group Annexation Page 12 of 17 

a. Promote the timely, orderly and economic provision of public facilities 
and services; 

 
The proposed annexation area can be served by extending existing sewer and 
water services within the public rights-of-way that abut the properties at the 
current City limits. Franchise utilities and road access are already provided by 
the City, Washington County, and the respective utility service provider. 
Upgrades to these utilities will be studied in more detail when a development 
application is submitted, and if needed, required to be paid for by the 
development. Adjacent lands to the subject site were developed under the City 
standards along with various service utilities.  The extension of these facilities 
will provide for the development of the site as anticipated by the land use zoning 
per the City’s Comprehensive Plan.  Finally, by annexing the area, the City will 
be able to collect the System Development Charges (SDC) necessary to make 
infrastructure improvements needed to serve the area consistent with the 
applicable master plans. 
 
Provision of public facilities and services in this area can occur in a timely and 
orderly manner concurrent with proposed development applications. The 
proposed annexation represents a logical step in the growth of the area with 
road frontage and existing access off SW Tonquin Road.  As such, the services 
can be provided for future development. Any necessary upgrades to existing 
facilities have already been identified in existing plans, including the Tonquin 
Employment Area Concept Plan and it has been determined that funding is 
reasonably likely which is a necessary finding in order to meet state 
Transportation Planning Rule requirements. 
 

b. Affect the quality and quantity of urban services; and 

 
The Metro Code defines urban services as “sanitary sewers, water, fire 
protection, parks, open space, recreation and streets, roads and mass transit.” 

 
Currently there are no urban infrastructure in the territory proposed to be 
annexed; therefore, annexation will provide the opportunity for extension of 
urban services to City standards. There are existing roads in good condition. 
Annexation will not immediately affect these positively or negatively, however 
as development occurs, road improvements will likely be required, and utility 
connections and possible upgrades will be made. Other urban infrastructure is 
expected to be provided at the expense of the developer when mitigation is 
required for impacts resulting from subsequent development of the area. 
Further, upon development of the area, SDCs will be collected to assist in the 
construction of identified needs or improvements to City services to offset 
impacts to existing City and County facilities. 

 
TVF&R, the fire protection provider for the area, did not provide any comments.  

 

Ordinance 2020-007, Exh to Staff Report 
September 1, 2020, Page 12 of 162

42



 

LU 2020-012 AN Woodburn Industrial Capital Group Annexation Page 13 of 17 

The City of Sherwood maintains a number of developed parks and open 
spaces. Additionally, the City maintains over 300 acres of 
greenway/greenspace/natural areas. Given the zoning for the site will be 
Employment Industrial, parks and open spaces will be minimally impacted.   

 
Mass transit will not be directly affected by the annexation; however, with 
additional individuals/employees comes additional demand on the transit 
system and increased opportunities for better transit service to serve the 
existing and future populations. 
 
While development in the area will increase the number of individuals utilizing 
urban services, as discussed above, it is unlikely that the quantity of urban 
services will be diminished by the addition of this parcel and the anticipated 
employees. In addition, these new employment industrial developments will be 
assessed taxes which will contribute to schools, fire department, transit 
providers and the City which will off-set the additional impacts of serving this 
area. In other words, the quality of services provided are not expected to 
decrease because the new developments will be contributing to the tax base 
which funds services. 

 
c. Eliminate or avoid unnecessary duplication of facilities or services. 

 
The existing property owners most likely use City facilities, such as the library 
and parks, while also relying upon County services for law enforcement. 
However, because of the proximity to the City, Sherwood would be a first 
responder on many emergency calls. In addition, there can sometimes be 
confusion on the part of both the City and residents when an area is developed 
in such close proximity to the City in regard to who the service provider is. 
Annexation will eliminate any confusion or potential duplication of services. 

 
Metro Criteria § 3.09.045 (E) 

A city may not annex territory that lies outside the UGB, except that it may 
annex a lot or parcel that lies partially within and partially outside the UGB. 

 

The proposed annexation territory lies entirely within the UGB. 

 
C. Local Standards 
The territory is within the City's Urban Planning Area as identified in Sherwood/ 
Washington County Urban Planning Area Agreement. As such, the Comprehensive Plan 
goals and policies for urbanization apply. In addition, the city adopted the Tonquin 
Employment Area Concept Plan, including amendments to the Comprehensive Plan to 
implement the concept plan. Ordinance 2010-014 designated zoning on the properties in 
the area. A copy of the adopted comprehensive plan zoning map is attached as Exhibit 
C. This zoning will be applied upon annexation of the area. 

 
The Growth Management Chapter of the City's Comprehensive Plan contains several 

Ordinance 2020-007, Exh to Staff Report 
September 1, 2020, Page 13 of 162

43



 

LU 2020-012 AN Woodburn Industrial Capital Group Annexation Page 14 of 17 

applicable policy objectives which are reviewed below. 

 
Chapter 3, Section B.2 

a. Focus growth into areas contiguous to existing development rather than 
"leap frogging” over developable property. 

 
The subject properties are immediately east of existing fully built out development 
inside the City limits.  
 
Per applicant’s narrative, “it is anticipated that significant amounts of earthwork will 
occur on the site over a two to five-year period to create developable employment 
sites on the property. It is anticipated that this site preparatory work will occur in 
concert with planned industrial developments to the north and east, resulting in a 
cohesive delivery of industrial infrastructure in the immediate area.” 

 

Any proposed development within the area is contiguous to existing urban 
development, and does not “leap frog” vacant land, therefore this policy is 
addressed. 

 
b. Encourage development within the present city limits, especially on large 

passed-over parcels that are available. 

 
The proposed annexation area was included within the UGB in 2004 and has been 
identified as necessary to meet the local and regional need for industrial 
development over the then 20-year planning horizon. In the 15 years since, no 
development has occurred in the Tonquin Employment Area.  The annexation of 
these parcels will not significantly affect the ability for existing parcels inside the 
City limits to develop when and if they are ready to develop. This proposal will 
provide additional opportunities for development of employment industrial land. 

 
As discussed above, it is staff’s assessment that the addition of this area would be 
consistent with this policy. 
 

c. Encourage annexation inside the UGB where services are available. 
 
The area to be annexed is in the UGB and services are available to be extended 
into the area. 
 

d. When designating urban growth areas, consider lands with poorer 
agricultural soils before prime agricultural lands. 

 
This is a criterion that Metro considered in its decision to expand the UGB. Any 
lands brought into the UGB have already undergone extensive weighing of the 
need and ultimately the decisions that were made to allow the area to be urbanized 
outweighs the need to preserve the area for agricultural use. 

e. Achieve the maximum preservation of natural features. 

Ordinance 2020-007, Exh to Staff Report 
September 1, 2020, Page 14 of 162

44



 

LU 2020-012 AN Woodburn Industrial Capital Group Annexation Page 15 of 17 

 
The annexation of the area, in and of itself, will not preserve natural features; 
however, the development of the concept plan considered the natural environment 
and development of the area must be in compliance with Clean Water Services 
standards and the development code standards which apply to development in 
and near natural areas. Per Clean Water Service, applicant’s Exhibit O, it appears 
that Sensitive Areas do not exist on-site or within 200-feet from the project.   
The proposed annexation will not impact natural resources.  This policy objective 
will be satisfied when development is proposed. 

 
f. Provide proper access and traffic circulation to all new development. 

 
Transportation and circulation improvements needed to serve the future 
development of the annexation area have been identified in the City Transportation 
System Plans and Tonquin Employment Area Concept Plan.  Actual transportation 
improvement needs will be evaluated at the development stage.   

 
g. Establish policies for the orderly extension of community services and 

public facilities to areas where new growth is to be encouraged, consistent 
with the ability of the community to provide necessary services. New public 
facilities should be available in conjunction with urbanization in order to 
meet future needs. The City, Washington County, and special service 
districts should cooperate in the development of a capital improvements 
program in areas of mutual concern. Lands within the urban growth 
boundary shall be available for urban development concurrent with the 
provision of the key urban facilities and services. 
 
This is a goal that is achieved through the concept planning and public facility 
planning for new urban areas. This was done concurrent with the Tonquin 
Employment Area Concept Plan.  New growth is encouraged within the Urban 
Growth Boundary.   
 

h. Provide for phased and orderly transition from rural to suburban or urban 
uses. 
 
The proposed site is a logical progression of employment industrial development 
in this area. The Tonquin Employment Area concept plan was developed to ensure 
that the urbanization of this area was orderly and met the needs of the community; 
therefore, the annexation of the proposed area is also consistent with the policies 
as outlined above. Existing infrastructure and services have been planned and 
designed for extension into the Tonquin Employment Area to ensure an orderly 
transition from rural to suburban/urban uses; however, development will be 
evaluated as future land use applications assuring they comply with industrial 
standards.  

 
The Growth Management Chapter of the Comprehensive Plan also contains the 

Ordinance 2020-007, Exh to Staff Report 
September 1, 2020, Page 15 of 162

45



 

LU 2020-012 AN Woodburn Industrial Capital Group Annexation Page 16 of 17 

following City Limits Policies 

 
Chapter 3 section F.1.b 
Policy 5 Changes in the City limits may be proposed by the City, County, special 
districts or individuals in conformance with City policies and procedures for the 
review of annexation requests and County procedures for amendment of its 
comprehensive plan. 

 
The proposed annexation has been initiated by individuals, property owners, within the 
affected area.  

 
Policy 6 provides guidelines for the UPAA consideration and is not directly relevant 
to the annexation proposal since the UPAA already exists. 
 
The project has been transmitted to the County for review, in accordance with the City of 
Sherwood/Washington County Urban Planning Area Agreement. 

 
Policy 7 requires all new development to have access to adequate urban public 
sewer and water service. 

 
As discussed previously, the area will be in the Clean Water Services District Boundary 
once annexed into the City and the subject area will have access to public sewer and 
water. Services, once connected and upgraded, will have adequate capacity to service 
the area. 

 

Specific requirements of the Tonquin Employment Area Concept Plan include: 

Sherwood Comprehensive Plan, Part 2 

Chapter 8, Urban Growth Boundary Additions 

D.4 Area 48 – Tonquin Employment Area 
 
Implementation 
1. The City of Sherwood shall amend the Zoning and Community Development 
Code to include an Employment Industrial zone that implements the goals and 
policies in this section. 
 
The City of Sherwood amended the Zoning and Community Development Code to include 
an Employment Industrial (EI) zone through Ordinance 2010-014. 
 
 
2. The Employment Industrial zone may be applied only to those properties within 
city limits, or upon their annexation to the city. 
 
Once the site is annexed into the City of Sherwood boundary, the parcel will be zoned 
Employment Industrial.   
 
 

Ordinance 2020-007, Exh to Staff Report 
September 1, 2020, Page 16 of 162

46



 

LU 2020-012 AN Woodburn Industrial Capital Group Annexation Page 17 of 17 

IV. RECOMMENDATION 

 
This staff report provides a review and analysis of the existing criteria for annexation. It is 
staff’s recommendation, based on the criteria in Senate Bill 1573, ORS 199.510(2)(c), 
Metro annexation criteria and the City’s policies in the Comprehensive Plan and Tonquin 
Employment Area Concept Plan, that the Woodburn Industrial Capital Group annexation 
petition, LU 2020-012 AN, be approved.  

 
V. EXHIBITS 

 
A. Map of Project Area 
B. Legal description of area to be annexed 
C. Comprehensive zoning map and Zoning map adopted via Ord. 2010-014 
D. Exhibits to legal description 
E.  Sherwood Engineering Department Comment Letter  
F. Applicant’s Submittal with narrative and supporting documents 
G. Recorded Access Easement 2020-071204 
H. Recorded Utility Easement 2020-071205 

Ordinance 2020-007, Exh to Staff Report 
September 1, 2020, Page 17 of 162

47



FAIROAKS
DA

HL
KE

OREGON

TONQUIN
2S1330000400

20 AC

2S133BB00100
8.17 AC

City of Sherwood

Date: 8/7/2020

± 0 600300
Feet

Map data provided by METRO and the City of Sherwood. The
City of Sherwood's infrastructure records,drawings, and other
documents have been gathered over many years, using many
different formats and standards. While the data provided is
generally believed to be accurate, occasionally it proves to be

Legend
Subject Site
Incorporated to City of Sherwood
Taxlots

Unincorporated Washington County

E Exhibit A

Ordinance 2020-007, Exh to Staff Report 
September 1, 2020, Page 18 of 162

48



“ ”

EXHIBIT 'A' Exhibit B, 1 of 2
Ordinance 2020-007, Exh to Staff Report 
September 1, 2020, Page 19 of 162

49



X X X X X X X X X X X X X X

SW TONQUIN RD.

SW
 O

RE
GON S

T.

E
X

H
IB

IT
 'B

' PL
O

T 
D

AT
E:

7/
21

/2
02

0
FI

LE
 N

AM
E:

20
00

9_
AN

N
EX

AT
IO

N
.D

W
G

BY
 4

5T
H

 P
AR

AL
LE

L 
G

EO
M

AT
IC

S,
 L

LC

SC
AL

E 
1"

 =
 3

00
'

O
N

 A
N

 8
.5

"X
11

" 
SH

EE
T

PA
G

E 
1 

O
F 

1

Ex
hi

bi
t B

, 2
 o

f 2
Ordinance 2020-007, Exh to Staff Report 
September 1, 2020, Page 20 of 162

50



Exhibit C

Ordinance 2020-007, Exh to Staff Report 
September 1, 2020, Page 21 of 162

51



City of Sherwood
Comm. Dev. Div.--Planning Dept.
22560 SW Pine St
Sherwood OR 97140

Cadastral Information Systems Unit
PO Box 14380

Salem, OR 97309-5075
fax 503-945-8737

boundary.changes@oregon.gov

Pre
lim

in
ar

y R
ev

ie
w

DOR 34-P799-2020

Boundary Change Preliminary Review

July 21, 2020

Documents received: 7/1/2020
From: Joy Chang

This letter is to inform you that the Description and Map for your planned Annex to City of
Sherwood (2020-012 AN (SW Tonquin Rd--South)) in Washington County have been reviewed
per your request. They MEET the requirements of ORS 308.225 for use with an Order,
Ordinance, or Resolution which must be submitted to the Washington County Assessor and the
Department of Revenue in final approved form before March 31 of the year in which the change
will become effective.

--On the surveyor's annexation map, fix the label for the "North 1/2 NW1/4 NW1/4".

--The most easterly line and it's bearing and distance label of the annexation boundary is fuzzy
on the surveyor's annexation map. Make sure the copy of this map is legible and clear in the
Final packet.

If you have any questions please contact Elise Bruch, Elise.A.Bruch@oregon.gov

Exhibit D Page 1 of 6 Ordinance 2020-007, Exh to Staff Report 
September 1, 2020, Page 22 of 162

52



Exhibit D Page 2 of 6
Ordinance 2020-007, Exh to Staff Report 
September 1, 2020, Page 23 of 162

53



Exhibit D Page 3 of 6
Ordinance 2020-007, Exh to Staff Report 
September 1, 2020, Page 24 of 162

54



Ex
hi

bi
t D

 P
ag

e 
4 

of
 6

Ordinance 2020-007, Exh to Staff Report 
September 1, 2020, Page 25 of 162

55



Ex
hi

bi
t D

 P
ag

e 
5 

of
 6

Ordinance 2020-007, Exh to Staff Report 
September 1, 2020, Page 26 of 162

56



Ex
hi

bi
t D

 P
ag

e 
6 

of
 6

Ordinance 2020-007, Exh to Staff Report 
September 1, 2020, Page 27 of 162

57



Home of the Tualatin River National Wildlife Refuge 

Engineering 
Annexation Application 
Comments 

To: Joy Chang, Senior Planner 

From: Bob Galati P.E., City Engineer 

Project: Kerr Site Annexation (LU 2020-012 AN) 

Date: July 30, 2020 

Engineering staff has reviewed the information provided for the above referenced private 
development project.  Final construction plans will need to meet the standards established by 
the City of Sherwood Engineering Department and Public Works Department, Clean Water 
Services (CWS) and Tualatin Valley Fire & Rescue (TVF&R), in addition to requirements 
established by other jurisdictional agencies providing land use comments.  City of Sherwood 
Engineering Department comments are as follows: 

Transportation 

A high level transportation analysis was performed as part of the Tonquin Employment Area 
(TEA) Concept Plan, which dates back more than 9-years to 2010.  As stated in the Concept 
Plan Report, the transportation portion of the plan was not forecasted to develop as an urban 
industrial area in the year 2020 forecasts that were utilized to develop the Sherwood and 
Washington County TSPs.  The land use forecasts were used to develop the 2030 and 2035 
forecasts for Metro RTP updates. 

TL#400 abuts along TL#100 along its east property line.  An easement over the entirety of 
TL#100 for the benefit of TL#400 has been recorded for access to public transportation 
facilities. 

Conclusion:  Generally speaking, the site (LT#100 and TL#400) currently has access to SW 
Tonquin Road which is a public WACO transportation facility, and meets the criteria for 
annexation. 

Sanitary Sewer 

TL#100 fronts directly onto SW Tonquin Road and is located approximately 365’ south of the 
nearest public sanitary sewer system infrastructure.  TL#400 abuts along TL#100 along its east 
property line.  An easement over the entirety of TL#100 for the benefit of TL#400 has been 
recorded for access to public utilities.  Provision of public sanitary sewer facilities can be 
obtained by extension of the public sanitary sewer system within the public right-of-way of 
Oregon Street and Tonquin Road. 

Conclusion:  Generally speaking, the site currently has access to public sanitary sewer due to 
the ability to extend public sanitary mainlines within public right-of-way, and meets the criteria 
for annexation. 

Storm Sewer 

TL#100 fronts directly onto SW Tonquin Road and is located east of and adjacent to the Rock 
Creek wetland and stream corridor.  TL#400 abuts along TL#100 along its east property line.  
The site will have the ability to discharge stormwater to the Rock Creek wetland and stream 
corridor by extension of public storm water mains across public right-of-way (Tonquin Road). 

Exhibit E
Ordinance 2020-007, Exh to Staff Report 
September 1, 2020, Page 28 of 162

58



Conclusion:  Generally speaking, the site currently has the ability to access an existing public 
wetland and stream corridor for discharge of storm water runoff, via crossing of public right-of-
way., and meet the criteria for annexation. 

Water 

TL#100 fronts directly onto SW Tonquin Road and is located approximately 365’ south of the 
nearest public sanitary sewer system infrastructure.  TL#400 abuts along TL#100 along its east 
property line.  An easement over the entirety of TL#100 for the benefit of TL#400 has been 
recorded for access to public utilities.  Provision of public water system facilities can be 
obtained by extension of the public water system within the public right-of-way of Oregon Street 
and Tonquin Road. 

Conclusion:  Generally speaking, the site currently has access to public water systems due to 
the ability to extend public water system mainlines within public right-of-way, and meets the 
criteria for annexation. 

Ordinance 2020-007, Exh to Staff Report 
September 1, 2020, Page 29 of 162

59



Case No. LU 2020-012  AN 
Deposit $7,500 

Receipt #172674 
Date June 26, 2020  
TYPE Annexation 

City of Sherwood 

Application for Land Use Action 
Type of Land Use Action Requested: (check all that apply)

 Annexation   Conditional Use 
 Plan Amendment (Proposed Zone ________)  Partition (# of lots ________) 
 Planned Unit Development  Subdivision (# of lots ________) 
 Site Plan (square footage of building and parking area)  Other: ___________________ 
 Variance (list standards to be varied in description)  

Note: See City of Sherwood current Fee Schedule, which includes the “Publication/Distribution of 
Notice” fee, at www.sherwoodoregon.gov. Click on Government/Finance/Fee Schedule. 

Owner/Applicant Information: 

Applicant: Phone: 
Applicant Address:    Email: 
Owner: Phone: 
Owner Address:  Email: 
Contact for Additional Information: 

Property Information:

Street Location:  
Tax Lot and Map No:   
Existing Structures/Use:  
Existing Plan/Zone Designation: 
Size of Property(ies)    

Proposed Action: 

Purpose and Description of Proposed Action: 

Proposed Use:  

Proposed No. of Phases (one year each): 

By submitting this form the Owner, or Owner’s authorized agent/ representative, acknowledges 

and agrees that City of Sherwood employees, and appointed or elected City Officials, have 

authority to enter the project site at all reasonable times for the purpose of inspecting project 

site conditions and gathering information related specifically to the project site. 

Exhibit F, Page 1 of 121
Ordinance 2020-007, Exh to Staff Report 
September 1, 2020, Page 30 of 162

60

file:///C:/Users/allenk/AppData/Local/Temp/ColumbiaSoft/Viewed/DF77E076998146449CBACD8E63005298/www.sherwoodoregon.gov


Exhibit F, Page 2 of 121
Ordinance 2020-007, Exh to Staff Report 
September 1, 2020, Page 31 of 162

61



TONQUIN ROno AruNEXATION
SHERWOOD, OREGON

An Application For:

City of Shenruood Annexation
Clean Water Services Annexation

June 2020

Applicant:
Woodburn lndustrial Capital Group, LLC

395 Shenandoah Lane NE
Woodburn, OR 97071

Contact: Tim Kerr
Phone: (971) 235-5003

Applicant's Representative:
DOWL

720 SW Washington Street, Suite 750
Portland, Oregon 97205

Contact: Read Stapleton, AICP
Phone: (971) 280-8641

tr)Tf WL
JUN 2 6 2020

Clty of Sherwood
Planning Dept.

Exhibit F, Page 3 of 121
Ordinance 2020-007, Exh to Staff Report 
September 1, 2020, Page 32 of 162

62



Contents

I. INTRODUCTION

General lnformation

il. PROJECT DESCR|PTlON..........

Existing Conditions

II. APPLICABLE REVIEW CRITERIA

State Standards

ORS 199.510 Financial effects of transfer or withdrawal; exceptions.............

ORS 222.127 Annexation without election notwithstanding contrary city law upon petition of
all owners of land

5

5

6

7

Regional Standards

Metro Code 3.09 - Local Government Boundary Changes...

3.09.45 Expedited Decisions

3.09.050 Hearing and Decision Requirements for Decisions Other Than Expedited
Decisions 15

Local Po|icies............

City of Sheruvood Comprehensive Plan Goals and Policies...............

Chapter 3 - Growth Management..............

Chapter I - Urban Growth Boundary Additions

ilt. coNcLUStoN..........

10

..........12

...,..,...12

..........12

..........16

..........16

..........1 6

..........19

..........19

3

Exhibit F, Page 4 of 121
Ordinance 2020-007, Exh to Staff Report 
September 1, 2020, Page 33 of 162

63



Exhibits
A. Petition for Annexation to City of Sherwood
B. Land Use Application Form
C. Ownership lnformation
D. Checklist for Annexation Request
E. Certification of Property Ownership
F. Certification of Legal Description and Map
G. Boundary Change Data Sheet
H. Annexation Questionnaire
L Worksheet for Annexation
J. Pre-Application Conference Notes (PAC 2020-03)
K. Mailing Labels & Map
L. List of All Property Owners & Registered Voters
M. Utility Availability Exhibits
N. Washington County Assessor's Map
O. CWS SPL

Jurisdictional Map
Vicinity Map
Zoning Map

resFigu
1.

2.
3.

4

Exhibit F, Page 5 of 121
Ordinance 2020-007, Exh to Staff Report 
September 1, 2020, Page 34 of 162

64



I. INTRODUCTION

General lnformation

ApplicanUContact Person

Prepared By:

Property Owner:

Project Location:

Parcel lnformation:

Existing Land Use
Designation:

Woodburn lndustrial Gapital Group, LLG
395 Shenandoah Lane NE
Woodburn, OR 97071
Contact: Tim Kerr
Phone: (971) 235-5003

DOWL
720 SW Washington Street, Suite 750
Portland, Oregon 97205
Contact: Read Stapleton, AICP
Phone: (971) 280-8641
rstapleton@dowl.com

Woodburn lndustrial Capital Group, LLC
395 Shenandoah Lane NE
Woodburn, OR 97071
Contact: Tim Kerr
Phone: (971) 235-5003

No Site Address, Sherwood, OR 97140

Tax Lot 2S1338800100, 8.17 acres; Tax Lot
231 330000400, 20.00 acres

Employment lndustrial (El) upon Annexation

5

Exhibit F, Page 6 of 121
Ordinance 2020-007, Exh to Staff Report 
September 1, 2020, Page 35 of 162

65



II. PROJECT DESCRIPTION
Annexation into the City of Sherwood
Woodburn lndustrial Capital Group, LLC (the "Applicant") is requesting annexation approval for
approximately 28.17 acres of land. The subject property is composed of tax lots
251 338800100 and 251330000400, located on the east side of SW Tonquin Road (the
"Proposed Annexation Property"). The site is located within the Tonquin Employment Area
(TEA). The TEA was brought into the Urban Growth Boundary (UGB) in 2004 by Metro for the
purposes of urbanization. The TEA Concept Plan was adopted by the City of Shenvood in 2010
with the intent of future industrial employment development within the TEA. lt is anticipated
that, following site grading and preparation activities, the site will be developed with industrial
employment uses. This request is for annexation of the Proposed Annexation Property to
enable future site development applications to be processed by the City. ln addition to the
Proposed Annexation Property, portions of rights-of-way extending to the west line of SW
Tonquin Road and the Section 33 line to the north will be annexed into the City of Sherwood,

;^^ +L^ 4lì-^^^^^t 
^ --^.-^¿:^- ^ -^^ Íçrru(Jilrpdùùilrg Lt tE rtupuùttu /1tiltuÃ¡lt,tuil /aluat,

Annexation into Clean Water Serylces District
The City of Sherwood receives services within city limits from Clean Water Services (CWS).
Pursuant to ORS 199.510(2)(c), the Proposed Annexation Area is also being annexed,
concurrent with this City of Shen¡vood application, into the boundaries of Clean Water Services
for the provision of sanitary sewer, storm and surface water management. ln addition to
Proposed Annexation Property, portions of rights-of-way to the west line of SW Tonquin Road
and the Section 33 line to the north will be annexed into CWS.

City of Shenvood and CWS annexation areas are identical and are shown in the legal
descriptions included in Exhibit F.

6

Exhibit F, Page 7 of 121
Ordinance 2020-007, Exh to Staff Report 
September 1, 2020, Page 36 of 162

66



Figure 1. Jurisdictional Map

Existing Conditions
Site Zoning
The site is currently within unincorporated Washington County, zoned Future Development 20
Acre (FD-20). Upon annexation into the City of Sheruvood, the area will be designated
Employment lndustrial (El).

Table 2. Surroundrng Uses

Zoning Use

North Washington County, FD-20 Undeveloped and storage uses

South Washington County, FD-20 Undeveloped

East Washington County, FÐ-20 / EFC Rural Residential / Undeveloped

West City of Sherwood, MDRH Open space

7

Exhibit F, Page 8 of 121
Ordinance 2020-007, Exh to Staff Report 
September 1, 2020, Page 37 of 162

67



Figure 2. Vicinity Map

IE9HS
FROPOûËDA'IIIEXAÎOI

,000 0 1000 2Mæ
SCALE IN FEET

I

Exhibit F, Page 9 of 121
Ordinance 2020-007, Exh to Staff Report 
September 1, 2020, Page 38 of 162

68



nrng Map

. - "'*"R-9

VLDR

AF-20t
'ii

J

LËGÊI{D

"-. " [::.]. 500

PROPOS€D AilIEXANOTT ÀRÊA

UOB

clïYLtmls

0 5û0 1000
C
üæ

SCALE IN FËE

Natural Resources

The applicant obtained a CWS Service Provide Letter (SPL)that concludes no sensitive areas
exist on site. The CWS SPL is included as Exhibit O.

Access
Per applicant discussions with Washington County staff, the county will allow access to the
Proposed Annexation Property from SW Tonquin Road, a 2-lane arterial as classified by
Washington County.

I

Exhibit F, Page 10 of 121
Ordinance 2020-007, Exh to Staff Report 
September 1, 2020, Page 39 of 162

69



II. APPLICABLE REV¡EW CRITERIA

ïhis section is provided to demonstrate the proposal's consistency with applicable state,
regional, and local policies and review criteria.

State Standards
ORS 199.510 Financial effects of transfer or withdrawal; exceptions.

(2Xa) Subject to ORS 222.465, if the affected territory is to be annexed to a city, and lies
within the boundaries of a district, the affected territory is withdrawn from the district on
the date of the final order unless the city is part of the district._The city shall have the
right to exercise the choice permitted by ORS 222.520 (21.

(b) Paragraph (a) of this subsection does not apply when the territory to be annexed lies
within a water district organized under ORS chapter 264, a sanitary district organized
under ORS 450.005 to 450.245 or a park and recreation district organized under ORS
chapter 266. W¡thdrawal of territory from such a water, sanitary district or park and
recreation district shall be governed solely by ORS 222.465 and222.520 to 222.575.

(c) When a city receives services from a district and is part of that district, any territory
thereafter annexed to the city shall be included in the boundaries of the district and shall
be subject to all liabilities of the district in the same manner and to the same extent as
other territory included in the district.

Response: Pursuant to ORS 199.510(2)(c), the Proposed Annexation Area is also being
annexed into the boundaries of CWS for the provision of sanitary sewer, storm
and surface water management.

ORS 222.127 Annexation without election notwithstanding contrary city law
upon petition of all owners of land

(l) This section applies to a city whose laws require a petition proposing annexation of
territory to be submitted to the electors of the city.

(2) Notwithstanding a contrary provision of the city charter or a city ordinance, upon
receipt of a petition proposing annexation of territory submitted by all owners of land in
the territory, the legislative body of the city shall annex the territory without submitting
the proposal to the electors of the city if:

(a) The territory is included wlthln an urban growth boundary adopted by the city
or Metro, as defined in ORS 197.015 (Definitions for ORS chapters lg5, 196,
197 and ORS 1974.300 to 1974.325);

The Proposed Annexation Property is located within the UGB adopted by Metro
The property has one owner, Woodburn lndustrial Capital Group, LLC. The
property owner has consented to the submittal of this annexation request, as
required by ORS 222.127(2).

Response:

10

Exhibit F, Page 11 of 121
Ordinance 2020-007, Exh to Staff Report 
September 1, 2020, Page 40 of 162

70



(b) The territory is, or upon annexation of the territory into the city will be, subject
to the acknowledged comprehensive plan of the city;

Response: The Proposed Annexation Property is located within the Tonquin Employment
Area (TEA), which received final concept plan approval from the City of
Shenruood City Council on October 5,2010. Upon annexation, the properties will

be zoned Employment lndustrial (El), consistent with the City's Comprehensive
Plan.

(c) At least one lot or parcel within the territory is contiguous to the city limits or
is separated from the city limits only by a public right of way or a body of water;
and

Response: The Proposed Annexation Property is contiguous to the city limits, as Tax Lot
100 is only separated from the city limits by SW Tonquin Road.

(d) The proposal conforms to all other requirements of the city's ordinances.

Response: As demonstrated throughout this narrative and in associated documents, the
applicant's request for annexation is consistent with the applicable City of
Shenvood ordinances.

(3) The territory to be annexed under this section includes any additional territory
described in ORS 222.111 (Authority and procedure for annexation) (1) that must be
annexed in order to locate infrastructure and right of way access for services necessary
for development of the territory described in subsection (2) of this section at a density
equal to the average residential density within the annexing city.

Response: The territory to be annexed is adjacent to the city limits, which includes the public
right-of-way containing SW Tonquin Road. The territory is accessible from SW
Tonquin Road, and services necessary for development can be connected to the
site as shown on the Utility Availability Exhibits included in Exhibit M.

Approximately 365 feet north, within SW Oregon Road, a 12-inch water mainline
is available for connection. Within the intersection of SW Oregon Street and SW
Tonquin Road, a 12-inch sanitary sewer mainline is available for connection.

(4) When the legislative body of the city determines that the criteria described in
subsection (2) of this section apply to territory proposed for annexation, the legislative
body may declare that the territory described in subsections (2) and (3) of this section is
annexed to the city by an ordinance that contains a description of the territory annexed.

12016 c.51 $21

Response: As described in the findings above, the annexation application is consistent with
the approval criteria of Oregon Revised Statutes (ORS) 222.127, subsections (2)

and (3). A legal description of the Proposed Annexation Area from a professional
land surveyor is provided and a certification of the legal description and map from
Washinton County is provided in Exhibit F.

11

Exhibit F, Page 12 of 121
Ordinance 2020-007, Exh to Staff Report 
September 1, 2020, Page 41 of 162

71



Reqional Standards
Metro Gode 3.09 - Local Government Boundary Ghanges

3.09.45 Expedited Decisions

D. To approve a boundary change through an expedited process, the city shall:

1. Find that the change is consistent with expressly applicable provisions
in:

a. Any applicable urban service agreement adopted pursuant to
oRS 195.065;

Response: The City of Shenvood and Washington County have an Urban Planning Area
Agreement (UPAA) (BCC17-1260). Per the UPPA, the City is responsible for
comprehensive planning and public facilities planning in areas within the UGB,
surrounding the city limits. As such, the area to be annexed is located with the
UPAA urban planning area. Therefore, the annexation proposal is consistent
with the UPAA.

b. Any applicable annexation plan adopted pursuant to ORS 195.205;

Response: The applicant is initiating this annexation request, as opposed to the City
Therefore, this ORS provision does not apply.

Any applicable cooperative planning agreement adopted pursuant
to ORS 195.020(2) between the affected entity and a necessary
party;

Response: Per City of Sherwood Ordinance 2016-014, sanitary sewer facilities are operated
through an intergovernmental agreement with CWS. CWS is also responsible for
wastewater treatment. Pursuant to ORS 199.510(c), the Proposed Annexation
Property is also being annexed into the boundaries of CWS for the provision of
sanitary sewer, storm, and surface water management. The territory to be
annexed is currently within the district of Tualatin Valley Fire and Rescue
(TVFR), who will remain the fire and emergency services provider for the site.

Any applicable public facility plan adopted pursuant to a statewide
planning goal on public facilities and services;

Response: The Proposed Annexatiorr Property is consistent with the TEA Concept Plan,
September 2010, which includes an infrastructure analysis based on the Sanitary
System Master Plan for the City of Shenvood, July 2007, prepared by Murray,
Smith, and Associates. According to the infrastructure analysis, sanitary sewer
service can be provided to annexation area via an extension of the 15-inch
sanitary line along SW Oregon Street with adequate capacity to serve the TEA
planning area as shown on TEA Concept Plan Figure ll-6.

The Proposed Annexation Property is consistent with the TEA Concept Plan,
September 2010, which includes an infrastructure analysis based on the Water

c

d

12

Exhibit F, Page 13 of 121
Ordinance 2020-007, Exh to Staff Report 
September 1, 2020, Page 42 of 162

72



Response:

Response:

Response:

2.

System Master Plan for the City of Sherwood, August 2005, prepared by Murray,
Smith, and Associates. According to the infrastructure analysis, water service
can be provided to the annexation area via a connection with the 12-inch water
line within SW Oregon Street as shown on TEA Concept Plan Figure lV-7.

The Proposed Annexation Property is consistent with the TEA Concept Plan,
September 2010, which includes an infrastructure analysis based on the
Stormwater Master Plan for the City of Shenvood, June 2007, and the CWS
Design and Construction Standards, June 2007. According to the infrastructure
analysis, a24-inch storm sewer can service the annexation area as shown on
the TEA Concept Plan Figure lV-8. As shown on the Utility Availability Exhibits
included in Exhibit M, existing culverts across SW Tonquin Road are available to
convey stormwater to Rock Creek. More specific utility plans to serve the site will
be developed and submitted for City review after the completion of the
annexation process.

e. Any applicable comprehensive plan;

As provided in response to applicable City of Shenruood Comprehensive Plan
Goals and Policies, found in this narrative under local policies, the proposed
annexation is consistent with the applicable comprehensive plan.

f. Any applicable concept plan; and

The proposed annexation territory is within the TEA concept planning area. The
TEA planning area includes 300 acres, which were added to the UGB in 2004 by
Metro for the purposes of future industrial growth in Shenvood. Before industrial
uses can develop within the planning area, annexation must occur. The
proposed annexation implements the TEA concept plan, and El zoning will be
applied to the site pursuant to the TEA concept plan to facilitate future
employment industrial uses. Therefore, the proposed annexation is consistent
with the TEA concept plan.

Consider whether the boundary change would:

a. Promote the timely, orderly and economic provision of public
facilities and services;

As stated in the Engineering Pre-Application Comments by the City Engineer,
dated February 6,2020, included in the Pre-Application Conference Notes,
Exhibit J, the Proposed Annexation Property can be adequately served by
existing public infrastructure, or by the feasible extension of nearby existing
public i nfrastructure.

b. Affect the quality and quantity of urban services; and

13

Exhibit F, Page 14 of 121
Ordinance 2020-007, Exh to Staff Report 
September 1, 2020, Page 43 of 162

73



Response:

Response:

Transportation
The Proposed Annexation Property is accessible from SW Tonquin Road, which
is classified as an arterial by Washington County's Transportation System Plan.
Transportation access from SW Tonquin Road will be proposed as permitted by
the Washington County Department of Land Use and Transportation. Per
discussions with Washington County staff, an access is feasible along SW
Tonquin Road.

Sanitary Sewe4 Water, and Stormwater
As shown on the Utility Availability Exhibits, included in Exhibit M, there is a 12-
inch sanitary sewer mainline located within the intersection at SW Tonquin Road
and SW Oregon Street, approximately 365 feet north of the site. Extension of
this line to the site is feasible, as stated in the Engineering Pre-Application
Comments by the City Engineer, dated February 6,2020, included in Exhibit J.
There are also 12-inch public water mainlines within SW Oregon Street, which
has capacity to serve the site, as stated in the Engineering Pre-Application
Comments by the City Engineer, dated February 6,2020, included in Exhibit J.
Existing culverts within SW Tonquin Road available for connection to the site.
Pursuant to ORS 199.510(c), the Proposed Annexation Property is also being
annexed into the boundaries of CWS for the provision of sanitary sewer, storm,
and surface water management.

Fire Protection
Ïhe Proposed Annexation Property is currently within and will remain within the
TVFR service district. TVFR Station 33, located at 15440 SW Oregon Street, is
located approximately .8 mile west of the site.

Parks, Open Space, and Recreation
The City of Sherwood manages over 300 acres of open space, The City of
Sheruvood adopted the Parks and Recreation Master Plan in October 2006. The
area to be annexed is not identified as a future acquisition site in the City of
Shenvood Parks Master Plan and, as a future industrial site is not anticipated to
have a significant impact on demand for parks and recreational facilities. The
Washington County Transportation System Plan identifies a Regional Trail
alignment for the lce Age Tonquin Trail on or along the site. Per staff discussions
with Metro and the City of Shenvood staff, the trail alignment can run along the
right-of-way for the length of the site. Future site development will determine the
necessary alignment of the trail.

c. Eliminate or avoid unnecessary duplication of facilities of
services.

The proposed annexation territory is within the TEA concept planning area. Ihe
TEA planning area includes 300 acres, which were added to the UGB in 2004 by
Metro for the purposes of future industrial growth in Sherwood. Before industrial
uses can develop within the planning area, annexation must occur. The
proposed annexation implements the TEA concept plan, and El zoning will be
applied to the site pursuant to the TEA concept plan to facilitate future
employment industrial uses. Metro and the City of Shenvood have completed
extensive, coordinated planning for the siting of new industrial uses. The TEA
concept plan encourages future industrial facilities. Therefore, unnecessary
duplication of facilities will not occur as a result of this annexation.

14

Exhibit F, Page 15 of 121
Ordinance 2020-007, Exh to Staff Report 
September 1, 2020, Page 44 of 162

74



E. A city may not annex territory that lies outside the UGB, except it may annex a lot
or parcel that lies partially within and partially outside the UGB.

Response: The area proposed for annexation lies within the UGB

3.09.050 Hearing and Decision Requirements for Decisions Other Than
Expedited Decisions

A. The following requirements for hearings on petitions operate in addition to
requirements for boundary changes in ORS Chapters 198, 221 and 222 and the
reviewing entity's charter, ordinances or resolutions.

B. Not Iater than l5 days prior to the date set for a hearing the reviewing entity shall
make available to the public a report that addresses the criteria identified in
subsection (D) and includes the following information:

1. The extent to which urban services are available to serve the affected
territory, including any extra territorial extensions of service;

2. Whether the proposed boundary change will result in the withdrawal of
the affected territory from the legal boundary of any necessary party; and

3. The proposed effective date of the boundary change.

Response: City of Shen¡vood planning staff will produce a staff report in advance of the
public hearing that addresses Metro Code 3.09.050.8 criteria. A detailed
discussion of the availability of urban services is provided in response to
3.09.45.D.b.

C. The person or entity proposing the boundary change has the burden to
demonstrate that the proposed boundary change meets the applicable criteria.

Response: As evidenced by this narrative and in the associated documents, the applicant's
request for annexation is consistent with the applicable state, regional, and local
policies and criteria.

D. To approve a boundary change, the reviewing entity shall apply the criteria and
consider the factors set forth in subsections (D) and (E) of section 3.09.045.

Response: As provided in this narrative in response to 3.09.045(D) and (E), the Proposed
Annexation Property is consistent with applicable long-range planning
agreements and master plans, and is within the UGB.

15

Exhibit F, Page 16 of 121
Ordinance 2020-007, Exh to Staff Report 
September 1, 2020, Page 45 of 162

75



Local Policies
City of Sherwood Comprehensive Plan Goals and Policies
Ghapter 3 - Growth Management

B. POLICY GOALS AND OBJECTIVES

1. POLICY OBJECTIVES

Response:

a. Focus growth into areas contiguous to existing development rather
than "leap frogging" over developable property.

The proposed annexation territory is adjacent to the Sherwood city limits, only
separated by the public right-of-way of SW Tonquin Road. ïhe site is
developable for employment and industria! uses as stated in the TEA. Concept
Plan. Furthermore, it is anticipated that significant amounts of earthwork will
occur on the site over a two to five year period to create developable employment
sites on the property. lt is anticipated that this site preparatory work will occur in
concert with planned industrial developments to the north and east, resulting in
a cohesive delivery of industrial infrastructure in the immediate area. Therefore,
"leap frogging" will not occur, and this policy objective is satisfied.

Response:

b. Encourage development within the present city limits, especially on
large passed-over parcels that are available.

The proposed annexation territory is within the TEA concept planning area. Per
the TEA Concept Plan, dated September 2010, the TEA planning area includes
300 acres, which were added to the Urban Growth Boundary in 2004 by Metro
with the express intent of increasing the inventory of land available for industrial
employment uses. The City of Sherwood strongly supports the development of
this area consistent with the TEA vision. The TEA was projected to
accommodate 1,909 industrial employment jobs between 2010 and 2030. This
projection assumes 225 acres of net area for industrial employment uses. Before
industrial and employment uses can develop within the planning area,
annexation must occur. The proposed annexation implements the TEA Concept
Plan, which encourages the annexation of land outside the city limits for industrial
employment uses.

Response:

c. Encourage annexation inside the UGB where services are available.

The Proposed Annexation Property lies within the UGB. Services are available
as demonstrated in response to Metro Code 3.09.45.D.b.

Response:

d. When designating urban growth areas, consider lands with poorer
agricultural soils before prime agricultural lands.

The Proposed Annexation Property is within the UGB and has already been
designated for urban growth. Therefore, this policy objective does not apply.

e. Achieve the maximum preservation of natural features.

Response: The proposed annexation will not impact natural resources. A preliminary natural

16

Exhibit F, Page 17 of 121
Ordinance 2020-007, Exh to Staff Report 
September 1, 2020, Page 46 of 162

76



resource assessment has been conducted for the for the site and reviewed by
CWS. Per the CWS SPL, included as Exhibit O, no sensitive areas exist on site.
Therefore, preservation of natural features will be achieved, and this policy
objective will be satisfied when development is proposed.

Response:

f. Provide proper access and traffic circulation to all new development.

The area to be annexed will be served from SW Tonquin Road. Future
development of the site will be served from existing and improved public
infrastructure including the extension of Tonquin Court into the Proposed
Annexation Property, as shown on Figure'17 of the TEA lmplementation Plan.
This request for annexation will not preclude this policy objective from being
satisfied with future land use decisions.

Response:

g. Establish policies for the orderly extension of community services and
public facilities to areas where new growth is to be encouraged,
consistent with the ability of the community to provide necessary
services. New public facilities should be available in conjunction with
urbanization in order to meet future needs. The City, Washington
Count¡r, and special service districts should cooperate in the
development of a capital improvements program in areas of mutual
concern. Lands within the urban growth boundary shall be available for
urban development concurrent with the provision of the key urban
facilities and services.

This land has already been designated for urban growth through the TEA
concept plan and other long range planning efforts at the local and regional level.
The TEA concept plan contains policies regarding the provision of concurrent
urban facilities and services. Public facilities are available to serve the site and
can be extended to serve future development, as explained in response to
3.09.45.D.b.

Response:

h. Provide for phased and orderly transition from rural to suburban or
urban uses.

The Proposed Annexation Property is within the TEA and will be designated with
El zoning upon annexation. The proposal is consistent with the TEA Concept
Plan, which guides future development of the area in an orderly manner.

F. GROWTH MANAGEMENT POLICY

The following policies and strategies are established for the management of urban
growth in the Planning Area.

1. GROWTH AREAS

Changes in the Gity limits may be proposed by the City, Gounty,
special districts or individuals in conformance with City policies and

Policy 5 -

17

Exhibit F, Page 18 of 121
Ordinance 2020-007, Exh to Staff Report 
September 1, 2020, Page 47 of 162

77



procedures for the review of annexation requests and County
procedures for amendment of its comprehensive plan.

Response: The proposed annexation request has been initiated by the property owner.

Policy 6 - The City will coordinate with Washington County policies and
procedures governing the conversion of urbanizable land to urban
land. Such policies shall be included in the Washington Gounty-
Sherwood Urban Planning Area Agreement (UPAA). Specifically, the
City will consider whether proposals to annex to the City include
lands which meet one or more of the following criteria:

Land contiguous to the Gity limits needed to extend facilities or
services to areas within the City limits.

Lands where urban services are available or are programmed for the
immediate future.

Conservation of a needed amount of open space.

Response:

4l Land where existing man-made conditions indicate a pre-existing
commitment to urban development.

Ïhe guidelines above have been included in the Washington County-Sherwood
Urban Planning Area Agreement (UPAA). The proposed annexation is in
accordance with the UPAA, as demonstrated by the availability of urban services
and the mutual commitment of the site for urban development. Therefore, this
policy is satisfied.

Policy 7 - All new development must have access to adequate urban public sewer and
water service.

Response: New development is not proposed at this time. However, public water and sewer
are accessible to the area to be annexed. As shown on the Utility Availability
Exhibits, included in Exhibit M, there is a 12-inch sanitary sewer mainline located
within the intersection at SW Tonquin Road and SW Oregon Street,
approximately 365 feet north of the site. Extension of this line to the site is
feasible as stated in the Engineering Pre-Application Comments by the City
Engineer, dated February 6,2020, included in Exhibit J. There are also 12-inch
public water mainlines within SW Oregon Street, which has capacity to serve the
site as stated by the City Engineer in Exhibit J. Therefore, this policy is satisfied.

r)

2l

3)

18

Exhibit F, Page 19 of 121
Ordinance 2020-007, Exh to Staff Report 
September 1, 2020, Page 48 of 162

78



Ghapter 8 - Urban Growth Boundary Additions
D. 4. Area 48- Tonquin Employment Area
lmplementation

1. The City of Sherwood shall amend the Zoning and Community Development

Code to include an Employment lndustrialzone that implements the goals and

policies in this section.

Response: The Proposed Annexation Property is within the TEA, and will be zoned El upon
annexation. The proposal is consistent with the TEA Concept Plan. Annexation
of the Proposed Annexation Property will further implement the TEA Concept
Plan and its goals.

2. The Employment lndustrial zone may be applied only to those properties

within city limits, or upon their annexation to the city.

Response: The Proposed Annexation Property is within the TEA, and will be zoned El upon
annexation.

ilt. coNcLUSloN
As demonstrated throughout this narrative and in associated documents, the applicant's request
for annexation into the City of Shenvood and CWS is consistent with the applicable local,
regional, and state policies and regulations governing the allowance of the requested actions.
Therefore, the applicant respectfully requests City of Shenvood's approval of this application.

19

Exhibit F, Page 20 of 121
Ordinance 2020-007, Exh to Staff Report 
September 1, 2020, Page 49 of 162

79



Exhibit A. Petition for Annexation to Gity of Sherwood

Exhibit F, Page 21 of 121
Ordinance 2020-007, Exh to Staff Report 
September 1, 2020, Page 50 of 162

80



C
IT

Y
 O

F
 S

H
E

R
W

O
O

D
 P

E
T

¡T
IO

N
 F

O
R

 A
N

N
E

X
A

T
IO

N

T
O

 T
H

Ë
 C

O
U

N
C

IL
 O

F
 T

H
E

 C
IT

Y
 O

F
 S

H
E

R
W

O
O

T
},

 O
R

E
G

O
N

:

W
e,

 t
he

 u
nd

er
si

gn
ed

 o
w

ne
(s

) 
of

 th
e 

pr
op

er
ty

 d
es

cr
ib

ed
 i

n 
A

tta
ch

m
en

t 
A

 a
nd

lo
r 

el
ec

to
(s

) 
re

si
di

ng

at
 th

e 
re

fe
re

nc
ed

 l
oc

at
io

n(
s)

, 
he

re
by

 p
et

iti
on

 f
or

, 
an

d 
gi

ve
 c

on
se

nt
 t

o,
 A

nn
ex

at
io

n 
of

 s
ai

d 
pr

op
er

ty
 t

o

th
e 

C
ity

 o
f 

S
he

rw
oo

d. V
ot

er
 O

V
 -

O
w

ne
r 

&
is

te
re

d 
V

ot
er

P
0-

O
w

ne
r 

R
V

-

T
hi

s 
pe

tit
io

n 
m

ay
 b

e 
si

gn
ed

 b
y 

an
y

pe
rs

on
s 

ev
en

th
ey

 m
ay

 n
ot

 k
no

w
 t

he
ir 

pr
op

er
ty

 d
es

cr
ip

tio
n 

or
 p

re
ci

nc
t

* 
T

im
 K

er
r 

is
 a

n 
au

th
or

iz
ed

 
si

gn
ee

 o
n 

be
ha

lf 
of

 W
oo

db
ur

n 
In

du
st

ria
l 

C
ap

ita
l 

G
ro

up
 I

LC

h

$1
44

,S
60

A
ss

es
se

d

V
al

ue

$2
72

,2
80

P
ar

ce
lS

iz
e

-8.
17

 a
cr

es
20

.0
0 

ac
re

s

P
R

O
P

E
R

W
 D

E
S

C
R

IP
T

IO
N

P
ar

ce
l

N
um

be
r

-,s
ræ

88
00

10
0

25
13

30
00

04
00

N
o 

S
ite

 A
dd

re
ss

. 
S

he
rw

oo
d,

 O
R

 9
71

40

A
Ð

D
R

E
S

S

N
o 

S
ite

 A
dd

re
ss

, 
S

he
ru

¡o
od

, 
O

R
 9

71
40

O
V

ff

R
V

-IA
M

 A
P

O

-- { {

P
R

IN
T

E
D

 N
A

M
E

T
im

 K
er

r.
T

im
 K

er
r.

( 
>

^{
* 

Y
an

tt

S
IG

N
A

T
U

R
E

Exhibit F, Page 22 of 121
Ordinance 2020-007, Exh to Staff Report 
September 1, 2020, Page 51 of 162

81



Case No.
Fee

Receipt #
Date

of
d

TYPE

Gity of Sherwood
Hou c of t h t: 7ï nl a t i t r Nwr N ø tio ndl W ûll ífe Rti ge

Application for Land Use Action
Type of Land Use Action Requested: (check all that

E
tr
n
m

Annexatio¡r
Plan Amcndrncnt (Proposcd Zonc _)
Planned Unit Developmeut
Site PIan (square footage ofbuilding and parking area)

Conditional Use
Partition (# of lots

Subdivision (# of lots
Other;

f] Valiance (list starrdards to be varied in description)

By submitting thisþrm lhe Owner, or Owner',ç authorízed agent/ represenlalive, aclcnowledges

and agrees that Cíty o,f Sherwood employees, and øppointed or elected City Offrcials, have

autlrcrity to enter the project sîte at all reasonable times for tlrc purpose of inspecting proiect
site conditions and gathering infornration related specifically to the proiect site.

Note: See Cify of Sherwood current Fee Schedule, which includes the "Publication/Ðistribution of
Notice" fee, at www.sherwoodore{on.gov. Cl ick on Government/Finance/Fee Schedule.

Orvn Information:
m Kerr Phone: 971-235-5003

Email: @m
Phone: 971-235-5003
Email : tkerr@kerrcontractors.com

Contact for Additional Infolmation: Read Stapleton, DOWL (971 ) 280-8648

Property Information:
Street Location: No Site Addres S Sheruvood oR 97140

Tax Lot and Map No 2

Existing Structures/Use: No structures I vacant
Ex istin g PlanlZone Desi gnation m

Size of Property(ies)

Proposed Action:

ate 28. 7 acres

Proposed Use Employment lndustrial (El) uses once annexed ínto the City boundary

a -acreS ro nex aan
eact ns a intondOWR ton the rVSe tces

irhW a F Trackast PSite nla RevÍewIS Typeng

S aup
Mass

Proposed No. ofPhases (one year each):

Continued on Reverse
Updated Septernber 2016

Site development ís not roposed at this time

Exhibit F, Page 23 of 121
Ordinance 2020-007, Exh to Staff Report 
September 1, 2020, Page 52 of 162

82



LAND USE APPLTCATION FORM

Authorizing Signatu res :

I am the owner/authorized agent of the owner empowered to submit this application and affirm
that the information submitted with this application is correct to the best of my knowledge.

I further acknowledge that I have read the applicable standards for review of the land use action I
am requesting and understand that I must demonstrate to the Cify review authorities compliance
with these standards prior to approval of my request.

Applicant's Signature Date
.rl

Ç Irrf LÒ
Owner's Signature Date

The following materials must be submitted with your application or it will not be accepted
at the counter. Once taken at the counter, the City has up to 30 days to review the materials
submitted to determine ifwe have everything we need to complete the review Applicant can

verifu submittal includes specific materials necessary for the application per checklist.

[ 3 Cop¡es of ApplicatÍon Form* cornpletely filled out and signed by the property owner (or
person with authority to make decisions on the property.

Ü Copy of Deed to veliSr ownership, easements, etc.

f, et least 3 folded sets of plans*

I At least 3 copies of narrative addressing application criteria*

I fee (along with calculations utilized to determine fee if applicable)

I NeigtrUorhood Meeting Yerification including affidavit, sign-in sheet and meeting summary
(r'equired for Type III, IV and V projects)

* Note that the required numbers of copies identified on the checklist are required for
completeness; however, upon initial submittal applicants are encouraged to submit only 3 copies

for cornpleteness review. Prior to cornpleteness, the required number of copies identified on the

checklist and one full electronic copy will be required to be submitted.

Land Use Application Form
Updated September 2016

Exhibit F, Page 24 of 121
Ordinance 2020-007, Exh to Staff Report 
September 1, 2020, Page 53 of 162

83



Exhibit C. Ownership lnformation

Exhibit F, Page 25 of 121
Ordinance 2020-007, Exh to Staff Report 
September 1, 2020, Page 54 of 162

84



Wqodburn Industrial Capital Group, LLC
P.O. Box 1060 Woodburn, OR 9707I1977-7,ß-A050 | tkerr@kerrcontractors.com

fune 24,2020

Attention:

The founding, current, and only members of Woodburn lndustrial Capital 0roup, LLC consist of Brent J.

Kerr, Timothy J. Kerr, and Alan W, Aplin. Said rnembers grânt Timothy Kerr the ability to Grant

Easements for property owned along Tonquin Road in Washington County Oregon or both from the date

referenced above until September 1, ZQZ\,and as this has been approved by all Shareholders'

Sincerel¡

lú"^
Timothy |. Kerr (Shareholder)

Atan W. Aplin fshareholder]

Exhibit F, Page 26 of 121
Ordinance 2020-007, Exh to Staff Report 
September 1, 2020, Page 55 of 162

85



Wrdilngton County, Orclon
1U0f nO02 'lt:16:114M
DÐD Cntrt ttnrzl nICORDSI
æ5.00 tt.00 lrr.00 .1ot¡l{42.00

2002-118985
'aAfter recording, please roturn to:

Washington County
LUT, Rightof-Way Section
1400 SW. Walnut Sl. Mail Stop#18
Hillsboro, OR 971 24-5625

ll|ilIiltil ilt ilIllIililtil] il ilt IIiltil ilt I lil
001 784¿19200201 I 838900t00õl

r, J.ny H¡ilon, DhatorotAararrrìarll ud Trrdlon ÆÞ\

ill#fl ffi:r#"{i'ffåïüli}HåËfi¡ffii
,1i'-. i;..", "*-M.hil-*", W'

DEDICATION DEED

ARTHUR R. BRIDGES, Grantor, grants to WASHINGTON COUNTY, a political subdivision of the State of
Oregon, Grantee, on behalf of the public, for the use of the public forever, the following easements in that
certain real property situated in the County of Washington and State of Oregon, described on the attached
Exhibit "4," and shown on the attached Exhibit "8."

The true consideration for this conveyance is $3.425.99-

PARCEL I - DEDICATION OF RIGHT.OF-WAY
lncluding the right to construct, operate, and maintaín a public road, all customary associated uses, and
appurtenant facilities;

PARGEL 2 - PERMANENT SLOPE EASEMENT
lncluding the right to construct and maintain slopes necessitated by the construction, operation, and
maintenance of the public road, all public facilities, and improvements in the adjacent right-of-way. Grantee
shall never be required to remove the slope materials placed by it on said property, nor shall Grantee be
subject to any damages to Grantor(s) by reasons of any change of grade of the roadway abutting on said
property.

AND . PERMANENT PUBLIC UTIL¡TIES EASEMENT
lncluding the right to install, maintain, and repair public utilities over, under, and across the property described;

This document is intended to grant easements on the property described, not to convey fee title or
any interest in the underlying property except as expressly stated herein. The easements granted shall not
prevent Grantors from the use of said property provided, however, that such use shall not be permítted to
interfere with the rights herein granted. Grantor shall not be permitted to endanger the lateral support of any
facilities constructed within the easements granted herein.

Grantors hereby covenant to and with Grantee that they are the owner of said property, which is free
from all encumbrances, except for easements, conditions and restrictions of record, and will warrant and
defend the easement rights herein granted from all lawful claims whatsoever, except as stated herein.

F:\SHARED\ROW\25S1 OregonSt-Murdock-Tonquin\2551 {SDEED.doc
DJE 05/01/01

Page I of 2

Exhibit F, Page 27 of 121
Ordinance 2020-007, Exh to Staff Report 
September 1, 2020, Page 56 of 162

86



lN WITNESS WHEREOF, the above named Grantors, have caused this instrument to be signed

DATED tnis 4 4 day of ,'î ,2oø- 
0P

STATEOFOREGON )
) ss.

County of Washington )

This instrument was acknowledged before me this
Arthur R. Bridges.

Afthur R.

4t'h aay or Oc-,t' b.c.* ,

EÀI¡

2ool, by

Nobry Public

County, Oregon.

Title: co

Dated this 1 L
day O-+, 2001

Approved As To Form

Loretta S. Skurdahl
Sr. Assistant County Counsel
Dated & Signed: October 29, 1998

FTSHARED\ROW\2551 Oregonst-Murdock-Tonquin\2551'05DEED.doc
DJE 05/01/01

lllllll lll illllll llil llll lll
2øø2-tLâgEá

@
OFFICIAL SEAL

CLIFFOFD A HAIIBY
NOTARY PUBLIC. OBEGON
COMMISSTON NO.330860

Mf coMMrssroN Ð(PrREs tE8. ¿ 20{

Page 2 of 2

Exhibit F, Page 28 of 121
Ordinance 2020-007, Exh to Staff Report 
September 1, 2020, Page 57 of 162

87



ilillllluüililtilililt't

N. E. Oregon Street
V/ashington County, Oregon
April 17,2001
Parcels I &2

EXHIBIT A

Project No. 2551
File No. 05

Tæ< Map No: 2S133BB 100

PAREEI, LOEDTCATION)

A parcel of land in the northwest one-quarter of Section 33 in Township 2 South, Range I West, of the
Willamette Meridian, Washington County, Oregon and being a portion of that property described in a
bargain and sale contract to Afhur R. Bridges and Mauric C. Albin, recorded February 6, 1986 as
Document No. 86005781, 

'Washington County Book of Records; the said parcel being that portion of said
property included in a strip of land 11.278 meters in width, and lying on the Easterly side of the relocated
centerline of S. W. Tonquin Road and located between lines at right angles to said centerline at the
following Engineer's Station l+888.489 and l+920, which centerline is described below:

CBNTERLINE DESCRIPTION OF A PORTION OF S.W. Tonquin ROAD (Countv Road No.
225Tt

A road centerline situated within the northwest one-quarter of Section 33 and the southwest one-quarter of
Section 28 in Township 2 South, Range 1 West, of the Willamette Meridian, Washington County, Oregon,
being more particularly described as follows:

Beginning at apoint on the centerline of S.W. Tonquin Road (CountyRoad na.2257), said point being
South 64o 40' 06" East 316.003 meters from the section corner common to Sections 28,29,32, and 33,
Township 2 South, Range I West, W.M., and being the point of tangency (71+56.08) as shown on the
survey of C.R. 2257 said point also being at Station I+763.329 for the purposes of this project; thence
along the a¡c of a 436.592 meter ra<lius curve to the left along said centerline, through a central angle of
16" 25' 3 I ", an arc distance of I 25. I 60 meters (the long chord bears North 27" 45' 24" West 124.732
meters) to apoint of reverse curvature at Station 1+888.489 and leaving said centerline; thence along the
arc of a 92 meter radius curve to the right, through a central angle of 23o 31' 10", an arc distance of
37 .7 65 meters (the long chord bears North 24" 12' 34" West 37 .5Ol meters) to a point of reverse curvature
at Station I+926.255; thence along the arc of a g2meter radius curve to the left, through a central angle of
32" 27' 19", an arc distance of 52.114 meters (the long chord bea¡s North 28o 40' 39" West 51.420
meters) to a point of tangency at Station 1+978.368; thence North 44o 54' 18" West 2I.632 meters to
Station 2+000 and the intersection with the centerline of N.E. Oregon Street at Station l+123.770 as
described above and the terminus of this centerline description.

The parcel of land to which this description applies contains 174.9 square meters (1,882 square feet), more
or less.

#

-l':,)(r tlllì

rN(..

Page 1 of2

Exhibit F, Page 29 of 121
Ordinance 2020-007, Exh to Staff Report 
September 1, 2020, Page 58 of 162

88



INC.

AND SURVEYOR

REGISTERED
PROFESSIONAL

OREGON
JUIY 25, 1991

PATRICK N. SMITH

[lulill[u!illillllllil

PARCEL 2 ISLOPE AND UTILTTY EASIEMENT)

A parcel of land in the northwest one-quarter of Section 33 in Township 2 South, Range I West, of the

Willamette Meridian, Washington County, Oregon-and being a portion of that property described in a

bargain and sale contract to Arthur R. Bridges and Mauric C. Albin, recorded February 6, 1986 as

Document No. 8600578 I , Washington County Book of Records; the said parcel being that portion of said

property included in a strip of land variable in width, and lying on the Easterly side of the relocated

centerline of S. W. Tonquin Road and located between lines at right angles to said centerline at the

following Engineer's Søtion 1+845 and 1+920, which centerline is described above:

The widths in meters of the strip of land above referred to are as follows:

Stationto Station Width on the Easterly side of Centerline

1+845 l+920 6.500 in a shaight line to 13.475

Except therefrom Parcel 1 and that portion of said parcel lying within the existing righfof-way of County

Road No. 2257 (5. W. Tonquin Road).

The parcel of land to which this description applies contains 154.9 square meters (I,667 square feet), more

or less.

The bearings of this description are based on the bearing between monuments numbered 740 and74l
which is South 38o 27' 29" West as shown in Record of Survey No. 22,598 as recorded at the Washington

County Surveyor's Offrce. This project is on a local datum. Metric conversion factor: 1 meter :39.37

inches.

e

PNS,DEA Inc.
4/17/0t
PNS:ljg

o:\project\w\surv\wpw84\255 I 45.doc

Page2 of2

Exhibit F, Page 30 of 121
Ordinance 2020-007, Exh to Staff Report 
September 1, 2020, Page 59 of 162

89



ü|ilIil[lruruffiil 'a

ùt

FILE NO. 05.
NO SIÏE ADDRESS

2S133BB 100

Eo
lr,-
ctB

Ës

ooo
'rt+
@
+

o
U)

E
@
l-Nr-
-oeO
,*ñ
b9

cd
@

+

0+(n

I

l/
/¡

I SLOPE AND
UÏLITY
EASEMENTE)

DEDICATON s. vy. TONQUIN RD.

)+
PROPOSED
RIGHT-OF-WAY- - -1+9oO -

PROJEC:T

1+840"

05

EXISTNG RIGHT-OF-WAY

10 20
METERS

30

s.w. Tot{oulil RoAD
EXHIBIT B

Woshington Count y Pro iect No. 2551

SHSEI

DÍC. REF DEA PRO.¡ECÎ NO.

vvPwS 1-05 WPWX0000-0084
DRATN BY DEgTCìf BY IPPNOVED DAÎE

04/17 /O1

I
of
I

I¡TENDIE¡N NO.

0

LEGEN D
77T DEDICA11ON (1lrz+.9* so. M.- 1,882t SQ. FT.

(Ðrs+.9* so. M.- 1,667* SQ. FT.
SLOPE AND UTILITY
EASEMENT

JHL PNS PNS

Exhibit F, Page 31 of 121
Ordinance 2020-007, Exh to Staff Report 
September 1, 2020, Page 60 of 162

90



E
Eo
C)

\
o
\

File No.: 17-115013

PERSONAL REPRESENTATIVE DEED

B¡lly D. Barnss, personal Representatlve of tlra E¡tate of A¡thur Raynond Bridgtos' Washlngton

county ctrcutt court cæe No. 17P804176, Grantor, convo)¡e to wooDBURN INDUSTRIAL CAPÍTAL

GROUP, LLC, an Oregon llmlted llablllly company, Grantee, the following real property described in

the attached Exhibit A.

The lrue considerailon for this conveyancs is ¡600,000,00, (Here comply with requirements of ORS

93,030)

BEFORE SÍGNING OR ACCEPTINO THIS INSTRUMENT, THE PERSON TRANSFERRING FEE TITLE SHOULD

lNõurÊÊ Àebúr rrE pERSoNs RtGHTs, lF ANY, UNDER oRs 195,300, 195.301 A¡lD 1s5'305 To 195'336

ÄñîöÈcäõHs s ro tl, cHAPTER 424, ôREcoN LAws 2007, sEcrloNs 2 To e AtlD '17' cHAPTER 855,

oneoñ L¡wS eoos, eño sÊCTIONS 2 iO 7, CHAPTER 8, OREGON LAWS 2010. THIS INSTRUMENT DOES

Ñôi II-r-ow use oF THÉ PRoPERTY DESdRIBED IN THIS INSTRUMENT IN VIOLATION OF APPLICABLE

I.¡NO USE UWS AND REGULATIONS. BEFORE SIGNING OR ACCEPTING THIS INSTRUMENT, THE PERSON

Ãcourniñe reg ITLE To THE PRoPERw sHouLD cHEcK wlTH THE APPRoPRIATE clTY oR couNw
PLAÑNING DEPARTMENT To VERIFY THAT THE UNIT OF LANO BEING TRANSFERRED IS A LAWFULLY

Elr¡elEHÈD Lor oR pARcEL. As DEFTNED tN oRs 92.010 oR 21s.010, To vERIFY THE APPROVED usEs
óe TÀÈ LoT oR PARCEL, To DETERMINE ANY UMTTS ON LAWSUITS AGAINST FARMING OR FOREST
pnnö¡¡cÈs, AS DEFTNED tN oRs 30.930, AND To INQUIRE ABoUT THE RIGHTS oF NElcHgoRlNG

PRoPERTY OWNERS, lF AtlY, UNOER ORS 195.300, 195.301 AND 195.305 To f95.336 AND SECTIONS 5 TO

fi; CHAPTER 424, OÉEGON LAWS 2007, SECTIONS 2 TO 9 AND 17, CHAPTER 855, OREGON LAws 2009

ANÐ SECTIONS 2 TO 7, CHAPTER 8, OREGON LAWS 2010.

Executed*o l$ rayof october,2ol7

The Estate Washington County C¡rcuit Court Case No.17PB04f 76

STATE OF
COUNTY OF

I [ 0., of october, 2017 byBilly D. Bames, as
Raymond Bridges, Washington County Circüll Court

\

g
Fo
Þ

This instrument was acknowledged boforê me thls
Personal of The Estate of Arthur
Case No.

Representatlve
17P804f76, on the Estate.

My Commiss¡on Explres:
.-;....- .llþD"l'Ð )1 OFFICIAL SEAL

@
JEFFREY SCOTT PRAIRIE

}lolarY Publþ $als ol Atizomi
' MARICOPACOIJNTY

My CoÍm. Exf$rû8 Nov- 3(1,2019

â

washington county, oreson 2017 -083736D-DPR .
Srn=oA srRoM 10/,23120'|.7 01:25:59 PM

$1o.oo $11.00 $5.00 $2o.oo $600.00 $646.00

l, Richard Hobern¡cht, Director ofAssessment and Taxat¡on and Ex-
Offìc¡o County Clerk for County, Oregon, do hereby
certify that the wlthin of
recorded ¡n the book of records of said county.

Richard Hobernicht, Director of
Assessment and Taxation, Ex-Off¡c¡oWoodþm. OR 97071

r ftcording rctum to

PO Box 1060

WOODBURÑ INDUSTRIAL CAPITAL GROUP
PO Box 1060
Woodbum. OR 97071

TooDBURN tNDUmtAL cAPlrAL GRoUP
PO Box 1060
woodbum, OR 97071

TâxAcctNolsl: R3580¿2

Page I of2

Exhibit F, Page 32 of 121
Ordinance 2020-007, Exh to Staff Report 
September 1, 2020, Page 61 of 162

91



EXHIBIT "A''
LEGAL DESCRIPTION

All of that certain tract of land in the Northwest one-quartÊr of the Norlhwest on€-quarter of Sect¡on 33,

To,r,nsh¡p 2 South, Range 1 W€st of the Willamette Meridian, ln the County of Washington and State of

Oregon,'lying fasierty ãnO North€rly of ths center llne of 
'County Road No. 12ô0, also known as S'W.

Tonquln Road.

EXCEPTING THEREFROM that porüon dedlcatod to the public rocorded January 26,1971 in Book 80¡f,
pase 898, Records ofWashinglon County, O¡egon'

FURTHER EXOEPTIN G THEREFROM that portfon conve¡red lo WashingÌton county, a polillcal

subdivlsion of the Stats of Oregon for public roadway by Dedlcation Deed r€corded October 7, 2002,

Recording No. 2002-1 16985.

$

Page2oî2

Exhibit F, Page 33 of 121
Ordinance 2020-007, Exh to Staff Report 
September 1, 2020, Page 62 of 162

92



File No.: 17-105687

for

STATUTORY WARRANTY DEED

John T Strohecker, Successor Trustee of the Stiller Marital Trust and SHERWOOD 204, LLC, an

Oregon timited tiability company, Grantor(s) convey and warrant to WOODBURN INDUSTRIAL

cAplTAL GROUP, LLG, an Oregon limited llability company, Grantee(s), the real property described

in the attached Exhibit A, subject only to those liens and encumbrances set forth on the attached Exhibit

B.

The true consideration for this conveyance is $900,000.00. (Here comply with requirements of ORS

e3.030)

BEFORE SIGNING OR ACCEPTING THIS INSTRUMENT, THE PERSON TRANSFERRING FEE TITLE SHOULD

INQUIRE ABOUT THE PERSON'S RIGHTS, IF ANY, UNDER ORS 195.300, 195.301 AND 195.305 TO 195'336

AND sEcloNS s ro rr, CHnprEn 424, oREcoN LAWS 2007, sEcrloNs 2 To I AND 17, OHAPTER 855'

oneoo¡l LAWS 2009, nño secloNs z To 7, cHAprER 8, oREcoN LAWS 2010. THls INSTRUMENT DOES

NOT ALLOW USE OF T¡IE PNOPENW DESCRIBED IN THIS INSTRUMENT IN VIOLATION OF APPLICABLE

|-]AI.IO USC LAWS AND REGULATIONS. BEFORE SIGNING OR ACCEPTING THIS INSTRUMENT' THE PERSON

ÃCournlr.¡c FEE TtrLE ió rHE pRopERTy sHouLD cHEcK wtrH THE APPRoPRIATE clrY oR couNTY

PLANNING DEPARTMENT TO VERIFY THAT THE UNIT OF LAND BEING TRANSFERRED IS A LAWFULLY

esinsL|sHEo LoT oR PARCEL, As DEFINED IN ORS 92.010 OR 215,0I0, TO VERIFY THE APPROVED USES

or iHE Lor oR pARcEi, To'DETERMTNE ANy LtMtrs oN LAWSUITS AGAINST FARMING oR FOREST

PNRCTICES, AS DEFINED IN ORS 30.930, AND TO INQUIRE ABOUT THE RIGHTS OF NEIGHBORING
pRopERTy owNERS, liÃnv, uNDER oRs 19s.300, 19s.301 AND 195.305 To 195.336 AND sEcrloNs 5 To

ìr, ôHnÞrrn 424, oREGoN Lnws zooz, sEcloNs 2 To 9 AND 17, cHAPTER 855, oREGoN LAWS 2009

AND SECTIONS 2 TO 7, CHAPTER 8, OREGON LAWS 2O1O'

washingron county, oreson 2017 -0837 48
D-DW 1
Srn=6 A srRot\,r 1012312017 01:40:55 PM

$25.00 $i 1.oo $s.00 $2o.oo $eoo.oo $961 ,00

I, R¡cbard Hobern¡cht, D¡rector ofAssessment and Taxatlon and Ex-
Omcio County Clerk for Wash¡ngton County, Oregon, do hereby
cen¡fy that the wlthin ¡nstrument of wr¡ting was received and
recorded in the book of records of said county.

Richard Hobernicht, Director of
Assessment and Taxation, Ex-Officio

E
Eo

ù9
\{
$
Vù
o
\

ç\¡-

o
F
o
Þ

Grantor
Marital Trust and SHERWOQp?q4,!Lo_

Grantee

WOõOSUNN INDUSTRIAL CAPITAL GROUP
395 Shenandoah Lane
Woodbum, OR 97071

recordlng return to
WOOPAUNN INDUSTRIAL CAPITAL GROUP
395 Shenandoah Lane
Woodbum, OR 97071

sÍed. all tax statements shall be sent to

395 Shenandoah Lane
Woodbum, OR 97071

G

Tax Acct

Exhibit F, Page 34 of 121
Ordinance 2020-007, Exh to Staff Report 
September 1, 2020, Page 63 of 162

93



Executed this 20 day of Octob er,2017

Stiller Marital Trust

Trustee

SHERWOOD 204, LLC, an Oregon limited liability company

Name: Roxce Stavney
its; Manager

STATE OF

COUNTY

This instrument was acknowledged before me this
Successor Trustee, of Stiller Marital Trust, on behalf of the Trust.

Name:
Notary Public

,;_

Åòolo",oo er,2017by John T stohecker, as

My Commission Expires: @
î,Y

OFFICIAL STAMP
KAREN HAGELE ÛUNS

NOTARY PU8LIC-OHEGON
COMM|SS|O'\¡ NO. I 4 6262

COMM|SSION EXPIRES JANUARY IB, 2O2O

âzÞ

STATE OF

COUNTY OF

This instrument was acknowledged before me this day of October, 2017 by, as , of SHERWOOD
204, LLC, an Oregon limited liability company, on behalf of the company.

Print Name:
Notary Public for the State of:
My Commission Expires:

Name:
Its

Exhibit F, Page 35 of 121
Ordinance 2020-007, Exh to Staff Report 
September 1, 2020, Page 64 of 162

94



Executed this 2o
i2.

day of October, 2017

Stiller MaritalTrust

Name:John T Strohecker
Its: Successor Trustee

SHERWOOD 204, LLC, an Oregon limited liabilitycompany

ame:
Its: Manager

STATE OF

COUNTYOF

This instrument was acknowledged before me this day of October, 2017 by John T Stohecker, as
Successor Trustee, of Stiller Marital Trust, on behalf of the Trust.

Print Name:
Notary Public for the State of:
My Commission Expires:

STATE OF

COUNTY OF L
This instrument was acknowledged before me
204, LLC, an Oregon limited company

Name:
Notary Public the of:
My Commission Explres: lo

of October, 2017 by, as , of SHERWOOD

é
-l^ 19

lhis a1U 6",
on behalf of the company. R6gM- S+ø.ù rQ/V

øs fvltu4a-o\et-J

DttilE c DuPorT
r{ofARY Pt 8Lt0-oREGoll
COt MlSSl0tl tl0. 933¡165

0FFtqA[

20rE$cmsþt

Exhibit F, Page 36 of 121
Ordinance 2020-007, Exh to Staff Report 
September 1, 2020, Page 65 of 162

95



EXHIBIT "4"
LEGAL DESCRPNON

The South one-half of the Northeast one{uarter of the Northwest one{uarter of Section 33, Township 2
South, Range 1 West, of the Wiüamette Meridian, in the County of Washington and State of Oregon.

TOGETHER with Easement for lngress and egress recorded September 17, '1975 in Book 1044, page

547, Records of Washington County Oregon.

&

Exhibit F, Page 37 of 121
Ordinance 2020-007, Exh to Staff Report 
September 1, 2020, Page 66 of 162

96



1

EXHIBIT "8"
Exceptions

Mineral Reservation, other than col or iron, including terms and provisions thereofl

Reserved by : Oregon and Californla Railroad Company, an Oregon

corporation
Recorded : Decembe¡22,1988
Recording No(s) : {book) Z loaog) 311

Terms and provlsions of Easement Agreement, subject to Maintenance rights per ORS 105.1752.
statue:
For
Granted to
L. Stiller, known as Stiller Bros.
Recorded
Recording No(s)
Affects

ingress and egress
Frank F. and Edna May Stiller and Charles O. and Reval

September 17,197õ
lbook) 10¿14 (oaoeì 547
appurtenant rights insured herein

Exhibit F, Page 38 of 121
Ordinance 2020-007, Exh to Staff Report 
September 1, 2020, Page 67 of 162

97



' 
o,lå1,9* **

ggtl 
^tt 

HEN BY ÎHESE PRESENTS . ..

;i
' iL.û ¡ q Ânrl ¡l- S. Peteraotr -

doa¡ (do) hereby dedfcsto, to tho uoä of thc publlc ae a publlc uay foreverr th1

foliortng descr{beil real property ln llashtngton coÚnty' oreSonl. (¡'egal dsacrlPtfon}

rtoincj¡t l,hu N. Ì'. cprne¡ of th¡ Ñ' n. I of tlr1.

N. tl"'i';i;;";iã. il, r. 2 s'' ¡l' rìt'r'.bt tt¡e l'Iillan¿tle Hiridian¡
thonce llêEterIv "i"íú's"tti"ã'íin" 

f'oe'"e rcst to o !/8" i.ron-rod

. on thc Eoaterly rightPof-wsy line'-.ol Donqui[ County ltoad No' rzoui
' thenco SouthoaatcriJ along 

'e¡id iight-of-way J2'08 loet Lo a 5/8"

iiãil-i¡ãlttttun.o tlaoterlv=and z! fõet dia,tani fro¡ the t{l:!h-ntlY:
ii"" otsårtberl above, 586.32 îler td 6 ,fgu iron ro'l on úþô uostr

litre df thot'tra"i'oi iun,i-oo""ribed in beerl Dook'1291 lage !?a'
gaahington county nàoo llecords; thonce ltoitþetly olong l'laet llie'

',i. .oi ".1ã 
tra"t 25.00 feet to ùhe place 

".t 
o"ot'otiT.', 

. .:.." ' ,. .

¡¡s¡ (f arn) (re ere) lawfully sefzed 1¡ fee efnple oî the obsve rleecrlbeil

Þrmfsc6, frcs fron all encunbrancon, ancl wl1l uorrant and forsvor ¿êfènd tho ¡'bove

sranted pronfoos, ann evcry pari B i:¡*f iil*il 
*:1":' :T l¡øur :1u" "n0

deo¡nita of all Pûroons vhcrneoevor;

. IO llÀVE AND 10 üOLD the tbove deecrtbed on¿l d"'llsat€il Pr€'ú8Bs uÛto

'ea!d publlc forover. ', 
' 

" 
, 'l'

grsntor(s) above n¡rnsal (hsa) (have) hereunto

.i-rt'

sôt ha¡il anô seal thr8 e3.tld dsy

, STATE oF onEGON I "..County of lloohlnglon,

rJðnu 19 ?r ''; '

Exhibit F, Page 39 of 121
Ordinance 2020-007, Exh to Staff Report 
September 1, 2020, Page 68 of 162

98



r
ì lTi.L rl'i5l;¡(;',ii,L r.i,l,'llil\Nì

sdsn

XNO}¡ ALI, }'IF{ BT IIIESE IRESBNSI

IÌ¡åt wet the urderaigned' do hereby dedic¿te to tÌ¡e u6e

of the public as a F¡blic way foreven' the following deeci'jled ¡eal

¡roperty Ín Washingþn County' OtEgon: 
ì

A tnået of fard j¡ ttre I'fonthnest quarter

iltî:r*"n¡li*"!Ëiffi:b
cor'W, otægäilññ-pt"ticutTÍv desæíled

as follofle:

Begj¡¡rj¡g at tlte Í¡tæsection of-th? Ngr'th

Ii¡e of saù Gt-ion s3-ard qF þ!IlY-
' ü¡É o¡ to¡¡sul;nÞad; therce

*r;'tffFlr$Ë"S!ffir i

it"t "d "t:;täi' "r-É1"" 
t"^*ï%ïtlË*

of Êa.id Sec

;r"s . +åft#{,'.*ä",ä*rn ri$li,. H,*Ji;iã", to..p+ï on-the tidrterlv
ri¡re of traîËi'a""eiÎ*¿-ltt deed'Ïo lov H'

î}¡atilearel¿r¡ful.lyeeizedj¡.feeei:npxeoftl¡ea¡or¡e

deEcri-bed ¡ranises¡ free f¡cun all eno¡nlra¡nee' ard lr!11 "*tttt Ï
forever defe¡d tÌ¡e above g""t"¿ l"*it"e' and etræy P'3¡rt ard Parlîæi'

tlræeof,, agaÍ¡¡Et tle l,a9¡fur c1åù[B a¡d de¡ra¡de of atl p€r6on8 rd]srÊoever' :

TO HAVE A{D m rcLD the above described ald dediÆåted

¡ranisee unto said ¡rb1ic fæever'

IN WIT¡¡ESS IúIEREOFI tlre Gruntc¡rE "!o* 1lãßtd 
Ì¡ave hefilto ' '" 

' 
' "

eet ha¡¡d arÉ 6ea1 *'iu t@ay of, !by' t9?3' ' '

DEDICATION DED

OLTNN WALAER

o,'r, 9?ff $¡;i?Zf,
ttôAiùo¡aoot a?ttl

t-

wW
¡

Exhibit F, Page 40 of 121
Ordinance 2020-007, Exh to Staff Report 
September 1, 2020, Page 69 of 162

99



r ¡;;; L ': ri i
....:.1,, ..:.

6{88

sfrfiIE 0r cRmoN

County of lgÊh&Eþn
88.

BE I1 ¡Ð'!EM$AID tl¡at on thie lgtJr day of l'tay' 1973t before 'l

na, tJle urdæaigræd' a Ìbtâry h¡bltc in a¡d for sald Co¡nty ard State' t¡

pøEonaÐy a¡near:ed the nithi¡ r¡õ¡e't JOHN 'J' GOIJIÐ' T" ry 
O' *: 

-
Ml¡ c' AÐr atd iFj$hfcB G'.REtDt ¡$þ{'in to ¡ne to be tt¡e ider¡ticat i¡diviÀ¡alE

descni.bed i¡ ard ldþ elrec{¡ted tile wit}tl¡ l¡sþr'ÛEnt ard aclcowledged to me

t}¡at Ea¡rÞ was 4ecuted fneely a¡d volrmtarily' ¡ 
':

IN IESXilONY IüIEREOFI I ?¡ave ÌteseuÍto 6et rY Ì¡ard a¡d 6eaf

tÞ 
-aa; 

arU YEæ 1Â8t a¡oVè tfltter¡'

D.DUt,

ü¡r?5 3 rrtAlf|13

..

,..r,r.:. 
1, ..i

Wt¡ê¡l

cLlNttw^Lkzn

^ñôixal ^l 
llw

ala¡ l.{.ê¡rtriGooit
tlda¡t! onaoot tt:rt

&

000i 97.fr un¡.72?,

Exhibit F, Page 41 of 121
Ordinance 2020-007, Exh to Staff Report 
September 1, 2020, Page 70 of 162

100



Exhibit D. Ghecklist for Annexation

Exhibit F, Page 42 of 121
Ordinance 2020-007, Exh to Staff Report 
September 1, 2020, Page 71 of 162

101



ø

Å1. CHECKLIST FOR ANNEXATION REQUEST
TO THE CITY OF SHERWOOD

Submit the following to the City of Shen¡rood Planning Department, 22560 SW Pine

Street, Sherwood, OR 97140: (503) 625-5522.

ø Fee- $7,500. Applicants are required to pay the $7,500 filing fee which will be

applied to all costs related to processing the annexation application. Money not
used for costs will be returned to the applicant.

ø An original and one copy of the enclosed packet titled Annexations to City of
Sherwood.

Mailing labels: Submit two (2) sets of mailing labels for property owners within
1000 feet of the outside edge of the territory to be annexed. Mailing labels can be

obtained from a private title insurance company.

Additionally, you must submit a list of all property owners and registered voters in
the area to be annexed regardless of whether they signed the annexation petition

or not.

Annexations to the Gity of Sherwood

There are generally four methods of owner initiated annexation. These methods are

described below, and the information needed to initiate either method is covered in this

application. lt should be noted that a vote of the citizens of the City of Sherwood are

required in three of the four methods.

Double Majority- An annexation where the majority of electors and a majority of the

landowners in the proposed annexation area have agreed to annex into the City. ln this

instance, a majority of the landowners, and at least 51% of the registered voters within

the area to be annexed must support the annexation. This method requires a vote of the

citizens of the City of Shenryood.

Triple Majority- An annexation method that requires consent from a majority of the land

owners who own a majority of real property and a majority of the assessed value of land

within the area that is to be annexed. This method does not require that 51% of the
registered voters in the area to be annexed support the application. This method requires
a vote of the citizens of the City of Sherwood.

1

Updated August 201 7

Exhibit F, Page 43 of 121
Ordinance 2020-007, Exh to Staff Report 
September 1, 2020, Page 72 of 162

102



Exhibit E. Gertification of Property Ownership

*To be completed by County Assessor with Exhibit F
upon receipt of legal description

Exhibit F, Page 44 of 121
Ordinance 2020-007, Exh to Staff Report 
September 1, 2020, Page 73 of 162

103



næsglFlltS TO BE COilPIETED ry wAsfftltoToll co$fiT lssEs8ont wFtçg

{All h¡tethods}

I trereby cøtift Sret he attdìed ætitnn for a propasad boE¡s¡dsry chæge {nnexation}of tha trri{8ry

dæcribed in Att*hnrenl A, of &e peüüon contana lha na*eg of &ro güÌ8rs'd d least one-half d
the land area within tþe annexEtÐn ffee dæarbed, æ 3hs#n on he f.Est ædlaUe æmplele

aessssrlts*t rÐll,

{D ñsza

CNqGg¡-q+r
rouilï fidÇl)^t

Ç Lþ
. .(hnrf æau É. kgd rl* ¡J nod or, rrrrt ùn r r¡*tplcd r Eú o¡urü lài¡l u l r¡r!ù üt F úütúans{r. fiôrn r ¡
øn$rrnei*g.rt¡fidoll¡¡úr¡ôsñrrí.t¡rçr¡ìdht*rtcdu¡t¡*i¡at¡thnrm¡¡s*lqtrcldùt-rirhba
k*r¡¡rt¡¡r*s*.a¡lnfldiloùdr*sr¡*dù¡ær{no¡s¡hdb¡p$*fnCnpsçll{ta¡s¡d¡¡m¡¡rór*tlrp¡rod
& 6ürË ¡cüt I I ssrlrtsd c*'u lrni !l! {rrrrtrl F¡fl¡rl r & anr''d, &r nr¡øm $C¡ I t¡¡sdttd |tlt i!óm*,d rr.' d tlld

l¡ú.

ANT¡EXANOX CêRTTFIED

JUN???fpo

WË'¡SHI|¡iGTON CüjNTY A & T

CåRTOGfrAPIIY

Exhibit F, Page 45 of 121
Ordinance 2020-007, Exh to Staff Report 
September 1, 2020, Page 74 of 162

104



cn
y 

or
 s

H
E

R
ly

oû
o 

pË
rf

r¡
oì

t 
ro

n 
A

Im
xA

T
to

t{
T

O
 T

H
T

 C
O

U
iIC

IL
 O

F
 T

H
E

 C
fr

Y
 O

F
 S

H
Ë

R
IU

O
O

O
, 

O
R

E
S

O
II:

W
e,

 t
ne

 u
nd

er
si

gn
ed

 o
w

ne
(s

) 
of

 lh
e 

pr
op

er
ly

 d
es

cr
ib

ed
 i

n 
A

tta
dr

m
os

rt
 A

 a
rd

lo
r 

el
od

or
{s

) 
re

sl
di

ng
ðt

 t
h6

 r
cf

eß
m

ed
 lo

ce
tío

n{
s}

, 
ho

re
by

 p
et

iü
on

 h
r,

 m
d 

gi
ve

 æ
en

t 
lo

, 
A

rn
ex

at
bn

 o
f 

sa
id

'p
io

pe
ny

 i
ä

ha
 C

¡t
y 

d 
$h

or
rþ

od
.

ûr
m

r 
R

V
.

V
oþ

l 
C

IV
-

ûm
í 

å

pr
fto

ûü
n

nr
tf 

úl
' T

in
 x

an
 a

 ¡
n 

r¡
tr

rc
n¡

ad
 E

rg
ne

o 
on

 b
€h

df
 o

{w
oo

db
ur

n 
ln

du
st

ria
l 

ce
ph

el
 G

ro
up

 [[
c

¿

po

nq
ùo

ot

6

fs
sa

*s
cd

V
L

Í..
,ä

ü}
,3

to
00

S
C

R
F

rn
l

P
¡u

l&
æ

8.
17

 e
ct

o*
¿

S
13

30
m

0¡
m

0

F
*d

lù
rt

r
t$

r3
¡g

ã0
0r

æ

A
00

nE
$$

llc
$e

A
d(

r¡
cr

o,
 S

hæ
'a

or
l, 

O
R

 S
lt¡

10
llo

 S
lb

 A
rll

ru
¡r

. 
tll

ûn
åo

.t,
 Õ

ft 
ítt

¡t
{t

O
Y

R
ll

t{

lA
nA

F
O

F
N

ffT
E

Þ
I{

A
T

Ë

T
im

 K
en

'
îim

 K
or

r'
,{

^
\-

r*
-'ø

w
t{

 lu
R

E

ãl
u.

r.
-

1:
:.'

Exhibit F, Page 46 of 121
Ordinance 2020-007, Exh to Staff Report 
September 1, 2020, Page 75 of 162

105



Exhibit F. Certification of Legal Description and Map

*To be completed by County Assessor upon receipt of legal description

Exhibit F, Page 47 of 121
Ordinance 2020-007, Exh to Staff Report 
September 1, 2020, Page 76 of 162

106



rHg SÊCIW ls TO 8E Cffin$Eo 8T ¡UAE*&reTOil @filÍY ASffi8StrE OFFIûE

(All Methods)

I frereby certify that the description of the proprty includad witf*in the

attached petition (located on Agesgsor's Uap 2S r3l f ZSl33 tsB-¡

has been checked by nre and it is a truE and exacl deecnption of the prcperty

under coneidgntion, and tha descriptbn corresponds to the a$ached map

indicating the property under considsrat¡on"

4lJ> 6sz.r
1-

B€PARTME}.¡T Ç+t<ç (;zÆ*

COUHTY OF' ç4ç ftttv(r-qoV

L {zz ?4

AililExA'Tþ}¡ CERTIFIED

æ

JUt{ ? 2 m20

vvÀsHr¡¡GTor{ cotJNTYA t T

CÂRTOGFI{PIIY

Exhibit F, Page 48 of 121
Ordinance 2020-007, Exh to Staff Report 
September 1, 2020, Page 77 of 162

107



EXHIBIT'A'
ANNEXATON TO CLEAN WA]ER SERVICES AND INTO THE CITY OF SI{ERI¡ÍOOD

LOCATED rN THE NoR]H 1/2 OF THE NoRTHWEST 1/+ OF SECToN 53,
TOW{SHIP 2 SOUTH. RANGE 1 WEST WILLAMET]E MERIDIAN.

COUNTY OF WASHINGTON. STATE OF OREGON

IHAT TRACT OF LAND DESCRIBED IN DEED DOCUMENT NO. 2017-085736, 'IHAT TRACT OF LAND DESCRIBED
IN DOCUMENT NO. 2017_085748, THE TRACT OF LAND DEDICATED TO 'ÍHE PUBLIC IN BOOK 804 PAGE 898
(AND IN BOOK 926 PAGE 721 RECoRDEÐ ON MAy 25, 1973), A PORTioN 0F LAND CONVEYED lN
DEDICA'IION DEED NO, 2002-116985 RECORDED OCTOBER 7, 2OA2, AND THAT POR'IION OF S.W. TONQUIN
ROAD LOCATED tN tHE NORTH HALF OF rHE NORTHWEST 1/4 OF SECTON 33 TOWNSHIP 2 SoUIH, RANGE
1 WEST OF THE WLLAMETIE MERIDIAN. IVASHINGTON COUNTY, STATE OF ORECON. AS SHOW{ ON EXHIBIT
'B' ATTACHED HERETO AND BY'IHIS REFERENCE MADE A PART THEREOñ AND BEINC MORE PARTCULARLY
DESCRIBED AS FOLLOWS:

COMMENCING AT 'fHE NOR1HITEST CORNER OF SAID SECTION 33 MARKED BY A 2-INCH BRASS DISK IN A
MONUMENT BOX MARKED .T2S RIIII 29 2A 32 33 ITASH. CO. SURIEYOR";

THENCE SOUTH 88'49'57,8 651.27 FEET ALONG THE NOR''H LINE OF SAID SECTION 33 TO A POINT ON THE
\''€ST RIGHT-OF_WAY UNE OF S.S,. TONQUIN ROAD, SAID POINT BËING 

.IHE 
]RUE POINT OF BEGINNING;

THENCE SOUTHEASTERLY ALONG THE \{EST RIGHT_OF-WAY LINE OF S.W. TONQUIN ROAD, BEING A
NON-TANCENI CUR\E TO THE RIOHT WTH A RADIAL BEARING SOUTH 5035,57" U/EST, CHORD BEARING
sourH 28'56'59' EAST, CHORD LENGlÌt 528.05 FEET, DcLTA OF 21'32'53", LENGTH 551.17 FEET, AND
RADIUS OF 1412.39 FEET;

THENCE CONTINUING ALONG SAID WEST RIGHT-OF-WAY SOUTH I75O'33" EAST 154.07 FEET;

THENCE CONT]NUING ALONG SAID IVEST RIGHT_OF.WAY BEING A TANGENT CURVE TO THE LEFT !l,l'iH A
CHoRD BEARTNG SOUTH 20''t3'03' EAST CHORD LENGfi 239.09 FEET, DELTA OF 4'45'00", LENGTH 259,16
FEET, AND RADIUS OF 2884.79 FEETI

THENCE CONT'INUING ALONG SAID WEST RIOHT_OF_WAY SOUTH 2255'33" EAST 526.48 FEET

THENCE CONTNUING ALONO SAID WEST RIGHT-OF-WAY BEING A TANTENT CURVE TO fHE LEFT W'IH
CHORD BEARING SOUTH 22'51,A7" EAST, CHORD I-ENGTH 4.50 FEET. SELTA OF OO,3I,O7", LENGTH 4.50
FEET, AND RADIUS OF 497.46 FEET TO A POINT ON THE SOUTH UNE OF fiE NORTH HALF OF THE

NORTHwEST 1/4 OF SA|D SECT|ON J3;

THENCE LEAVING SAID IIì/EST RIGHI-OF-IIIAY LINÉ SOUTH 88'47'01, EAST 15ô0.96 FEET ALONC SAID SOUTH

LINE TO A I-|NCH |RON P|PE 0N 'tHE EAST L|NE OF THE NW 1/a;
.IHENCE 

NORTH OO?9,0I" EASÎ 655.24 FEET ALONG SAID EAST LINE TO A I-INCH IRON PIPE ON THE

NORTH UNE OF THE SOU.IH 1,/2 OF THE NORTHEAST 1/+ OF THE NORTHI,VESI 1/4;

fiENCE NOR'IH 88?6'21" II'EST 1310,ô9 FEET ALONG SAID NORT}I UNE TO A POINÎ ON 'IHE WEST LINE OF

THE NORTHEAST 1/4 OF TltE NORTHWEST 1/4;

THENCE NORTH 01'00'30" EAST 657.12 FEET ALON6 SA|D mST L|NE TO A 5/8-|NCH REBAR ON lHE
NORTH LINE OF SAID SECTON 33;

THENCE NORTH 88'49'57" $IEST 658.06 FEET ALONG SAID NORIH LINE TO A POINT ON ]HE WEST
RIGHT-OF_TryAY UNE OF SAID S.Yf. TONQUIN ROAD, SAID POINT BEING SAID TRUE POINT OF BËGINNING.

CoNTAININC 29.61 ACRES MORE OR LESS. eà{LrFU4rrr_a: ^r4?.r&q*RÉ4þ\ÍTe.&,¡{ å üq..pf't uuÈ.{ å !ÍF-þ$ît}

3\3r'Å 3" ? ä*ä*

',Í!rí{.\lill\{:"irr tlu i .¡ l!'t\r i \ ¿.\ å tr vúvf Y, ¡ iì* I

^ñn?r\ñn4ruJVI "&K i å ,[ rH&Flrr, ìì { I I

PAGE 1 OF 1

ORÊGON
MAY 26, 2015

SAMANÏHA KAY TANNER
90079

RENEWS 6/30/2022

REGISÏERED
PROFESSIONAL LAND

SURVEYOR

il"

Exhibit F, Page 49 of 121
Ordinance 2020-007, Exh to Staff Report 
September 1, 2020, Page 78 of 162

108



N
E

X
H

IB
IT

'B
'

À
N

N
E

X
A

T
IO

N
 T

O
 C

LE
A

N
 W

A
T

E
R

 S
E

R
V

IC
E

S
 A

N
D

 I
N

T
O

 T
H

E
 C

IT
Y

 T
F

 S
}I

E
R

}T
O

O
D

LO
C

A
T

E
D

 t
N

 'r
H

E
 N

O
R

T
H

 1
/2

 O
F

 T
H

E
 N

O
R

T
H

Ï'E
S

Ï 
1/

4 
O

F
 S

E
C

T
T

O
N

 3
3,

ÏO
W

I.I
S

H
IP

 2
 S

O
U

T
H

, 
R

A
N

G
E

 1
 IV

E
S

T
. 

W
T

LA
M

E
T

T
E

 M
E

R
ID

IA
N

,
C

O
U

N
T

Y
 O

F
 W

A
S

III
N

G
T

O
N

, 
S

T
À

T
E

 O
F

 O
R

E
G

O
N

F
D

 s
/î'

R
E

B
Á

R
, 

N
O

 C
A

P
, 

H
E

LD

A
r'¡

H
ffi

X
.Å

T
ttH

 tX
&

T
tF

m
k,

rk
 t;å

,J
 iå

;

F
üE

 G
 C

flt
rA

tr
f

rú
ro

ffi
fff

i 
tr

 s
E

ê 
.It

F
D

 2
, 

B
R

A
S

S
 D

IS
K

 "
T

2S

R
t'/

 2
9 

28
 3

2 
33

 W
A

S
H

.

T
O

. 
S

U
R

Y
E

Y
O

R
" 

I¡
,J

 M
O

N
.

B
O

X
, 

S
E

T
 I

N
 U

S
E

T

W
_

_E S
M

Ë
 F

ilT
T

 tr
 A

H
X

T
P

tô N rt r(
t

(o

1-
03

9 s8
84

9'
57

"8
 6

51
.2

7'

P
O

R
n$

l 
aF

 D
E

U
C

A
nÛ

'|
D

^c
- 

N
o.

 2
00

2-
11

69
85

N
O

R
T

H
 1

/2
 O

F
 t

U
E

N
E

 1
/4

 O
F

 -Í
H

E
 N

W

t/4
sr

zã
d¡

t?
îil

.0
7

R
E

N
E

W
S

 6
/3

0/
2A

22

sa
u'

r{
 1

/2
 o

F
 'tH

E
 N

W

1/
4 

A
r 

T
H

E
 N

W
 t/

4

w
r 

î/1
sF

c3
3

F
D

. 
2"

 S
R

A
S

S
 C

A
P

 "
T

2S
 R

ltl
 3

2

lg
1g

 W
A

S
H

. 
C

O
. 

S
U

R
I'€

Y
O

R
" 

lN

M
O

N
U

M
T

N
T

 B
O

X
 P

E
R

 U
S

B
T

20
02

_0
62

, 
S

E
T

 I
N

 U
S

B
I 

B
K

.5
 F

N
T

R
Y

15
2,

 P
ç.

 4
91

, 
H

E
LD

S
C

A
LE

 1
" 

=
 3

00
'

O
N

 A
N

 8
,5

'X
11

'' 
S

H
E

E
T

r{
fir

H
 u

r{
E

 0
r 
gc

m
r 

¡¡
N

æ
'1

9'
'fV

s2
23

5'
¡t

?
sÆ

.1
8

40
ß

N

R
=

19
7.

46
'

b0
3l

'a
?p

C
lß

-9
25

1'
07

8
C

tlL
*1

60
'

* - ã Ë b ä vt ü

ìl (\
¡ H (4
,

Ìô t\ rt ¡r
) €

(') c) ñ C
\¡ (ô C
ì - ¡ qt lr, 6 !¡
) c¡ o U
.,

50
uT

H
 1

/2
 A

F
 T

H
r.

 N
W

 t

\\

P
A

G
E

 1
 O

F
 1

-1
r

/4 ,s

JU
N

 3
 ?

 ?
üä

ti

P
LO

ï 
D

A
'rE

:6
/1

9/
20

20
F

IT
"E

 N
A

[IË
: 

2O
O

O
9-

A
¡{

N
E

B
Y

 4
5T

H
 P

A
R

A
LL

Ë
L 

G
E

O
^4

A
T

C
S

, 
LL

C

O
R

IG
O

N
M

A
Y

 2
6,

 2
01

5
S

A
M

A
N

]H
A

 
K

A
Y

 T
A

N
N

E
R

90
07

9

R
E

G
IS

T
E

R
E

D
P

R
O

F
E

S
S

IO
N

A
L 

LA
N

D
S

U
R

V
E

Y
O

R

25
' 

P
E

R
U

A
N

f].
IT

 P
U

B
LI

C

B
K

. 
92

6 
P

G
. 

72
1

D
oc

. 
N

o.
20

17
-0

85
73

6

S
¡

=
ñ

:È
 ¡

ô
-(

o
H

I Ê
 ¡

.r
b8 -+

Ê
*-

Ë
L¡

ã
=

N
W

 tl
4 

A
F

 T
H

r 
N

E

1/
4 

A
r 

T
H

E
 N

w
 t/

4

iff
i'H

 U
IIE

 O
F

 I'
/E

 f
fi'

T
H

N
ffi

T
H

 t/
lr 

sf
c,

&
t

F
D

. 
J"

 S
R

Á
S

S
 C

Á
P

'rd
A

st
l 

cT
Y

 2
8 

33
 2

51
 1

97
5"

IN
 C

O
N

C
R

E
T

E
, 

S
E

I 
IN

 U
S

B
T

2*
10

4

tr
T

f/E
H

E
tA

çt
E

N
U

,/1

N
E

 1
/4

t/4
 0

r
O

F
 T

U
E

 N
E

T
H

E
 N

W
 1

/4

sa
uT

{ 
1/

2 
O

F
 T

H
E

 N
E

 t/
4 

A
ïIH

E
 N

W
 1

/4

00
c.

 l
.¡

o.
 2

01
7-

08
37

48

flr
IH

 rr
r{

E
 ff

 tl
r 

N
æ

T
H

 t
/2

 G
 t#

 N
Y

 tA

F
D

.1
, 

R
A

N
 N

P
E

, 
H

E
LD

n.
 5

/s
" 

R
E

B
A

R
, 
N

A
 C

A
P

,

41
.2

8'
 N

O
R

T
H

 
O

N
 t

,N
E

vf
Å

$,
-Í

å,
q¡

üT
#N

 *
üU

N
T

Y
Å

 &
 T

*Â
R

T
*t

ftÅ
pþ

{Y

Exhibit F, Page 50 of 121
Ordinance 2020-007, Exh to Staff Report 
September 1, 2020, Page 79 of 162

109



Exhibit G. Boundary Change Data Sheet

Exhibit F, Page 51 of 121
Ordinance 2020-007, Exh to Staff Report 
September 1, 2020, Page 80 of 162

110



BOUNDARY CHANGE ÐATA SHEET

I. EXISTING IN AREA TO BE ANNEXED OR WITH

A. General location
SW Tonquin Rd., approx. 350'south of Oregon St

B. Land Area: Acres
28.17

or Square Miles
o4

C. General description of territory. (lnclude topographic features such as slopes,
vegetation, drainage basins, floodplain areas, which are pertinent to this proposal.)

The site slopes east to west with steeper grades near the west property line

The site is vacant with an existing grassy condition and near-sudace rock. A

CWS SPL did not identify any sensitive areas on the site

D. Describe Land uses on surrounding parcels. Use tax lots as reference points

North
Undeveloped / storage uses; 25128C000500; Washington County (FD-20)

Rural residential / Undeveloped; 251330000401 , 251330000402;
East:

Washington County (FD-20, EFC)

Undeveloped; 251 330000600; Washington County (AF-20)
South:

Open space; 2S1330002500; City of Shen¡vood (MDRH)
West:

E. Existing Land Use:

multi-family units 
0

Number of commercial structures 
0 

Number of industrial structures 
0

0
Public facilities or other uses

What is the current use the land proposed to be annexed:

The current use is vacant and undeveloped.

F. Total current year Assessed Valuation: $ 
417'240

G. Total existing population:
0

11

Exhibit F, Page 52 of 121
Ordinance 2020-007, Exh to Staff Report 
September 1, 2020, Page 81 of 162

111



lt. REASON FOR BOUNDARY CHANG E

A. The Metro Code spells out criteria for consideration (Metro Code 3.09.050). Considering
these criteria, please provide the reasons the proposed boundary change should be
made. Please be very specific. Use additional pages if necessary.

A narrative is provided with this application addressing applicable Metro Code

3.09.050 cr¡teria. The proposed annexation area is consistent with applicable

long-range planning agreements and master plans, and is within the UGB.

B. lf the property to be served is entirel-n or substantially undeveloped. what are the plans
for future development? Be specific. Describe type (residential, industrial, commercial,
etc.), density, etc.

Consistent with the Tonquin Employment Area (TEA) plan, the site is planned

for future employmenVindustrial use.

III I AND II.qF AND PI ANNING

A. ls the subject territory inside or outside of the Metro Regional Urban Growth Boundary?

The subject territory is inside the UGB.

B. What is the applicable County Planning Designation? FD-20

Or City Planning Designation? El upon annexation

Does the proposed development comply with applicable regional, county or city
comprehensive plans? Please describe.

A narrative is provided with this application demonstrating compliance with

applicable regional, county, and city policies

G. What is the zoning on the territory to be served?
FD-20 in Washington County. The territory will be zoned El upon annexation.

D. Can the proposed development be accomplished under current county zoning?

_ yes _ No N/A; Site development is not proposed at this time

lf No, has a zone change been sought from the county either formally or informally?

-Yes 

y' 
No

Please describe outcome of zone change request if answer to previous questions was Yes.

12

Exhibit F, Page 53 of 121
Ordinance 2020-007, Exh to Staff Report 
September 1, 2020, Page 82 of 162

112



E. Please indicate all permits and/or approvals from a City, County or Regional
Government which will be needed for the proposed development. lf already granted,
please indicate date of approval and identifying number:

Please submit copies of proceedings relating to any of the above permits or approvals
which are pertinent to the annexation.

F. lf a city and/or county-sanctioned citizens' group exists in the area of the annexation,
please list its name and address of a contact person.

IV. SERVICES ANÐ TIES

A. Please indicate the following:

1. Location and size of nearest water line that can serve the subject area.

12-inch water mainlines are available for connection at the intersection

of SW Tonquin Road and SW Oregon Street

2. Location and size of nearest sewer line which can serve the subject area.

A 12-inch sanitary sewer mainline is available for connection within the

intersection at SW Oregon Street and SW Tonquin Road

3. Proximity of other facilities (storm drains, fire engine companies, etc.) which can
serve the subject area.

Existing culverts across SW Tonquin Road to convey storm to Rock Creek.

Tualatin Valley Fire & Rescue Station 33 is located .B mile from the site

APPROVAL
PROJECT
FILE NO.

DATE OF
APPROVAL

FUTURE
REQUIREMENT

Metro UGB Amendment
City of County Plan Amendment
Pre-Application Hearing (City or
Countv)

PAC 20-03 N/A N/A

Preliminary Subdivision Approval
Final Plat Approval
Land Partition
Conditional Use
Variance
Sub-Surface Sewage Disposal
Building Permit

13

Exhibit F, Page 54 of 121
Ordinance 2020-007, Exh to Staff Report 
September 1, 2020, Page 83 of 162

113



4. The time at which services can be reasonably provided b¡r the citv or district.
lmmediately upon site development

5. The estimated cost of extending such facilities and/or services and what is to be the
method of financing. (Attach any supporting documents.)
Approx. $32,850 for sewer and $43,800 for water. Funding is private w/ applicable SDC credits

6. Availability of desired service from any other unit of local government. (Please
indicate the government.)

Pursuant to ORS 199.510(2)(c), the property is also being annexed

concurrently into the boundaries of the CWS district,

B. lf the territory described in the proposal is presently included within the boundaries of or
being served extraterritorially or contractually by, any of the following types of
governmental units please so indicate by stating the name or names of the
governmental units involved.

N/A
Rurat Fire Dist. TVFR

City

N/A N/A
County Service Dist Sanitary District

Water DistrictHwy. Lighting Dist.
N/A N/A

N/A N/A
Grade School Dist. Drainage District

High School Dist
N/A N/A

Diking District

Library Dist
N/A N/A

Park & Rec. Dist.

N/A
Special Road Dist lvino,MAOther District Supp

Water Service

C. lf any of the above units are presently servicing the territory (for instance, are residents
in the territory hooked up to a public sewer or water system), please so describe.

There are no residents within the proposed annexation property.
:.,1

14

Exhibit F, Page 55 of 121
Ordinance 2020-007, Exh to Staff Report 
September 1, 2020, Page 84 of 162

114



V. APPLICANT INFORMATION

Tim Kerr
APPLICANT'S NAME

MAILING ADDRESS
395 Shenandoah Lane NE

Woodburn, Oregon 97071

971-235-5003
TELEPHONE NUMBER (Work)

(Res.)

Woodburn lndustrial Capital Group LLC
REPRESENTING

DATE

15

Exhibit F, Page 56 of 121
Ordinance 2020-007, Exh to Staff Report 
September 1, 2020, Page 85 of 162

115



Exhibit H. Annexation Questionnaire

Exhibit F, Page 57 of 121
Ordinance 2020-007, Exh to Staff Report 
September 1, 2020, Page 86 of 162

116



ANNEXATION UESTIONNAIRE

It is the applicant's responsibility to obtain the information requested on the attached annexation
questionnaire. The information is used by the Center for Population Research and Census
(CPRC) at Portland State University to update the estimate of the population for the City of
Shenvood after annexations.

The information collected is confidential and is used for no other purpose. Please obtain the
information prior to submitting the annexation petition. lt is your responsibility to update this
information if changes are made between the original application filing and the effective date of

the application.

Fill out one sheet per property that is being annexed.

Address:
No Site Address, Sherwood, OR 97140

Housing type: vn
tr Single-family home

tr Multi-familyresidence
n Manufactured home

OccuPancy: N/A

tr Owner occupied

tr Renter occupied

tr Vacant
tr Seasonal

Resident lnformation:

N/AN/AN/AN/A

LAST NAME FIRST NAME SEX AGE

16

Exhibit F, Page 58 of 121
Ordinance 2020-007, Exh to Staff Report 
September 1, 2020, Page 87 of 162

117



Exhibit L Worksheet for Annexation

Exhibit F, Page 59 of 121
Ordinance 2020-007, Exh to Staff Report 
September 1, 2020, Page 88 of 162

118



R
T

P
le

as
e 

lis
t 
al

l p
ro

pe
rt

ie
s/

re
gi

st
er

ed
 

vo
te

rs
 in

cl
ud

ed
 í

n 
th

e 
pr

op
os

al
. 

(lf
 n

ee
de

d,
 u

se
 s

ep
ar

at
e 

sh
ee

ts
 f

or
 a

dd
iti

on
al

 li
st

in
gs

.)

**
P

ln
fo

rm
at

io
n*

*
A

LL
 M

E
T

H
O

D
S

**
st

er
ed

 V
ot

er
s*

*
U

B
LE

 M
A

JO
R

IT
Y

 M
E

T
H

O
D

 O
N

L

**
S

um
m

ar
y*

*

T
O

T
A

L 
N

U
M

B
E

R
 O

F
 R

E
G

IS
T

E
R

E
D

 
V

O
T

E
R

S
 lN

 T
H

E
 P

R
O

P
O

S
A

L:
 - 

0
N

U
M

B
E

R
 O

F
 R

E
G

IS
T

E
R

E
D

 
V

O
T

E
R

S
 W

H
O

 S
IG

N
E

D
 P

E
T

IT
IO

N
: 
T

-
P

E
R

C
E

N
T

A
G

E
 

O
F

 R
E

G
IS

T
E

R
E

D
 

V
O

T
E

R
S

 W
H

o 
S

IG
N

E
D

 P
E

T
IT

Io
N

:IV
/Ã

T
O

T
A

L 
A

C
R

E
A

G
E

 lN
 T

H
E

 P
R

O
P

O
S

A
L:

28
'1

7
A

C
R

E
A

G
E

 S
IG

N
E

D
 ¡

9¡
; 

28
'1

7

-1
7

P
E

R
C

E
N

T
A

G
E

 
O

F
 A

C
R

E
A

G
E

 S
IG

N
E

D
 ¡

9P
. 

1 
O

O

T
O

T
A

L 
N

U
M

B
E

R
 O

F
 S

IN
G

LE
-F

A
M

IL
Y

 U
N

IT
S

: 
0

T
O

T
A

L 
N

U
M

B
E

R
 O

F
 M

U
LT

I-
F

A
M

IL
Y

 
U

N
IT

S
:-

T
-

T
O

T
A

L 
N

U
M

B
E

R
 O

F
 C

O
M

M
E

R
C

IA
L 

S
T

R
U

C
T

U
R

E
S

:-
T

-
T

O
T

A
L 

N
U

M
B

E
R

 O
F

 I
N

D
U

S
T

R
IA

L 
S

T
R

U
C

T
U

R
E

S
:-

O
-

S
IG

N
E

D
P

E
T

IT
IO

N
Y

E
S

 N
O

x X

A
S

S
E

S
S

E
D

 V
A

LU
E

 O
F

T
H

E
 P

R
O

P
E

R
T

Y

$1
,1

4,
96

0

$2
72

,2
80

94
17

,2
40

T
O

T
A

L
A

C
R

E
S

8.
17

20
.0

0

28
.1

7

W
oo

db
um

 l
nd

us
tr

¡a
l 

C
ap

ita
l 

G
ro

up
 

LL
C

W
oo

db
ur

n 
ln

du
st

ria
l C

ap
ita

l 
G

ro
up

 L
LC

N
A

M
E

 O
F

 P
R

O
P

E
R

T
Y

 O
W

N
E

R

25
1 

33
00

00
40

0

P
R

O
P

E
R

T
Y

D
E

S
IG

N
A

T
IO

N
(T

ax
 L

ot
 N

um
be

rs
)

25
13

38
80

01
00

T
ot

al
s:

X

S
IG

N
E

D
P

E
T

IT
IO

N
Y

E
S

 N
O

N
A

M
E

 O
F

 R
E

G
IS

T
E

R
E

D
 V

O
T

E
R

N
/A

A
D

D
R

E
S

S
 O

F
 R

E
G

IS
T

E
R

E
D

 V
O

T
E

R

N
/A

T
ot

al
s

Exhibit F, Page 60 of 121
Ordinance 2020-007, Exh to Staff Report 
September 1, 2020, Page 89 of 162

119



Exhibit J. PAC 2020-003 Notes

Exhibit F, Page 61 of 121
Ordinance 2020-007, Exh to Staff Report 
September 1, 2020, Page 90 of 162

120



CIf

Pre-Application Conference Notes
PAC 2020-003

Meeting Date: January 23,2020
Planning Staff Contact: Joy L. Chanqod

503-625-4214 or chanq ilOshenruoodoreoon. oov
Ilorne of theTtaTatíu Rit'vr NntìanalWîldlife R4fi&e

Annexation / Conditional Use Permit / Site Plan Review

Proposed project name: Kerr - Annexation and Contractor's Establishment

PROPOSAL DESCRIPTION: The applicant is proposing annexation of a t28.17 acre site into the City.

The applicant is also pursuing a contractors'establishment on the site.

APPLICANT: Mike Towle, DOWL
720 SW Washington Street, Suite 750
Portland OR 97205

OWNER: Woodburn lndustrial Capital Group LLC
PO BOX 1060, Woodburn OR 97071

PROPERTY LOCATION: Approximately 280 feet south of SW Oregon Street and on the east side of
SW Tonquin Road

TAX LOT ID:251330000400 and 2S1338800100

LAND USE DES¡GNATION: Employment lndustrial (El) once annexed into the City boundary

IDENTIFIED POTENTIAL CONSTRAINTS/ISSUES: Extension of City Services to Tax Lot 400,
Tonquin Employment Area (Employment lndustrial Zoning, Conditional Use, Constrained Land)

ilanuary 23, 2O2O - Kerr Annexation and Contractor's EstabliEtrment
Page L

Exhibit F, Page 62 of 121
Ordinance 2020-007, Exh to Staff Report 
September 1, 2020, Page 91 of 162

121



Based on the information provided, NECESSARY APPLICATIONS:
. Type V Annexation
. Type iV Site Pian Review - Site Fians greater ihan 40,ûûû square ieei of fioor area, parking or

seating capacity.
oT lll Conditional Use Permit

STAFF COMMENTS
The following comments are based on staffs review of the information provided on the Pre-Application
Form and accompanying attachments.

1. Annexation - There are four methods of annexation to the City of Shenruood. Three of the four
rnafhnrlc ranr¡irac a rrnfa nf fha nilizano nf llra l-i{r¡ n{ Qhnn.,anÄ CEt4Ã7e f,t^+¡-^-¡ -¡^^^ ^^+ .l^l\o/ ^rve q Yvlv vr Lr rv urlr4vr 19 vr !r r(/ vrty vt vt tgt vvv\-r\J, rru t r.rt !t lrllil,l ll.rLl \lL.rçÐ I l\JL - | \.rv /o LI
the property owners file a petition to be annexed, and if all criteria outlined in S81573 are satisfied,
thcn tha ronl tirarnanf frnrn fha llifrr l-harfor fnr c man¡{afaÀ l^ihr reriÄa rrata io avamn{aÄ Thn /^¡+r, /^^, ,h^;lvrrqrlvr rv¡ s lllqllvqlvv vllJ YYIVV vVlV tOV^\rllIVL¡JV' I ll(t VlLy r!,lJl.rll\/ll

he¡nmoc tha a¡finn ql rfhnrifrr anr{ nn rrnfa nf fha nr rhlin io ranr rira¡l ar narmil{n¡lrY qvrr¡vrrrJ qrrv rrv Yvlv vr rrrv }Juvilv rù tEYUilEv rvil vçtttilLtg\1.

See all requirements identified in the "Checklist for Annexatþn Request" packet.

One criterion for annexation approval is feasibility of public services (sewer, water, stormwater, etc.).
Tax Lot 400 is land locked and does not have direct access to utilities. One option is to complete a lot
consolidation, combining TL 100 with TL 400. The other option is to provide a public throughway
through TL 100 that benefit TL 400"

2. Once annexed, the properly will be zoned Employment lndustrial. Allowed uses and dimensional
requirements are reflected in Chapter 16.31. Contractors'storage and equipment yards use is shown
on the table below.

io.3i.û24 - Uses

A. The table belou, identifies the land uses that are permitted outright (P), permitted conditionatly (C) and not
permitted (N) in the industrial zoning districts. The specific land use categories are described and defined in Chapter
16.88.

B. Uses listed in other sections of this Code, but not within this specific table are prohibited.

C. Any use not otlt.erwise listed that can be shou,n to be consistent or associated v¡ith the uses permitted outright or
conditionally in the industrial zones or contribute to the achievement of the objectives of the índustrial zones may be
permitted outright or conditionally, utilizing the provisions of Chapter I6.88.

D. Additional limitations for specific uses ore identified in thefootnotes of this table.

Uses EI]

INDUSTRIAL

. Contrøctorst storage ønd equipment yards C4

On constrøined lund where structures would not otherwise be permitted, provided thøt no nøturøl resources
sttch øs v,etland or floodplains øre impøcted.

,Ianuary 23, 2020 - Kerr Annexat,ion and Contractor,s Establishment
Page 2

Exhibit F, Page 63 of 121
Ordinance 2020-007, Exh to Staff Report 
September 1, 2020, Page 92 of 162

122



16.31.030 - Development Standards

A. Generally

No lot area, setback, yard, landscaped area, open space, offstreet parking or loading area, or other site dimension or
requirement, existing on, or after, the effective date of this Code shall be reduced below the minimum required by this

Code. Nor shall the conveyance of any portion of a lot, for other than a public use or right-of-way, leave a lot or
structure on the remainder of said lot with less than minimum Code dimensions, aree, setbacks or other requirements,

except as permitted by Chapter 16.84 (Variances and Adjustments).

B. Development Standards

Except as otlterwise provided, required minimum lot areas and dimensions and setbacl<s shall be

Development Standards by Zone

Lot area - Industrial Uses
¡9J ACreS'

Lot area - Commercial Uses (subject to Section 16.31.050)

Lot width atfront property line.

Lot width at building line.

Front yard setback tr

Side yard setbackto

e Lots within the El zone that were legal lots of record prior to October 5, 2010 and smaller
than the minimum lot size required in the table below may be developed iffound consistent
with other applicable requirements of Chapter 16.31 and this Code. Further subdivision of
lots smaller than three (3) acres shall be prohibited unless Section 16.31.050 applies.
10 When a yard is abutting a residential zone or public park, there shall be a minimum setback
of forty (40) feet providedfor properties zoned Employment Industrial and Light Industrial
Zones, and a minimum setback of rtfty (50) feet provided for properties zoned General
Industrial.
11 Structures located within one-hundred (I 00) feet of a residential zone shall be limited to the

height requirements of that residential zone.

16.31.040 - Employment Industrial (EI) Restrictions

A. Use Restrictions

1. Retail and professional services that cater to daily customers, such as restaurants andfinancial, insurance, real
estate,legal, medical and dental ffices, shall be limited in the EI zone.

Page 3

ilanuary 23, 2020 - Kerr Annexation and Contractor's Estsablishment

EI

10,000 sF

100 feet

I00.feet

20 feet

Rear yard setback 11

20 feet

None

None

Corner lot street side 11

50 feetHeighttl

Exhibit F, Page 64 of 121
Ordinance 2020-007, Exh to Staff Report 
September 1, 2020, Page 93 of 162

123



a. New buildings for stores, branches, agencies or other retail uses and services shall not occupy more than five
thousand (5,000) square feet of sales or set'vice area in a single outlet and no more than tnenty thousand
(20,000) square feet of sales or service area in multiple outlets in the same development proÌect. and

b. New buildings for stores, branches, agencies or other retail uses and services shall not be located on lots or
parcels smaller thanfive (5) acres in size. A "developrnent project" includes all improvements proposed through
a site plan application.

2. Notwithstanding the provisions of Section 16.31.050 "Commercial Nodes (Jse Restrictions," commercial
development permitted under 16.31.050(1)(a) may only be proposed concurrent with or after industrial
development on th.e same parcel. Commercial development may not occur prior to industrial development on the
satne parcel.

B. Land Division Restrictions

1. Lois of recorrÌ prior io Ociober 5, 2û1û that are smaiier ihan ihe minimum iot size requirerÌ in the Ei zone may be
rleveloped íf found consistent with other applicable requirements of Chapter 16.31 and this code.. Furth-er
vthìlhicìn- nf lntc cø¡nllo- llanø tlnnoo /?\ ^-,,-. .L.'lI A- ^-^l^;L;¡-Å ',-l-.. 

q--r;^,^ t Ã 2l n<n ^^^t;-^çÒ otaØLL uç y, vtLLULLcø øtLLeõò oeLLLl)rL lU.Jf .VJV qyPLLçù.

2. Lots or parcels larger thanJiJty (50) acres may be divided into smaller lots and parcels pursuant to a Planned [Jnit
Development approved by the city so long as the resulting division yields at least one (1) lot or parcel of at least 50
acres in size.

3. Lots or parcels fifty (50) acres or larger, including those created pursuant to subsection (2) above, may be divided
into any number of smaller lots or parcels pursuant to a Planned Unit Development approved by the city so long
as at leastforry Q0) percent ofthe area ofthe lot or parcel has been developed with industrial uses or uses accessory
to industrial use.

16.31.050 - Tonquin Employment Area gEA) Commercial Nodes (Jse Restrictions
A. Within the Tonquin Employment Area gEA), only ¿snxlr.rcial uses that directly support industrial uses located

within the TEA are permitted as conditional uses.

B. Comntercial developntent, not to exceed a total offive (5) contiguous acres in size, may be permitted.

C. Commercial development may not be located within three hundred (300) feet of SW l24th Avenue or SW Oregon
Street, and must be adjacent to the proposed east-west collector street.

Based on the Tonquin Employment Area Concept Plan, the intent of the proposed El zone is
highligted below.

development objectives may result in short-term employment gains but future land uses that
hinder or preclude the identified desired industries. The intent of the proposed El zone is to
provide a unique place for emerging technologies and for the possib¡lity of synergistic
clusterings of similar uses, while at the same time allowing for more traditional light industrial
uses that cCIuld be sited in, or compat¡bly among, industrial park or carnpus developments.

Consistent with the zone's purpose statement, uses associated with the three identified key
industries are permitted outright. Through a condit¡onal use permit proÇess, uses that can be
shown to be "consistent with, or a variation of' target industry uses w¡ll also be permitted. No
other nÊw uses have been included in the El zone, but many Ll permitted uses have been
modified to better meet the objectives of the new employment area{s). Some uses that are

ilanuary 23, 2020 - Kerr Ànnexation and Contractor,s Establishment
Page 4

Exhibit F, Page 65 of 121
Ordinance 2020-007, Exh to Staff Report 
September 1, 2020, Page 94 of 162

124



The Sherwood Gomprehnsive Plan Part 2, Environmental Resrouce section defines constrained
lands as reflected below:

Limit land development in areas with known natural hazards, special topographic
soil, or drainage characteristics according to ùhe kind and degree of hazard or

characteristic present.

a. Restrict the nature and intensity of developrnent in:

l) 100-year floodplains

Areas with slopes which have slide or erosion potential.

Areas with weak foundation soils.

Wetlands

2\

3)

4\

Natural hazards such as runoff from paving and soil slþage due to weak

foundation soils that could result from new developments should be

considered.

Environmentally Gonstrained Land is also defined under S16.10.020 Definitions- Any portion of land
located within the floodway, one hundred-year floodplain, wetlands and/or vegetated corridor as defined
by Clean Water Services.

3. The applicant is considering a Contractor's Storage and Equipment Yard in the Employment lndustrial
Designation. The site is zoned Employment lndustrial and Contractor's Storage and Equipment Yard
use are permitted with a Condition Use Permit with additional limitations for specific uses. See footnote
4 of El Uses Table. Conditional Use Permit (CUP) provisions are delineated in Chapter 16.82 of the
Zoning and Community Development Code (ZCDC).

16.82.020 - Permít Approvøl

A. Hearing Authority Actiott
l. The Hearings AuthoriQ shall conduct a public hearing pursuant to Chapter 16.72 and take

action to approve, approve v¡ith condítions, or deny the application. Conditiotts nxay be intposed

by the Hearings Authorifit if necessary to fulfill the requirentents of the adopted Compreltensive
Plan, Transportation System Plan, or the Code. The decision shall include appropriate"findings
qf.fact as required b1t this Section, and an effective date.

2. Conditional uses ntay þs approved at the hearingfor a larger development (i.e. business

canxpus or industrial park), to includefuture tenants of such development, if the range of uses

allowed as conditional uses are considered, and specifically approved, at tlte time of original
applícation.

B. Final Site Plan

4

b.

ilanuary 23, 2020 - Kerr ÀnnexatÍon and Contractor's Establishmen!
Page 5

Exhibit F, Page 66 of 121
Ordinance 2020-007, Exh to Staff Report 
September 1, 2020, Page 95 of 162

125



Upon approval of a conditional use by the Hearing Authoritl¡, the applicant shall prepare a final site
planfor review and approval pursuant to.section 16.90" Tlcefinal site plan shall include any revisions
or oÍher feature.ç ot'conrl.i.lions t'eauit'erl ht¡ lhc Hcnrinø Aulltnrifv nÍ the, time nf th¡, nnnt'o,onl nf theJ - --1"" -" 'J '- -'-Ò -'-""-"'J -" "J "'- "ff '"

conditíonal use.

C. Use Criteria
No conditional use shall be granted unless each of the.following is found:

I. All public facilities and services to the proposed use, including but not limited to sanitaty
sev)ers, v¡ater, transportationfacilities, and services, stornx drains, electrical distribution, park
and open space and public safety are adequate; ot'that the construction o.f improvements
needed to provide adequate services andfacilities is guaranteed by binding agreeruent between
ihe applicant qn(Ì tlte, Cie.

2. Proposed use confornts to other standards of the applicøble zone and is compatible v,itlt
abutting land uses in regard to noise generation and public safety.

3. The granting of the proposal will providefor afacility or use that meets the overall needs of the
community and achíevetnent of the goals and/or policies o/'the Compreltensive Plan, the
adopted Cíty o_f Slterwood Transportation S)¡stent Plan and this Code.

4. Surroundíng property u¡ill not be adverseþt affected l:y the use, or that the adverse e.ffects of the
use on the suruounding uses, the neighborhood, or the City as a whole are sfficiently mitigated
by the conditions proposed.

J. The irnpacts of the proposed use of the síte can be accomntodated considering size, shape,
location, topo graphst and natural feøtures.

6. The use as proposed does not pose likely significant adverse impacts to sensitive wildlife species
or the natural environment.

D. Additional Conditions
In perntitting a conditional use or modification of an existing conditional use, additional conditions
malt þs applied to protect the hest interest,ç of tlte,çurrounding properti.e.s a.nd nei.ghborhoods, Íhe Ciqt
as a whr¡le, and the intent of thís Chapter. These conditions ruay ínclude but are not lintited to the
.following:

1. Mítigation of air, land, or water degradatian, noise, glare, heat, vibration, or otlter conditions
v,hiclt ntay be injurious to public health, safety or welfare in accordance with environmental
p erformanc e s tanda rds.

2. Frovisions for improvement of public facilities including sanitarlt sev)ers, storm drainage, water
lines, fire h),drants, street improventents, including curb and sidewalks, and other qbove and
underground utilities.

3. Increased required lot sizes, yard dintettsions, street v,idths, ønd offstreet parking and loading
facilities.

4. Requírementsfor tlte location, nunlber, type, síze or area of velücular access points, signs,
lighting, landscaping, fencing or screening, building height and coverage, and building
security.

5. Subnùttql offinal site plans, land dedications or money-in-lieu of parks or other improvements,
and suitable security guaranteeing conditional ose requirements.

6. Limiting the number, size, location, height and lighting of signs.

ilanuary 23, 2020 - Kerr Annexatíon and Contractor's EstabLishment
Page 6

Exhibit F, Page 67 of 121
Ordinance 2020-007, Exh to Staff Report 
September 1, 2020, Page 96 of 162

126



7. Requirements for the protection and preservatiott of existing trees, soils, vegetation,

watercourses, Itabitat areas and drainage areas.

8. Requirements for design features which minimize potentialþt harnful environmental impacts

such as noise, vibration, air pollution, glare, odor and dust.

E. Tinte Limits
(Jnless approved under Section 16.82.020.A.2 for a larger developntent to includefuture tenants of
such developrnent, authorization of a conditional use shall be void after two (2) .ttears or such lesser

tinte as the approval may specify unless substantial constructíon, in tlte City's determination, has taken

place. The Hearing Authority ntay extend authorizationfor an additional period, not to exceed one (l)
year, upon a written request fi om the applicant showing adequate cause for such extension, and
payment of an extension applicationfee as per Section 16.74.010.

F. Revocation

Any departure front approved plans not authorized by the Hearing Authority shall be cause for
revocation of applicable building and occupancy permits. Furtherntore, if, in the Cit.v's determination,

a condition or conditions of CLIP approval are not or cannot be satisfied, the CUP approval, or
building and occupancy permits, shall be revoked.

4. The approval criteria for Site Plan Reviews are delineated in the Shenruood Zoning and Community
Development Code (SZCDC) Section 16.90.

I 6. 9 0. 0 2 0. D Required Findings

No síte plan approval will be granted unless each of thefollowing is þund:

1. The proposed development meets applicable zoning district standards and design standards in Division II, and all
provisions of Divisions V, W, WII and IX.

2. The proposed development can be adequately served by services conforming to the Community Development Plan,

including but not limited to water, sanitary facilities, storm water, solid waste, parks and open space, public safety,

electric power, and communications.

3. Covenants, agreements, and other specific documents are adequate, in the City's determination, to assure an acceptable

method of ownership, management, and maintenance of structures, Iandscaping, and other on-sitefeatures.

4. The proposed development preserves significant natural features to tlte maximum extent feøsible, including but not

limited to natural drainage ways, wetlands, trees, vegetation (including but not limited to environmentally sensitive

lands), scenic views, and topographical features, and conforms to the applicable provisions of Division WII of thß
Code and Chapter 5 of the Community Development Code.

5. For developments that are likely to generate more than 400 average daily trips (ADTs), or at the discretion of the City
Engineer, the applicant must provide adequate information, such as a trffic impact analysß gIA) or trffic counts, to

demonstrate the level of impact to the surrounding transportation system. The developer is required to mitigate for
impacts attributable to the project, pursuant to TIA requirements in Section 16.106.080 and rough proportionality

requirements in Section 16.106.090. The determination of impact or ffict and tlte scope of the impact study must be

coordinated with the provider of the affected transportationfacility.

6. The proposed commercial, multi-family, institutional or mixed-use development is oriented to the pedestrian and

bicycle, and to existing and planned transitfacilities. Urban design standards include thefollowing:

a. Primary, front entrances are located and oriented to tlte street, and ltave significant articulation and treatment, via

facades, porticos, qrcades, porches, portal, þrecourt, or stoop to identify the entranceþr pedestrians. Additional

Page 7

,fanuary 23, 2020 - Kerr Ànnexation and Contractor's EsÈablish¡nen!

Exhibit F, Page 68 of 121
Ordinance 2020-007, Exh to Staff Report 
September 1, 2020, Page 97 of 162

127



entrance/exit pointsfor buildings, such as a postern, are allowedfrom secondary streets or parking areas

b. Buildings are located adjacent to andflush to the street, subject to landscape corridor and setback standards ofthe
underlying zone.

c. The arcltitecture of buildings are oriented to the pedestrian and designedfor the long term and be adaptable to other
uses. Aluminum, vinyl, and T-l I I siding are prohibited. Street facing elevations have windows, transparent
fenestration, and divisions to break up the mass of any window. Roll up and sliding doors are acceptable. Awnings
that provide a minimunt 3 feet of shelterfrom rain are required unless other architectural elements are providedþr
similar protection, such as an arcade.

d. As an altetnative to the standards in Section 16.90.A20.Ð.6.a-c, thefollowing Commercial Design Review Matrix
may be applied to any commercial, multi-family, institutional or mixed use development (this matrix may not be
-.¿:I:-^J -î^-- )^--^r^-----^,-/- -.-:2t-:-- -r-- 

^1 
J 4-, -,- 1--,-l- -\ / f -,--l-ulutzeuJUl uevetupilteilLJ wtLntlt Lne nLu luwlr uverLuy/. l7 uevetuplltefu lltusr prupuJe u rnrlufltullt ul uu percelu uJ

the total possibteþoints to be eligihlefor exemptionfrom the sÍandard,s in Se,ction 16.90.020.D.6.a-c.. In adrJi.tion,
n rlett¡,lnnmenl nrnnncino hehneen l5 nOl nn¡l 4OOOO cnunro feel nf llnnv nven nnvlrimo nr cenlimo rnnnri^t nnrl" " "1-,-"
proposing a minimum of 80 percent of tlte total possihle pointsfrom tlte motrix below mav be reviewed os a Tt¡ne lI
administrative review, per the ,standard,s of Section 16.72.010.A.2.

e. As an alternative to the standards in Sections I6.90.020.D.6.a---t, the Old Town Design Standards (Chapter I tí-l þ2
may be applied to achieve this performance meosure.

f. At an alternative to the standards in Sections 16.90.020.D.6.a.-e, an applicant may opt to have a design reviø,v
hearing before the Planning Commission to demonstrate how the proposed development meets or exceeds the
objectives in Section 16.90.010.8 of thß Code. This design review hearing will be processed øs a Type IV review
with public notice and a public hearing.

The Commercial Design Review Matrix is not applicable to this proposal. The applicant must meet
the lndustrial Design Standards (16.90.030.D.7 a or b) stated below.

a I--)-.^a-.:^, )^-.^t^---^-^-,'- -^-,^-.:)^ ^-----I^----- ---!----:/:-- 1-,, -:¿--,-- -1õ1--,-.---J -,-f tl--,--: -l- -l- n,-/, lftuuru Lut u.vvetupntents ptuvtue sïry)tuyruent uyPut LutLLtre\ JUr cilL-ens uJ Jnelwuuu unu lfte leStun us u wnule. I ne
proposed industrial developmenl is designed to enhance areas yisiblefrom arterial and collector streets by reducing
the "bulk" appearance of large buildings. Industrial design standards include theþllowing:

a. Portions of the proposed industrial development within 200 feet of an arterial or collector street and vísible to the
arterial or collector (i.e. not behind another building) must meet ønv four of the followins síx desien criteriø:

(l) A minimum I5% window glazingþr allfrontages facing an arterial or collector.

(2) A minimunt of two (2) building ntaterials used to break up verticalfacade streetfacingf"ontages (no T-l I I or
aluminum siding).

(3) Maximum thirfit-five (35) foot setbackþr all parts of the buildingfrom tlte properÍy line separating the site

from all arterial or collector streets (required visual corridorfalls within this maximum setback area).

(4) Parking is located to the side or rear of the building when viewed from the arterial or collector.

(5) Loading arees are located to the side or reer of the building when viewed front the arterial or collector. If a
loading area ís visible front an arterial or collector, it must be screened with vegetation or a screen ntade of
materials matching the building materials.

(6) AU roof-mounted equipment is screened with materials complimentary to the building design materials.

b. As an slternøtíve to Section 16.90.020,D.7.u, an applicant may opt to have a design review hearing before the

,fanuary 23, 2020 - Kerr Ànnexation and ConLracEor's Establish¡nent
Page I

Exhibit F, Page 69 of 121
Ordinance 2020-007, Exh to Staff Report 
September 1, 2020, Page 98 of 162

128



Planning Commission to demonstrøte ltow tlte proposed development meets or exceeds the applicable industrial
design objectives below (thß design review hearing will be processed øs a Type IV review):

(l) Provide high-value industrial projects that result in benefits to the community, consumers and developers.

(2) Provide diversified and innovative working environments that take into consideration community needs and

activity patterns.

(3) Support the City's goals of economic development.

(4) Complement and enhance projects previously developed under the industrial design standards identified in
Section I 6.90.020.D.7.

(5) Enhance the appearance of industrial developments visiblefrom arterials and collectors, particularly those

considered "entrances" to Sherwood, including but not limited to: Highway 99W, Tualatin-Sherwood Road

and Oregon Street.

(6) Reduce the "bulk" appeerance of large industrial buildings as viewedfrom the public street by appþing exterior

features such as architectural articulation, windows and landscaping.

(7) Protect natural resources and encourage integration ofnatural resources into site design (including access to

natural resources and open space amenities by the employees of the site and the community as a whole).

B. Driveways that are more thøn twenty-þur (24) feet in width shall align with existing streets or planned streets aß sltown

in the Local Street Connectivifii Map in the adopted Transportation System PIan (Figure 17), except wltere prevented

by topography, rail lines, freeways, pre-existing development, or leases, easements, or covenants.

E. Approvals
The application is reviewed pursuant to Chapter 16.72 and action taken to approve, approve with conditions, or deny the

applicationfor site plan review. Conditions may be imposed by the Review Authority if necessary to fuffill the requirements

of the adopted Comprehensive Plan, Transportation System PIan or the Zoning and Community Development Code. The

action must include appropriatefindings of fact as required by Section 16.90.020. The action may be appealed to the

Council in accordance with Chapter 16.76.

F. Time Limits
Site plan approvals are void after two (2) years unless construction on the site has begun, as determined by the City. The

City may extend site plan approvals þr an additional period not to exceed one (1) year, upon written request from the

applicant showing adequate causefor such extension, and payment of an extension applicationfee as per Section 16.74.010.

Asiteplanapproval grantedonor afterJanuary 1, 2007 througltDecember 31,2009, is extendeduntil December 31,2013.

7 . Visual Gorridor (Section 16.142.040) - The subject property is located adjacent to SW Tonquin Road
that is classified as an Arterial rights-of-way on the City's Street Functional Classification Map. A
landscaped visual corr¡dor is required along all collectors and arterials (as designated by the
Transportation System Plan ITSPI) as well as Highway 99W. The required width of the corridor for
collectors is ten (10) feet, arterials is fifteen (15) feet and Highway 99W is twenty-five (25) feet. Any
new formal development perm¡ts will require the developer to provide a landscaped visual
corr¡dor. ln all other developments (not residential), the visual corridor shall be on private property
adjacent to the right-of-way. The site affects the following visual corridor roadwaysl

SW Tonquin Road is designated as Arterial roadway on the TSP and a 15-foot landscaped visual
corr¡dor will be required along their frontage.

B. Landscaping, particularly visual corr¡dors, perimeter buffer, and parking area landscaping will be

rTanuary 23, 2o2o - Kerr AnnexaÈion and Contractor's EstsablishmenÈ 
Page 9

Exhibit F, Page 70 of 121
Ordinance 2020-007, Exh to Staff Report 
September 1, 2020, Page 99 of 162

129



required in accordance with Ghapter 16.92

9. Off-Street Parking (Chapter 16.94) and On Site Circulation (Chapter 16.96) - the proposed
development must comply with the requirements. Parking counts where reflected on the site plan, but
building use was not identified and staff could not determine if off-street parking requirements are
satisfied.

10.Solid Waste and Recycling Storage (Section 16.98.020) - The preliminary plans must identify all
storage and address the required criteria. Staff recommends early coordination with Pride Disposal
regarding their specific requirements/standards that must also be satisfied. See Pride Waste Disposal
/ Enclosure Requirements handout.

1 '1 . The development will need to comply with Ghapter 16.142. Parks, Trees, and Open Space. l{ew
developments are required to achieve minimum canopy requirements, and may be required to
inventory any existing trees. lndustrial development has a30% tree canopy requirement.

12.The development must comply with Chapter 16.132, Environmental Resources. The applicant will
need to contact Clean Water Services (CWS) and obtain a Service Provider Letter.

13. The development must comply with Chapter 16.144, Wetlands, Habitat, and Natural Areas. Our
mapping system identified several natural resources on site. The applicant must comply with Chapter
16.144 along with Clean Water Services requirements.

The Code allows flexibility in development standards in exchange for the protection of sensitive lands
as outlined in this Chapter. For example, qualifying developments may be allowed to reduce lot sizes
up to 10% and reduce setbacks up to 30% (see Section 16.144.030). These provisions can be utilized
when an equal amount of inventoried resource above and beyond that already required to be
protected is held in a public or private open space tract or othenryise protected from further
development.

14. Please refer to the City of Sherwood (COS) Engineering Comments for information regarding the
availability of water, sanitary sewer, stormwater, transportation, and other public facilities (Division
Vl. Public lnfrastructure). Below are some key points.

. CWSHydromodification
o Water service for fire protection
. Sanitary seruice
o Abandon both water well and septic system

15. Washington County, Land Use & Transportation - SW Tonquin Road is owned and maintained
by Washington County. Below are key points identified by Washington County. Contact Naomi Vogel
at 503-846-7639 with further questions.

ROW dedication - 45 feet from centerline of Tonquin. ROW or public easement needed for
Regional Trail.
Half-street improvement - pavement, bike lane, gutter/curb, street lighting, planter strip with
street trees and sidewalk (per city widths). Regional trail location/width per City.
TIA - in addition to City requirements include analysis for access to Tonquin (spacing from
Oregon St intersection), sight distance analysis (based on 55 MPH), 10% impact to

a

a

a

.January 23, 2020 - Kerr Annexation and Contractor,s Establishment
Page L0

Exhibit F, Page 71 of 121
Ordinance 2020-007, Exh to Staff Report 
September 1, 2020, Page 100 of 162

130



intersection(s) within study area,left-turn lane/queuing needsiother lanes (RT decel) and
truck turning templates. Refer to R&O 86-95 for report requirements.
Access will need to request a design exception to the Arterial access standards (refer to TIA
requirements). The same requirements as an AMP (County Code).
lnclude circulation and access for other parcels to/from Tonquin. Other public street access
will be problematic due to the spacing from the intersection with Oregon Street. As Bob
noted, Oregon/Tonquin intersection is on the RTP list (#10590).

16. Building Division and Tualatin Valley Fire & Rescue reviewed the proposed development and
identified the following items:

. The proposed industrial buildings will need Fire Sprinklers and Fire Alarms.

. An enhanced Radio transmitter will be required for all buildings over 50,000 square feet to
assist with radio frequency or pay a fee in lieu.

. Please see Tualatin Valley Fire & Rescue for additional comments.

Since limited structural building information was submitted, the City of Shenruood Building
Department has no further comments at this time. Proposed structures must meet current State of
Oregon Building Codes.

17. A separate permit is required for all permanent signs per SZCDC Chapter 16.102- SIGNS. Sign
permits may be applied for through the Shenryood Building Department. Temporary sign permits

are issued through the Shenruood Planning Department.

18. Based on the lce Age Tonquin Trail Master Plan, your site has been identified with the
Preferred Alignment for the regional trail (see attached Map 13 and Tile 7). The trail will be
required as part of any proposed development.

APPLICABLE CODE CRITERIA
(These sections must be addressed in the narrative submitted with the land use application)

a

a

16.44 (Townhomes)

16.46 (Manufactured Homes)

16.48 (Non-Conforming Uses)

16.50 (Accessory Uses)

1 6.80 (Plan Amendments)

X 16.82 (Conditional Uses)
16.86 (Variances)

X 16.96 (On-Site Circulation)
X 16.98 (On-Site Storage)

16.102 (Signs)

X 16.106(Transportation Facilities)
1 6. 1 06.030(D) (Additional Setbacks)

X 16.108.040.D (ClearVisionAreas)

X Division llZoning District- 16.31 X
16.40 (Planned Unit Development) X

16.92 (Landscaping)
16.94 (Off-Street Parking and
Loading)

1 6.1 22 (Land Partitions)
? 16J24 (Property Line

Adjustments and Lot

Consolidations)
16.134. (Flood Plain Overlay)

X 16.142 (Parks, trees, and Open
Space)

X 16.144 (Wetland, Habitat and
NaturalAreas

X 16.146 (Noise)

X 16.148 (Vibrations)
X 16.150 (Air Quality)

X 16.1s2 (Odors)

X 16.154 (Heat and
Glare/Lighting)

,Ianuary 23, 2020 - Kerr Annexation and Contractor's Estsabl-ishment
Page l-l-

Exhibit F, Page 72 of 121
Ordinance 2020-007, Exh to Staff Report 
September 1, 2020, Page 101 of 162

131



X 16.112 (Water Supply)

X 16.114 (Storm Water)

X 16.116 (Fire Protection)
I 6.1 1 B (Private lmprovements)
16.120 (Subdivisions)

1 6. 1 68 (Landmark Alteration)

PROCEDURES
o Annexation, Type V - Hearing authority is the City Council (typically two hearings) with appeal

opportunity to the Land Use Board of Appeals.

Once annexat¡on into the city limits is complete, the following reviews can be proceed:

Site Plan Review, Type lV - Site Plans - greater than 40,000 square feet of floor area, parking or
seating capacity. The Planning Commission will conduct the hearing and render the final decision.
Any appeals will be heard by the City Council.
Conditional Use Permit, Type lll - the Conditional Use Permit will be processed concurrently with the
Site Plan Type lV Review.

Final Site Plan Review, Type I (once a preliminary land use decision has been rendered)

FEES
Fees from July 1,2019 (subject to change July 1 ,20201
CONFIRM FEES WITH STAFF PRIOR TO SUBMITTAL. WE WILL HELP YOU TO CALCULATE THE FEES.

. Annexation, Type V - $7,500 deposit (applicant pays 100% of actual expenses including staff time
and any balance owning is due within 3O-days from the final annexat¡on invoice date.)

And
. Site Plan Review, Type lV - $6,s22.41 + $7,650 (additional $102for every 10,000 square feet or

portion thereof over the first 15,000 square feet of building area) = $14,227.41 plus
. condítional use Permit with concurrent review, Type lll - $2,190.04 plus

o Publication/distribution of Type lV Notice $466

¡ Final Site Plan Review, Type I - $699.15

APPLICATION SUBMITTAL PROCESS FOR LAND USE REVIEWS - Note, Annexation Applications
have different application submittal requirements.

The following materials must be submitted with your land use application or it will not be
accepted at the counter. Once taken at the counter, the City has up to 30 days to review the
materials submitted to determine if we have everything we need to complete the review.

X g * copies of Application Form completely filled out and signed by the property owner (or
person with authority to make decisions on the property.

X Copy of Deed to verify ownership, easements, etc.

16.88 (lnterpretation of Similar
Uses)

X 16.90 (Site Planning)

x 16.156 (Energy Gonservation)
16J62 (Old Town Overlay
District)

1 6.1 66 (Landmark Designation)

a

a

o

ilanuary 23, 2020 - Kerr Annexation and contractor's Estabrish¡nent
Page 12

Exhibit F, Page 73 of 121
Ordinance 2020-007, Exh to Staff Report 
September 1, 2020, Page 102 of 162

132



X CWS Service Provider Letter

X nt least 3 * folded sets of plans

X et least 3 * sets of narrative addressing application criteria. The narrative provides findings
based on the applicable approval standards. Failure to provide a narrative or adequately
address criteria would be reason to consider an application incomplete and delay review of the
proposal. The applicant should review the code for applicable criteria.

X fee (along with calculations utilized to determine fee if applicable)

[l Signed checklist verifying submittal includes specific materials necessary for the application
process

X t{e¡ghUorhood Meeting Verification including affidavit, sign-in sheet and meeting summary
- lreqTirèd for Type lll, l\land V projects

TIME LINE

The Planninq Deoartment will perform a preliminary review of the application and will determine whether
an applicatiõn is complete wíthin 30 dåys of the counter submitlal. Staff will notify the applicant if
additicinal information or additional copies of the submitted materials are required.

The administrative decision or public hearinq will typically occur approximately 45 to 60 days after an
gpplication is deemed complete'by the Planning Deþartment. Applications involving difficult or profracted
rssues or reoutnnq revieiw bv 

- other iurisdictiohs mav take additional time to review. Written
recommendatiöns fiom the Planiring staff'are issued severÍ (7) days prior to the public hearing. A 14-day
public appeal period follows all landuse decisions.

X pOf Electronic version of all submittal items broken down by item on a disc. Not a
single PDF

* Note that the required number of copies must be submitted when the application is deemed
complete; however, upon initial submittal applicants are encouraged to submit only 3 copies for
completeness review. Prior to completeness, required number of copies and one updated full
electronic copy will be required to be submitted.

Planning Staff Contact: Joy L. Chang, (503)625-4214 chansi@sherwoodoreqon.qov

RESPONSES TO QUESTION FROM THE APPLICANT

1. Please confirm if the proposed contractor's establishment use would be considered a contractor's

storage and equipment yard and any potential concerns regarding the viability of obtaining a

conditional use permit for that use in the El zoning district. This proposal would be considered a

Contractor's Sforage and Equipment Yard. Potential concerns regarding the viability of
obtaining a Conditional Use Permit in the Tonquin Employment Area, Employment
Industrial Zone would onty be allowed on constrained land. Furthermore, all Conditional

Use Permit approval criteria must also be satisfied.

rfanuary 23, 2020 - Kerr Annexation and Contraclor's Establish¡nent
Page 1-3

Exhibit F, Page 74 of 121
Ordinance 2020-007, Exh to Staff Report 
September 1, 2020, Page 103 of 162

133



2. Please identify any and all public infrastructure improvements that will be required on or adjacent to
the site and if any of these improvements can be deferred, through an annexation agreement or
other means, until such point in time when a long-term industrial employment use is established on
the property. See Engineering Comments.

3. Please confirm if there are any city-mapped natural resource features on the site that would need
to be addressed with the site development process and what the process would be to allow
impacts, if any. The site is within the Tonquin Scabland Geologic Area. The City also relies
on Metro Natural Resource mapping and the sífe shows upland and riparian habitats.

4. Please confirm the anticipated City review timelines for the annexation. Once an applìcation is
deemed complete, an annexation deeisian wauld typically be rendered within 2-3 months.
This would allow for required notification and htro City Council hearings.

5. Please confirm if a site plan review application is required to allow the full extent of grading

anticipated in conjunction with the contractor's establishment use. Yes

6. Please confirm any special studies that would be required with the annexation and site
development applications. /\lo specíal súudres are required with the annexation. However, the
following are needed for Site Development:

o Traffic lmpact Analysis
o Stormwater Report
. Geotech Report for half-street improvements

7. Please confirm the agency review fees for the applicable applications. Noted above, but does not
include any building review fees.

8. Please confirm the system development charges that would apply to the proposed contractor's
establishment use. See Engineering Comments.

'January 23, 2020 - Kerr .Annexation and Contractor's Establishnent
Page l-4

Exhibit F, Page 75 of 121
Ordinance 2020-007, Exh to Staff Report 
September 1, 2020, Page 104 of 162

134



CITY OF $HTRWOOD
of

I:Idrtc of ¡h! 1¡túl¿rlh R;w Natìotøl Wdlifc R¡ûre

PRe-APPLICATIoN CO¡¡TERENCE SIGN-IN SNCEI

Proiect PAc 2020-003 Itlleeting Date: January 23,2020

Facilitator: Joy Chang, Senior Planner Place/Room: City of Sherwood, Conf. Rm. A

Agency or RepresentationName Email Address

Ûos -. Pto"nflrrr{$q AJ/\H/\a

C\r r=.^. : -..kú 0 ôrR.r I(
¿þ òcd^

rô\t\^*^,..:lb''drU 'NA.
Ù9b - UtJlatñaâz,lrL\ lzwmPAS,f$;ãoÐr'æ,)6eø 6u¿a<; 5

Y\/K *Åor*t, hoonev @ /vfr, ,'"T"^ {l***7
R ¿r-LEDâ F F @ c ê/€ R ut¿þt)ð As(ô¡

,
ç tzt L Þ-un-€ÞLE Coç 'îeea¿-f¿m'rwl

t þ-, n @ Vr rn crr- (-nclt¡:n.t atl'* Il"t'P W'Åb^ø,å T,rJ"
Þo,^-:t- vkTeor.ruÉ <A l)ot^: L.cp,-xllt/tfuL T*2.,åtf*

P" *nAí? t"tr--TÞt \ 6ù råau.¡t- ,¿cfàPAl> %?A?LF-?Þç\) Þo,,^: u

N
(l1(}t

Page 1 of 1

Exhibit F, Page 76 of 121
Ordinance 2020-007, Exh to Staff Report 
September 1, 2020, Page 105 of 162

135



Ë nn i nnnri,,r.tr-r rvil lçEl t¡ rv

Pre=Application
Comments

-ú

To: Joy Chang, Senior Planner

From: Bob Galati P.E., City Engineer

Project: Tonquin Road Site Development (PAC 20-03)

Date: February 6,202A

Engineering staff have reviewed the proposed site development submittal information. All final
approved construction plans will need to conform to the design and construction standards
established by the City of Sherwood's Engineering and Public Works Departments, Washington
County Department of Land Use and Transportation (WACO), Clean Water Services (CWS),
Tualatin Valley Fire and Rescue (TVF&R), in addition to other jurisdictional agencies which may
provide land use comments. The City of Sherwood Engineering Department review comments
are as follows:

General Observations

The proposed site development consists of two tax lots (2S1330000100 and 251330000400)
located along the east side of SW Tonquin Road approximately 350' south of the intersection of
SW Tonquin Road and SW Oregon Street. TL# 2S1330000100 is 8.17 acres in size, and TL#
2S1330000400 is 20.0 acres in size. The total site development area is 28.17 acres.

Transportation Comments

TL#100 fronts SW Tonquin Road. The WACO TSP shows SW Tonquin Road as a 2-lane
arterial classification, and the Metro RTP classifying it as a RuralArterial. WACO lSPlRlT
survey information shows SW Tonquin Road within a 40-foot right-of-way.

As SW Tonquin Road is under WACO jurisdictional control, access improvements from the site
onto SW Tonquin Road will have to meet WACO design standards for sight distance. WACO
review comments are as follows:

1. ROW dedication - 45-feet from centerline of Tonquin ROW or public easement needed
for Regional Trail.

2. Half-street improvement - pavement, bike lane, gutter/curb, street lighting, planter strip
with street trees, and sidewalks (per City widths). Regional trail location/width per City.

3. I lA - in addition to City requirements include analysis for access to Tonquin (spacing
from Oregon Street intersection), sight distance analysis (based on 55 mph), 10%
impact to intersection (s) within study area, left-turn lane/queuing needs/other lanes
(right-turn deceleration) and truck turning templates. Refer to R&O 86-95 for report
requirements.

4. Access will need to request a design exception to the Arterial access standards (refer to
TIA requirements). The same requirements as an AMP (WACO Code).

5. lnclude circulation and access for other parcels to/from Tonquin. The other public street
access will be problematic due to the spacing from the intersection with Oregon Street.
Oregon/Tonquin intersection is on the RTP list (#10590).

Exhibit F, Page 77 of 121
Ordinance 2020-007, Exh to Staff Report 
September 1, 2020, Page 106 of 162

136



Project:
Date:
Page:

Tonquin Road Site Development (PAC 20-03)
February 6,2020
2of4

Frontage improvements of the SW Tonquin Road would conform with City of Sherwood
Municipal Code Sections 16.106.0'10 through 16.106.090.

City of Shen¡rood required frontage improvements for a 2-lane arterial classification roadway
include the following items:

1. 64-foot right-of-way, which means a 32-foot right-of-way width from the existing right-of-
way centerline. Development may be required to dedicate the difference between the
existing and proposed ROW of approximately 12-feet.

2. Pavement width from centerline of the ROW to face of curb would be 18-feet.

3. Planter strip with a width of 5-feet

4. An 8-foot wide sidewalk

5. A 1-foot clear space between back of sidewalk and ROW line..

6. An 8-foot wide PUE measured from ROW line.

7. And a 25-foot wide visual corridor measured from the ROW line.

8. Street lighting along the Tonquin Road frontage would be Cobrahead Street lights at an

appropriate spacing.

9. Street trees within planter strip.

TL#400 is an isolated lot which does not have direct connection to Tonquin Road. The
application may be required to provide a public residential road section from Tonquin Road to
TL#400. The City's standard residential roadway section includes the following requirements:

1. 52-foot wide right-of-way with a 28-foot wide face of curb to face of curb paved width.

2. Two 5-foot wide planter striPs

3. Two 6-foot wide sidewalks

4. Two 1-foot clear space between back of sidewalk and ROW line.

5. 8-foot wide PUE as measured from ROW on all public street frontage.

6, Street trees

7. Street lighting, Westbrooke style on residential/local roads.

A TIA may be required to determine impacts to the intersection of Oregon Street and Tonquin
Road, and the roundabout of Oregon Street and Murdock Road (MC Section 16.106.080). The
following critical data identifies an issue with the intersection of Oregon Street and Tonquin
Road, and in the opinion of the City Engineer justifies the request for a TlA.

1. The intersection of Tonquin Road and Oregon Street is listed in the Metro 2035 RTP
(Project No. 10674) as a CIP based on limited capacity and safety.

2. The intersection of Tonquin Road and Oregon Street is listed in the City TSP as a CIP

based on limited capacity and safety.
3. The intersection of Tonquin Road and Oregon Street is listed in the WACO 2014 TSP

Project List (Oregon-Tonquin Roundabout) as a CIP based on capacity and safety.

Per Section 16,106.080.8 a TIA may be required to be submitted to the City with a land use
application at the request of the City Engineer or if the proposal is expected to involve one or
more of the subsections of Section 16.106.080.8 (1) through (6).

Exhibit F, Page 78 of 121
Ordinance 2020-007, Exh to Staff Report 
September 1, 2020, Page 107 of 162

137



Project:
Date:
Page:

Tonquin Road Site Development (PAC 20-03)
February 6,2020
a^r^

Ïhe results of the TIA may be used to determine a proportionate share improvement cost of
impact to the Oregon Street and Tonquin Road intersection.

Sanitary Sewer System Comments

TL#100 fronts directly onto SW Tonquin Road and is located approximately 365' south of the
nearest public sanitary sewer system infrastructure. TL#400 abuts along TL#100 along its east
property line. From public records, it does not appear that TL#400 has any direct access to a
public corridor, by which extension of the public sanitary sewer systems could be achieved to
nrovide nr rhlic qpnrine

A public sanitary sewer mainline extension down Tonquin Road and through TL#100 may be
-^^.,i-^l ^^ ^^J ^¡ ¡L^ -:¡^ l^- -^r^-.^^rrrguilEu clÐ pdil. ut Utu Þil.u uçvutufJt ileil[ ptuues's.

Water System Gomments

TL#100 fronts directly onto SW Tonquin Road and is located approximately 365' south of the
nearest public water system infrastructure. TL#400 abuts along TL#100 along its east property
line. From public records, it does not appear that TL#400 has any direct access to a public
corridor, by which extension of the public water systems could be achieved to provide public
service.

A public water system mainline extension down Tonquin Road and through TL#100 may be
required as part of the site development process.

Stormwater System Comments

ÏL#100 fronts directly onto SW Tonquin Road and is located east of and adjacent to the Rock
Creek wetland and stream corridor. TL#400 abuts along TL#100 along its east property line.
From public records. it does not appear that TLfÉ400 has any direet aceess to a public corridor,
by which extension of the public stormwater systems could be achieved to provide public
service.

A public stormwater system mainline extension across Tonquin Road and through TL#100 may
be required as part of the site development process.

The site development submittal would need to include a stormwater report stamped by a
registered civil engineer in the State of Oregon, which provides design data for collection,
conveyance, treatment, detention, and discharge of on-site stormwater runoff in conformance
with CWS standards.

Since both TL#100 and TL#400 are more than 5 acres is size, and the apparent disturbed area
is a significant portion of both sites, it can be anticipated that an DEQ NPDES 1200-C permit,
issued by CWS will need to be obtained.

The stormwater report and system design will need to meet the requirement established by
CWS for hydromodification.

Other Engineering Miscellaneous Comments

A. An "As-Built Request" form is available on the City of Sherwood website for obtaining as-
built information and documents. A fee is associated with the As-Built Request.

B. City of Shenryood MC standards require an 8-foot wide Public Utility Easement (PUE) along
all dedicated right-of-way.

C. Site developments which create a surface area impact of 5 or more acres will require
obtaining an NPDES 1200-C permit from CWS. For surface are impacts of between 1 and 5

Exhibit F, Page 79 of 121
Ordinance 2020-007, Exh to Staff Report 
September 1, 2020, Page 108 of 162

138



Project:
Date:
Page:

Tonquin Road Site Development (PAC 20-03)
February 6,2020
4of4

acres, an NPDES 1200-CN permit will need to be obtained through the City of Sherwood.
Surface area impacts of less than 1 acre will only require a site grading and erosion control
permit issued from the City of Shenvood Building Department.

D. As part of the Land Use submittal requirements, the applicant must submit a Site Pre-
Screening Assessment request to CWS, and provide the City with a copy of the Service
Provider Letter (SPL) issued by CWS for the site development. Final site development
approval will require a Stormwater Connection Permit being issued from CWS for the
proposed site development.

E. Permits for demolition of any existing structures located on the proposed site development,
will be obtained from the City of Shenryood Building Department. Permit fees for the
demolition permit will be apply.

F. City of Shenvood Broadband utilities shall be installed (if not in existence) along the
proposed site development frontage along all public street right-of-way, as per requirements
set forth in City Ordinances 2005-017 and City Resolution 2005-074'

G. A draft estimate of City SDCs, CWS SDCs and WACO TDT, has been provided as part of
this review, if the application has provided sufficient development information to conduct
such estimate. lf provided, the estimate will list the assumptions made in the calculations. lf
certain SDCs have been left undefined it is because there is not sufficient information to
provide said estimate amount. NOTE: SDC/TDT estimate amounts are based on
assumptions and SDC/TDT rates current at the time the estimate was created. Final

authorized SDC/TDT fee amounts will be calculated at the time building permits are issued,
and may vary significantly from the estimate amount provided with these review comments.

End of Gomments

Disclaimer

The comments provided above are initial in nature and in no way binding as to what the
conditions may or may not be imposed on the development due to the City of Sherwood Land

Use approval process.

Exhibit F, Page 80 of 121
Ordinance 2020-007, Exh to Staff Report 
September 1, 2020, Page 109 of 162

139



www.tvlr,com

Tlralatin Valley
Fire & Rescue
January 24,2020

Joy Chang
Senior Planner
City of Shenruood
22564 SW Pine Street
Shen¡rrood, Oregon 97 1 40

Re: Tonquin Rd Annexation
Tax Lot l.D: 2S1338800100, 2S1330000400

Dear Joy,

Thank you for the opportunity to review the proposed site plan surrounding the above-named development
project. These notes are provided regarding the pre-application meeting held on January 23,2020 and are
based on the current New Construction Guide version 4.2C. There may be more or less requirements needed
based upon the final project design, however, Tualatin Valley Fire & Rescue will endorse this proposal
predicated on the following criteria and conditions of approval.

F¡RE APPARATUS ACCESS:

1. FIRE APPARATUS ACCESS ROADS: Access roads shall be provided for every facility, building, or portion of a
building hereafter constructed or moved into or within the jurisdiction. Exception: Approved agricultural and equine
structures complying with ORS 455.315 are not required to have fire apparatus access roads (see New Construction
Guide Appendix C). Access roads are not required to be modified for commercial buildings that undergo a change in
occupancy, change in use, or conversion from agricultural or equine exempt to non-exempt unless there is a change
to the structure's square footage or building footprint. (OFC 503.1 .1 )

2. FIRE ACCESS ROAD DISTANCE FROM BUILDINGS: The access shall extend to within 150 feet of all portions of
the exterior wall of the first story of the building as measured by an approved route around the exterior of the building
or facility. (OFC 503.1.1)

3. DEAD ENDS AND ROADS lN EXCESS OF 150 FEET (TURNAROUNDS): Dead end fire apparatus access roads or
roads in excess of 150 feet in length shall be provided with an approved turnaround. Diagrams of approved
turnarounds can be found in the corresponding guide that is located at
http://wwnr.tvfr.com/DocumentCenter/View/1296. (OFC 503.2.5 & Figure D103.1)

4. ADDITIONAL ACCESS ROADS - COMMERCIAL/INDUSTRIAL HEIGHT: Buildings exceeding 30 feet in height or
three stories in height shall have at least two separate means of fire apparatus access. (D104.1)

lf buildings will exceed 30ft in height this requirement will apply.

5. AERIAL F¡RE APPARATUS ROADS: Buildings with a verticaldistance between the grade plane and the highest roof
surface that exceeds 30 feet in height shall be provided with a fire apparatus access road constructed for use by aerial
apparatus with an unobstructed driving surface width of not less than 26 feet. For the purposes of this section, the

Command & Business Operations Center
and North Operating Center
11945 SW 70th Avenue

Tigard, Oregon 97 223-9t96

503-649-A577

South Operating Center

8445 SW Elligsen Road

Wilsonville, Oregon

97070-964t

503-259-1500

Training Center

12400 SW Tonquin Road

Sherwood, Oregon

97140-9734

503-259-1600

Exhibit F, Page 81 of 121
Ordinance 2020-007, Exh to Staff Report 
September 1, 2020, Page 110 of 162

140



o

highest roof surface shall be determined by measurement to the eave of a pitched roof, the intersection of the roof to
the exterior wall, or the top of the parapet walls, whichever is greater. Any portion of the building may be used for this
measurement, provided that it is accessible to firefighters and is capable of supporting ground ladder placement. (OFC

D105.1, D105.2)

lf buildings w¡ll exceed 30ft in height this requirement will apply

6. AERIAL APPARATUS OPERATIONS: At least one of the required aerial access routes shall be located within a

minimum of 15 feet and a maximum of 30 feet from the building, and shall be positioned parallelto one entire side of
the building. The side of the building on which the aerial access road is positioned shall be approved by the Fire Marshal.
Overhead utility and power lines shall not be located over the aerial access road or between the aerial access road and

the building. (D105.3, D105.4)

lf buildings will exceed 30ft ín height this requirer¡rent will apply

7 MULTIPLE ACCESS ROADS SEPARATION: Where two access roads are required, they shall be placed a distance apart

equà to not less than one half of the length of the maximum overall diagonal dimension of the area to be served (as identified

by the Fire Marshal), measured in a straight line between accesses. (OFC D104.3)

lf buildings will exceed 30ft in height this requirernent will apply.

B. FIRE APPARATUS ACCESS ROAD WIDTH AND VERTICAL CLEARANCE: Fire apparatus access roads shall have
an unbOstructed driving surface width of not less than 20 feet (26 feet adjacent to fire hydrants (OFC D103.1)) and an

unobstructed verticalclearance of not less than 13 feet 6 inches. (OFC 503.2.1 & D103.1)

NO PARKING S¡GNS: Where fire apparatus roadways are not of sufficient width to accommodate parked vehicles and

ZO fèét of unobstructed driving surface, "No Parking" signs shall be installed on one or both sides of the roadway and

in turnarounds as needed. Signs shall read'NO PARKING - FIRE LANE" and shall be installed with a clear space above
grade levelof 7 feet. Signs shall be 12 inches wide by 18 inches high and shall have red letters on a white reflective

background. (OFC D103.6)

May be required in certain areas.

10. NO PARKING: Parking on emergency access roads shall be as follows (OFC D103.6.1-2):
1. 20-26 feet road width - no parking on either side of roadway
2. 26-32teet road width - parking is allowed on one side
3. Greater than 32 feet road width - parking is not restricted
Note: For specific widths and parking allowances, contact the local municipality

11. PAINTED CURBS: Where required, fire apparatus access roadway curbs shall be painted red (or as approved) and

marked 'NO PARKING FIRE LANE' at 25 foot intervals. Lettering shall have a stroke of not less than one inch wide by

six inches high. Lettering shatl be white on red background (or as approved). (OFC 503.3)

12. F|RE APPARATUS ACCESS ROADS W¡TH FIRE HYDRANTS: Where a fire hydrant is located on a fire apparatus
ãccess road, the minimum road width shall be 26 feet and shall extend 20 feet before and after the point of the hydrant.
(oFc Dr03.1)

13. SURFACE AND LOAD CAPAC¡TIES: Fire apparatus access roads shall be of an all-weather surface that is easily
Oistinguisnantefrom the surrounding area and is capable of supporting not less than 12,500 pounds point load (wheel

load) and 75,000 pounds live load (gross vehicle weight), Documentation from a registered engineer that the final

construction is in accordance with approved plans or the requirements of the Fire Code may be requested. (OFC

503.2.3)

Commercial/Multi-Fâm¡ly 4.2C- Page 2

Exhibit F, Page 82 of 121
Ordinance 2020-007, Exh to Staff Report 
September 1, 2020, Page 111 of 162

141



14. TURNING RADIUS: The inside turning radius and outside turning radius shall not be less than 28 feet and 48 feet
respectively, measured from the same center point. (OFC 503.2.4 & D103.3)

lndicate turning radius on plans. The use of Auto-Turn is allowed.

15. ACCESS ROAD GRADE: Fire apparatus access roadway grades shall not exceed 15%. Alternate methods and
materials may be available at the discretion of the Fire Marshal (for grade exceeding 15%).

lndicate grade on plans.

16. ANGLE OF APPROACH/GRADE FOR INTERSECTTONS: lntersections shall be level (maximum 5%) with the
exception of crowning for water run-off. (OFC 503.2 .7 &D103.2)

17. AERIAL APPARATUS OPERATING GRADES: Portions of aerial apparatus roads that will be used for aerial
operations shall be as flat as possible. Front to rear and side to side maximum slope shall not exceed 10%.

1 8. GATES: Gates securing flre apparatus roads shall comply with all of the following (OFC D 1 03.5, and 503.6)
1. Minimum unobstructed width shall be not less than 20 feet (or the required roadway surface width).
2. Gates shall be set back at minimum of 30 feet from the intersecting roadway or as approved.
3. Electric gates shall be equipped with a means for operation by fire department personnel
4. Electric automatic gates shall comply with ASTM F 2200 and UL 325.

19. ACCESS DURING CONSTRUCTION: Approved fire apparatus access roadways shall be installed and operational
prior to any combustible construction or storage of combustible materials on the site. Temporary address signage shall
also be provided during construction. (OFC 3309 and 3310.1)

20. TRAFFIC CALMING DEVICES: Shall be prohibited on fire access routes unless approved by the Fire Marshal. (OFC
503.4.1). Traffic calming measures linked here: http://wvwv.tvfr.comiDocumentCenter/Viewl157B

FIREFIGHTING WATER SUPPLIES:

21. COMMERCIAL BUILDINGS - REQUIRED FIRE FLOW: The minimum fire flow and flow duration shall be determined in
accordance with OFC Table 8105.2.The required fire flowfor a building shall not exceed the available GPM in the water
delivery system at 20 psi residual. (OFC 8105.3)
Note: OFC 8106, Limiting Fire-Flow is also enforced, except for the following:
. The maximum needed fire flow shall be 3,000 GPM, measured at 20 psi residual pressure.
. Tualatin Valley Fire & Rescue does not adopt Occupancy Hazards Modifiers in section 8105.4-8105.4.1

Provide constructiorr type iri order to deterrnine requlred fire flow.

22. FIRE FLOW WATER AVAILABILITY: Applicants shall provide documentation of a fire hydrant flow test or flow test
modeling of water availability from the local water purveyor if the project includes a new structure or increase in the floor
area of an existing structure. Tests shall be conducted from a fire hydrant within 400 feet for commercial projects, or
600 feet for residential development. Flow tests will be accepted if they were performed within 5 years as long as no
adverse modifications have been made to the supply system. Water availability information may not be required to be
submitted for every project. (OFC Appendix B)

Provide documentation of fire hydrant flow test or modeling.

23. WATER SUPPLY DURING CONSTRUCTION: Approved firefighting water supplies shall be installed and operational
prior to any combustible construction or storage of combustible materials on the site. (OFC 3312.1)

Commercial/Mult¡-Fam¡ly 4.2C- Page 3

Exhibit F, Page 83 of 121
Ordinance 2020-007, Exh to Staff Report 
September 1, 2020, Page 112 of 162

142



FIRE HYDRANTS:

24. F¡RE HYDRANTS - COMMERCIAL BUILDINGS: Where a portion of the building is more than 400 feet from a
hydrant on a fire apparatus access road, as measured in an approved route around the exterior of the building, on-site
fire hydrants and mains shall be provided. (OFC 507.5.1)
. This distance may be increased to 600 feet for buildings equipped throughout with an approved automatic sprinkler

system.
. The number and distribution of fire hydrants required for commercial structure(s) is based on Table C105.1,

following any fire-flow reductions allowed by section 8105.3.1. Additional fire hydrants may be required due to
spacing and/or section 507.5 of the Oregon Fire Code.

25. FIRE HYDRANT(S) PLACEMENT: (OFC C104)
. Existing hydrants in the area may be used to meet the required number of hydrants as approved. Hydrants that

are up to 600 feet away from the nearest point of a subject building that is protected with fire sprinklers may
contribute to the required number of hydrants. (OFC 507.5.1)

o Hydrants that are separated from the subject building by railroad tracks shall not contribute to the required number
of hydrants unless approved by the Fire Marshal.

. Hydrants that are separated from the subject building by divided highways or freeways shall not contribute to the
required number of hydrants. Heavily traveled collector streets may be considered when approved by the Fire

Marshal.
. Hydrants that are accessible only by a bridge shall be acceptable to contribute to the required number of hydrants

only if approved by the Fire Marshal.

!ndicate on plans the location of proposed fire hydrants.

26. PRIVATE FIRE HYD NT IDENTIFICATION: Private fire hydrants shall be painted red in color. Exception: Private fire
hydrants within the City of Tualatin shall be yellow in color. (OFC 507)

lf systern will be private and a storage tank is proposed then it will need to be sized and installed as
per NFPA 24 and NFPA 22.1î connecting tanks to fire hydrants then a fire pump maybe be required
in order to achieve adequate pressure.

27. F|RE HYDRANT DISTANCE FROM AN ACCESS ROAD: Fire hydrants shall be located not more than 15 feet from

an approved fire apparatus access roadway unless approved by the Fire Marshal. (OFC C1021)

28. REFLECTIVE HYDRANT MARKERS: Fire hydrant locations shall be identified by the installation of blue reflective
markers. They shall be located adjacent and to the side of the center line of the access roadway that the fire hydrant
is located on. ln the case that there is no center line, then assume a center line and place the reflectors accordingly.
(oFc 507)

29 PHYS¡CAL Where fire hydrants are subject to impact by a motor vehicle, guard posts, bollards or
other approved means of protection shall be provided. (OFC 507.5.6 & oFc 312)

30. CLEAR SPACE AROUND FIRE HYDRANTS: A 3 foot clear space shall be provided around the circumference of fire
hydrants. (OFC 507.5.5)

31. F|RE DEPARTMENT GONNECTION (FDC) LOCATIONS: FDCs shall be located within 100 feet of a fire hydrant (or

as approved). Hydrants and FDC's shall be located on the same side of the fire apparatus access roadway or drive
aisle, fully visible, and recognizable from the street or nearest point of the fire department vehicle access or as otherwise
approved. (OFC 912.2.1 & NFPA 13)

Commercial/Multi-Family 4.2C- Page 4

Exhibit F, Page 84 of 121
Ordinance 2020-007, Exh to Staff Report 
September 1, 2020, Page 113 of 162

143



Fire department connections (FDCs) shall normally be located remotely and outside of the fall-line of the building
when required. FDCs may be mounted on the building thev serve. when approved.
FDCs shall be plumbed on the system side of the check valve when sprinklers are served by underground lines
also serving private fire hydrants.

lndicate on plans location of FDC's

BUILDING ACCESS AND FIRE SERVICE FEATURES

32. KNOX BOX: A Knox Box for building access may be required for structures and gates. See Appendix B for further
information and detail on required installations. Order via www.tvfr.qqm or contact TVF&R for assistance and
instructions regarding installation and placement. (OFC 506.1)

Â l¡nav hav r^'ill h^ r^ârrir^rl {^r ^â^1. ¡-'.¡l"J¡....ñ r\r¡v^ vv^ *tl¡t v9 t9yu!L9g tvt çevtt uurtu!tt:l.

33. FIRE PROTECT¡ON EQUIPMENT IDENTIFICAT¡ON: Rooms containing controls to fire suppression and deteciion
equipment shall be identified as "Fire Control Room." Signage shall have letters with a minimum of 4 inches high with
a minimum stroke width of 112 inch, and be plainly legible, and contrast with its background. (OFC 509.1)

Label door as indicated above.

34. PREMISES IDENTIFICATION: New and existing buildings shall have approved address numbers; building numbers
or approved building identification placed in a position that is plainly legible and visible from the street or road fronting
the property, including monument signs. These numbers shall contrast with their background. Numbers shall be a
minimum of 4 inches high with a minimum stroke width of 1l2inch. (OFC 505.1)

Provide address sign at main entrance.

lf you have questions or need further clarification, please feel free to contact me at 503-259-1419.

Sincereiy,

frrn ?flloorrt¿
î

Tom Mooney
Deputy Fire Marshal ll

Thonras. mooney@tvfr. corn

Cc: File
City of Shenvood

A full copy of the New Construction Fire Code Applications Guide for Commercial and Multi-Family Development is
available at http:/lwww.tvfr.com/Docu mentCenter/View/1 296

a

a

Commercial/Multi-Fam¡ly 4.2C- Page 5

Exhibit F, Page 85 of 121
Ordinance 2020-007, Exh to Staff Report 
September 1, 2020, Page 114 of 162

144



Tonquin Employment Area
Concept Plan:

Preferred Concept Plan Report

October 2010

Final Report

Exhibit F, Page 86 of 121
Ordinance 2020-007, Exh to Staff Report 
September 1, 2020, Page 115 of 162

145



City of Sherwood September 2010

9. Encourage future development designs that are senstf/ye to the existing natural features
af the area and suppotf development proposals that incorparate, preserv-e, and enhance
natural features.

lmplementation

1. The City of Sherwood shall amend the Zoning and Community Development Code to
include an Employment lndustrial zone that implements the goals and policies rn fhrs
section.

2. The Emplaynent lndustrial zone may be applied anly ta thase prapefties within city
limits, or upon their annexation to the city.

Vl. Zoning Code Requirements

A proposed new chapter for the City of Shenvood Zoning and Development Code has been
developed in order to implement the Tonquin Employment Area Preferred Concept Plan.
Specifically, the Employment lndustrial (El) zone (Appendix B) is intended to implement the
city's development strategies for the Tonquin Employment Area. While supportive of economic
growth, the El zone is targeted to support the type of employment opportunities envisioned for
the Tonquin Employment Area when it was included in the Urban Growth Boundary. As
described below, the zone is intended to promote preferred industry sectors that the city has
targeted in its Economic Development Strategy, as reflected in the proposed Comprehensive
Plan policies in Section V.B of this reporl. At the same time, the zone restricts uses that would
impede or be inconsistent with the types of employment uses targeted for the area. The El zone
also implements the land division requirements of Metro's Title 4. Figure Vl-1 shows the
application of the El zone to the Tonquin Employment Area.

Tonquin Employment Area: Preferred Concept Plan Report Citv Council Review Draft Page 57

Exhibit F, Page 87 of 121
Ordinance 2020-007, Exh to Staff Report 
September 1, 2020, Page 116 of 162

146



I

I

.t
¡ I

,l!
!¡ !'

f-:'+1

Figure Vl-l:
Proposed

Zoning
Jú¡y:ü1t)

Legend
* kirl*ìg Stà*
:-. A¡pü*d flrêèç

Prcmçd Â.¿ss
* p",.t.

ÊrÕpÕs€d lnteEectirn CootÞl

¡* $'$nal

O Rou¡d¡t¡*ut

Proposod ?ôri¡9
ãñploynËtî ¡¡dudilål

Àrêð 4ó 8o!ndåry

Ciiy Liatg
L'C;Ê

Ulb¡ñ ñ9*rvè
fã¡ lðts

Sour.* t{à} :û1Õ Rll$Lúe

City of Sherwood

Figure Vl-1: Proposed Zon¡ng

September 20L0

Tonquin Employment Area: Preferred Concept Plan Report Citv Council Review Draft Page 58

Exhibit F, Page 88 of 121
Ordinance 2020-007, Exh to Staff Report 
September 1, 2020, Page 117 of 162

147



City of Sherwood September 2010

Guidance for the development of the Employment lndustrial (El) zone came from the
participants in a Tonquin Emplcyment Area Economic Development l"4eeting, November 2ACg,

discussing the topic of future employment uses in the area. Participants included key members
of the Tonquin Employment Area Concept Plan development team, Tom Nelson, the City's
Economic Development Manager, and commercial real estate brokers. Additional input from
Clty staff refined the approach and resulted in the proposed draft El zone chapter.

The model for the draft Employment lndustrial (El) zone chapter is the city's existing Light
lndustrial zone. The El zone is distinguishable from the city's existing Ll zone by the new
zone's purpose statement, the permitted uses, and dimensional standards addressing the
retention of a large (50 acre) parcel. The following purpose statement has been drafted for the
El zone that reflects the proposed policy language and emphasizes that areas with the El zone
designation are intended to be attractive to and suitable for kev industries and the brrsinesses
that supply them.

Purpose

The El zoning district provides employment areas that are suitable for, and attractive to, key
industries and industry c/usfers that have been identified by the State of Oregon and the
City's economic development strategy as imporfant to the state and local economy. The

following are preferred industry secfors for areas zoned El: Clean Technology; Technology
and Advanced Manufacturing; and Outdoor Gear and Active Wear.

Land zoned EI shall provide for large and medium-sized parcels for industrial campuses and
other industrial slfes filaf can accommorJate a variety of industrial eompanies and related
busrnesses. Areas zoned El are also intended to provide the opporfunity for flex building
space within small- and medium-sized industrial campuses and business parks to
accommodate research and development companies, incubator/emerging technology
busrnesses, related materials and equipment suppliers, and or spin-off companies and other
busrnesses that derive from, or are extensions of, larger campus users and developments.
Retail and commercialuses are allowed only when directly suppoñing area employers and
employees.

lndustrial establishments and supporf serulces shall not have objectionable externalfeatures
and shall feature well-landscaped srÏes and attractive architectural design, as dctcrmined by
the Commission.

Reflecting the conversation at the Tonquin Employment Area Economic Development Meeting,
the challenge with regulating new employment areas can be characterized as the tension
between aspirations, as described in the El policies and reflected in the purpose statement, and
the current, market-driven demand that exists today. ln anemic growth periods such as exists
today it is politically unpopular to deny permitting any business or industry that brings
employment opportunities. However, permitting uses that do not fulfill long-term economic

Tonquin Employment Area: Preferred Concept Plan Report Citv Council Review Draf1 Page 59

Exhibit F, Page 89 of 121
Ordinance 2020-007, Exh to Staff Report 
September 1, 2020, Page 118 of 162

148



City of Sherwood September 2010

development objectives may result in shortterm employment gains but future land uses that

hinder or preclude the identified desired industries. The intent of the proposed El zone is to

provide a unique place for emerging technologies and for the possibility of synergistic

clusterings of similar uses, while at the same time allowing for more traditional light industrial

uses that could be sited in, or compatibly among, industrial park or campus developments.

Consistent with the zone's purpose statement, uses associated with the three identified key

industries are permitted outright. Through a conditional use permit process, uses that can be

shown to be "consistent with, or a variation of" target industry uses will also be permitted. No

other new uses have been included in the El zone, but many Ll permitted uses have been

modified to better meet the objectives of the new employment area(s). Some uses that are

permitted in the Ll zone are not recommended for the El zone because they are not closely

related to the targeted industries or are uses that have the potential to remove a large amount of

buildable land from the available inventory without providing the type of employment envisioned

for the El designated-areas.

The city has recently modified both the Light lndustrial (Ll) and the General lndustrial (Gl) zone

chapters to include Metro Title 4 limitations on commercial uses in industrial zones. The

proposed El zone also includes these requirements, but they are located in the standards, not

the use, section of the chapter. ln addition to standards that are identical to the existing Ll zone,

the El zone includes provisions that apply to only the Tonquin Employment Area.

Finally, some additional definitions will need to be adopted to describe new terms in the El zone.

Draft definitions have been included at the end of the Employment lndustrial (El) Zone

document for convenience, but ultimately should be incorporated into the definitions section of

the Zoning and Community Development Code. Proposed definitions have been modified from

definitions readily available via dictionary and industry-related internet sites.

Tonquin Employment Area: Preferred Concept Plan Report Citv Council Review Draft Page 60

Exhibit F, Page 90 of 121
Ordinance 2020-007, Exh to Staff Report 
September 1, 2020, Page 119 of 162

149



Sherwood Comprehensive Plan, Part 2

ranging from hiking to active team sports. Both private and public lands may provide open
space benefits. Privately owned land reduces recreational use pressure on public land.
Certain uses of open space land such as the minimization of landslide potential on steep
hillsides requires joint efforts by the city and private developer. A city's open space and
recreation land resource is composed of both private and public lands which simultaneously
serve a number of individual and community objectives.

Energy Sources

There are no developed energy sources within the Sherwood UGB. All fossil and wood
fi-rels, and eiectricity generated by hyciro anci nuciear power, come from sources outside the
city. Thcre are however, unconventional energy sources available within Sherwood. hese
inciucie soiar and win<i energy. Soiar energy, in particuiar, hoicis promise as an aitemative
form of energy which couiri meet a significant amount of the energy <Íemanci for ciomestic
space heating and water heating. The technology exists to take advantage of solar energy
and wind energy for these pu{poses, and such use should be encouraged.

The following Table V-I is an inventory of the areas natural resources and open space,
wetlands, parks and schools, historic and scenic resources. These areas are also identified on
the Natural Resources and Recreation Plan Map, updated in 1990, (Map V-I).

B. ENVIRONMENTAL RESOURCES POLICY GOALS

The following policy goals were the result of work by several Sherwood Citizen Planning
Advisory Committee (SCPAC) subcommittees. The goals were reviewed and updated in
1989-1990. The goals and policies were further reviewed and updated in2006 to implement
the Tualatin Basin Program, a three year project undertaken by all the jurisdictions on urban
Washington County to develop a basin wide approach to natural resource protection. The
goals define the direction that resource management should take in the Sherwood Urban
Area. The Goals, Policies and Strategies that follow relate to the resources identified on the
Natural Resources and Recreation Plan Map and the inventory listed in Table V-l and the
Regionally Significant Fish and Wildlife Habitat Inventory (Map V-2) for properties located
inside the Metro Urban Growth Boundary on or before December 28,2005.

The following are the adopted planning goals for the Errvironmental Resources of Sherwood.

Planning Goals: Natural Resources and Hazards

Actually and potentially productive agricultural and forest land in the planning area
should be preserved until the need for its conversion to urban uses can be
demonstrated. The following factors should be considered in establishing the need
for such conversion.

z\ documented need for additional land for the proposed urban usc.

Generally, lands with poorer soils should be converted first.

Chapter 5

Page 3

I

a.

b.

Exhibit F, Page 91 of 121
Ordinance 2020-007, Exh to Staff Report 
September 1, 2020, Page 120 of 162

150



Sherwood Comprehensive Plan, Part 2

c. The proposed use is or can be made compatible with adjacent agricultural
and forest lands and uses. Low density buffer zones should be used in
transition areas.

2 Incentives for the continuation of agricultural and forest uses on lands that are not
needed for urban uses should be continuedand/or developed.

J The urban uses of wooded areas should be recognized and encouraged. They
include:

Watershed protection of wildlife and fisheries habitat and recreation.

The prevention of soil erosion.

Urban buffers, windbreaks, scenic corridors, and site landscaping.

Limit land development in areas with known natural hazards, special topographic
soil, or drainage characteristics according to the kind and degree of hazard or
characteristic present.

a. Restrict the nature and intensity of development in:

1) 10O-year floodplains

Areas with slopes which have slide or erosion potential.

Areas with weak foundation soils.

Wetlands

3)

4)

b. Natural hazards such as runoff from paving and soil slippage due to weak
foundation soils that could result from new developments should be

considered.

5. Protect fish and wildlife habitats and significantNatural Areas where feasible.

6. Protect mineral and aggregate sites where feasible and practical.

Chapter 5

Page 4

a.

b,

c.

4.

2)

Exhibit F, Page 92 of 121
Ordinance 2020-007, Exh to Staff Report 
September 1, 2020, Page 121 of 162

151



Sherwood Comprehensive Plan,Part2

NATURAL RESOI]RCES MAP

..t\ L ¡r¡

U

T

..-.t-.

L

i
I
I

t
a

I

I

:-

I

'jI
i:...

_t

l¡'

I

Chapter 5

Page 6

t.#ÉE
ol?.Í
C{YY*rtHÆfffiFffi
L¡'f
!;Þ+iil ¡ErrnffiH
¡eH-

¡¡;.lr.¡nr¡¡
-Þfffiilt1
-ÊtÏoru
Étü li¡¡i ¡ lflîrl¡åÐlh ltfÞffi.wd.ksuru4bFil1nr!"*ilË

r n¡.¡E*nm :
* wñsd--'

lil¡È

City ol
Íìherruood,

Oregffit

-'l__. i

I

Elllf¡l R¡Ëü{rEEctÈ
åf0 ¡ÊmEfirltl Ëir i

ti

i.

Exhibit F, Page 93 of 121
Ordinance 2020-007, Exh to Staff Report 
September 1, 2020, Page 122 of 162

152



r.

.t

Creek

CLAC
3
o

:\
t\

\. t
,:- -,

: ./'

i

¡

,

, :,/

Cook Park

:

ì

:/ \'
Metro

Area

Tualatin

gstll i
Retuge

.-:\'j

i.

i:
:l

!

.l

U

:,.

ta

: i'
:

lce Age Tonquin Trail alignment

Trail alignment undetermined

Trail in un¡ncorporated Clackamas County

Trail in unincorporated Washington County

Exist¡ng trail

Public parldnatural area

City boundary

Urban Growth Boundary

;
iffi
-
N

-
i?:iffiffi,f

.- , -li:sL;

East

ffir

Map 5: lce Age TanquÌn Trail Route
[ce Age Tonquin Trail Master Ptan ôhffc kroÒil¡lìe(rCsb

Exhibit F, Page 94 of 121
Ordinance 2020-007, Exh to Staff Report 
September 1, 2020, Page 123 of 162

153



Map 13: Tile 7 - Tonquin Road/Morgan Road and Vicini ty to Oregon Street
lce Age Tonquin Trail Master Plan
Preferred Alignment
Source: Metro Data Resource Center

lce Age Tonqu¡n TraU 3l Atsnment Undêt€rn¡oed

- 

E{süng TE¡l 
Jot"nti"t t""€ñênl orAcqursfrron Needed

I 
' 

I Prcpos€d Bike Lan*/sidewålß 
Eistng Nêrghborhood conn.dron

G a o Prcposed Boartudk pdenüãt Fúure conned¡on

Oaa Prcpos€dshardRoadwsy ì Wdland

a a a Pþpos€d Shsr€d Use Pâth 
^ 

Park or NatuÞlAreâ

--. R¡ver/Slßam/DÉiñâge D¡tc*t

@ ercposeOOraae'S€parat€dCrosslng

Q ercposec lterad€ Crossing (Signâlizêd)

S Prclosed et€rads Cross¡ng (Unstgnattzsd)

¡[ 
"o,"*,", 

*"Ú*rng s¡gn Loælion

500 1,000 2,000

T
@
tr

AÉ, Edu€tional or lnleDrgtlvs Oppodunity

Prcposêd Tra¡lhoåd

Ex¡stm Parking or TÉllh6ed

Feet o

Exhibit F, Page 95 of 121
Ordinance 2020-007, Exh to Staff Report 
September 1, 2020, Page 124 of 162

154



Table 8 - Tile 7: Tonquin Road/Morgan Road and Vicinity to Oregon

Street

Barrier separat¡on needed between trail and Tonquin Road7A

Trail alignment to follow bluff above Tonquin Road7B

Potential Tualatin River National Wildlife Refuge art, educational or interpretive opportunity7C

7D Trail alignment could follow existing unimproved roadway; final alignment to be determined in

coordination with Sherwood's Tonquin Employment Area Concept Plan (which includes a

future east-west road in this area)

lce Age Tonquin Trail [4aster Plan 45

Exhibit F, Page 96 of 121
Ordinance 2020-007, Exh to Staff Report 
September 1, 2020, Page 125 of 162

155



2S13300004ú0

Sly'J Wdl.rmette St

Data Resource Center

600 NE Grand Ave, Portland, OR97232
5O3.7 97.17 42 - drc@oregonmetro.gov

"r ffi upland Hsbitat

il] upland clssE,A

i -" i uptn"¿ cl¡:ss B

iJ upla*d Clsss c
¡¡ El Riparian Habitat

I Riparlerl cless I

[,ì'i Ripãriån Cless It

i---,j Riparian cless llr

, I Mu¡tifarnilyHousing

¡ f Trails

'ISlnpes'1fl%
' I Slnpes>25%

r" I C*ntnurs

t M FEMS. Lüü-yearfk:odplaìns

r.'ù

'. ffi Wetlands

r00,
flood

@ v.tro
infoilratioñ displåyed bv Meùo Mrp.

i

I

Exhibit F, Page 97 of 121
Ordinance 2020-007, Exh to Staff Report 
September 1, 2020, Page 126 of 162

156



P*J|*I*f,}*f
DISPOSAL GOMPANY
P.O. Box 820 Sherwood, OR 97140

Phone: {ä03} 625-6177 Fax: t503} 625-6179

w D I Enclos

a The enclosure must be 10 feet deep by 20 feet wide (2 commercial
containers). Measurements given are for the insidg walls of the enclosure.

I

a

There should be NO CENTER POST AT ACCESS POINT.

Gates need to be hinged infront of walls not inside the walls. This will
allow for the extra 120-150 degrees in openíng angle needed.

Fu1l swing gates required.

Space befween containers in enclosure allows aÇcess to glass recycling totes.

Gates must be able to be pinned in the opçn and closed positions (lock
backs) - to keep the gates from potentially swinging into vehicles.

I There must be 75' of unobstructed access to the front of the enclosure (no

parking island, parked vehicles, light pole, buildings, etc.).

i

a

There must be25' of overhead clearánce.

Ënclosure location must allow the truck(s) to safely re-enter traffic

Please Note: This information is to be used for guidelines during the construction
of enclosures. These recommendations do not signify our approvai of the
construction; actual plans must be submitted for approval.

B

a

a

I

Exhibit F, Page 98 of 121
Ordinance 2020-007, Exh to Staff Report 
September 1, 2020, Page 127 of 162

157



Exhibit K. Mailing labels & Map

Exhibit F, Page 99 of 121
Ordinance 2020-007, Exh to Staff Report 
September 1, 2020, Page 128 of 162

158



,i':-''
-t'!

l't

rT

:.

Subject: 2S1 330000400 & 251 3388001 00-1 000 feet

Date of Production: 06.04.20

The ownership information enclosed is time sensitive and should
be utilized as soon as possible.

This mailing list was produced from third party sources.
No liability is assumed for any errors with this report.

Thank you for your business and for choosing First American Title.

s03.21 9.TR|O (87 46)
cs. o re g o n@fi rsta m. com

O2O1 S Fißt Ameri.an Finâncial Corporâtìôn ård/o¡ hs âffilìãtes, All .ì9ht5.eretuêd. I NYSE: FAF | 39207150718

Firsr Amerlcãn Iitle lnsurânce Comp¿ny, ônd ihe ope¡atiDg dlvisions lhereof, make no express or implled wãrånly respecting the
inlormêtion presenled ¿nd assurne no iesponsibiliry lor eriors or omissions. First Anrer:c¿n, the eagle logo, Firsl A.nerican Title,
and lirstêm com are regìslered k¿demarks or tr¿demêrks ôf Êirst Amerlcan F¡nâncial Corpôrâtion and/or its êfiiliêles.

FirstAmericanTitld*

Exhibit F, Page 100 of 121
Ordinance 2020-007, Exh to Staff Report 
September 1, 2020, Page 129 of 162

159



I

€sr l Firsttlmerican

Date of Productioni OG|O4|2O2O

TERMS AND CONDITIONS OF INFORMATION REPORTS

IMPORTANT - READ CAREFULLY: AN INFORMATION REPORT lS
NOT AN INSURED PRODUCT OR SERVICE OR A REPRESENTATION
OF THE CONDITION OF TITLE TO REAL PROPERTY. IT IS NOT AN
ABSTRACT, LEGAL OPINION, OPINION OF TITLE, TITLE INSURANCE
COMMITMENT OR PRELIMINARY REPORT, OR ANY FORM OF TITLE
INSURANCE OR GUARANTY. THE INFORMATION REPORT IS ISSUED
EXCLUSIVELY FOR THE BENEFIT OF THE REQUESTOR, AND MAY
NOT BE USED OR RELIED UPON BY ANY OTHER PERSON. THE
INFORMATION REPORT MAY NOT BE REPRODUCED IN ANY
MANNER WITHOUT FIRST AMERICAN TITLE'S PRIOR WRITTEN
CONSENT. FIRST AMERICAN TITLE DOES NOT REPRESENT OR
WARRANT THAT THE INFORMATION CONTAINED IN THE
¡NFORMATION REPORT IS COMPLETE OR FREE FROM ERROR, AND
THE INFORMATION THEREIN IS PROVIDED WITHOUT ANY
WARRANTIES OF ANY KIND, AS.IS, AND W¡TH ALL FAULTS. AS A
MATERIAL PART OF THE CONSIDERATION GIVEN IN EXCHANGE
FOR THE ISSUANCE OF AN INFORMATION REPORT, REQUESTOR
AGREES THAT FIRST AMERICAN TITLE'S SOLE LIAB¡LITY FOR ANY
LOSS OR DAMAGE CAUSED BY AN ERROR OR OMISSION DUE TO
INACCURATE INFORMATION OR NEGLIGENCE IN PREPARING THE
INFORMATION REPORT SHALL BE LIMITED TO THE GREATOR OF
THE FEE CHARGED FOR THE INFORMATION REPORT OR $15.
REQUESTOR ACCEPTS THE INFORMATION REPORT WITH THIS
LIMITATION AND AGREES THAT FIRST AMERICAN TITLE WOULD
NOT HAVE ISSUED THE INFORMATION REPORT BUT FOR THE
LIMITATION OF LIABILITY DESCRIBED ABOVE. FIRST AMERICAN
TITLE MAKES NO REPRESENTATION OR WARRANTY AS TO THE
LEGALITY OR PROPRIETY OF REQUESTOR'S USE OF THE
INFORMATION CONTAINED ¡N THE INFORMATION REPORT.

Exhibit F, Page 101 of 121
Ordinance 2020-007, Exh to Staff Report 
September 1, 2020, Page 130 of 162

160



FirstAmericanTTtle*

1000 ft Buffer
251330000400 & 25133880100
Shenruood, OR 97140
ReportGenerated: 61412A20

The present data and maps are intended for informational purposes only. Some informatíon has been procured from third-party
sources and has not been independently verified. lndívidual parts are owned by their respective copyr¡ght owners and not by First

American. First Amerícan Title Company makes no express or implied warranty respecting the information presented and assumes no
responsibility for errors or omissions.

Exhibit F, Page 102 of 121
Ordinance 2020-007, Exh to Staff Report 
September 1, 2020, Page 131 of 162

161



FirstAmericanTitle*'

Sale History
Last Sale Date:

Prior Sale Date:

Doc #:

Prior Doc #:

Last Sale Price: $0

Prior Sale Price: $0

Customer Service Department

Phone: 503.2 1 9.8746(TRIO)

Email: cs.oregon @ firstam.com
Flannrlêonarafa¡.l AlA|CAtÕ

Ownersh ip
Legal Owner(s): Woodburn lndustrial Capital Grou

Site Address: No Site Address Sherwood, OR 97140

Mailing Address: 395 Shenandoah Ln NE Woodburn, OR 97071

Parcel #: 2513300-00400

APN: 8558006

Couniy: Washington

Property Characteristics
Bedrooms: 0

Tolal Bathrooms: 0

Fu¡l Bathrooms: 0

Half Bathrooms: 0

Units: 0

Stories:

Fire Place: N

Air Conditioning:

Heating Type:

Electric Iype:

Year Built: 0

Building SqFt: 0

Firsl Floor SqFt: 0

Basement Sqft: 0

Basment Type:

Lot SqFt: 871200

Lot Acres: 20.00

Hoof Type:

Roof Shape:

Porch Type:

Building Style:

Garage:

Garage SqFt: 0

Parking Spots: 0

Pool:

Property lnformation
Land Use: COMMEBCIAL

lmprovement Type: Commercial

Legal Description: ACRES 20.00

Zoning: FD-20

School District: Sherwood School

Neighborhood: Sherwood - Tualatin

Subdivision : Rural lndustrial

Assessor & Tax
Market Land: $280,000

Market Total: $280,820

Market Structure: $820

A ss ess ed T olal : $27 2,280

Taxes: $4,189.44

7o lmproved: 2

Levy Code:088.13

Millage Rate:15.4475

Mortgage
'lst Mortgage Date:

1st Mortgage Type:

2nd Mortgage Type:

Doc #:

1sl Mortgage Lender: 1st Mortgage: $0

2nd Mortgage: S0

Ïhe present data and maps are intended for informational purposes oniy. Some inlormation has been procured from third-party
sources and has not been independently verified. lndividual pads are owned by their :espect¡ve copyright owners and nol by First

American. First American Title Company makes no express or implied warranty respecting the information presented and assumes no
responsibility for errors or omissions.

Exhibit F, Page 103 of 121
Ordinance 2020-007, Exh to Staff Report 
September 1, 2020, Page 132 of 162

162



Ownership
Legal Owner(s): Woodburn lndustrial Capilal Grou

Site Address: No Site Address Sherwood, OR 97140

Mailing Address: Po Box 1060 Woodburn, OR 97071

Parcel #: 25133BB-00100

APN: R558042

County: Washington

Customer Service Department

Phone: 503.21 9.8746(TRIO)

Email: cs.oregon @ f irstam.com

ReportGenerated: 61412A20

FirstAmericanlitle*

The present data and maps are intended for informational purposes only. Some information has been procured from third-party
sources and has not been independently verified. lndividual parts are owned by their respective copyright owners and not by First

American. First American Title Company makes no express or implied warranty respecting the information presented and assumes no
responsibility for errors or omissions.

Property Characteristics
Bedrooms: 0

Total Bathrooms: 0

Full Bathrooms: 0

Half Bathrooms: 0

Units: 0

Stories:

Fire PIace: N

Air Conditioning:

Heating ïype:
Electric Type:

Year Built: 0

Building SqFt: 0

First Floor SqFt: 0

Basemenl Sqit: 0

Basment ïype:

l-ot SqFt: 355885

Lot Acres: 8.17

Roof Type:

Roof Shape:

Porch ïype:
Building Style:

Garage:

Garage SqFt: 0

Parking Spots: 0

Pool:

Property lnformation
Land Use: VACANï

lmprovement Type: Vacant Land

Legal Description: ACBES 8.17

Zoning: FD-20

School District: Sherwood School

Neighborhood: Sherwood - Tualatin

Subdivision:

Assessor & Tax
Market Land: $742,960

Market Tolal: $742,960

Market Structure: $0

Assessed Total : $1 44,960

Taxes: $2,243.76

7o lmproved: 0

Levy Code: 088.13

Millage Rate:15.4475

Sale History
Last Sale Date:

Prior Sale Date:

Doc #:

Prior Doc #:

Last Sale Price: $0

Prior Saìe Price: $0

Mo rtgage
1st Mortgage Date:

1st Mortgage Type:

2nd Mortgage Type:

Doc #:

1st Morigage Lender: 1st Mortgage: $0

2nd Mortgage: $0

Exhibit F, Page 104 of 121
Ordinance 2020-007, Exh to Staff Report 
September 1, 2020, Page 133 of 162

163



251330000400 251338800100 - Notification Mailer

97740

97140

97140

97r40

97t40
97t40
97740

97740

97140
97t40
97L40
97t40
97140
97r40
97t40
97I40
97740

97L40
97140

97I40
97t40
97740

971-40

97r40
97140

97r40
97L40

97r40
97t40
97L40
97740

97140

97r40
97t40
97740

97140
97r40
97140

97r40
97140

97L40

97740
97t40
97740

971-40

97740

97740

97140

97t40
97r40
97140
97740

OR

OR

OR

OR

OR

OR

OR

OR

OR

OR

OR

OR

OR

OR

OR

OR

OR

OR

OR

OR

OR

OR

OR

OR

OR

OR

OR

OR

OR

OR

OR

OR

OR

OR

OR

OR

OR

OR

OR

OR

OR

OR

OR

OR

OR

OR

OR

OR

OR

OR

OR

OR

Sherwood

Sherwood

Sherwood
Sherwood

Sherwood
Shemood

Shemood

Sherwood

Sherwood
Sherwood

Sherwood
Sherwood

Sherwood
Sherwood
Sherwood

Sherwood

Sherwood
Sherwood
Sherwood

Sherwood

Sherwood
Shemood

Sherwood

Sherwood
Sherwood

Sherwood

Sherwood
Sherwood

Sherwood
Sherwood

Sherwood

Sherwood

Sherwood
Sherwood

Sherwood
Sherwood

Sherwood
Sherwood
Sherwood

Shemood

Sherwood

Sherwood

Sherwood

Sherwood

Sherwood

Sherwood

Sherwood
Sherwood

Sherwood

Sherwood

Sherwood
Sherwood

No s¡te Address

No S¡te Address

21720 SW Oreson St

21720 SW Oreson St

21720 SW Oreeon St

No S¡te Address

No Site Address

21555 SW Oreson St

21600 SW OreEon St

21825 SW Dahlke Ln

21905 SW Dahlke Ln

21775 SW Dahlke Ln

14647 SW Oreeon St

No s¡te Address

22210 SW Murdock Rd

14602 SW Brickvard Dr

146L6 SW Br¡ckvard Dr
14616 SW Brickyard Dr
14630 SW Brickyard Dr
14642 SW Brickyard Dr

14650 SW Brickyard Dr

14658 SW Brickvard Dr

14672 SW Brickvard Dr

14680 SW Brickvard Dr

14694 SW Brickvard Dr

14706 SW Brickyard Dr

221.15 SW Chesapeake Pl

22105 SW Chesapeake Pl

22095 SW Chesapeake Pl

22085 SW Chesapeake Pl

22075 SW Chesaoeake Pl

14596 SW Oreson 5t
22050 SW Chesapeake Pl

22065 SW Chesapeake Pl

22060 5W Chesapeake Pl

22070 SW Chesapeake Pl

22080 SW Chesapeake Pl

22090 SW Chesapeake Pl

22100 SW Chesapeake Pl

:3050 SW Tonouin Rd

No Site Address

1-4260 SW Tonquin Rd

:-4250 5W Tonquin Rd

No Site Address

i4240 SW Tonouin Rd

No Site Address
No Site Address

0,¡o Site Address

13335 5W Tonqu¡n Rd

13335 SW Tonquin Rd

llo Site Address

l,lo Site Address

97L24
97724

97140

971-40

97740

1,2).207

12.201

97140
97027

97140
97740

97740

97724

97I40
91'1,40

97t40
97740

911-40

971,40

97r40
91140
91140

97t40
91t40
97L40

97L40
97740
97007

97740

97140

97r40
s7\40
97378
94015

97140
97L40

97740
97L40

97L40

97223

97L40

97r40
97740

97077

97740

97223
97740

97077

97008

97008

97232
97232

OR

OR

OR

OR

OR

NY

OR

OR

OR

OR

OR

OR

OR

OR

OR

OR

OR

OR

OR

OR

OR

OR

OR

OR

OR

OR

OR

OR

OR

OR

OR

OR

CA

OR

OR

OR

OR

OR

OR

OR

OR

OR

OR

OR

OR

OR

OR

OR

OR

OR

OR

Hillsboro

Hillsboro

Sherwood

Sherwood
Sherwood
Albanv

Albany

Shemood
Gladstone
Sherwood

Sherwood

Sherwood
Hillsboro

Sherwood

Sherwood
Sherwood
Sherwood
Sherwood

Sherwood

Sherwood
Sherwood

Shemood
Sherwood

Sherwood
Sherwood
Shemood

Shemood

Beaverton

Sherwood
Sherwood

Sherwood

Sherwood
Sheridan

Daly City
Sherwood

Sherwood

Sherwood

Sherwood
Sherwood

Portland

Sherwood

Sherwood

Sherwood
Woodburn

Sherwood
Portland

Sherwood
Woodburn

Beâverton

Beaverton

Portland

Portland

169 N 1st Ave # 42

169 N 1st Ave # 42

Po Box 1489

Po Eox 1489

Po Box 1489

66 S Pearl St FL I
Po Box 22055

21433 SW Oregon St

15 82nd Dr STE 210

21825 SW Dãhlke Ln

21905 SW Dahlke Ln

2L775 5W Dahlke Ln

169 N 1st Ave # 42

22560 SW Pine St

22210 SW Murdock Rd

14602 5W Brickyard Dr

14616 SW Brickyard Dr

14616 SW Brickvard Dr

14630 SW Brickvard Dr
746425W Brickvard Dr

14650 SW Brickvard Dr
14658 5W Br¡ckyard Dr

f4672SW Br¡ckyard Dr

14680 SW Brickyard Dr

14694 SW Brickyard Dr

14706 SW Brickyard Dr

22115 SW Chesâpeake Pl

16980 SW Red Rock Wav

22095 SW Chesapeake Pl

22085 SW Chesapeake Pl

22075 SW Chesap eake Pl # 22077
14596 SW Oreeon St

13751 SW Rock Creek Rd

59 Margate 5t
Po Box 1626

22070 SW Chesapeake Pl

22080 5W Chesapeake Pl

22090 SW Chesapeake Pl

22100 5W Chesapeake Pl

7430 5W Varns St

14260 SW Tonquin Rd

14260 SW Tonquin Rd

14250 SW Tonquin Rd

395 Shenandoah Ln NE

14240 SW Tonquin Rd

7430 SW Verns St

14250 SW Tonquin Rd

Po Box 1060

10175 SW Marjorie Ln

10175 SW Marjor¡e Ln

911 NE 1lth Ave
911 NE 11th Ave

Washington County Fac¡lites Memt
VVashington County Fac¡l¡tes Mgmt
Bruce & Karen Polley
Bruce & Karen Polley
Bruce & Karen Polley

Key Equipment Finance lnc
Keybank National Assoc

Allied Systems Company
John N¡emeyer

Don & Corby Morey

Uldo Lizarraga

Munger Douglas S Rev Liv Trust
Wash¡ngton County Facilites Mg1lt
Sherwood City Of
Michael D & Lawrence D Kay Llc

Ke¡th Beaumont
Jean Almond
Jean Almond

Bonn¡e Miller
C¡ndy Nev¡ll

Orfilio & John Naranjo
Audrey O Leary & Dawn Leary

Meghan Jackson

David Kremplev

Abdallah Salame

Zeb & Alyssa Menle

Sandra & Richard Miles
Ihomas & Suzanne Feller

Rebecca Osmond & Jason Berg

Samuel & Stesha Powers

Rose & Shawn Mcgrady
Robert & Amanda Taylor
Emþvrean Real Estate Llc

James & Colleen Buckner
22060 Chesapeake Place Llc

Calla Lilly

Lisã & lâmes Burton

Preston & Rochelle Griffin

David Hiser

fualatin Valley Sportsmens Club

Gertrude Barnard

Gertrude Barnard

Wayne & Karen Depr¡est

Woodburn lndustrial Capital Grou

Martin & Cynthia Walker
fualatin Vallev Soortsmens Club

Wavne & Karen Depriest
Woodburn lndustrial Capital GroJ
Snyder Llc

Snyder Llc

United States Of America Dept Of
United States Of America & Dept Of The lnter¡or Fish & Wildlife Service

2S128C0-00400

2S128C0-00400

2S128C0-00500

2S128C0-00500

2S128C0-00500

2S128C0-00501

zs128C0-00s01

zs128C0-00501

2S128C0-00600

25128D0-00600
25128D0-00601

2S128D0-00602

2S129D0-00600

2S132AA-00190

2S132AA-01101

2S132AA-06500

2S132AA-O6600

2513244-06600

2S132AA-06700

2S132AA-06800

2S132AA-06900

2513244-07000
2S132AA-07100

2S732AA-O7200

2S132AA-07300

2S132AA-07400

2S132AA-11000

2S132AA-11100

2513244-11200

2S132AA-11300

2S132AA-11400

2S132AA-11500

2S132AA-11600

2S132AA-11700

2S132AA-11800

2S132AA-11900

2S132AA-12000

2S132AA-12100

2St32AA-r2200

2513300-00100

2S13300-00200

2S13300-00201

2S13300-00300

2S13300-00400

2S13300-00401

2S13300-00402

2S13300-00403

2S13300-00600

2S13300-01100

2S13300-01100

2S13300-02s00

2S13300-02500

ÏAXID Owner Name Address Mail City Mâil Sr Mail Zip Site Address Site Site St S¡te

Exhibit F, Page 105 of 121
Ordinance 2020-007, Exh to Staff Report 
September 1, 2020, Page 134 of 162

164



251330000400 25133BB001OO - Notification Mailer

97L40
97!40
97740

97740

97740

97740

97r40
97r40
97740
97L40

97140

97t40
97740

97740

97740

971-40

97740

OR

OR

OR

OR

OR

OR

OR

OR

OR

OR

OR

OR

OR

OR

OR

OR

OR

Sherwood

Sherwood

Sherwood
Sherwood

Sherwood
Sherwood

Sherwood

Sherwood

Sherwood

Sherwood

Shemood
Sherwood

Sherwood

Sherwood

Sherwood

Sherwood

Sherwood

22500 SW Fairoaks Ct

22520 SW Fã¡roaks Ct

22550 SW Fairoâks Ct

14391 SW Fa¡roaks Dr

14345 SW Fairoaks Dr

14331 Sw Fairoâks Dr

14325 SW Fairoaks Dr

14300 SW Fairoaks Dr

14410 SW Fairoaks Dr

No Site Address

22900 SW Murdock Rd

No Site Address

No Site Address

No S¡te Address

No Site Address

14435 SW Feiroaks Dr

22515 SW Fairoaks Ct

97224

97t40
97I40
97740

97740

97232

97224

97071

97232

97140
97232

97t40
97740

97740
97744

97L40
97r40

Woodburn loR
Portland loR
Sherwood IOR

Portland IOR

sherwood loR
Sherwood loR
Sherwood IOR

Sherwood IOR

Sherwood IOR

Sheruood loR
Portland loR
Sherwood IOR

Sherwood IOR

Sherwood IOR

Sherwood IOR

Portland loR
Portland IOR

Po Box 1060

911 NE 11th Ave

22560 SW Pine St

911 NE 11th Ave

14435 5W Fairoaks Dr

22515 SW Fa¡roaks Ct

22500 SW Fairoaks Ct

22520 SW Fairoaks Ct

22550 SW Fairoaks Ct

14391 SW Fairoaks Dr

8987 SW Greensward Ln

1433L SW Fa¡roaks Dr

14331 SW Fa¡roaks Dr

14300 SW Fairoaks Dr

14410 SW Fairoaks Dr

911 NE 11th Ave

16121 SW 129th Ter

Derek & Monica Conrow

Lindsav & Brian SÞarks

Bollieer Michael E Revoc Lt

lames & Cynthia Folske

Dressel Fem Rev Trust

christooher & Kimra Corrado

Christooher & Kimra Corrado

David & Susan Brim

Jeff & Lori Fletcher

United States Of America Dept of
Leroy Moser & Delores Fam T

Woodburn lndustrial Capital Grou

United States Of America Dept Of

Sherwood Citv Of

United States Of America Dept Of

Batz J Mark Familv Trust

Brooks & Annalisa Bayne

2S133BB-00100

2S133BB-00200

2S133BB-00300

2S133BB-00400

2S133BC-00200

2S133BC-00300

2S133BC-00400

2S133BC-00500

2S133BC-00600

2S133BC-00700

2S133BC-00800

2S133BC-00900

2S133BC-01000

2S133BC-01100

2S133BC-01300

2S133BC-01600

2S133BC-01700

TAXID Owner Name Ma¡l¡ Address Mail City Mail 5t Mail z¡p site Address Site Site St Site

*** All information provided is deemed reliable, but is not guaranteed.

Exhibit F, Page 106 of 121
Ordinance 2020-007, Exh to Staff Report 
September 1, 2020, Page 135 of 162

165



2S128C0-00400
Washington County Facilites Mgmt
169 N 1st Ave # 42
Hillsboro, OR97124

2S128C0-00500
Bruce & Karen Polley
Po Box 1489

Sherwood, OR 97140

2S128C0-00501
Keybank National Assoc
Po Box 22055

Albany, NY 12201

2S128D0-00600
Don & Corby Morey
21825 SW Dahlke Ln

Sherwood, OR 97140

2S129D0-00600
Washington County Facilites Mgmt
169 N 1st Ave# 42
Hillsboro, OR97124

2S132AA-06500
Keith Beaumont
14602 SW Brickyard Dr

Sheruvood, OR 97140

2S132AA-06700
Bonnie Miller
14630 SW Brickyard Dr

Sherwood, OR 97140

2S132AA-07000
Audrey O Leary & Dawn Leary
14658 SW Brickyard Dr

Sherwood, OR 97140

2S132AA-07300
Abdallah Salame

14694 SW Brickyard Dr

Sherwood, OR 97140

2S132AA-1 1 100
Thomas & Suzanne Feller
'16980 SW Red Rock Way
Beaverton, OR 97007

2S128C0-00400
Washington County Facilites Mgmt
169 N 1st Ave# 42
Hillsboro, OR97124

2S128C0-00500
Bruce & Karen Polley
Po Box 1489

Sherwood, OR 97140

2S128C0-00501
Allied Systems Company
21433 SW Oreoon St

Sherwood, OR 97140

251 28D0-00601
Uldo Lizarraga
21905 SW Dahlke Ln

Shen¡vood, OR 97140

2S132AA-00190
Sherwood City Of
22560 SW Pine St
Sherwood, OR 97140

2S132AA-06600
Jean Almond

14616 SW Brickyard Dr
Sherwood, OR 97140

2S132AA-06800
Cindy Nevill
14642 SW Brickyard Dr
Sherwood, OR 97140

25132AA-07100
Meghan Jackson
14672 SW Brickyard Dr
Sherwood, OR 97140

2S132AA-07400
Zeb & Alyssa Menle

14706 SW Brickyard Dr

Sherwood, OR 97140

25132AA-1 1200
Rebecca Osmond & Jason Berg
22095 SW Chesapeake Pl

Sherwood, OR 97140

2S128C0-00500
Bruce & Karen Polley
Po Box 1489

Shenvood, OR 97140

2S128C0-00501
Key Equipment Finance lnc
66 S Pearl St FL I
Albany, NY 12207

2S1 28C0-00600
John Niemeyer
15 82nd Dr STE 210
Gladstone, OR 97027

2S128D0-00602
Munger Douglas S Rev Liv Trust
21775 SW Dahlke Ln

Sherwood, OR 97140

25132AA-01101
Michael D & Lawrence D Kay Llc
22210 SW Murdock Rd

Sherwood, OR 97140

2S132AA-06600
Jean Almond

146'16 SW Brickyard Dr

Sherwood, OR 97140

2S1 32AA-06900
Odilio & John Naranjo
14650 SW Brickyard Dr

Sherwood, OR 97140

2S132AA-07200
David Krempley

14680 SW Brickyard Dr

Sherwood, OR 97140

2S132AA-1 1000
Sandra & Richard Miles

221 15 SW Chesapeake Pl

Sherwood, OR 97140

2S1 32AA-1 1 300
Samuel & Stesha Powers
22085 SW Chesapeake Pl

Shenvood, OR 97140

Exhibit F, Page 107 of 121
Ordinance 2020-007, Exh to Staff Report 
September 1, 2020, Page 136 of 162

166



25132AA-1 1400
Rose & Shawn Mcgrady
22075 SW Chesapeake Pl # 22077
Shenvood, OR 97140

2S1 32AA-1 1 700
James & Colleen Buckner

59 Margate St
Daly City, CA 94015

25132AA-12000
Lisa & James Burton

22080 SW Chesapeake Pl

Sherwood, OR 97140

251 3300-001 00
Tualatin Valley Sportsmens Club
7430 SW Varns St
Portland, OR97223

2S1 3300-00300
Wayne & Karen Depriest
14250 SW Tonquin Rd

Sheruvood, OR 97140

251 3300-00402
Tualatin Valley Sporlsmens Club
7430 SW Varns St
Portland, OR97223

251 3300-01 1 00
Snyder Llc
10175 SW Marjorie Ln

Beaverton, OR 97008

2S1 3300-02500
United States Of America & Dept Of The
911 NE 11th Ave
Portland, OR97232

2S133B8-00300
Sherwood City Of
22560 SW Pine St
Shenrvood, OR 97140

2S133BC-00300
Brooks & Annalisa Bayne
22515 SW Fairoaks Ct
Sherwood, OR 97140

2S132AA-1 1500
Robert & Amanda Taylor
14596 SW Oregon St

Shenvood, OR 97140

25132AA-1 1800
22060 Chesapeake Place Llc

Po Box 1626

Shen¡vood, OR 97140

2S132AA-12100
Preston & Rochelle Griffin
22090 SW Chesapeake Pl

Sherwood, OR 97140

2S1 3300-00200
Gertrude Barnard

14260 SW Tonquin Rd

Shenvood, OR 97140

2S1 3300-00400
Woodburn lndustrial Capital Grou
395 Shenandoah Ln NE

Woodburn, OR 97071

2S1 3300-00403
Wayne & Karen Depriest

14250 SW Tonquin Rd

Sherwood, OR 97140

251 3300-01 1 00
Snyder Llc
10175 SW Marjorie Ln

Beaverton, OR 97008

2S133BB-00100
Woodburn lndustrial Capital Grou
Po Box 1060

Woodburn, OR 97071

2S133B8-00400
United States Of America Dept Of
911 NE 11th Ave
Portland, OR97232

2S133BC-00400
Derek & Monica Conrow
22500 SW Fairoaks Ct

Sherwood, OR 97140

2S1 32AA-1 1 600
Empyrean Real Estate Llc
13751 SWRockCreekRd
Sheridan, OR 97378

25132AA-1 1900
Calla Lilly
22070 SW Chesapeake Pl

Sherwood, OR 97140

2S132AA-12200
David Hiser

22100 SW Chesapeake Pl

Shenvood, OR 97140

2S1 3300-00201
Gertrude Barnard

14260 SW Tonquin Rd

Sherwood, OR 97140

2S1 3300-00401
Martin & Cynthia Walker
14240 SW Tonquin Rd

Shen¡vood, OR 97140

2S1 3300-00600
Woodburn lndustrial Capital Grou
Po Box 1 060
Woodburn, OR 97071

2S1 3300-02500
United States Of America Dept Of
911 NE 11th Ave
Portland, OR97232

25133B8-00200
United States Of America Dept Of
911 NE 11th Ave
Podland, OR97232

2S133BC-00200
Batz J Mark Family Trust
14435 SW Fairoaks Dr

Sherwood, OR 97140

2S1 33BC-00500
Lindsay & Brian Sparks
22520 SW Fairoaks Ct
Sherwood, OR 97140

Exhibit F, Page 108 of 121
Ordinance 2020-007, Exh to Staff Report 
September 1, 2020, Page 137 of 162

167



2S133BC-00600
Bolliger Michael E Revoc Lt

22550 SW Fairoaks Ct
Shenvood, OR 97140

2S133BC-00900
Christopher & Kimra Corrado
14331 SW Fairoaks Dr

Sherwood, OR 97140

25133BC-01300
Jeff & Lori Fletcher
14410 SW Fairoaks Dr

Shen¡vood, OR 97140

2S133BC-00700
James & Cynthia Folske
14391 SW Fairoaks Dr

Shenryood, OR 97140

25133BC-o1000
Christopher & Kimra Corrado

14331 SW Fairoaks Dr

Sherwood, OR 97140

2S133BC-O1600
United States Of America Dept Of

911 NE 11th Ave

Portland, OR97232

2S133BC-00800
Dressel Fam Rev Trust
8987 SW Greensward Ln

Portland, OR97224

25133BC-01 100
David & Susan Brim

14300 SW Fairoaks Dr

Sherwood, OR 97140

25133BC-O1700
Leroy Moser & Delores Fam T
16121 SW 129th Ter
Portland, OR97224

Exhibit F, Page 109 of 121
Ordinance 2020-007, Exh to Staff Report 
September 1, 2020, Page 138 of 162

168



Exhibit L. List of All Property Owners and Registered Voters

Exhibit F, Page 110 of 121
Ordinance 2020-007, Exh to Staff Report 
September 1, 2020, Page 139 of 162

169



Property Owner List

Owner Name Site Address / Tax Lot Mailing Address
Woodburn lndustrial Capital
Group LLC

No Site Address, Sherwood, OR

9714O / 251338800100
395 Shenandoah Lane NE,

Woodburn, OR 97071

Woodburn lndustrial Capital
Group LLC

No Site Address, Sherwood, OR

97L4O / 251330000400
395 Shenandoah Lane NE,

Woodburn, OR 97071

Exhibit F, Page 111 of 121
Ordinance 2020-007, Exh to Staff Report 
September 1, 2020, Page 140 of 162

170



Exhibit M. Utility Availability Exhibits

Exhibit F, Page 112 of 121
Ordinance 2020-007, Exh to Staff Report 
September 1, 2020, Page 141 of 162

171



Exhibit F, Page 113 of 121
Ordinance 2020-007, Exh to Staff Report 
September 1, 2020, Page 142 of 162

172



Exhibit F, Page 114 of 121
Ordinance 2020-007, Exh to Staff Report 
September 1, 2020, Page 143 of 162

173



Exhibit F, Page 115 of 121
Ordinance 2020-007, Exh to Staff Report 
September 1, 2020, Page 144 of 162

174



Exhibit F, Page 116 of 121
Ordinance 2020-007, Exh to Staff Report 
September 1, 2020, Page 145 of 162

175



Exhibit F, Page 117 of 121
Ordinance 2020-007, Exh to Staff Report 
September 1, 2020, Page 146 of 162

176



Exhibit F, Page 118 of 121
Ordinance 2020-007, Exh to Staff Report 
September 1, 2020, Page 147 of 162

177



Exhibit F, Page 119 of 121
Ordinance 2020-007, Exh to Staff Report 
September 1, 2020, Page 148 of 162

178



Exhibit F, Page 120 of 121
Ordinance 2020-007, Exh to Staff Report 
September 1, 2020, Page 149 of 162

179



Exhibit F, Page 121 of 121
Ordinance 2020-007, Exh to Staff Report 
September 1, 2020, Page 150 of 162

180



washinstoncounty,oreson 2020-071204
D.E
Stn=7 C LoUcKS 0713112020 11:52:39 AM
s2o.0o $1 1.oo ss.oo $60.00 $96.00

l, Margaret Gaza, Dlrector ofAssessmont and Taraflon and Er_
Omcio County Cl€rk tor Washtnirton County, Or€gon, do h.reby
certify thal the wifiln instsument of wriflng ms ricelved and 

-

rscordgd in the book o, records of sald county.

Margarel Gaza, Director of Assessmenl
and Taxation, Ex-Officio County Clerk

v

$r

illrl
E
C'
d
E
atr

5ct

PUBLIC ACCESS EASEMENT

DATED: i ,?tI 2020

City of Shenrood
Engineering Dept
22560 SW Pine St
Sherwood" OR 97140

sslgEq_orD Rf,EtJc rrnE As lil tc0oilommil
SlYlg !$ry srccum rm nfrtfrbffiffi on
Fffi rG uLnTy, srneprr, on ETEci tr r,fli oodiftttl

THIS PAGE IS A PART ()F THE
()FFICIAL DOSIJFdENT

PLEASE D() }I()T HEM()UE

BETWEEN:

Grantors:
Woodbum Industrial Capital Group, LLC
PO Box 1060
Woodburn, OR 97021

Grantee:
City of Sherwood
22560 SW Pine Street
Shenvood, OR. 92140

This easement is made *it43v of J..''nl- ,zozo,between woodburn rndustrial capital Group, LLC,GRANToR(s) and the city? st "r*offi oregon Municipar corporation, GRANTEE.

In consideration of the sum of $0'00 and othergood and valuable consideration, the receipt of which ishereby acknowledged by GRANronis),-trre dyNToR(iiJo g.* and convey to GRANTEE, itssuc.essors and assigns a public 
"."esi 

.*"rnent for the consuuction, operation and mainrcnance of avehicle and pedestrian way, including uut not limitJto an r;;;; or unimprcved street, road, sidewark,

:iHTSihht-?J:l';i,:Tllt""'ehicular una p.a.'tirn't ar.l upon.na r*r, r*lLa 
"no 

properry

l ' A legal description is set forth in EXFIIBIT *A-, 
attached and incorporated by reference.2' 

l#HJ":.e 
above legal descripG ir set rortir i"-exunrr..B,,, attachei*Jin*rporated by

This document eshblishes a permanent €asem€nt on the prop€rfy described but does not convey fee title orany interest in the underlying property 
"*.upt.s 

,*presrly'rt.t"o herein. The easement $anted shall notprevent GRANToR(slt*,* use Lf th" q.*tt, p.orided, however, that such use sfiall not interferewith the rights herein $an[d' upon unn.*fioot" tr,J 
"ity "r 

itr'e-r*ooa and initiat improvements, but no

[tff#-tJf, 
Gmntee shall reduce tt 

" 
.rsument to td area of the public irpro"..'"nt constructed for

GRANTOR(s) warrants tlal ttrer are the owner of said. propeo, which is free from all encumbrances,except for easemonts, conditions and restrictions of recordjani *lii*u.r*t and defend the easement rightsherein ganted from all lawfuIclaims r"h"t o.r.r.

SIGNED this{day of \uirr, .201g

Exhibit G
Ordinance 2020-007, Exh to Staff Report 
September 1, 2020, Page 151 of 162

181



U
st

HF
C5

dr

ft
cx,

5
C)

PUBLIC ACCESS EASEMENT

DATED: -\Una t{ 2020

AFTER RECORDING RETURN TO:

City of Sherwood
Engineering Dept
22560 SW Pine St
Sherwood, OR 97140

Grantors:
Woodburn Industrial Capital Group, LLC
PO Box 1060
Woodbum, OR 97071

RECORM BY OD RER'BIJC TIITE AS AX ACCOTflCINIO}I
ONLY I{O IIIBItfiY ETCCEPTED FM I}E OO{XN$ tr IITE OR

FOR ITE VAIJffIY, S.f,FICEI{C,T, OR EFEGT S I}OS DOq'l['{T.

BETWEEN:

Grantee:
City of Sherwood
22560 SW Pine Street
Sherwood, OR. 97140

This easement is made this._f day of )ulrL 2020, between Wood bu rn I ndustria I Ca pita I Grou p, LLC,

GRANTOR(S) and the City of Sherwood, an Oregon Municipal Corporation, GRANTEE.

In consideration of the sum of $0.00 and other good and valuable consideration, the receipt of which is
hereby acknowledged by GRANTOR(S), the GRANTOR(S) do grant and convey to GRANTEE, its
successors and assigns a public access easement for the construction, operation and maintenance of a
vehicle and pedestrian way, including but not limited to an improved or unimproved street, road, sidewalk,
nature path or other ways to facilitate vehicular and pedestrian travel upon and across the land and property
of the GRANTOR(S) as follows:

l. A legal description is set forth in EXHIBIT "A", attached and incorporated by reference.
2. A map of the above legal description is set forth in EXHIBIT "B", attached and incorporated by

reference.

This document establishes a permanent easement on the property described but does not convey fee title or
any interest in the underlying property except as expressly stated herein. The easement granted shall not
prevent GRANTOR(S) from the use of the property provided, however, that such use shall not interfere
with the rights herein granted. Upon annexation to the city of Sherwood and initial improvements, but no
later than 5 years, Grantee shall reduce the easement to the area of the public improvement constructed for
said easement.

GRANTOR(S) warrants that they are the owner of said property, which is free from all encumbrances,
except for easements, conditions and restrictions of record, and will warrant and defend the easement rights
herein granted from all lawfulclaims whatsoever.

SIGNED this]l day of \i,,v<., z}/]fl

GRANTOR(S)

Ordinance 2020-007, Exh to Staff Report 
September 1, 2020, Page 152 of 162

182



r: I

i:-,'
.iir.*t

:.i .,

Ordinance 2020-007, Exh to Staff Report 
September 1, 2020, Page 153 of 162

183



day of

STATEOFOREGON )
)ss

County of Washington )

before me this L*
+k 5u*e

20_,by
This instrument was acknowledged

f,,^-. Y-grzc-

@
OFFICIALSTAIVIP

QUINN EDWARD COX
NOTARY PUBLIC. OREGON
colrMlsslol{ No. 9791 8t

MY COiftIISSPN E}PIRES SEPIEIEER 17, A22

AiL, )--
WcityAttorney

Notary

ACCEPTED on behalf of GRANTEE by:

J P

City Engineer

7. / , 2o2o
Date

City
Joseph

Date

r zoL o

Ordinance 2020-007, Exh to Staff Report 
September 1, 2020, Page 154 of 162

184



EXHIBIT'A'
LOCATED rN THE NORTHWEST 1/+ OF THE NORTHWEST 1/,

RANGE 1 WEST, WLLAMETTE MERIDIAN, COUNTY OF
4 OF SECTION 53, TOWISHIP 2 SOUTH,
WASHINGTON, STATE OF OREGON

ALL OF THAT CERTAIN TRACT OF LAND IN THE NORTHWEST ONE-QUARTER OF THE NORTHWEST ONE.QUARTER OF

SECTION 33, TOWNSHIP 2 SOUTH, RANGE 1 WEST OF THE WILLAMETTE MERIDIAN, IN THE COUNTY OF

WASHINGTON AND STATE OF OREGON, LYING EASTERLY AND NORTHERLY OF THE CENTERLINE OF COUNTY ROAD
NO. 1260, ALSO KNOWN AS S.W. TONQUIN ROAD.

EXCEPTING THEREFROM THAT PORTION DEDICATED TO THE PUBLIC RECORDED JANUARY 26,7977 IN BOOK 804,
PAGE 898, RECORDS OF WASHINGTON COUNTY, OREGON. SAID TRACT ALSO DESCRIBED IN DEDICATION DEED

RECORDED MAY 25, 1973 IN BOOK 925, PAGE72L.

FURTHER EXCEPTING THEREFROM THAT PORTION CONVEYED TO WASHINGTON COUNTY, A POLITICAL SUBDIVISION
OF THE STATE OF OREGON FOR PUBLIC ROADWAY BY DEDICATION DEED RECORDED OCTOBER 7,2002, RECORDING

NO. 2002-116985.

CONTAINING 8.20 ACRES MORE OR LESS

LEGAL DESCRIPTION TAKEN FROM DEED DOCUMENT NO. 2017-083736, WASHINGTON COUNTY DEED RECORDS.

REFER TO EXHIBIT'B' FOR MAP LOCATION.

REGISTERED
PROFESSIONAL LAND

SURVEYOR

OREGON
MAY 26, 2015

SAMANTHA KAY TANNER
90079

PAGE 1 OF 1 RENEWS 6/30/2022

Ordinance 2020-007, Exh to Staff Report 
September 1, 2020, Page 155 of 162

185



E I S
W

E
X

H
IB

IT
'B

'
LO

C
A

T
E

D
 r

N
 T

H
E

 N
O

R
T

H
W

E
S

T
 
1/

4 
O

F
 r

H
E

N
O

R
T

H
W

E
S

T
 1

/4
 O

F
 S

E
C

T
T

O
N

 3
3,

 T
O

W
IS

H
|P

 2
 S

O
U

T
H

,
R

A
N

G
E

 1
 W

E
S

T
, 

W
IL

LA
M

E
T

T
E

 M
E

R
ID

IA
N

,
C

O
U

N
T

Y
 O

F
 W

A
S

H
IN

G
T

O
N

, 
S

T
A

T
E

 O
F

 O
R

E
G

O
N

F
W

tt 
tr

 m
flg

sc
E

E
{r

,{
r 

cf
iil

m
 0

F
 s

E
G

 .
1'

F
D

 2
" 

B
R

A
S

S
 D

IS
K

 "
T

2S

R
tw

 2
9 

28
 3

2 
33

 W
A

S
H

.

C
O

, 
S

U
R

V
E

Y
O

R
,, 

IN
 M

O
N

.

B
O

X
, 

S
E

I 
/N

 U
S

E
I

20
1 

1 
-0

39
,tE

 f
fiI

{E
R

 ff
 N

Y
 IA

 O
F

 T
IE

 IE
 IA

 t
r 

S
E

E
 '1

'
F

D
 5

/8
" 

R
E

B
A

R
, 
N

0 
cA

P
, 

H
E

LD

s8
8'

45
'0

4'
E

 1
30

8.
30

'
s8

84
9'

57
'E

 '3
09

.3
2'

P
O

R
N

O
N

 O
F

 D
E

A
C

A
N

O
N

D
O

C
. 
N

0.
 2

00
2-

11
69

E
5

R
E

N
E

W
S

 6
/3

O
/2

02
2

1g
8g

 W
A

S
H

. 
C

O
. 

S
U

R
V

E
Y

O
R

''

M
O

N
U

M
E

N
T

 B
O

X
 P

E
R

 U
S

B
T

20
02

.0
62

, 
S

E
I 

IN
 U

S
B

I 
B

K

15
2,

 P
G

, 
49

1,
 H

E
LD

S
C

A
LE

 l"
 =

 3
00

'
O

N
 A

N
 8

.5
"X

11
'' 

S
H

E
E

T

,N

ttt
r.

T
|/-

 t/
16

 S
E

e$
F

D
. 
3"

 B
R

A
S

S
 C

A
P

"{
A

S
H

 C
T

Y
 2

8 
33

 2
51

 1
97

5"

IN
 C

O
N

C
R

E
T

E
, 

S
E

I 
IN

 U
S

B
I

2-
10

4

25
, 

P
E

R
M

A
N

E
N

T

R
O

A
D

 D
E

D
IC

A
T

IO
I,I

 B
K

.8
O

4
P

G
.8

98
 A

N
D

 B
K

, 
82

6 
P

G
.

D
oc

. 
N

o'
20

17
-0

83
73

6
B aA f; q il q il - -

T
H

E
 N

O
R

T
H

W
E

S
T

 U
4 

O
F

T
H

E
 N

O
R

T
H

W
E

S
T

 U
4 

O
F

S
E

C
T

IO
N

 3
3

F
D

. 
5/

8"
 R

E
B

A
R

,

N
O

 C
A

P
, 

S
E

T

/N
 S

N
 i

56
?J

F
O

R
 N

-S
 L

/N
E

T
H

E
 N

O
R

T
H

E
A

S
T

 U
4 

O
T

T
H

E
 N

O
R

T
H

W
E

S
T

 U
4 

O
F

S
E

C
T

IO
N

 3
3

b r) rn l.J 6 .lf
) a !c
) o o =

sE
 6

fif
{m

 o
F

 t
ttE

 fl
tr

{ 
t/2

a 
rc

 N
E

 v
1 

ff 
T

,lE
 N

lt 
tA

F
D

. 
1,

, 
IR

O
N

 P
IP

E

S
E

I 
/N

 S
N

 1
00

69
, 

H
E

LD

13
10

.5
9'

F V
xr

JS
T

 t/
lS

E
e.

l'
F

D
. 
2"

 B
R

A
S

S
 C

A
P

 "
T

2S
 R

1W
 3

2 
33

13
11

.0
3'

fl'
I}

{.
 U

N
E

 tr
N

R
T

H
 t

/2
 G

 T
H

E
 N

Y
t/1

 G
 S

E
C

7o
il 

.1
,

N
88

'4
7'

01
"W

 2
62

1.
62

'
o lo r-

)
5 

E
N

IR
Y

P
A

G
E

 1
 O

F
 1

P
LO

T
 D

A
T

E
:5

/1
9/

20
20

F
IL

E
 N

A
M

E
:2

00
09

_L
O

T
10

0E
S

M
T

. 
D

W
G

B
Y

 4
5T

H
 P

A
R

A
LL

E
L 

G
E

O
M

A
T

IC
S

, 
LL

C

R
E

G
IS

T
E

R
E

D
P

R
O

F
E

S
S

IO
N

A
L 

LA
N

D
S

U
R

V
E

Y
O

R

S
A

M
A

N
T

H
A

 K
A

Y
 T

A
N

N
E

R
90

07
9

O
R

E
G

O
N

til
A

Y
 2

6,
 2

01
5

( (Ordinance 2020-007, Exh to Staff Report 
September 1, 2020, Page 156 of 162

186



Washington County, Oregon
D.E
Stn=7 C LOUCKS
$25.00 $1 1.00 $5.00 $60.00

, 2020-071205
0713112020 11:52:39 AM

$'101.00
I, Margaret caza, Director of Aaseasment and Taxation and Er.
Otflcio County Clerk ,or Warhlngton County, Oregon, do horsby
ceniry that the wlthln lnstrumont ot wnting wa6 receivod and
rocordad ln the book ol records ot sald county.

Margaret Garza, Director of Assessment
and Taxation, Ex-Officio County Clerk

Exhibit HOrdinance 2020-007, Exh to Staff Report 
September 1, 2020, Page 157 of 162

187



v
Public Utilitv Easeuqnt

DATED: 2020

AFTER RECORDTNG RETURN TO:

City of Sherwood
Engineering Department
22560 SW Pine Street
Sherwood, OR. 97140

Grantors:
Woodburn Industrial Capital Group, LLC
PO Box 1060
Woodburn, OR 97071

RECm ry OD RflELE rilU AS Afl rmilotnoit
OITY }O IXEIITY ISACCPIE} FMI}f, COITIfi S NNE fi
Fffi I}E VAIOIIY, SIJFFICts'IC'I, OR EFECT OF IlflS DMTE{T.

\)
{
s
:l
OIoltEI

E
PJ6
EE
cr
d

BETWEEN

Grantee:
City of Sherwood
22560 SW Pine Street
Sherwood, OR. 97140

THIS GRANT OF A PUBLIC UTILITY EASEMENT is made by and between Woodburn Industrial Capital Group, LLC,
its successors and assigns ("Grantor") and the City of Sherwood, an Oregon municipal corporation, its successors and
assigns ("Grantee" or "City") for the consideration hereinafter stated. The public utility easement exists over, under,
through, across and along the full width and length of the premises described as follows, ("Easement Area") to wit:

l. A legal description is set forth in EXHIBIT "A," attached and incorporated by reference.
2. A map of the above legal description is set forth in EXHIBIT "B," attached and incorporated by

reference.

The true consideration for this conveyance is $00.00. However, the actual consideration consists of other value given,
which value constitutes the whole consideration.

This document is intended to establish a permanent easement on the property described, not to convey fee title or
any interest in the underlying property except as expressly stated herein. The easement granted shall not prevent Grantor
from the use of said property provided, however, that such use shall not be permitted to interfere with the rights herein
granted. Grantor shall not be permitted to endanger the lateral support of any facilities constructed within the easement
granted herein.

Grantor hereby covenants to and with Grantee that Grantor is the owner of said property, which is free from all
encumbrances, except for easements, conditions and restrictions of record, and that Grantor will warrant and defend the
easement rights herein granted from all claims whatsoever.

Grantee (and other public or private entities or persons Grantee deems in its sole discretion as appropriate) shall
have the right to use the property for utility purposes, including but not limited to water, wastewater, drainage, electric, fiber
optic, telephone and cable and shall have the right to install, construct, operate, maintain, repair, replace and reconstruct said
facilities as Grantee may deem necessary over, across, through, in and under the property described in Exhibits "A" and
"B."

City upon the initial installation (as applicable) and upon each and every occasion that the same be repaired,
replaced, renewed, added to, or removed, will restore the premises of the Grantors, and any improvements disturbed by the
City, to as good condition as they were prior to any such installation work, including, but not limited to, the restoration of
any topsoil, lawn and nursery stock of like kind and quality subject to reasonable substitution as may be necessitated by

City of Sherwood Permanent Easement - Page 1 of 2

.lirtyL

Ordinance 2020-007, Exh to Staff Report 
September 1, 2020, Page 158 of 162

188



'f' ,l*' lt

Ordinance 2020-007, Exh to Staff Report 
September 1, 2020, Page 159 of 162

189



\../

obstruction of interference with the use granted herein. Upon annexation to the city of Sherwood and initial improvements,
but no later than 5 years, Grantee shall reduce the easement to the area of the public improvement constructed for said
easement.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the undersigned grantor has executed this easement this ?'{* of 6,{ 20Lq.

GRANTORS:

STATE OF OREGON )

county of washington ]tt

on this L*o^, * 5u*s ,

I tn\appeared

Date

2020, before me, a notary public in and for said County and State, personally
[-rcec known to me to be their person whose

names subscribed to the within instrument and acknowledged that they executed the same for the purposes therein
contained.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I have hereunto set my hand and above writtenon

@
OFFtClAtSTAtrtp

QUIilN EDWARD COX
NOTARY PUBLIC. OREGON
coirMtsstoN No. 9791 8.1

MY @i,MISSION UPIRES SEPIEItsER 17,ftz,

GRANTEE:

Accepted on behalf of The City of Sherwood.

rnis Z,Phay or J "ll, 2020

Manager

Z 7oL.7

City Attorney

My Commission |p"-Z

Joseph

City of Sherwood Permanent Easement - Page 2 o12

a,*

Ordinance 2020-007, Exh to Staff Report 
September 1, 2020, Page 160 of 162

190



EXHIBIT'A'
LOCATED rN THE NORTHWEST 1/4 OF THE NORTHWEST 1/4 OF SECTTON 35, TOW\SH|P 2 SOUTH,

RANGE 1 WEST, WLLAMETTE MERIDIAN, COUNTY OF WASHINGTON, STATE OF OREGON

ALL OF THAT CERTAIN TRACT OF LAND IN THE NORTHWEST ONE-QUARTER OF THE NORTHWEST ONE-QUARTER OF

SECTION 33, TOWNSHIP 2 SOUTH, RANGE 1 WEST OF THE WILLAMETTE MERIDIAN, IN THE COUNTY OF

WASHINGTON AND STATE OF OREGON, LYING EASTERLY AND NORTHERLY OF THE CENTERLINE OF COUNTY ROAD
NO. 1250, ALSO KNOWN AS S.W. TONQUIN ROAD.

EXCEPTING THEREFROM THAT PORTION DEDICATED TO THE PUBLIC RECORDED JANUARY 26,7977 IN BOOK 804,
PAGE 898, RECORDS OF WASHINGTON COUNTY, OREGON. SAID TRACT ALSO DESCRIBED IN DEDICATION DEED

RECORDED MAY 25, 1973 IN BOOK 926, PAGE727.

FURTHER EXCEPTING THEREFROM THAT PORTION CONVEYED TO WASHINGTON COUNTY, A POLITICAL SUBDIVISION
OF THE STATE OF OREGON FOR PUBLIC ROADWAY BY DEDICATION DEED RECORDED OCTOBER 7,2002, RECORDING

NO. 2002-115985.

CONTAINING 8.20 ACRES MORE OR LESS.

LEGAL DESCRIPTION TAKEN FROM DEED DOCUMENT NO. 2017-083736, WASHINGTON COUNTY DEED RECORDS.

REFER TO EXHIBIT'B' FOR MAP LOCATION.

REGISTERED
PROFESSIONAL LAND

SURVEYOR

SAMANTHA KAY TANNER
90079

OREGON
MAY 26, 2015

PAGE 1 OF 1 RENEWS 6/30/2022

Ordinance 2020-007, Exh to Staff Report 
September 1, 2020, Page 161 of 162

191



s8
8'

49
'5

7"
E

 '3
09

.3
2'

P
O

R
N

O
N

 O
F

 D
E

D
rc

A
N

O
N

D
O

C
. 

N
O

. 
20

02
-1

16
98

5

1g
8g

 W
A

S
H

. 
C

O
. 

S
U

R
V

E
Y

O
R

,'

M
O

N
U

M
E

N
T

 B
O

X
 P

E
R

 U
S

B
T

20
02

-0
62

, 
S

E
T

 IN
 U

S
B

T
 B

K
'

15
2,

 P
G

. 
49

1,
 H

E
LD

S
C

A
LE

 1
" 

=
 3

00
'

oN
 A

N
 8

.5
"X

11
" 

S
H

E
E

T

/N

N

W
E

S

25
, 

P
E

R
M

A
N

E
N

T
R

O
A

D
 D

E
A

C
A

N
O

N
 

B
K

.8
O

4

P
G

,8
98

 A
N

D
 B

K
, 

82
6 

P
G

.

D
oc

. 
N

o.
20

17
-0

83
73

6

E
X

H
IB

IT
'B

'
LO

C
A

T
E

D
 r

N
 T

H
E

 N
O

R
T

H
W

E
S

T
 
1/

4 
O

F
 r

H
E

N
O

R
T

H
W

E
S

T
 
1/

4 
O

F
 S

E
C

T
T

O
N

 3
3,

 T
O

W
IS

H
|P

 2
 S

O
U

T
H

,
R

A
N

G
E

 1
 W

E
S

T
, 

W
IL

LA
M

E
T

T
E

 M
E

R
ID

IA
N

,
C

O
U

N
T

Y
 O

F
 W

A
S

H
IN

G
T

O
N

, 
S

T
A

IE
 O

F
 O

R
E

G
O

N
F

m
fi 
c 

m
flE

{C
A

E
{r

,{
T

 O
ffi

ilE
R

 tr
 S

E
G

 I'
F

D
 2

,' 
B

R
A

S
S

 D
IS

K
 ,'T

2S

R
l|/

 2
9 

28
 3

2 
33

 W
A

S
H

.

C
O

. 
S

U
R

Y
E

Y
O

R
,' 

IN
 M

O
N

.

B
O

X
, 

S
E

T
 IN

 U
S

B
I

20
1 

1 
-0

39
,{

E
 C

!m
V

E
R

 tr
 N

W
 t/

1 
tr

 tt
E

 tt
E

 tA
 tr

 S
E

e 
'l'

,
F

D
 5

/s
" 

R
E

B
A

R
, 

N
o 

'o
r,

 !#
lr,

oo
,, 

13
08

.3
0, N

oR
T

H
 tf

i t
r 

sE
c$

F
D

. 
J'

' B
R

A
S

S
 C

A
P

"w
A

sH
 c

T
Y

 2
8 

33
 2

51
 1

97
5"

IN
 C

O
N

C
R

E
IE

, 
S

E
I 

/N
 U

S
B

I
2-

10
4

B tr
, t q tlt q .t - - -:

F
D

.

13
fi.

03
'

5/
8"

 R
E

B
A

R
,

N
O

 C
A

P
, 

S
E

T

,N
 S

N
 1

56
'J

F
O

R
 N

_S
 L

/N
E

T
H

E
 N

O
R

T
H

W
E

S
T

 U
4 

O
F

T
H

E
 N

O
R

T
H

W
E

S
T

 U
4 

O
F

S
E

C
T

IO
N

 3
3

T
H

E
 N

O
R

T
H

E
A

S
T

 U
4 

O
F

T
H

E
 N

O
R

T
H

W
E

S
T

 U
4 

O
F

S
E

C
T

IO
N

 3
3

b ro r) l"r a lf) 6 r) o o =

R
E

N
E

W
S

 6
/3

O
/2

02
2

xf
,S

T
 t/

1s
E

C
l:'

F
D

, 
2,

, 
B

R
A

S
S

 C
A

P
"T

2S
 R

lW
 3

2 
33

S
E

 6
fr

't'
E

R
 tr

 T
I/E

 s
0.

'T
H

 I
/2

ff 
nE

 N
E

 t/
1 

tr
 tt/

F
. 

N
w

 t/
1

F
D

, 
1"

 IR
O

N
 P

IP
E

S
E

I 
/N

 S
N

 1
00

69
' 

H
E

I:D

13
10

.5
9'

F V
o lf) ts

)

flt
T

H
 U

N
E

 tr
 T

H
E

 N
aR

IH
 t/

2 
ff 

tH
E

 N
W

 tA
 tr

 S
E

C
T

T
O

{ 
I,

N
88

'4
7'

01
"W

62
'

5 
E

N
IR

Y

P
A

G
E

 1
 O

F
 1

P
LO

T
 D

A
T

E
:6

/1
9/

20
20

F
IL

E
 N

A
M

E
:2

00
09

_L
O

T
10

O
E

S
M

T
.D

W
G

B
Y

 4
5T

H
 P

A
R

A
LL

E
L 

G
E

O
M

A
T

IC
S

, 
LL

C

R
E

G
IS

T
E

R
E

D
P

R
O

F
E

S
S

IO
N

A
L 

LA
N

D
S

U
R

V
E

Y
O

R

S
A

M
A

N
T

H
A

 K
A

Y
 T

A
N

N
E

R
90

07
9

O
R

E
G

O
N

M
A

Y
 2

6,
 2

01
5

(Ordinance 2020-007, Exh to Staff Report 
September 1, 2020, Page 162 of 162

192



DRAFT 

Ordinance 2020-007 
September 1, 2020 
Page 1 of 3, with Exhibit A (1 pg) and Exhibit B (1 pg)   

 
 

ORDINANCE 2020-007 
 

APPROVING ANNEXATION INTO THE CITY OF SHERWOOD AND CLEAN WATER SERVICES 

DISTRICT OF APPROXIMATELY 29.61 ACRES, COMPRISED OF 2 TAX LOTS AND ADJACENT SW 

TONQUIN AVENUE RIGHT-OF-WAY WITHIN THE TONQUIN EMPLOYMENT AREA  

 

WHEREAS, Woodburn Industrial Capital Group, as the applicant and property owners of two tax lots of 

approximately 28.17 acres, respectively, have submitted an application for annexation of certain land, as 

described in Exhibits A and B to this Ordinance, to the City of Sherwood; and 

 

WHEREAS, the applicant and property owners initiated this annexation in accordance with ORS Chapter 

222 and SB 1573 (2016); and 

 

WHEREAS, SB 1573 requires City approval, without submission to the electors, of annexation requests 

submitted by all owners of land in the territory proposed to be annexed, regardless of any local charter or 

ordinance requirements to the contrary, when: 

 

(a) The territory is included within an urban growth boundary adopted by the city or Metro, as defined 

in ORS 197.015;  

(b) The territory is, or upon annexation of the territory into the city will be, subject to the 

acknowledged comprehensive plan of the city;  

(c) At least one lot or parcel within the territory is contiguous to the city limits or is separated from the 

city limits only by a public right-of-way or body or water; and  

(d) The proposal conforms to all other requirements of the city’s ordinances; and 

 

WHEREAS, the Tonquin Employment Area, which includes the territory proposed to be annexed, was 

brought into the Urban Growth Boundary in 2004 by Metro via Ordinance 04-1040B; and 

 

WHEREAS, the City of Sherwood developed a concept plan for that area and adopted the concept plan 

and implementing ordinances in 2010 via Ordinance 2010-014; and 

 

WHEREAS, the lots (the territory) that is proposed to be annexed is contiguous to the current city limits; 

and 

 

WHEREAS, the subject territory will be added to the Clean Water Services district boundary upon 

annexation under the authority of ORS 199.510(2)(c); and 

 

WHEREAS, the annexation of the 28.17 acre property requires 1.44 acres of right of way for SW 

Tonquin Road adjacent to the property on the west; and 

 

193



DRAFT 

Ordinance 2020-007 
September 1, 2020 
Page 2 of 3, with Exhibit A (1 pg) and Exhibit B (1 pg)   

WHEREAS, the City does not presently have any other ordinance requirements applicable to this 

annexation request; and 

 

WHEREAS, the properties proposed to be annexed are currently in unincorporated Washington County 

and part of the Washington County Service Districts for Enhanced Law Enforcement; and  

 

WHEREAS, Washington County and the City of Sherwood have entered into an agreement 

acknowledging that the City of Sherwood should be the ultimate provider of services in the Tonquin 

Employment Area; and  

 

WHEREAS, these properties must be within the City limits in order to be developed for the urban uses 

and densities planned for in the Tonquin Employment Area Concept Plan; and  

 

WHEREAS, after proper legal notice, a public hearing was held on the proposed annexation by the City 

Council on September 1, 2020, at which public comments and testimony were received and considered; 

and 

 

WHEREAS, the Council reviewed and considered the staff report with proposed findings and conclusions 

for the decision which is included as Exhibit 1 to the Council staff report. 

 

NOW, THEREFORE, THE CITY OF SHERWOOD ORDAINS AS FOLLOWS:  

 

Section 1. The territory proposed to be annexed is specifically identified in the legal description 

(Exhibit A) and map (Exhibit B) attached to this Ordinance. 

 

Section 2. The territory annexed by this Ordinance and described in Section 1 will be added to the 

Clean Water Services district under ORS 199.510(2)(c). 

 

Section 3. The applicant has demonstrated that the annexation of the territory proposed to be 

annexed to the City of Sherwood meets all applicable requirements, as documented in 

Exhibit 1 to the City Council Staff Report. 

 

Section 4.  Upon annexation, the Comprehensive Plan zoning designation of Employment Industrial 

(EI) adopted via Ordinance 2010-014 implementing the Tonquin Employment Area 

Concept Plan, will apply to the territory proposed to be annexed. 

 

Section 5. Pursuant to ORS 222.520 and 222.120(5), the City Council declares that upon the 

effective date of the annexation, the annexed territory will be withdrawn from the 

Washington County Service Districts for Enhanced Law Enforcement. 

 

Section 6. The territory proposed to be annexed is hereby declared annexed to the City of 

Sherwood. 

 

Section 7. This Ordinance shall become effective 30 days from its adoption  

 

 

Duly passed by the City Council this 1st of September, 2020. 

194



DRAFT 

Ordinance 2020-007 
September 1, 2020 
Page 3 of 3, with Exhibit A (1 pg) and Exhibit B (1 pg)   

 
 
 
       _______________________    
       Keith Mays, Mayor   Date 
 
 
Attest:   
 
 
      
Sylvia Murphy, MMC, City Recorder  
 
 
 
           AYE NAY 

Scott  ____ ____ 
Griffin  ____ ____ 
Brouse  ____ ____ 
Young  ____ ____ 
Garland ____ ____ 
Rosener ____ ____ 
Mays  ____ ____ 

 
 

195



“ ”

EXHIBIT 'A'

196



X
X

X
X

X
X

X
X

X
X

X
X

X
X

SW
 TO

N
Q

UIN
 RD

.

SW
 O

RE
GON S

T.

EXHIBIT 'B'

PLOT DATE:7/21/2020
FILE NAME:20009_ANNEXATION.DWG
BY 45TH PARALLEL GEOMATICS, LLC

SCALE 1" = 300'
ON AN 8.5"X11" SHEET PAGE 1 OF 1

197



 

Ordinance 2020-008, Staff Report 
September 1, 2020 
Page 1 of 2, with Attachment (127 pgs) 

 

City Council Meeting Date: September 1, 2020 

 

Agenda Item: Public Hearing (First Reading)  

 

 

TO:  Sherwood City Council 

 

FROM: Eric Rutledge, Associate Planner, Planning Staff  

Through: Josh Soper, City Attorney, Joseph Gall, ICMA-CM, City Manager and Julia Hajduk, 

Community Development Director  

 

SUBJECT: Ordinance 2020-008, Approving annexation of 10.90 acres to the City of Sherwood 

and 10.50 acres to Clean Water Services within the Tonquin Employment Area, 

comprised of one Tax Lot and the adjacent SW Oregon Street and SW Tonquin Road 

right-of-way (First Reading) 

 

 

Issue: 

Shall the City Council approve the proposed annexation (Case File No. LU 2020-010 AN) of 10.90 acres 
of land within the Tonquin Employment Area? 
 

Background: 

The applicant has requested a continuance of this annexation hearing to a date certain of October 6, 2020. 

The City is currently developing an Access Management Plan for SW Oregon St. between SW Tualatin-

Sherwood Road and SW Tonquin Rd. The plan will provide alternatives for future driveway and street 

intersection locations along the Oregon St. corridor and help developers understand requirements for their 

site. The continuance will allow the applicant to review the outcomes of the plan and better understand 

access and street requirements prior to annexation.  

 

The property is part of the Tonquin Employment Area (TEA) and was brought into the Urban Growth 
Boundary in 2004. The TEA Concept Plan was approved by City Council in 2010 and the TEA Market 
Analysis, Business Recruitment Strategy, and Implementation Plan was adopted by City Council by 
resolution in 2015. Land in the TEA remains under Washington County jurisdiction and cannot be 
developed with urban services until annexation to the City. As such, the City has received an annexation 
petition for 10.90 acres of land in TEA in preparation for future development. If approved, the annexation 
will bring 10.90 acres of land into the City of Sherwood and 10.50 acres of land into the Clean Water 
Services District boundaries. 
 
The site is located along the south side of SW Oregon St. on both sides of SW Tonquin Rd. The property 
is currently zoned FD-20 under Washington County and is occupied by the applicant’s industrial business 
including an office and shop. If the annexation is approved, the City’s Employment Industrial zoning will be 
applied to the property and future development will conform to the EI zone use and development standards. 
 
With adoption of the TEA Concept Plan in 2010, properties within the TEA became eligible for annexation 
to the City of Sherwood. To date the City has approved three (3) annexations in the TEA totaling 
approximately 133 acres. The City currently has two annexation petitions under review, the subject 
application representing 10.90 acres and the adjacent Kerr Annexation (LU 2020-012) representing 29.61 
acres. If both are approved, approximately 173 acres of land in the TEA will have been annexed into the 

198



 

Ordinance 2020-008, Staff Report 
September 1, 2020 
Page 2 of 2, with Attachment (127 pgs) 

City of Sherwood, representing approximately 58% of the total land within the designated employment 
area. 
 
The applicant is seeking approval of the annexation petition under the procedures of Oregon Senate Bill 
1573. Under this method, a vote by the City electorate is not required to approve the annexation as long 
as 100% of the land owners have signed the petition and the application meets the approval criteria in 
ORS 222.127(2)(a)-(d). The legislative body of the City is responsible for approving or denying such 
annexation petitions based on the compliance with local, regional, and state criteria. The approval criteria 
for all levels is summarized below: 
 

- Oregon Revised Statutes (ORS) 222.111 – 222.183 
- Metro Code 3.09 
- City of Sherwood Comprehensive Plan Chapters 3 and 8 

 
The City of Sherwood receives sanitary sewer treatment and water quality services from Clean Water 
Services (CWS). If the annexation is approved, 10.50 acres of land will be added to the CWS district 
boundaries as prescribed in ORS 199.510(2)(c). A portion of the subject site is already within the CWS 
boundaries which results in a CWS annexation area of 0.40 acres less than the proposed City annexation. 
 
The attached staff report reviews the applicable criteria that must be considered for annexations under the 
proposed method and provides a discussion of how the application meets the criteria. Based on this 
analysis and findings in the staff report, staff recommends approval of the annexation to the City of 
Sherwood and Clean Water Services District. 
 

Alternatives: 
If the City Council finds that the proposed annexation does not meet the criteria identified in SB 1573 and 
ORS 199.510(2)(c), it could not approve the Ordinance. 
 

Financial Impacts: 

The applicant is required to pay 100% of costs associated with the annexation application, including staff 
time. The applicant has paid a deposit of $7,500 to initiate this annexation. 
 
Should the Council approve this application, the property would be in need of City services, the cost of 
which would be mostly borne by implementing development. The development of the site will require the 
extension of City services (transportation, water, sewer, etc.); however, impacts and potential mitigations 
would be addressed by future land use applications. In addition, once the property is annexed to the City 
it will be subject to the taxes, bonds, and fees assessed by the City of Sherwood. 
 

Recommendation: 

Staff recommends opening the first public hearing on Ordinance 2020-008, and continuing the hearing to 
a date certain of October 6, 2020 at the request of the applicant.  

 

Exhibits: 

1. Staff Report and Exhibits for LU 2020-010 Polley Annexation 

199



 

LU 2020-010 Polley Annexation  Page 1 of 18 

City of Sherwood Staff Report: August 17, 2020 

Staff Report for 21720 SW Oregon St.  Hearing:  September 1, 2020 

 Case File No: LU 2020-010 AN 

 

 
 
 
Signed:       
 Eric Rutledge, Associate Planner 
 
 

Proposal: The applicant is seeking approval from the City of Sherwood to annex a 9.53-
acre parcel and 1.37 acres of adjacent right-of-way at 21720 SW Oregon Street in 
unincorporated Washington County, Oregon. The total area proposed for annexation is 
10.90 acres to the City of Sherwood and 10.50 acres to Clean Water Services. The 
applicant is seeking approval of the annexation petition under the procedures of SB 1573 
and also requests annexation of the property into Clean Water Services boundary for the 
provision of sanitary sewer, stormwater, and surface water management pursuant to ORS 
199.510(C).  

 
I. BACKGROUND 

 
A. Applicant:    Bruce and Karen Polley 

     PO Box 1489 
     Sherwood, OR 97140 
 
Applicant’s Representative.: Mimi Doukas, AICP  
    AKS Engineering & Forestry LLC 
    12965 SW Herman Rd, Suite 100 

    Tualatin OR  97062 

  

B. Location: The site is located at 21720 SW Oregon Street in Unincorporated 
Washington County, on the south side of SW Oregon St. and on both sides of SW 
Tonquin Rd.  

 

C. Review Type: The Sherwood City Charter requires the electorate of the City to 
approve annexations that are passed by the City Council. However, Senate Bill 
1573 provides an exception to the final electorate requirement when the 
annexation petition is submitted by 100% of the landowners of the property and 
when certain criteria are met. Consequently, this application is being processed as 
a quasi-judicial action subject to the approval criteria of ORS 222.127(2)(a)-(d). If 
the City Council determines that the annexation petition meets the criteria, the 
territory is to be annexed to the city by ordinance. The applicant has also requested 
annexation into the boundaries of Clean Water Services for the provision of 
sanitary sewer, storm and surface water management pursuant to ORS 

Ordinance 2020-008, Exh to Staff Report 
September 1, 2020, Page 1 of 127

200



 

LU 2020-010 Polley Annexation  Page 2 of 18 

199.510(2)(c). 

 
D. Public Notice and Hearing: Notice of the City Council hearing on the annexation 

was posted on the subject property and in five public locations throughout the City 
on August 12, 2020. While ORS only requires mailed notice to property owners 
within 250 ft. of the site, mailed notice was provided to property owners within 
1,000 feet of the site on August 12, 2020 in accordance with Sherwood’s public 
hearing notice requirements. Notice of the hearing was also posted in the August 
13 and August 27, 2020 edition of The Times, a local newspaper.  

 

E. Review Criteria: There are three levels of review criteria and requirements for 
annexations - Local, Regional and State. The Oregon Revised Statutes (ORS 
222.111-.183) guide the process for annexations at the state level. The applicant 
is requesting approval under the SB 1573 method and is subject to the approval 
criteria of ORS 222.127. Annexations proposed within the Metro boundary are also 
subject to the approval criteria of Metro Code 3.09. Finally, the annexation must 
comply with Chapters 3 and 8 of the City of Sherwood Comprehensive Plan. All 
applicable review criteria are addressed below.  

 
F. History: The property is part of the Tonquin Employment Area (TEA) and was 

brought into the Urban Growth Boundary in 2004 via Metro Ordinance 04-1040B. 
In 2010, the City approved the TEA Concept Plan including the implementing 
Comprehensive Plan and Map Amendments. In 2015 the TEA Market Analysis, 
Business Recruitment Strategy and Implementation Plan was approved by the City 
Council under Resolution 2015-051.  

 
With adoption of the TEA Concept Plan, property within the TEA became eligible 

for annexation to the City of Sherwood. To date the City has approved three (3) 

annexations in the TEA totaling approximately 133 acres. The City currently has 

two annexation petitions under review, the subject application representing 10.90 

acres and adjacent Kerr Annexation (LU 2020-012) representing 29.61 acres. If 

both are approved, approximately 173 acres of land in the TEA will have been 

annexed into the City of Sherwood, representing approximately 58% of the total 

land area.  

G. Site Characteristics and Existing Zoning: The site is currently occupied by an 
industrial business and according to assessment records contains a multipurpose 
building, machine shed, and detached carport. A manufactured home is also 
located on the site and is used as the offices for the business. No residents 
currently live on the site. 

 
The property is approximately 9.23 acres in size and fronts SW Oregon Street and 
SW Tonquin Road, with a small portion of the overall tax lot (0.2 acres) located on 
the southwest side of SW Tonquin Road. The 0.2 acres is located entirely within 
the 100-year floodplain of Rock Creek. The property on the northeast site of SW 

Ordinance 2020-008, Exh to Staff Report 
September 1, 2020, Page 2 of 127

201



 

LU 2020-010 Polley Annexation  Page 3 of 18 

Tonquin Rd. is currently in use by the applicant for operation of an industrial 
business as referenced above. The remainder of the property is covered by 
grassland and forest, including upland and riparian habitat.  

 
 The property is zoned Future Development 20-Acre District (FD-20) by 

Washington County. The FD-20 District applies to the unincorporated lands added 
to the urban growth boundary by Metro through a Major or Legislative Amendment 
process after 1998. The zoning encourages limited interim uses until the 
comprehensive planning for future urban development of the area is complete.  

 
H.  Future Zoning: The subject site is within the Tonquin Employment Area, which has 

been incorporated into the City’s Comprehensive Plan. Upon annexation to the 
City of Sherwood, the City’s Employment Industrial (EI) zoning will be applied to 
the site. The EI zone classification was determined to be the most suitable zoning 
for the area through the TEA Concept Plan and targets the Clean Technology, 
Technology and Advanced Manufacturing, and Outdoor Gear and Active Wear 
industries. The EI zone will provide employment areas that are suitable for and 
attractive to these industries.   
   

 
II. AFFECTED AGENCY AND PUBLIC COMMENTS 

 
Agencies Comments: Notice was provided to the following agencies on July 27, 2020: 
NW Natural, Portland General Electric, Clean Water Services, Kinder Morgan, Pride 
Disposal, Raindrops 2 Refuge, Tualatin River National Wildlife Refuge, Portland Western 
Railroad, Bonneville Power Administration, Sherwood School District, TriMet, Metro, 
Oregon Department of Transportation, Washington County Land Use & Transportation, 
Tualatin Valley Fire & Rescue, Sherwood Police Department, and the United States 
Postal Service.  

 

Responses were received from City of Sherwood Engineering and Tualatin Valley Fire & 
Rescue. Summaries are provided below and full comments are included as exhibits to 
the report. Sherwood Police Department, BPA, and ODOT Outdoor Advertising Sign 
Program acknowledged the proposal and did not have any comments or concerns.  

 
Sherwood Engineering Department – Bob Galati, City of Sherwood Engineer, 
provided the following comments with regard to the proposed annexation (Exhibit D):  

 
Transportation - Generally speaking, the site currently has access to SW Oregon 
Street and SW Tonquin Road and meets annexation requirements for transportation. 
 
Sanitary sewer - Generally speaking, the site currently has access to public sanitary 
sewer due to the ability to extend public sanitary mainlines within public right-of-way, 
even though the distance is significant (1,420 feet). 

 
Storm sewer - Generally speaking, the site currently has access to public storm water 

Ordinance 2020-008, Exh to Staff Report 
September 1, 2020, Page 3 of 127

202



 

LU 2020-010 Polley Annexation  Page 4 of 18 

systems due to the ability to extend public storm water mainlines within public right-
of-way to the Rock Creek stream corridor. 
 
Water - Generally speaking, the site currently has access to public water systems due 
to the ability to connect to existing public water systems located within public road 
right-of-way which fronts the site. 
 
Tualatin Valley Fire & Rescue – Tom Mooney, Deputy Fire Marshal, provided 
comments via email (Exhibit E). The comments affirm the territory is within the 
boundary of TVF&R and is served by Station 33 located on SW Oregon St. In addition, 
Station 34 in Tualatin and Station 35 in King City are in proximity to the subject site. 
Service will not change with annexation.  

 
 
Public Comments 
No public comments were received on the application.  

 
 
III. REQUIRED CRITERIA AND FINDINGS FOR ANNEXATION AND BOUNDARY 

CHANGE 

 
A. State Standards 
Oregon Revised Statute 222 authorizes and guides the process for annexations of 
unincorporated and adjacent territories into the City boundaries. The applicant is 
requesting annexation utilizing the procedures outlined in SB 1573 or ORS 222.127. 
Under this method, the application is required to comply approval criteria of ORS 
222.127(2)(a)-(d). When the legislative body of the City determines that the annexation 
petition meets the criteria, the territory is to be annexed to the city by ordinance. Assuming 
the City Council determines that the annexation petition meets the prescribed criteria, the 
annexation ordinance and required notification to the Oregon Secretary of State, Oregon 
Department of Revenue and other affected will be prepared for Council approval. 
 
Senate Bill 1573, Section 2 (ORS 222.127)  

(1) This section applies to a city whose laws require a petition proposing 
annexation of territory to be submitted to the electors of the city. 

(2) Notwithstanding a contrary provision of the city charter or a city ordinance, 
upon receipt of a petition proposing annexation of territory submitted by 
all owners of land in the territory, the legislative body of the city shall annex 
the territory without submitting the proposal to the electors of the city if: 
 
The annexation petition is proposed by Bruce and Karen Polley, representing 
100% of the property owners of the ±9.53-acre property. The signed petition is 

included in Exhibit G.  
 
(a) The territory is included within an urban growth boundary adopted by 

the city or Metro, as defined in ORS 197.015; 

Ordinance 2020-008, Exh to Staff Report 
September 1, 2020, Page 4 of 127

203



 

LU 2020-010 Polley Annexation  Page 5 of 18 

 
The territory proposed for annexation is located within the Urban Growth 
Boundary and the adopted TEA concept planning area. The TEA was 
brought into the Sherwood Urban Growth Boundary in 2004 via Metro 
Ordinance 04-1040B to provide for needed industrial land.  
 

(b) The territory is, or upon annexation of the territory into the city will be, 
subject to the acknowledged comprehensive plan of the city; 
 
In 2010 the City approved the TEA Concept Plan and implementing 
Comprehensive Plan and Zone Map Amendments via Ordinance 2010-014. 
The 9.53 acre parcel is located within the TEA and subject to the City’s 
Comprehensive Plan and Map.  

 
(c) At least one lot or parcel within the territory is contiguous to the city 

limits or is separated from the city limits only by a public right-of-way 
or body or water; and 
 
The territory is located contiguous to the city limits along two property lines. 
The east property line is shared with 21600 SW Oregon St. (Tax ID 
2S128C000600) which was annexed into City in 2019. The northwest 
property line abuts SW Oregon St. and the parcels located across the right-
of-way are also located within the City of Sherwood (Exhibit A).  

 
(d) The proposal conforms to all other requirements of the city’s 

ordinances. 
 
The annexation petition was prepared in accordance with the City’s 
requirements and all information required in the City’s “Checklist for 
Annexation Request to the City of Sherwood” has been submitted by the 
applicant. As demonstrated in this report, the proposal conforms to the 
applicable ordinances of the City including the City’s adopted 
Comprehensive Plan.  
 

(3) The territory to be annexed under this section includes any additional 
territory described in ORS 222.111 (1) that must be annexed in order to 
locate infrastructure and right-of-way access for services necessary for 
development of the territory described in subsection (2) of this section at 
a density equal to the average residential density within the annexing city. 
 

The total land area of the annexation is 10.90 acres which includes the 9.53 

acre Polley property and 1.37 acres of the adjacent right-of-way (SW 

Oregon St. and SW Tonquin Rd.). Local infrastructure and right-of-way 

access are available and additional territory under this section is not 

required.  

Ordinance 2020-008, Exh to Staff Report 
September 1, 2020, Page 5 of 127

204



 

LU 2020-010 Polley Annexation  Page 6 of 18 

(4) When the legislative body of the city determines that the criteria described 
in subsection (2) of this section apply to territory proposed for annexation, 
the legislative body may declare that the territory described in subsections 
(2) and (3) of this section is annexed to the city by an ordinance that 
contains a description of the territory annexed. 
 

A draft ordinance including a description of the territory has been provided 
and can be adopted by the City Council if it determines the applicable 
criteria of the annexation request has been satisfied.  

 
 
Oregon Revised Statue Chapter 199.510 Financial effects of transfer or 
withdrawal; exceptions (Clean Water Services Boundary)  
*** 
(2)(c) When a city receives services from a district and is part of that district, any 
territory thereafter annexed to the city shall be included in the boundaries of the 
district and shall be subject to all liabilities of the district in the same manner and 
to the same extent as other territory included in the district. 
*** 
 
The City of Sherwood is within the jurisdictional boundary of Clean Water Services, which 
provides sanitary sewer and water quality services to urban Washington County. 
Approximately 10.50 acres of the territory is not currently within the CWS boundary but 
as authorized by state statute above, will also be annexed into the CWS service area 
upon annexation to the City. The difference between the City annexation and CWS 
annexation is approximately 0.40 acres, as depicted in the legal descriptions and maps 
(Exhibit B).  
 

B. Regional Standards 
In addition to the state requirements addressed above, the Oregon legislature has 
directed Metro to establish annexation criteria that must be used by all cities within the 
Metro boundary. The City of Sherwood and the subject site is in the Metro boundary and 
subject to the criteria of Metro Code 3.09 (Local Government Boundary Changes).   

 
3.09.050 Hearing and Decision Requirements for Decisions Other Than Expedited 
Decisions 

A. The following requirements for hearings on petitions operate in addition to 
requirements for boundary changes in ORS Chapters 198, 221 and 222 and 
the reviewing entity's charter, ordinances or resolutions. 

B. Not later than 15 days prior to the date set for a hearing the reviewing entity 
shall make available to the public a report that addresses the criteria in 
subsection (d) and includes the following information: 
1. The extent to which urban services are available to serve the affected 

territory, including any extra territorial extensions of service; 

 

Urban services are defined in the Metro Code as “sanitary sewers, water, fire 

Ordinance 2020-008, Exh to Staff Report 
September 1, 2020, Page 6 of 127

205



 

LU 2020-010 Polley Annexation  Page 7 of 18 

protection, parks, open space, recreation and streets, roads and mass 
transit.” All required urban services are available to serve the territory as 
described in the City of Sherwood Engineering Comments (Exhibit D) and 
summarized below.  

 

Public improvements that are required to serve the site and the larger TEA 
have been identified in the TEA Concept Plan and will be constructed before 
or in conjunction with site development. In addition, the public improvements 
necessary to accommodate development of the TEA have been assumed in 
the City’s Water System Master Plan, Storm Water Master Plan, and Sanitary 
Sewer Master Plan.   

 
Water - Per City Engineering Department, the proposed annexation site has 

direct access to public water systems in the form of a 12-inch diameter water 

line located within Oregon Street.  It is anticipated that internal public water 

systems will need to be looped to provide the system redundancy required 

by the City. 

Sewer - Per the City Engineering Department, the nearest public sanitary 

sewer system is located within the right-of-way of the Oregon 

Street/Murdock Road roundabout.  This point is approximately 380 feet 

southwest of the major lot nearest site property corner located along Oregon 

Street.  Access to existing public sanitary sewer facilities would require the 

construction of 1,420 feet of public sanitary sewer mainline along Oregon 

Street.  The additional distance is necessary to meet the “to and through” 

requirement for providing public facilities to upstream adjacent development 

lands. 

The existing downstream portion of the public sanitary sewer connection 

point resides in a public utility easement dedicated to the City from Allied 

Systems Company.  Connection to the downstream system would require 

dedication of another public utility easement from a private entity, which is 

not in compliance with annexation requirements. 

The project site is not within the Clean Water Services County Service 

District.  ORS 199.510(2)(c) stipulates that when a city receives services 

from a district, such as Clean Water Services, the territory annexed to the 

city is also automatically added to the boundaries of the service district.   

Storm Drainage - Per City Engineering Department, the majority of the site 

is between elevation 206 and 138.  The Oregon Street frontage has 

elevations of between 206 and 138.  The southeast corner of the site sits at 

elevation 192.  Provision of a storm water treatment facility should be placed 

Ordinance 2020-008, Exh to Staff Report 
September 1, 2020, Page 7 of 127

206



 

LU 2020-010 Polley Annexation  Page 8 of 18 

at the low end of the site, and would discharge to the Rock Creek stream 

corridor across SW Tonquin Road. 

The nearest existing public storm water system is located within Oregon 

Street along the northern edge.  It is a 12-inch diameter line with flow 

through catch basins, and is sized to serve the Oregon Street impervious 

surface area.  This line is not sized to provide service to adjacent 

development areas. 

To provide service to the site, a new public storm water trunk line would 

need to be constructed within the SW Oregon Street and SW Tonquin Road 

right-of-way, and extended to a discharge point on the Rock Creek stream 

corridor.  This trunk line would need to be sized to provide adequate 

capacity to serve adjacent downstream and upstream development areas. 

The storm water system would need to be designed to meet 

hydromodification requirements, as specified by CWS. 

City GIS information indicates that the lower portion of the site adjacent to 

SW Tonquin Road/SW Oregon Street intersection is within the 100-year 

floodplain.   Generally, design standards don’t allow development of 

stormwater quality facilities within the 100-year floodplain. 

Transportation - Per City Engineering Department, a high-level 

transportation analysis was performed as part of the Tonquin Employment 

Area (TEA) Concept Plan, which dates back more than 9-years to 2010.  As 

stated in the Concept Plan Report, the transportation portion of the plan was 

not forecasted to develop as an urban industrial area in the year 2020 

forecasts that were utilized to develop the Sherwood and Washington 

County TSP’s.  The land use forecasts were used to develop the 2030 and 

2035 forecasts for Metro RTP updates. 

The proposed site development plans show that the subject site has access 

to SW Oregon Street and SW Tonquin Road.  As such the site meets the 

requirements for annexation. 

The City’s TSP and CIP has identified a roundabout improvement for the 

intersection of SW Oregon Street and SW Tonquin Road (Project No. D3).  

Previous traffic studies have shown that the current intersection does not 

meet mobility targets and is marginal in meeting design safety 

requirements.  It can be anticipated that dedication of right-of-way to 

accommodate the roundabout CIP will be required. 

Ordinance 2020-008, Exh to Staff Report 
September 1, 2020, Page 8 of 127

207



 

LU 2020-010 Polley Annexation  Page 9 of 18 

Site access is shown as being off SW Oregon Street near the northeast 

corner of the site.  Access spacing standards will have to meet WACO 

requirements for access spacing onto SW Oregon Street.  An un-named 

public road located at the south end of the site is a possible second access 

point to the site.   

Parks and Recreation - The City of Sherwood owns and maintains over 60 

acres of parks in addition to 300 acres of greenways and natural areas. 

Dedication and construction of new parks and trails generally occurs with 

site development or with system development charges required of new 

development. Maintenance and operations of the park system is funded out 

of the General Fund.  An annexation alone does not trigger any park 

dedication requirement; however, future development will be required to 

comply with applicable park and open space requirements in the City’s 

Comprehensive Plan and development code. Applicable Park SDC’s will 

also be collected at the time of site development. 

Fire - The territory is within the boundary of the Tualatin Valley Fire and 

Rescue District and comments on the application were provided by Tom 

Mooney, Deputy Fire Marshal. The territory to be annexed is served by 

Station 33 located on SW Oregon Street. Station 34 in Tualatin and Station 

35 in King City are also in close proximity. The existing fire services 

provided by TVF&R will not be impacted by the annexation.   

Police – Based on online County records, the subject site is within the 

Washington County Enhanced Sheriff's Patrol District (ESPD). Upon 

annexation to the City of Sherwood, the City will withdraw the territory from 

the ESPD in accordance with ORS 222.520 and 222.120(5). Once the 

property is withdrawn, the ESPD’s tax levy will no longer apply and the City 

of Sherwood Police Department will serve the site. Police Chief Groth 

acknowledged the proposed annexation and did not state any comments or 

concerns.  

 
2. Whether the proposed boundary change will result in the withdrawal of 

the affected territory from the legal boundary of any necessary party; and 

 
As discussed above, police jurisdiction for the site is currently with the 
Washington County ESPD and will be withdrawn from the service district upon 
annexation to the City. The City of Sherwood Police Department will serve as 
the new necessary party for police services. The territory is not anticipated to 
be removed from the service boundary of any other necessary parties.  

 

Ordinance 2020-008, Exh to Staff Report 
September 1, 2020, Page 9 of 127

208



 

LU 2020-010 Polley Annexation  Page 10 of 18 

3. The proposed effective date of the boundary change. 

 
The effective date of annexation will be determined after Council adoption of 
the ordinance and filing of the boundary change approval with the Secretary of 
State, Department of Revenue, and other affected agencies.  

 
C. The person or entity proposing the boundary change has the burden to 

demonstrate that the proposed boundary change meets the applicable 
criteria. 

 
The applicant has provided all of the required information to process the boundary 
change, including a certified petition and legal descriptions. The applicant’s 
narrative (Exhibit G) provides a discussion of how the proposal meets the 
applicable criteria. City Council is the local decision authority on the application 
and will determine whether the approval criteria have been satisfied.   

 
D. To approve a boundary change, the reviewing entity shall apply the criteria 

and consider the factors set forth in Subsections (D) and (E) of Section 
3.09.045. 

 
These criteria are evaluated immediately below. 

 
 
Metro Criteria § 3.09.045 (D) 

 
1. Find that the change is consistent with expressly applicable provisions in: 

a. Any applicable urban service agreement adopted pursuant to ORS 
195.065; 

 
 Comprehensive planning within the Metro UGB is coordinated between 

counties and cities through Urban Planning Area Agreements (UPAAs). The 
subject property is included under the Washington County / Sherwood UPAA 
which is included as part of Exhibit G. Under the UPAA, the City is responsible 
for comprehensive planning and public facilities planning for areas outside City 
limits but inside the UGB. The City is responsible for providing water, sanitary 
sewer, storm sewer and transportation facilities within the UPAA, except when 
a facility is provided by another jurisdiction through an intergovernmental 
agreement. After annexation the territory will be served by City facilities 
consistent with the TEA Concept Plan and UPAA.  

 
b. Any applicable annexation plan adopted pursuant to ORS 195.205 

 
ORS 195.205 allows for a vote on annexation plans by the electorate. While 
Sherwood voters have already approved annexations proposed within this area 
of the UGB under Measure No. 34-202, the application is being processed 

Ordinance 2020-008, Exh to Staff Report 
September 1, 2020, Page 10 of 127

209



 

LU 2020-010 Polley Annexation  Page 11 of 18 

under SB 1573. SB 1573 does not require a vote by the electorate under ORS 
195.205 and this criterion is not applicable.  

 
c. Any applicable cooperative planning agreement adopted pursuant to 

ORS 195.020(2) between the affected entity and a necessary party 

 

ORS 195.020(2) requires counties to enter into cooperative agreements with 
each special district that provides an urban service within the boundaries of the 
county or metropolitan district. Since the City receives sewer treatment and 
water quality services from CWS, the property will be served by CWS upon 
annexation and the existing cooperate agreement between the jurisdictions will 
not be impacted. The annexation will result in the removal of the property from 
the Washington County ESPD and incorporation into the Sherwood Police 
service boundary. The existing mutual aid agreement between Washington 
County Sheriff and Sherwood Police will not be impacted by the annexation. 
Finally, the territory is in the TVF&R service district which will not change upon 
annexation.  

 
d. Any applicable public facility plan adopted pursuant to a Statewide 

planning goal on public facilities and services; and 

 

The TEA Concept Plan incorporated the analysis and assumptions of the 
City’s Transportation System Plan and master water, sanitary sewer, and 
storm water plans. The concept plan was approved by City Council in 2010 
and was found to be consistent the Statewide Planning Goals and applicable 
public facility plans. After annexation, the property will be served by public 
facilities consistent with the TEA concept plan and City master plans. The 
discussions and findings in this report demonstrate the proposed annexation 
can feasibly comply with applicable plans.  

 
e. Any applicable comprehensive plan; and 

 
Compliance with the local Comprehensive Plan is discussed further in this 
report under the “Local Standards” section. 

 

 
f. Any applicable concept plan. 

 
Compliance with the Tonquin Employment Area Concept Plan is discussed 
further in this report under the “Local Standards” section. 

 

 
2. Consider whether the boundary change would: 

a. Promote the timely, orderly and economic provision of public facilities 
and services; 

Ordinance 2020-008, Exh to Staff Report 
September 1, 2020, Page 11 of 127

210



 

LU 2020-010 Polley Annexation  Page 12 of 18 

 
As described in the agency comments (Exhibits D & E) and in this report, the 
annexation area is currently served or can be served by the necessary public 
facilities and services in a timely and orderly manner. The site has frontage on 
SW Oregon St. and SW Tonquin Rd. with utilities available adjacent to the site 
or within a short distance from the site. The required public and franchise 
utilities can be located within the adjacent right-of-way(s) and extended to serve 
the site. In addition, the necessary upgrades to existing facilities have been 
identified in adopted plans including the Tonquin Employment Area Concept 
Plan. Upgrades to these utilities will be studied in more detail when a 
development application is submitted, and if needed, required to be paid for by 
the development. Any applicable SDCs will be collected at the time of 
development. Finally, public services such as police and fire have also been 
demonstrated to serve the site upon annexation in a timely and orderly way.  

 
 

b. Affect the quality and quantity of urban services; and 

 
The Metro code defines urban services as sanitary sewer, water, fire protection, 
parks, open space, recreation, and streets, roads, and mass transit. While the 
demand on urban services will be increased, the industrial development that 
follows annexation will pay one-time SDCs and ongoing property taxes and 
utility fees. Therefore, the annexation is not anticipated to negatively impact the 
quality and quantity of urban services. Each urban service is discussed in more 
detail below:  

 
Sanitary sewer and water – As discussed in the Engineering Comments, the 
site has access to an existing water main located in SW Oregon St. A public 
sanitary sewer main is located at the SW Oregon St. and SW Murdock Rd. 
roundabout. An extension of this line will be required to serve the site and those 
further up Oregon St. to the north.  

 
Streets, roads, and mass transit – The site abuts existing public roads in good 
condition. Annexation will not immediately impact these areas and road 
improvements will be required in conformance with City and County standards 
at the time of development. It is anticipated that upon development of the site, 
right-of-way dedication to accommodate a new roundabout at SW Oregon St. 
and SW Tonquin Rd. will be acquired.  
 
Mass transit will not be directly affected by the annexation; however, with 
additional individuals/employees comes additional demand on the transit 
system and increased opportunities for better transit service to serve the 
existing and future populations. 

 
Parks, open space, and recreation – Dedication and construction of new parks 
and trails generally occurs with site development or with SDCs required of new 

Ordinance 2020-008, Exh to Staff Report 
September 1, 2020, Page 12 of 127

211



 

LU 2020-010 Polley Annexation  Page 13 of 18 

development. Park maintenance and operations is funded out of the General 
Fund.  
 
Once annexed into the City, the site will be required to comply with any 
applicable park and open space requirements of the Comprehensive Plan and 
development code. The Ice-Age Tonquin Trail is planned to run along SW 
Tonquin Rd. and SW Oregon St. along the site frontage.  
 
While it is anticipated that future employees in the TEA will utilize the City’s 
park system, the demand will not negatively impact the quality or quantity of 
the service. Development of the site may also provide opportunities for new 
parks and trails such as the Ice-Age Tonquin Trail. By building out the planned 
park system, existing and future Sherwood residents and employees will 
benefit.  
 
Fire protection – the property is currently served by TVF&R and will continue 
to be served by the district after annexation.  
 

 
c. Eliminate or avoid unnecessary duplication of facilities or services. 

 
The annexed territory will be served by public facilities and services in 
accordance with the UPAA and City of Sherwood master plans. Upon 
annexation the property will be removed from the Washington County ESPD 
and will receive police services from Sherwood Police. No duplication of 
services will be created as a result of the annexation.  

 
Metro Criteria § 3.09.045 (E) 

A city may not annex territory that lies outside the UGB, except that it may 
annex a lot or parcel that lies partially within and partially outside the UGB. 

 

The proposed annexation territory lies entirely within the UGB. 

 
C. Local Standards 
Under the Washington County / Sherwood UPAA the City is responsible for 
comprehensive planning land within the “Urban Planning Area” which includes the subject 
site. Chapter 8 of the City’s Comprehensive Plan addresses Urban Growth Boundary 
Additions and includes policy and implementation direction for the TEA. Chapter 3 of the 
City’s Comprehensive Plan addresses Growth Management and is also applicable to the 
site and proposed annexation. As discussed below, the proposal is consistent with 
Chapters 3 and 8 of the Comprehensive Plan. If the annexation is approved, the EI zoning 
will be applied to the property. Future development will be reviewed for compliance with 
the Sherwood Zoning & Community Development code at the time of development.  

 
City of Sherwood Comprehensive  

Chapter 3 Growth Management  

Ordinance 2020-008, Exh to Staff Report 
September 1, 2020, Page 13 of 127

212



 

LU 2020-010 Polley Annexation  Page 14 of 18 

Section B.1 Policy Goal 
To adopt and implement a growth management policy which will 
accommodate growth consistent with growth limits, desired 
population densities, land carrying capacity, environmental quality 
and livability.  

   Section B.2 Policy Objectives  
a. Focus growth into areas contiguous to existing development 
rather than "leap frogging” over developable property. 

 

The subject site located at the western boundary of the TEA at the 
corner of SW Oregon St. and SW Tonquin Rd. Adjacent lands to 
the east and north/west (across SW Tonquin Rd.) are currently 
within city limits. Annexation of the parcel will allow orderly 
expansion of the city boundary and extension of public services 
without leap frogging other developable property. Annexation will 
also allow properties in the interior of the TEA to be eligible for 
annexation as the city boundary shifts to include the subject site.  

 
b. Encourage development within the present city limits, 
especially on large passed-over parcels that are available. 

 
The subject site was brought into the UGB in 2004 as part of the TEA 
in order to meet local and regional industrial development needs over 
a 20-year planning horizon. The TEA was envisioned as a unique 
employment area in the City with target industries and jobs. 
Annexation of the parcel will provide new land zoned Employment 
Industrial while allowing properties zoned Light Industrial and 
General Industrial to serve businesses suited for those zones 
elsewhere in the City. Given the need for different types of industrial 
space, the annexation of this parcel will not significantly affect the 
ability for existing parcels inside the City limits to develop.   

 
c. Encourage annexation inside the UGB where services are 
available. 

 
The area to be annexed is in the UGB and services are available to 
be extended into the area, as described in the agency comments and 
throughout this report.  

  
d. When designating urban growth areas, consider lands with 
poorer agricultural soils before prime agricultural lands. 

   
This is a criterion that Metro considered in its decision to expand the 
UGB. Any land designated urban reserve and then brought into the 
UGB has already undergone extensive analysis on the suitability of 
the soils in comparison to other locations in the region. This criterion 

Ordinance 2020-008, Exh to Staff Report 
September 1, 2020, Page 14 of 127

213



 

LU 2020-010 Polley Annexation  Page 15 of 18 

has been met.  

 
e. Achieve the maximum preservation of natural features. 

 
The proposal is for annexation of the property into the City of 
Sherwood and CWS boundaries. After annexation, preservation of 
the natural features on the site will be required in accordance with 
City, CWS, and applicable state and federal regulations. The 0.2 
acres of the property on the south/west side of SW Tonquin Rd. is 
located within the 100-year floodplain of Rock Creek. The property 
also contains Regionally Significant Fish and Wildlife Habitat as 
determined classified by Metro. Natural resource protection 
standards are generally reviewed and approved with site 
development. The applicant will be required to show compliance with 
natural resource regulations through a future land use application.  

 
f. Provide proper access and traffic circulation to all new 
development. 

 
The property is located at the corner of SW Oregon St. and SW 
Tonquin Rd. The TEA Concept Plan and TEA Implementation Plan 
provide conceptual locations of new transportation facilities. A new 
street right-of-way (SW Tonquin Ct.) is shown in the vicinity of the 
site’s east property line and is required to provide access to interior 
lots of the TEA. Final access points and vehicular circulation patterns 
will be determined at the time of site development and will be 
required to comply with the City’s transportation and engineering 
design standards.  

 
g. Establish policies for the orderly extension of community 
services and public facilities to areas where new growth is to be 
encouraged, consistent with the ability of the community to 
provide necessary services. New public facilities should be 
available in conjunction with urbanization in order to meet 
future needs. The City, Washington County, and special service 
districts should cooperate in the development of a capital 
improvements program in areas of mutual concern. Lands 
within the urban growth boundary shall be available for urban 
development concurrent with the provision of the key urban 
facilities and services. 

 
This is a goal that is achieved through concept planning and public 
facility planning for new urban areas. This was done concurrent with 
the TEA Concept Plan. Annexation and development of the site will 
implement the provision of public facilities as envisioned by these 
plans.  

Ordinance 2020-008, Exh to Staff Report 
September 1, 2020, Page 15 of 127

214



 

LU 2020-010 Polley Annexation  Page 16 of 18 

 
h. Provide for phased and orderly transition from rural to 
suburban or urban uses. 

 
The proposed site is a logical progression of employment industrial 
development in this area. The TEA Concept Plan was developed to 
ensure that the urbanization of this area was orderly and met the 
needs of the community. Annexation of the parcel will represent 
implementation of the territory’s planned transition from a rural to 
industrial use. As described in this report, public facilities are 
available to serve the site and will be designed and constructed with 
site development.  

 
City of Sherwood Comprehensive  

Chapter 3 Growth Management  
Section F Growth Management Policy  
The following policies and strategies are established for the 
management of urban growth in the Planning Area. 

   Growth Areas 
Policy 5 - Changes in the City limits may be proposed by 
the City, County, special districts or individuals in 
conformance with City policies and procedures for the 
review of annexation requests and County procedures for 
amendment of its comprehensive plan. 

 
The proposed annexation has been initiated by an individual, 
the property owners, in conformance with applicable City 
policies and procedures.   

 
Policy 6 - The City will coordinate with Washington 
County policies and procedures governing the 
conversion of urbanizable land to urban land. Such 
policies shall be included in the Washington County-
Sherwood Urban Planning Area Agreement (UPAA). 
Specifically, the City will consider whether proposals to 
annex to the City include lands which meet one or more 
of the following criteria: …  

 
The property covered by the Washington County / Sherwood 
UPAA and is designated as part of the “Urban Planning Area”. 
As described in this report, the City is responsible for 
comprehensive planning and the provision of public services 
in the area. The application been transmitted to the County for 
review, in accordance with the Washington County / 
Sherwood UPAA. No County comments were received on the 
proposal.  

Ordinance 2020-008, Exh to Staff Report 
September 1, 2020, Page 16 of 127

215



 

LU 2020-010 Polley Annexation  Page 17 of 18 

 
Policy 7 - All new development must have access to 
adequate urban public sewer and water service. 

 
Once annexed, the area will be in the City and Clean Water 
Services district boundaries and will have access to urban 
public sewer and water. The required extensions of these 
public facilities will occur after annexation but prior to or with 
site development. The City’s water and sewer master plans 
have accounted for the demands that will be created by the 
TEA including the subject site. Adequate service is available 
or can be achieved through implementation of the plans.  

 
City of Sherwood Comprehensive  

Chapter 8 Urban Growth Boundary Additions   
Section D.4 Tonquin Employment Area 
 Implementation 

1. The City of Sherwood shall amend the Zoning and Community 
Development Code to include an Employment Industrial zone 
that implements the goals and policies in this section. 

 
The City of Sherwood has already amended the Zoning and 
Community Development Code to include an Employment Industrial 
(EI) zone through Ordinance 2010-014. 

 
2. The Employment Industrial zone may be applied only to those 
properties within city limits, or upon their annexation to the city. 

 
The property is currently zoned FD-20 under Washington County 
and once annexed, will be zoned EI under the City of Sherwood.     

 
 
 
IV. RECOMMENDATION 

 
This staff report provides a review and analysis of the applicable criteria for annexation. 
It is staff’s recommendation, based on the criteria in Senate Bill 1573, ORS 199.510(2)(c), 
Metro Code 3.09 and the City’s policies in the Comprehensive Plan and Tonquin 
Employment Area Concept Plan, that the annexation petition (LU 2020-010 AN Polley), 
be approved by the City Council.  
 

 

 

 

 

 

Ordinance 2020-008, Exh to Staff Report 
September 1, 2020, Page 17 of 127

216



 

LU 2020-010 Polley Annexation  Page 18 of 18 

V. EXHIBITS 

 
A. Map of Project Area  

B. Legal Description of Area to Be Annexed  

C. Comprehensive Plan and Zoning Map adopted via Ord. 2010-014  

D. Sherwood Engineering Department Comment Letter  

E. Tualatin Valley Fire & Rescue Comments  

F. Department of Revenue Preliminary Approval Letter 

G. Applicant’s Submittal  

 

 

 

Ordinance 2020-008, Exh to Staff Report 
September 1, 2020, Page 18 of 127

217



OREGON

MUR
DO

CK

TONQUIN

2S128C000500
9.23 AC

City of Sherwood

Date: 8/7/2020

± 0 400200
Feet

Map data provided by METRO and the City of Sherwood. The
City of Sherwood's infrastructure records,drawings, and other
documents have been gathered over many years, using many
different formats and standards. While the data provided is
generally believed to be accurate, occasionally it proves to be

Legend
Subject Site
Incorporated to City of Sherwood
Taxlots

Unincorporated Washington County

LU 2020-010 Exhibit A
Ordinance 2020-008, Exh to Staff Report 
September 1, 2020, Page 19 of 127

218



LU 2020-010 Exhibit B
Ordinance 2020-008, Exh to Staff Report 
September 1, 2020, Page 20 of 127

219



LU 2020-010 Exhibit B
Ordinance 2020-008, Exh to Staff Report 
September 1, 2020, Page 21 of 127

220



LU 2020-010 Exhibit B
Ordinance 2020-008, Exh to Staff Report 
September 1, 2020, Page 22 of 127

221



LU 2020-010 Exhibit B
Ordinance 2020-008, Exh to Staff Report 
September 1, 2020, Page 23 of 127

222



LU 2020-010 Exhibit B
Ordinance 2020-008, Exh to Staff Report 
September 1, 2020, Page 24 of 127

223



LU 2020-010 Exhibit B
Ordinance 2020-008, Exh to Staff Report 
September 1, 2020, Page 25 of 127

224



City of Sherwood September 2010 

Tonquin Employment Area: Preferred Concept Plan Report City Council Review Draft Page 58 

Figure VI-1:  Proposed Zoning 

LU 2020-010 Exhibit C
Ordinance 2020-008, Exh to Staff Report 
September 1, 2020, Page 26 of 127

225



Home of the Tualatin River National Wildlife Refuge 

Engineering Department 
Land Use - Annexation 
Review Comments & Conditions 

To: Eric Rutledge, Associate Planner 

From: Bob Galati P.E., City Engineer 

Project: Polley Annexation (LU 2020-010 AN) 

Date: July 28, 2020 

Engineering staff has reviewed the information provided for the above referenced private 
development project.  Final construction plans will need to meet the standards established by 
the City of Sherwood Engineering Department and Public Works Department, Clean Water 
Services (CWS) and Tualatin Valley Fire & Rescue (TVF&R), in addition to requirements 
established by other jurisdictional agencies providing land use comments.  City of Sherwood 
Engineering Department comments are as follows: 

General Observations 

The project site (2S128C000500) is located at 21720 SW Oregon Street and is approximately 
9.23 acres is size.  The lot fronts SW Oregon Street and SW Tonquin Road, with a small 
portion of the overall tax lot (0.2 acres) bifurcated across SW Tonquin Road. 

The proposed site development does not include any improvements shown for this bifurcated 
portion of the overall site. 

Transportation 

A high level transportation analysis was performed as part of the Tonquin Employment Area 
(TEA) Concept Plan, which dates back more than 9-years to 2010.  As stated in the Concept 
Plan Report, the transportation portion of the plan was not forecasted to develop as an urban 
industrial area in the year 2020 forecasts that were utilized to develop the Sherwood and 
Washington County TSP’s.  The land use forecasts were used to develop the 2030 and 2035 
forecasts for Metro RTP updates. 

The proposed site development plans show that the subject site has access to SW Oregon 
Street and SW Tonquin Road.  As such the site meets the requirements for annexation. 

The City’s TSP and CIP has identified a roundabout improvement for the intersection of SW 
Oregon Street and SW Tonquin Road (Project No. D3).  Previous traffic studies have shown 
that the current intersection does not meet mobility targets and is marginal in meeting design 
safety requirements.  It can be anticipated that dedication of right-of-way to accommodate the 
roundabout CIP will be required. 

Site access is shown as being off SW Oregon Street near the northeast corner of the site.  
Access spacing standards will have to meet WACO requirements for access spacing onto SW 
Oregon Street.  An un-named public road located at the south end of the site is a possible 
second access point to the site.   

Annexation Conclusion:  Generally speaking, the site currently has access to SW Oregon 
Street and SW Tonquin Road and meets annexation requirements for transportation. 

Sanitary Sewer 

The nearest public sanitary sewer system is located with the right-of-way of the Oregon 
Street/Murdock Road roundabout.  This point is approximately 380 feet southwest of the major 
lot nearest site property corner located along Oregon Street.  Access to existing public sanitary 

LU 2020-010 Exhibit D

Ordinance 2020-008, Exh to Staff Report 
September 1, 2020, Page 27 of 127

226



 

  
  
  

 

sewer facilities would require the construction of 1,420 feet of public sanitary sewer mainline 
along Oregon Street.  The additional distance is necessary to meet the “to and through” 
requirement for providing public facilities to upstream adjacent development lands. 

The existing downstream portion of the public sanitary sewer connection point resides in a 
public utility easement dedicated to the City from Allied Systems Company.  Connection to the 
downstream system would require dedication of another public utility easement from a private 
entity, which is not in compliance with annexation requirements. 

Annexation Conclusion:  Generally speaking, the site currently has access to public sanitary 
sewer due to the ability to extend public sanitary mainlines within public right-of-way, even 
though the distance is significant (1,420 feet). 

Storm Sewer 

The majority of the site is between elevation 206 and 138.  The Oregon Street frontage has 
elevations of between 206 and 138.  The southeast corner of the site sits at elevation 192.  
Provision of a storm water treatment facility should be placed at the low end of the site, and 
would discharge to the Rock Creek stream corridor across SW Tonquin Road. 

The nearest existing public storm water system is located within Oregon Street along the 
northern edge.  It is a 12-inch diameter line with flow through catch basins, and is sized to 
serve the Oregon Street impervious surface area.  This line is not sized to provide service to 
adjacent development areas. 

To provide service to the site, a new public storm water trunk line would need to be constructed 
within the SW Oregon Street and SW Tonquin Road right-of-way, and extended to a discharge 
point on the Rock Creek stream corridor.  This trunk line would need to be sized to provide 
adequate capacity to serve adjacent downstream and upstream development areas. 

The storm water system would need to be designed to meet hydromodification requirements, 
as specified by CWS. 

City GIS information indicates that the lower portion of the site adjacent to SW Tonquin 
Road/SW Oregon Street intersection is within the 100-year floodplain.   Generally, design 
standards don’t allow development of stormwater quality facilities within the 100-year 
floodplain. 

Annexation Conclusion:  Generally speaking, the site currently has access to public storm 
water systems due to the ability to extend public storm water mainlines within public right-of-
way to the Rock Creek stream corridor. 

Water 

The proposed annexation site has direct access to public water systems in the form of a 12-
inch diameter water line located within Oregon Street.  It is anticipated that internal public water 
systems will need to be looped to provide the system redundancy required by the City. 

Annexation Conclusion:  Generally speaking, the site currently has access to public water 
systems due to the ability to connect to existing public water systems located within public road 
right-of-way which fronts the site. 

 

LU 2020-010 Exhibit D

Ordinance 2020-008, Exh to Staff Report 
September 1, 2020, Page 28 of 127

227



From: Mooney, Thomas A.
To: Eric Rutledge
Subject: Re: Annexation Notice - Request for Comment (LU 2020-010 AN Polley)
Date: Friday, August 7, 2020 3:04:46 PM
Attachments: image001.jpg

CAUTION: This email originated from outside of the organization. Do not click links or open attachments unless you
are expecting this email and/or know the content is safe.

Yes that still applies. 

Thanks

Tom Mooney, MIAAI-CFI
Deputy Fire Marshal | Tualatin Valley Fire & Rescue
Direct: 503-259-1419
www.tvfr.com

From: Eric Rutledge <RutledgeE@SherwoodOregon.gov>
Sent: Friday, August 7, 2020 3:03:36 PM
To: Mooney, Thomas A. <Thomas.Mooney@tvfr.com>
Subject: RE: Annexation Notice - Request for Comment (LU 2020-010 AN Polley)

***The sender is from outside TVF&R – Do not click on links or attachments unless you are sure they
are safe***

Hi Tom,

Any comments on this application? Here’s what we have for fire from a previous report that likely
applies:

Fire The territory is within the boundary of the Tualatin Valley Fire and Rescue
District, which is served by Station 33 located on SW Oregon Street. Station 35 in
King City and Station 34 in Tualatin are also in close proximity. This will not change
with annexation.

Thanks,

Eric Rutledge
City of Sherwood
Associate Planner
rutledgee@sherwoodoregon.gov
Desk 503.625.4242
Cell 971.979.2315

LU 2020-010 Exhibit E
Ordinance 2020-008, Exh to Staff Report 
September 1, 2020, Page 29 of 127

228

mailto:Thomas.Mooney@tvfr.com
mailto:RutledgeE@SherwoodOregon.gov
mailto:rutledgee@sherwoodoregon.gov



Covid-19 Update: The City's Planning Department is fully operational, however, with limited face
to face contact.  We are processing permits via email/phone where possible and by appointment
when "in person" interaction is required. Please stay safe and healthy.
 

From: Eric Rutledge 
Sent: Monday, July 27, 2020 8:37 AM
To: Bryan_Robb@co.washington.or.us; d5b@nwnatural.com; r2g@nwnatural.com;
henry.english@pgn.com; Travis Smallwood <Travis.Smallwood@pgn.com>; Jose Marquez
<Jose.Marquez@pgn.com>; Jackie Humphreys <HumphreysJ@CleanWaterServices.org>;
spieringm@CleanWaterServices.org; Rolph, Kevin <Kevin_Rolph@kindermorgan.com>; Kristen
Tabscott <kTabscott@pridedisposal.com>; raindrops2refuge@gmail.com; Larry_Klimek@fws.gov;
mwerner@gwrr.com; Clark,James L (BPA) - TERR-CHEMAWA <jlclark@bpa.gov>;
jerose@sherwood.k12.or.us; pjohanson@sherwood.k12.or.us; tumpj@trimet.org;
baldwinb@trimet.org; DevelopmentReview@trimet.org; michaela.skiles@oregonmetro.gov;
landusenotifications@oregonmetro.gov; kurt.A.MOHS@odot.state.or.us; HENDRICKSON Jill M
<Jill.M.HENDRICKSON@odot.state.or.us>; ODOT_R1_DevRev
<ODOT_R1_DevRev@odot.state.or.us>; Naomi Vogel <Naomi_Vogel@co.washington.or.us>;
stephen_roberts@co.washington.or.us; Theresa Cherniak
<Theresa_Cherniak@co.washington.or.us>; Tom Mooney <thomas.mooney@tvfr.com>; Bob Galati
<GalatiB@SherwoodOregon.gov>; Brad Crawford <CrawfordB@SherwoodOregon.gov>; Richard
Sattler <SattlerR@SherwoodOregon.gov>; Jason Waters <WatersJ@SherwoodOregon.gov>; Craig
Christensen <ChristensenC@SherwoodOregon.gov>; Craig Sheldon
<SheldonC@SherwoodOregon.gov>; Jo Guediri <GuediriJ@sherwoodoregon.gov>; Andrew Stirling
<StirlingA@SherwoodOregon.gov>; Colleen Resch <ReschC@SherwoodOregon.gov>; Scott McKie
<McKieS@SherwoodOregon.gov>; Jeff Groth <GrothJ@SherwoodOregon.gov>; Jon Carlson
<CarlsonJ@SherwoodOregon.gov>; hoon.choe@USPS.gov
Subject: Annexation Notice - Request for Comment (LU 2020-010 AN Polley)
 
Hi Agency Partners:
 

The Sherwood Planning Department is requesting agency comments on the following
annexation proposal:

Proposal: The applicant is seeking approval for the City of Sherwood to annex ±9.53 acres of
land located at 21720 SW Oregon Street in unincorporated Washington County, Oregon. This
property is currently zoned FD-20 and is covered by the Washington County – Sherwood
Urban Planning Area Agreement. The property is also within the Tonquin Employment Area
and was added to the Urban Growth Boundary (UGB) by the Metro Council in 2004. The
annexation is proposed utilizing the SB 1573 method which requires petition from 100% of
landowners. The applicant is also requesting annexation of the property into Clean Water
Services boundary for the provision of sanitary sewer, stormwater, and surface water
management pursuant to ORS 199.510(C). No development is proposed at this time. Please
see the application material for a full description of the proposal.

Location: 21720 SW Oregon Street / Tax Lot ID 2S128C000500. Link to property on WACO

LU 2020-010 Exhibit E
Ordinance 2020-008, Exh to Staff Report 
September 1, 2020, Page 30 of 127

229

https://gcc02.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=http%3A%2F%2Fgisims.co.washington.or.us%2FInterMap%2FtheDetails.cfm%3Fx_coord%3D7605386.66437007%26y_coord%3D626511.45570867%26theAddress%3D21720%2520SW%2520OREGON%2520ST.%2520SHERWOOD%2520OR%2C%252097140%26TLNO%3D2S128C000500%26Account%3DR1492192%26GoNav%3D2&data=02%7C01%7CRutledgeE%40SherwoodOregon.gov%7C7eb792b164794af9286808d83b1de3f8%7C3e3836d4f74c41a59e565410b65447f9%7C0%7C0%7C637324346855734692&sdata=%2FlDnz3njIy%2F9WyURPu6oUSwrFndXMuSwaElF4KAvypQ%3D&reserved=0


Intermap.

Comment Deadline: Monday, August 10, 2020 for consideration in the staff report.

Hearing Date: Virtual Hearing before the Sherwood City Council on Tuesday September 1,
20202 at 7pm. A second hearing it tentatively scheduled for September 15, 2020 at 7pm (if
required). Agencies impacted by the proposal are welcome to attend online, however, all
testimony must be submitted in writing prior to the hearing. All hearings can be viewed at
https://www.youtube.com/user/CityofSherwood

Applicable code criteria: ORS 222 (includes SB 1573) for City annexation; ORS 199.510(C) for
CWS annexation; Metro Code 3.09; City of Sherwood Comprehensive Plan Chapters 3 and 8

Application materials: https://www.sherwoodoregon.gov/planning/project/polley-
annexation

 
 
 
Eric Rutledge
City of Sherwood
Associate Planner
rutledgee@sherwoodoregon.gov
Desk 503.625.4242
Cell 971.979.2315
 
 

 
 
Covid-19 Update: The City's Planning Department is fully operational, however, with limited face
to face contact.  We are processing permits via email/phone where possible and by appointment
when "in person" interaction is required. Please stay safe and healthy.
 
 

LU 2020-010 Exhibit E
Ordinance 2020-008, Exh to Staff Report 
September 1, 2020, Page 31 of 127

230

https://gcc02.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=http%3A%2F%2Fgisims.co.washington.or.us%2FInterMap%2FtheDetails.cfm%3Fx_coord%3D7605386.66437007%26y_coord%3D626511.45570867%26theAddress%3D21720%2520SW%2520OREGON%2520ST.%2520SHERWOOD%2520OR%2C%252097140%26TLNO%3D2S128C000500%26Account%3DR1492192%26GoNav%3D2&data=02%7C01%7CRutledgeE%40SherwoodOregon.gov%7C7eb792b164794af9286808d83b1de3f8%7C3e3836d4f74c41a59e565410b65447f9%7C0%7C0%7C637324346855734692&sdata=%2FlDnz3njIy%2F9WyURPu6oUSwrFndXMuSwaElF4KAvypQ%3D&reserved=0
https://gcc02.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=http%3A%2F%2Fwww.youtube.com%2Fuser%2FCityofSherwood&data=02%7C01%7CRutledgeE%40SherwoodOregon.gov%7C7eb792b164794af9286808d83b1de3f8%7C3e3836d4f74c41a59e565410b65447f9%7C0%7C0%7C637324346855734692&sdata=j%2BLIqoa5J1OORdBSjHnhRz9hKH7UIj0C9YIfgUSaE6A%3D&reserved=0
https://gcc02.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=https%3A%2F%2Fwww.sherwoodoregon.gov%2Fplanning%2Fproject%2Fpolley-annexation&data=02%7C01%7CRutledgeE%40SherwoodOregon.gov%7C7eb792b164794af9286808d83b1de3f8%7C3e3836d4f74c41a59e565410b65447f9%7C0%7C0%7C637324346855744685&sdata=uCRcrL%2FZLriO06XD93vErNqb8PL6%2BwKxVj8sE43z%2FdE%3D&reserved=0
https://gcc02.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=https%3A%2F%2Fwww.sherwoodoregon.gov%2Fplanning%2Fproject%2Fpolley-annexation&data=02%7C01%7CRutledgeE%40SherwoodOregon.gov%7C7eb792b164794af9286808d83b1de3f8%7C3e3836d4f74c41a59e565410b65447f9%7C0%7C0%7C637324346855744685&sdata=uCRcrL%2FZLriO06XD93vErNqb8PL6%2BwKxVj8sE43z%2FdE%3D&reserved=0
mailto:rutledgee@sherwoodoregon.gov


City of Sherwood
Comm. Dev. Div.--Planning Dept.
22560 SW Pine St
Sherwood OR 97140

Cadastral Information Systems Unit
PO Box 14380

Salem, OR 97309-5075
fax 503-945-8737

boundary.changes@oregon.gov

Pre
lim

in
ar

y R
ev

ie
w

DOR 34-P798-2020Boundary Change Preliminary Review

July 20, 2020

Documents received: 7/1/2020, 7/17/2020
From: Eric Rutledge

This letter is to inform you that the Description and Map for your planned Annex to City of
Sherwood (2020-010 AN (SW Tonquin Rd)(Polley)) in Washington County have been reviewed
per your request. They MEET the requirements of ORS 308.225 for use with an Order,
Ordinance, or Resolution which must be submitted to the Washington County Assessor and the
Department of Revenue in final approved form before March 31 of the year in which the change
will become effective.

DOR received 2 Revised red-line assessor's maps on 7-17-2020. These should be used in the
Final packet with the ordinance along with the surveyor's maps and desciptions.
These are for annexations to the city and Clean Water Services.

If you have any questions please contact Elise Bruch, Elise.A.Bruch@oregon.gov

LU 2020-010 Exhibit F
Ordinance 2020-008, Exh to Staff Report 
September 1, 2020, Page 32 of 127

231



 

21720 SW Oregon Street 
Annexation Application 

  
 
 

 

Date: June 2020, 
Revised July 2020 

  

Submitted to: City of Sherwood 
Planning Department 
22560 SW Pine Street 
Sherwood, OR 97140 

  

Applicants: Bruce & Karen Polley 
PO Box 1489 
Sherwood, OR 97140 

  

AKS Job Number: 7971 

LU 2020-010 Exhibit G
Ordinance 2020-008, Exh to Staff Report 
September 1, 2020, Page 33 of 127

232



Table of Contents 
I. Executive Summary .................................................................................................................. 2 

II. Site Description/Setting ............................................................................................................ 2 

Existing Conditions ........................................................................................................................... 2 

Public Utilities .................................................................................................................................. 2 

Transportation ................................................................................................................................. 3 

III. Applicable Review Criteria ........................................................................................................ 3 

OREGON REVISED STATUTES ............................................................................................................ 3 

Senate Bill 1573:............................................................................................................................ 3 

METRO CODE .................................................................................................................................... 5 

Chapter 3.09 – Local Government Boundary Changes ................................................................. 5 

CITY OF SHERWOOD COMPREHENSIVE PLAN ................................................................................... 9 

Chapter 3 Growth Management ................................................................................................ 9 

Chapter 8  Urban Growth Boundary Additions ........................................................................ 11 

IV. Conclusion .............................................................................................................................. 11 

 

Exhibits 
Exhibit A: City of Sherwood Petition for Annexation and Land Use Application 

Exhibit B: Washington County Assessor’s Map 

Exhibit C: Legal Description and Map 

Exhibit D: Boundary Change Data Sheet 

Exhibit E: Annexation Questionnaire 

Exhibit F: Worksheet for Annexation to the City of Sherwood 

Exhibit G: Certification of Property Ownership 

Exhibit H: Certification of Legal Description and Map 

Exhibit I: Ownership Information 

Exhibit J: Additional Referenced Documents 

Exhibit K: Washington County-Sherwood Urban Planning Agreement 

Exhibit L: Public Notice Information 

 

LU 2020-010 Exhibit G
Ordinance 2020-008, Exh to Staff Report 
September 1, 2020, Page 34 of 127

233



  

Annexation Application for 
21720 SW Oregon Street 

   

 Submitted to: City of Sherwood 
Planning Department 
22560 SW Pine Street 
Sherwood, OR 97140 

   

 Applicants/ 
Property Owners: 

Bruce & Karen Polley 
PO Box 1489 
Sherwood, OR 97140 
 

 Applicant’s Consultant: AKS Engineering & Forestry, LLC 
12965 SW Herman Road, Suite 100    
Tualatin, OR 97062 
 

 Contact: Mimi Doukas, AICP, RLA 

 Email: mimid@aks-eng.com  

 Phone: (503) 563‐6151  

   

 Site Location: 21720 SW Oregon Street, Sherwood, OR 97140 
Southeast of SW Oregon Street, southwest and 
northeast of SW Tonquin Road, Sherwood, OR 

   

 Assessor’s Map: Washington County Assessor’s Map 2S 1 28C Lot 500 

   

 Site Size: ±9.53 acres 

   

 County Plan Designation: 
 
City Zoning Upon 
Annexation: 

Future Development, 20 acre (FD-20) 
 
 
Employment Industrial (EI) 

LU 2020-010 Exhibit G
Ordinance 2020-008, Exh to Staff Report 
September 1, 2020, Page 35 of 127

234



I. Executive Summary              
The Applicant is seeking approval for the City of Sherwood to annex ±9.53 acres of land located at 21720 

SW Oregon Street in unincorporated Washington County, Oregon. This property is located within the 

Tonquin Employment Area that was added to the Urban Growth Boundary (UGB) by the Metro Council in 

2004. In conjunction with Metro adding this area to the UGB, the City of Sherwood undertook extensive 

planning of the Tonquin Employment Area, including transportation and infrastructure and adopted a 

Preferred Concept Plan consistent with growth in the Urban Reserve. Annexation of this parcel to the City 

of Sherwood is the next step in progression and helps to facilitate the City’s vision of this area. 

Senate Bill 1573 (2016) outlines the process for cities to annex territory without an election by voters. The 

steps for this process are outlined and addressed below and the proposed annexation meets the 

requirements of Senate Bill (SB) 1573. 

This written narrative, together with the preliminary plans and other documentation included in the 

application materials, establishes that the application complies with all applicable approval criteria. This 

documentation provides the basis for the City to recommend approval of the application. 

Pursuant to Oregon Revised Statute (ORS) 199.510(c), this application includes a simultaneous annexation 

of the property into the boundaries of Clean Water Services (CWS) for the provision of sanitary sewer, 

stormwater, and surface water management. 

II. Site Description/Setting 
This property is located southeast of SW Oregon Street and is largely vacant with the exception of the 

applicant’s industrial use and business. The subject property is within Washington County jurisdiction and 

has a Future Development, 20-acre (FD-20) plan designation. The site is identified in Area 48 – Tonquin 

Employment Area (TEA), and further designated as Employment Industrial (EI) on the Sherwood 

Comprehensive Plan. 

Existing Conditions 
The site currently has several structures located on it. These buildings serve the applicant’s industrial 

business on the property. The largest shop building at the center of the property serves an industrial use, 

while the former single-family residence on the site serves as associated offices for that use. There are 

several other accessory structures, some of which are in disuse or are also related to the industrial use on 

the property. 

Public Utilities 
The property can be served by existing public utilities located adjacent or in close proximity to the site. 

There is an existing 12-inch water line in SW Oregon Street adjacent to this sites frontage that can provide 

service to this site. An existing 15-inch public sanitary sewer line is located approximately 380 feet 

southwest of the site. There is an existing 12-inch storm sewer main located in SW Oregon Street that is 

available for connection. 

 

LU 2020-010 Exhibit G
Ordinance 2020-008, Exh to Staff Report 
September 1, 2020, Page 36 of 127

235



Service Provider Size Location Distance from Site 

Water City of Sherwood 24 inches SW Oregon Street Adjacent 

Water City of Sherwood 12 inches SW Oregon Street Adjacent 

Sanitary Sewer City of Sherwood 15 inches SW Oregon Street 
Roundabout 

±380 feet 
southwest of site  

Storm Sewer Clean Water 
Services 

12 inches SW Oregon Street Adjacent 

 

Transportation 
The site is located south of SW Oregon Street and is bisected by SW Tonquin Road. The site has frontage 

on SW Oregon Street which is under the jurisdiction of Washington County and is classified as an arterial 

street with three lanes and a posted speed limit of 35 miles per hour. SW Tonquin Road is also classified 

as an arterial street. SW Tualatin-Sherwood Road is located less than a half mile from the site. The 

proximity of these two existing arterial streets to the site provides suitable access for this site and other 

properties within the Tonquin Employment Area. As part of the concept planning when the Tonquin 

Employment Area was added to the UGB, the City completed a transportation analysis. 

III. Applicable Review Criteria 
 

OREGON REVISED STATUTES 

Senate Bill 1573: 

In response to Senate Bill 1573, which went into effect March 15, 2016, and, “applies to a city 
whose laws require a petition proposing annexation of territory to be submitted to the electors 
of the city,” the following criteria found in Sections 2 and 3 of Senate Bill 1573 have been 
addressed.  

Section 2.  

(1) This section applies to a city whose laws require a petition proposing 
annexation of territory to be submitted to the electors of the city. 

Response: Prior to adoption of SB 1573, all territory annexations to the City of Sherwood required 

approval by electors of the City. The property owners are petitioning the City of Sherwood 

for annexation via the SB 1573 Method rather than the Double, Triple, or Super Majority 

Methods, which require a vote by the citizens of the City of Sherwood. 

(2)  Notwithstanding a contrary provision of the city charter or a city ordinance, 
upon receipt of a petition proposing annexation of territory submitted by all 
owners of land in the territory, the legislative body of the city shall annex the 
territory without submitting the proposal to the electors of the city if: 

(a)  The territory is included within an urban growth boundary adopted 
by the city or Metro, as defined in ORS 197.015 

Response:  This annexation involves one property located within the Portland Metropolitan UGB and 

the Sherwood UGB. The property is within the Tonquin Employment Area, addressed 

within the Tonquin Employment Area Concept Plan. The area was brought into the 

Sherwood UGB in 2004 via Metro Ordinance 04-1040B to provide needed industrial land. 

One hundred percent of the landowners have signed an annexation petition, which is 

LU 2020-010 Exhibit G
Ordinance 2020-008, Exh to Staff Report 
September 1, 2020, Page 37 of 127

236



included in the application materials as Exhibit A. Additionally, there are no contrary 

provisions of the City of Sherwood City Charter or existing City ordinances. These criteria 

are satisfied. 

(b)  The territory is, or upon annexation of the territory into the city will 
be, subject to the acknowledged comprehensive plan of the city.  

Response:  The Tonquin Employment Area Concept Plan, which includes a Comprehensive Plan 

Zoning Map, was adopted by the Sherwood City Council on October 5, 2010. This property 

is in the Tonquin Employment Area, and upon approval of this annexation application this 

property will be zoned Employment Industrial (EI), as shown on Figure VI-I, Proposed 

Zoning of the Tonquin Employment Area Concept Plan Zoning Map, included in the 

Tonquin Employment Area Concept Plan. 

(c)  At least one lot or parcel within the territory is contiguous to the city 
limits or is separated from the city limits only by a public right of way 
or a body of water. 

Response:  As shown on the legal description and map, the property included in this application is 

contiguous to the City limits along SW Oregon Street. This criterion is met. 

(d)  The proposal conforms to all other requirements of the city’s 
ordinances.  

Response:  Required information, forms, and documents found in the “Checklist for Annexation 

Request to the City of Sherwood” are included in this annexation application. This 

provision is satisfied. 

(3)  The territory to be annexed under this section includes any additional territory 
described in ORS 222.111 (1) that must be annexed in order to locate 
infrastructure and right of way access for services necessary for development 
of the territory described in subsection (2) of this section at a density equal to 
the average residential density within the annexing city.  

Response:  The territory to be annexed includes all territories that must be annexed in order to locate 

infrastructure and right-of-way access for services necessary for development of the 

territory at a density equal to the average residential density within the annexing City, per 

the Tonquin Employment Area Concept Plan. Access is available from SW Oregon Street. 

Sewer is available via an existing sanitary sewer line located southwest of the property 

and water is available in SW Oregon Street. Annexation and development of this property 

will permit further infrastructure development by the City of Sherwood at the intersection 

of SW Oregon Street and SW Tonquin Road. This criterion is satisfied. 

(4)  When the legislative body of the city determines that the criteria described in 
subsection (2) of this section apply to territory proposed for annexation, the 
legislative body may declare that the territory described in subsections (2) and 
(3) of this section is annexed to the city by an ordinance that contains a 
description of the territory annexed.  

Response:  The criteria of subsection (2) of this section are met through information provided in 

individual responses to each of the criterion. Therefore, a legal description and map for 

the property planned for annexation prepared by a Professional Land Surveyor is included 

in the application materials (Exhibit C).  

LU 2020-010 Exhibit G
Ordinance 2020-008, Exh to Staff Report 
September 1, 2020, Page 38 of 127

237



 

Section 3  

This 2016 Act being necessary for the immediate preservation of the public peace, 
health and safety, an emergency is declared to exist, and this 2016 Act takes effect on 
its passage.  

Response:  SB 1573 was signed by the Governor and became effective on March 15, 2016.  

ORS 199.510 Financial effects of transfer or withdrawal; exceptions.  

199.510 (2) 

(c)  When a city receives services from a district and is part of that district, any 
territory thereafter annexed to the city shall be included in the boundaries of 
the district and shall be subject to all liabilities of the district in the same 
manner and to the same extent as other territory included in the district. 

Response: The property, after annexation, will receive services from the City of Sherwood but will 

also continue to receive services from larger districts such as Tualatin Valley Fire & Rescue 

(TVFR), Sherwood School District, and Washington County Cooperative Library Services. 

CWS does not currently provide water resources management services to the property; 

however, a portion of the property is already within the CWS service district. Upon 

annexation to the City, the remainder of the property will be added to the boundaries of 

the CWS service district. This criterion is met. 

METRO CODE  

Chapter 3.09 – Local Government Boundary Changes 

3.09.040  Requirements for Petitions 

A.  A petition for a boundary change must contain the following information: 

1.  The jurisdiction of the reviewing entity to act on the petition; 

2.  A map and a legal description of the affected territory in the form prescribed 
by the reviewing entity; 

3.  For minor boundary changes, the names and mailing addresses of all persons 
owning property and all electors within the affected territory as shown in the 
records of the tax assessor and county clerk; and 

4.  For boundary changes under ORS 198.855(3), 198.857, 222.125 or 222.170, 
statements of consent to the annexation signed by the requisite number of 
owners or electors. 

B.  A city, county and Metro may charge a fee to recover its reasonable costs to carry out 
its duties and responsibilities under this chapter. 

Response:  The City is the reviewing entity that will act on this petition. Necessary application forms 

and exhibits, as well as associated review fees, have been submitted with this application. 

A map and legal description of the affected territory are included in Exhibit C. The names 

and mailing addresses of persons owning property in the affected territory, per County 

Tax Assessor and County Clerk records, are included in Exhibit I. Finally, a statement of 

consent from the requisite owners and electors is included in Exhibit A. The criteria are 

met. 

3.09.045  Expedited Decisions 

LU 2020-010 Exhibit G
Ordinance 2020-008, Exh to Staff Report 
September 1, 2020, Page 39 of 127

238



A.  The governing body of a city or Metro may use the process set forth in this section for 
minor boundary changes for which the petition is accompanied by the written 
consents of one hundred percent of property owners and at least fifty percent of the 
electors, if any, within the affected territory. No public hearing is required.  

B.  The expedited process must provide for a minimum of 20 days' notice prior to the date 
set for decision to all necessary parties and other persons entitled to notice by the laws 
of the city or Metro. The notice shall state that the petition is subject to the expedited 
process unless a necessary party gives written notice of its objection to the boundary 
change.  

C.  At least seven days prior to the date of decision the city or Metro shall make available 
to the public a report that includes the following information:  

1.  The extent to which urban services are available to serve the affected territory, 
including any extraterritorial extensions of service;  

2.  Whether the proposed boundary change will result in the withdrawal of the 
affected territory from the legal boundary of any necessary party; and  

3.  The proposed effective date of the boundary change. 

Response: This annexation is not an expedited decision and therefore these criteria do not apply. 

D.  To approve a boundary change through an expedited process, the city shall:  

1.  Find that the change is consistent with expressly applicable provisions in:  

a.  Any applicable urban service agreement adopted pursuant to ORS 
195.065;  

Response: This criterion relates to state statutes requiring local governments and special districts to 

provide urban services to an area within an urban growth boundary with a population 

greater than 2,500. Properties within the urban growth boundary of the City of Sherwood 

are subject to the Washington County/Sherwood Urban Planning Area Agreement. The 

City of Sherwood, per this agreement, has prepared the appropriate comprehensive plan 

and public facilities plan updates needed for all areas within the City’s UGB. The Tonquin 

Employment Area Concept Plan was developed to address and plan for annexation within 

this area with the Urban Planning Area Agreement in mind.  

This petition for annexation has considered each of these services and any involved 

special districts or local governments. This annexation into the boundaries of Sherwood 

and the CWS service district complies with this criterion. 

b.  Any applicable annexation plan adopted pursuant to ORS 195.205;  

Response: ORS 195.205 allows for an annexation vote by the electorate, however this method of 

annexation has been superseded by Senate Bill 1573. The Sherwood City Council will vote 

on whether to annex this property to the City. Additionally, the citizens of Sherwood have 

voted to support annexation within this area of the UGB through Measure No. 34-202, 

passed in 2012. This requirement is met. 

c.  Any applicable cooperative planning agreement adopted pursuant to 
ORS 195.020(2) between the affected entity and a necessary party;  

Response: The City of Sherwood has entered into cooperative planning agreements with all 

applicable and necessary parties which provide services to the area. The City is part of the 

CWS service district and the TVFR district. Annexation into the City of Sherwood will also 

LU 2020-010 Exhibit G
Ordinance 2020-008, Exh to Staff Report 
September 1, 2020, Page 40 of 127

239



annex the property into the CWS service district. The annexation will not affect the 

provision of fire services, which will continue to be provided by the TVFR upon 

annexation. 

 The property is also currently within the Washington County Enhanced Sheriff’s Patrol 

District. Upon annexation, the property will be removed from the district and policing 

services provided by the Sherwood Police Department.  

 This application is consistent with the provisions of these planning agreements. 

d.  Any applicable public facility plan adopted pursuant to a statewide 
planning goal on public facilities and services;  

Response: The Tonquin Employment Area Concept Plan was adopted by the City of Sherwood in 

October 2010 through a public process and is consistent with Statewide Planning Goals, 

the City’s Comprehensive Plan, and applicable master plans. This annexation complies 

with all applicable master plans of the City of Sherwood, the City’s Comprehensive Plan, 

the Tonquin Employment Area Concept Plan, and the Sherwood Municipal Code. 

e.  Any applicable comprehensive plan;  

Response: Compliance with the City’s Comprehensive Plan is addressed later within this narrative. 

This criterion is met. 

f.  Any applicable concept plan; and 

Response: Compliance with the Tonquin Employment Area Concept Plan is reviewed later within this 

narrative. This criterion is satisfied. 

2.  Consider whether the boundary change would:  

a.  Promote the timely, orderly and economic provision of public 
facilities and services;  

Response: Provision of public facilities and services to the annexed territory can occur in a timely 

and orderly manner. Utilities and street access are available adjacent to the site or within 

a short distance from the site. Adjacent properties have been annexed to the City of 

Sherwood or are likely to be within the near future. Annexation of this site was anticipated 

and is a step towards development and growth of the area. This boundary change meets 

these requirements. 

b.  Affect the quality and quantity of urban services; and 

Response: The annexation will not affect the quality or quantity of urban services provided by the 

City of Sherwood or to surrounding properties. Increased urban infrastructure and service 

provisions will be reviewed as part of future development review. Systems Development 

Charges and property taxes will be assessed to offset the impact of development of this 

property. It is not expected that development of this site will have any affect on or 

decrease in quality or quantity of urban services provided by the City of Sherwood. 

c.  Eliminate or avoid unnecessary duplication of facilities or services.  

Response: There are currently no City services being used by the territory. Annexing the territory  to 

the City and removing it from the Washington County Enhanced Sheriff’s Patrol District 

LU 2020-010 Exhibit G
Ordinance 2020-008, Exh to Staff Report 
September 1, 2020, Page 41 of 127

240



will avoid duplication of policing services. After annexation, the territory will be served by 

the Sherwood Police Department. 

E.  A city may not annex territory that lies outside the UGB, except it may annex a lot or 
parcel that lies partially within and partially outside the UGB. 

Response: The territory of proposed annexation is entirely within the Sherwood UGB. This criterion 

is satisfied. 

3.09.050  Hearing and Decision Requirements for Decisions Other Than Expedited Decisions 

A. The following requirements for hearings on petitions operate in addition to 
requirements for boundary changes in ORS Chapters 198, 221 and 222 and the 
reviewing entity’s charter, ordinances or resolutions. 

Response:  This narrative and accompanying exhibits respond to applicable state and local 

requirements pertaining to boundary changes. Additionally, Metro Code Section 3.09 and 

the Sherwood Development Code implement the applicable annexation provisions from 

ORS Chapters 198, 221, and 222. This narrative demonstrates that the applicable 

boundary change requirements have been satisfied. The criterion is met. 

B. Not later than 15 days prior to the date set for a hearing the reviewing entity shall make 
available to the public a report that addresses the criteria identified in subsection (D) 
and includes the following information: 

1. The extent to which urban services are available to serve the affected territory, 
including any extra territorial extensions of service; 

Response:  Urban services are or will be made available to serve the affected territory to a level 

consistent with City and CWS standards per the City’s Tonquin Employment Area Concept 

Plan, Water System Master Plan, Stormwater Master Plan, and Sanitary System Master 

Plan. Utilities are available to serve the site within the SW Oregon Street right-of-way or 

within close proximity to the site.  

 Water and storm sewer utilities are available within the adjacent SW Oregon Street right-

of-way. Sanitary sewer is available within the right-of-way of the SW Oregon Street/SW 

Murdock Road roundabout ±380 feet southwest of the site. 

 Parks and recreation and transportation planning services will be provided by the City of 

Sherwood upon annexation. The annexation application does not trigger park 

requirements. A Transportation Impact Analysis (TIA) will be required with site 

development. A transportation analysis for the Tonquin Employment Area was completed 

as part of the Tonquin Employment Area Concept Plan.  

Fire and Police services are currently available to the property through the TVFR and the 

Washington County Enhanced Sheriff’s Patrol District. While the area to be annexed will 

be removed from the Washington County Enhanced Sheriff’s Patrol District, the area will 

continue to be served by TVFR upon annexation. The Sherwood Police Department will 

provide police services upon annexation. 

These requirements are satisfied.  

2. Whether the proposed boundary change will result in the withdrawal of the 
affected territory from the legal boundary of any necessary party; and 

LU 2020-010 Exhibit G
Ordinance 2020-008, Exh to Staff Report 
September 1, 2020, Page 42 of 127

241



Response:  Metro Code Section 3.09.020 defines the following terms: “affected territory” means a 

territory described in a petition; “necessary party” means any county, city, or district 

whose jurisdictional boundary or adopted urban service area includes any part of the 

affected territory, or who provides any urban service to any portion of the affected 

territory, including Metro, or any other unit of local government, as defined in ORS 

190.003, that is a party to any agreement for provision of an urban service to the affected 

territory. The annexation will add approximately 9.53 acres of land to Sherwood for the 

provision of urban services but will not withdraw the affected territory from the legal 

boundary of any party other than the Washington County Enhanced Sheriff’s Patrol 

District, as outlined above. The legal description of the area is included in Exhibit C. 

3. The proposed effective date of the boundary change. 

Response:  The Applicant anticipates approval of the Annexation application upon adoption by the 

City of Sherwood City Council, by October 2020. The criterion is met. 

C. The person or entity proposing the boundary change has the burden to demonstrate 
that the proposed boundary change meets the applicable criteria. 

Response:  This application includes responses demonstrating compliance to applicable boundary 

change criteria. The criterion is met. 

D. To approve a boundary change, the reviewing entity shall apply the criteria and 
consider the factors set forth in subsections (D) and (E) of section 3.09.045. 

Response:  Responses to Metro Code Sections 3.09.045 (D) and (E) are included above. 

CITY OF SHERWOOD COMPREHENSIVE PLAN 

Chapter 3 Growth Management 

3.1  Growth Management 

B.  POLICY GOALS AND OBJECTIVES 

1.  POLICY GOAL 

To adopt and implement a growth management policy which will 
accommodate growth consistent with growth limits, desired population 
densities, land carrying capacity, environmental quality and livability. 

2.  POLICY OBJECTIVES 

a.  Focus growth into areas contiguous to existing development rather 
than "leap frogging" over developable property. 

Response: The property included in this application is contiguous with Sherwood city limits. 

Therefore, this application does not require “leap frogging” over developable property. 

This provision is satisfied. 

b.  Encourage development within the present city limits, especially on 
large passed-over parcels that are available. 

Response: This application involves a property that is located within the Tonquin Employment Area 

and annexation of this property will allow industrial land use to occur within city limits in 

a location that would be compatible with other nearby industrially-zoned properties. This 

criterion is met. 

LU 2020-010 Exhibit G
Ordinance 2020-008, Exh to Staff Report 
September 1, 2020, Page 43 of 127

242



c.  Encourage annexation inside the UGB where services are available. 

Response: The property included in this annexation application was brought into the UGB in 2004. 

Services have been identified in the City’s Tonquin Employment Area Concept Plan to be 

available or available for extension to this area. This criterion is met. 

d.  When designating urban growth areas, consider lands with poorer 
agricultural soils before prime agricultural lands. 

Response: The property included in this annexation application is part of the City’s Tonquin 

Employment Area Concept Plan and was brought into the UGB in 2004. By including the 

subject area within the UGB, both Metro and the City of Sherwood have identified this 

land as more appropriate for future urbanization than for the conservation of the area for 

agricultural uses. This provision is satisfied. 

e.  Achieve the maximum preservation of natural features. 

Response: Upon annexation of this property into city limits, the City of Sherwood’s regulations for 

natural features will apply, whereas currently they do not. This includes the City’s Zoning 

and Development Code and the rules and regulations of CWS, which apply to sensitive 

areas. This criterion is satisfied. 

f.  Provide proper access and traffic circulation to all new development. 

Response: Transportation and circulation improvements needed to serve the future development of 

the annexed area have been identified in the City’s Tonquin Employment Area Concept 

Plan and Transportation System Plan and will further be reviewed at the time of a future 

development application. This criterion is met. 

g.  Establish policies for the orderly extension of community services 
and public facilities to areas where new growth is to be encouraged, 
consistent with the ability of the community to provide necessary 
services. New public facilities should be available in conjunction 
with urbanization in order to meet future needs. The City, 
Washington County, and special service districts should cooperate in 
the development of a capital improvements program in areas of 
mutual concern. Lands within the urban growth boundary shall be 
available for urban development concurrent with the provision of the 
key urban facilities and services. 

Response: Extending community services and public facilities to serve the Tonquin area was 

considered concurrently with the Tonquin Employment Area Concept Plan and the 

services were found to be available or able to be appropriately extended with the future 

development in the area. These criteria are met. 

h.  Provide for phased and orderly transition from rural to suburban or 
urban uses. 

Response: This property is located within the Tonquin Employment Area and is designated as 

Employment Industrial (EI) on the City’s Comprehensive Plan. The Tonquin Employment 

Area was extensively planned by the City to help guide future development of the area in 

an orderly fashion. This criterion is met. 

F.  GROWTH MANAGEMENT POLICY 

LU 2020-010 Exhibit G
Ordinance 2020-008, Exh to Staff Report 
September 1, 2020, Page 44 of 127

243



The following policies and strategies are established for the management of urban 
growth in the Planning Area. 

1.  GROWTH AREAS 

Policy 5 

Changes in the City limits may be proposed by the City, County, 
special districts or individuals in conformance with City policies and 
procedures for the review of annexation requests and County 
procedures for amendment of its comprehensive plan. 

Response: This application request and supporting materials are in conformance with City policies 

and procedures for annexations. This provision is met. 

Policy 7 

All new development must have access to adequate urban public 
sewer and water service. 

Response: As previously discussed, this site is in close proximity to existing services and can connect 

to existing public sewer and water services. This criterion is met. 

Chapter 8  Urban Growth Boundary Additions 

D. 4.  Area 48- Tonquin Employment Area 

Implementation 

The City of Sherwood shall amend the Zoning and Community Development 
Code to include an Employment Industrial zone that implements the goals 
and policies in this section. 

Response: The City of Sherwood has amended the Zoning and Community Development Code to 

include an Employment Industrial (EI) zone through Ordinance 2010-014. This provision 

is satisfied. 

2.  The Employment Industrial zone may be applied only to those properties 
within city limits, or upon their annexation to the city. 

Response: Upon annexation of this property into the City of Sherwood, this property will be zoned 

Employment Industrial (EI). This criterion is met. 

IV. Conclusion 
The submittal requirements have been met and the required findings made for the applicable approval 

criteria. These findings serve as the basis for the City to approve the application and are supported by 

substantial evidence in the application materials.

LU 2020-010 Exhibit G
Ordinance 2020-008, Exh to Staff Report 
September 1, 2020, Page 45 of 127

244



  

 

  

E
x

h
ib

it A
: C

ity
 o

f Sh
erw

o
o

d
 P

etitio
n

 fo
r A

n
n

exatio
n

 an
d

 L
an

d
 U

se A
p

p
licatio

n
     

Exhibit A: 
City of Sherwood Petition for Annexation 

and Land Use Application    

 

  

 

LU 2020-010 Exhibit G
Ordinance 2020-008, Exh to Staff Report 
September 1, 2020, Page 46 of 127

245



 
CHECKLIST FOR ANNEXATION REQUEST 

TO THE CITY OF SHERWOOD 

 

 
 
Submit the following to the City of Sherwood Planning Department, 22560 SW Pine 
Street, Sherwood, OR 97140:  (503) 625-5522. 
 

 Fee- $7,500.  Applicants are required to pay the $7,500 filing fee which will be 
applied to all costs related to processing the annexation application.  Money not 
used for costs will be returned to the applicant. 

 
 An original and one copy of the enclosed packet titled Annexations to City of 

Sherwood.   
 

 Mailing labels:  Submit two (2) sets of mailing labels for property owners within 
1000 feet of the outside edge of the territory to be annexed.  Mailing labels can be 
obtained from a private title insurance company.  

 
 Additionally, you must submit a list of all property owners and registered voters in 

the area to be annexed regardless of whether they signed the annexation petition 
or not.   

 
 

Annexations to the City of Sherwood 
 

There are generally four methods of owner initiated annexation.  These methods are 
described below, and the information needed to initiate either method is covered in this 
application.  It should be noted that a vote of the citizens of the City of Sherwood are 
required in three of the four methods.   
 
Double Majority- An annexation where the majority of electors and a majority of the 
landowners in the proposed annexation area have agreed to annex into the City.  In this 
instance, a majority of the landowners, and at least 51% of the registered voters within 
the area to be annexed must support the annexation.  This method requires a vote of the 
citizens of the City of Sherwood. 
 
Triple Majority- An annexation method that requires consent from a majority of the land 
owners who own a majority of real property and a majority of the assessed value of land 
within the area that is to be annexed.  This method does not require that 51% of the 
registered voters in the area to be annexed support the application.  This method requires 
a vote of the citizens of the City of Sherwood. 
 

LU 2020-010 Exhibit G
Ordinance 2020-008, Exh to Staff Report 
September 1, 2020, Page 47 of 127

246



Super Majority- An annexation method where more than 50% of the registered voters 
within the affected territory, and 100% of the property owners within the affected territory 
support annexation.  This method requires a vote of the citizens of the City of Sherwood. 
 
SB1573 Method- When 100% of the property owners file a petition to be annexed, and 
if all criteria outlined in SB1573 are satisfied, then the requirement from the City Charter 
for a mandated City wide vote is exempted (this is required in all three other methods).  
The City Council becomes the acting authority and no vote of the public is required or 
permitted.   
 
I. Application Process for Property Owners and Registered Voters  
 
PLEASE READ ALL INSTRUCTIONS BEFORE FILING A PETITION WITH THE CITY 
 
Step 1. Petition 
 
  Please complete the attached Petition form. 
 
  Who May Sign: An elector registered to vote in the territory to be annexed; a 

property owner who is the legal owner of record or, where there is a recorded 
land contract, the purchaser thereunder.  If there is multiple ownership each 
signer is counted in proportion to the size of their ownership.  If a corporation 
owns land, the corporation is considered the individual owner and the form 
must be signed by an officer of the corporation who has the right to sign on 
behalf of the corporation.  

 
  Have the County Assessor’s Office:   

1. Certify the property owner signatures using the attached Certification of 
Property Ownership form (all methods). 

2. Certify the assessed value for the properties on the attached Certification 
of Assessed Value form (for the Triple Majority Method only). 

3. Buy two ¼ Section Maps showing the property to be annexed (all 
methods). 

4. Certify the map and legal description using the attached Certification of 
Assessed Value form (all methods). 

5. Proceed to the County Elections Department and have them certify the 
signatures of the registered voters by completing the attached 
Certification of Registered Voters form (for the Double Majority and Super 
Majority Method only). Do this even if the property is vacant.  In that case 
they certify that there are no registered voters in the affected territory.   

   
Step 2. Legal Description 
 
  The legal description noted above must be a metes and bounds legal 

description of the territory to be annexed.  This description should be inserted 
in or attached to the Petition.  In addition, one separate copy of the metes and 

LU 2020-010 Exhibit G
Ordinance 2020-008, Exh to Staff Report 
September 1, 2020, Page 48 of 127

247



bounds description should be submitted to the City along with the application.  
(A lot, block and subdivision description may be substituted for the metes and 
bounds description if the area is platted and no metes and bounds description 
is available, and if this is acceptable to the County Assessor's Office.)  If the 
legal description contains any deed or book and page references, legible 
copies of these must be submitted with the legal description. 

   
Step 3. Map 
 
  As noted above you must submit two copies of the 1/4 Section map.  This 

should be the latest County Assessor's quarter section map (or maps) which 
indicates the territory to be annexed.  Outline the area to be annexed on the 
maps with a red marker or pencil. 

 
Step 4. Notice List & Labels 
 
  You must submit two (2) sets of mailing labels for property owners within 1000 

feet of the outside edge of the territory to be annexed.  Mailing labels can be 
obtained from a private title insurance company.   Additionally, you must submit 
a list of all property owners and registered voters in the area to be annexed 
regardless of whether they signed the annexation petition or not. 

 
Step 5. Information Sheet 
 
  Complete the attached Boundary Change Data Sheet. 
 
Step 6. Work Sheet 
 
  A Worksheet is attached.  Fill out the worksheet to help verify that all 

requirements are met. 
 
Step 7. Annexation Questionnaire  
 
  Complete the Annexation Questionnaire.  
 
Step 8. Draft a Narrative  
 
  The application must include a detailed narrative of how the project complies 

with criteria for approval.  There are three levels of criteria/requirements, State, 
Regional and City.  It is the applicant’s responsibility to justify the petition.   

 
  For the State, Oregon Revised Statutes guide the process for annexations, 

ORS 222.  See:  
  https://www.oregonlegislature.gov/bills_laws/ors/ors222.html.  

LU 2020-010 Exhibit G
Ordinance 2020-008, Exh to Staff Report 
September 1, 2020, Page 49 of 127

248

https://www.oregonlegislature.gov/bills_laws/ors/ors222.html


  For the fourth method outlined above, Senate Bill 1573 was added to, and 
made a part of, ORS 222.111 to 222.180 and provides specific criteria for 
deciding city boundary changes.  See: 

  https://www.oregonlaws.org/ors/222.111.  
   
  For the regional level Metro is governing agency.  Metro has criteria for 

reviewing annexations (Metro Code 3.09).  See:  
   http://www.oregonmetro.gov/sites/default/files/309_eff_071112__final.pdf.  
 
  In addition, the City of Sherwood Comprehensive Plan goals and policies, 

specifically those in Chapter 3 and Chapter 8 are applicable and should be 
addressed in the narrative.  See: 

   https://www.sherwoodoregon.gov/planning/page/comprehensive-plan-ii.   
 
Step 9. Submit Application to City  
 
  Submit all materials to City Planning Department. 
 
 
II. City Review 

 
BELOW IS A SUMMARY OF THE STEPS WHICH WILL BE TAKEN REGARDING 
ANNEXATIONS INITIATED BY ANY OF THESE FOUR METHODS. 
 
 
Step 1. Compliance Review 
 
  Submitted materials will be checked for compliance with requirements of state 

statutes and the Metro Code Section 3.09 requirements. 
 
Step 2. Public Hearing Date Set 
 
  The proposal will be set for a hearing by the city council at the next hearing 

date for which all the requirements of the Metro Code and state statutes can 
be met.  The setting of the hearing date must occur within 45 days of the day 
the proposal is judged to be complete pursuant to Metro rules.  

 
Step 3. Public Hearing Notice 
 
  Notice of the public hearing will be sent to service providers in the area, to the 

applicant, to adjacent property owners and to appropriate neighborhood or 
community organizations.  Notice of the hearing will be posted in and around 
the territory to be annexed.  The hearing will also be advertised twice in a 
newspaper of general circulation in the area 

 
Step 4. Staff Study and Report 

LU 2020-010 Exhibit G
Ordinance 2020-008, Exh to Staff Report 
September 1, 2020, Page 50 of 127

249

https://www.oregonlaws.org/ors/222.111
http://www.oregonmetro.gov/sites/default/files/309_eff_071112__final.pdf
https://www.sherwoodoregon.gov/planning/page/comprehensive-plan-ii


 
  A staff report will be prepared.  This report will cover all applicable criteria 

specified in State ORS 222, the Metro Code, and all applicable criteria and 
goals form the City of Sherwood Comprehensive Plan. This report will be made 
available to the public 15 days prior to the hearing.   

 
Step 5. Public Hearing 
 
  The City Council holds a public hearing.  At the hearing the Council will consider 

applicable criteria.  For the SB1573 Method, this is the final decision making 
body that acts on the petition.   

 
  For the other three methods, at the conclusion of the public hearing, if Council 

supports the annexation, they will forward the issue to the voters at the next 
available election (usually no less than 60 days).   

 
  All annexations, except those that use the SB1573 Method, in Sherwood 

require a majority approval of the voters.  After the election, the Council will 
accept the certified election results and, if approved, by the voters, proclaim the 
annexation.   

  
III. Additional Information 
 
 

1. In order to officially change the boundary, Staff must send the order must be sent 
to Secretary of State, County Recorder and County Assessor, State Revenue 
Department, and City Recorder.  Other interested parties (such as the utilities) are 
notified as well. Staff will mail the notice of decision to several local, regional, and 
State agencies and departments as required by law to complete the annexation.  
  

2. Annexation to the City of Sherwood boundary allows for City Services.  Additional 
service district boundary annexations may be necessary (e.g. Clean Water 
Services, Metro Regional Boundary, etc.).   
 

3. All annexations fees to the City are deposit based, meaning the City will charge all 
required time and materials against the funds, and request additional form the 
applicant should additional funds be required.   
 

4. Metro requires a fee to process city-approved annexations for individual applicants. 
That fee will be paid by the City as a pass through, and varies depending on the 
size and type of the annexation.   The Metro fee will be taken from the applicants 
application deposit.   

 

LU 2020-010 Exhibit G
Ordinance 2020-008, Exh to Staff Report 
September 1, 2020, Page 51 of 127

250



21720 SW Oregon St., Sherwood
21720 SW Oregon St., Sherwood

LU 2020-010 Exhibit G
Ordinance 2020-008, Exh to Staff Report 
September 1, 2020, Page 52 of 127

251



LU 2020-010 Exhibit G
Ordinance 2020-008, Exh to Staff Report 
September 1, 2020, Page 53 of 127

252



7/17/20

LU 2020-010 Exhibit G
Ordinance 2020-008, Exh to Staff Report 
September 1, 2020, Page 54 of 127

253



  

 

  

Exhibit B: W
ashington County Assessor's M

ap 

Exhibit B: Washington County Assessor’s Map     

 

  

 

LU 2020-010 Exhibit G
Ordinance 2020-008, Exh to Staff Report 
September 1, 2020, Page 55 of 127

254



LU 2020-010 Exhibit G
Ordinance 2020-008, Exh to Staff Report 
September 1, 2020, Page 56 of 127

255



  

 

  

Exhibit C: Legal Description and M
ap     

Exhibit C: Legal Description and Map     

 

  

 

LU 2020-010 Exhibit G
Ordinance 2020-008, Exh to Staff Report 
September 1, 2020, Page 57 of 127

256



 

 

AKS Job #7971 

 
EXHIBIT A 
Legal Description 

City of Sherwood Annexation 
 
A tract of land located in the Southwest One-Quarter of Section 28, Township 2 South, Range 1 
West, Willamette Meridian, Washington County, Oregon, and being more particularly described 
as follows: 
 
Beginning at the southwest corner of said Section 28; thence along the south line of said 
Southwest One-Quarter of Section 28, South 88º50’36” East 484.43 feet to the southwest corner 
of Document Number 2008-025922 and the True Point of Beginning; thence along the westerly 
line of said Deed and the northerly extension thereof, North 24º57’57” West 110.53 feet to the 
centerline of SW Oregon Street and the City of Sherwood city limits line; thence along said 
centerline and said city limits line on a non-tangent curve to the left (with radial bearing North 
34º03’55” West) with a Radius 236.00 feet, Delta of 09º08’42”, Length of 37.67 feet, and a 
Chord of North 51º21’44” East 37.63 feet; thence continuing along said centerline and said city 
limits line, North 46º47’23” East 515.84 feet; thence along a curve to the left with a Radius of 
1312.33 feet, Delta of 05º31’00”, Length of 126.36 feet, and a Chord of North 44º01’53” East 
126.31 feet; thence North 41º16’23” East 562.79 feet; thence North 41º05’27” East 8.35 feet; 
thence leaving said centerline and said city limits line, South 49º05’29” East 37.00 feet to the 
northeast corner of said Deed on the southeasterly right-of-way line of SW Oregon Street (37.00 
feet from centerline); thence along the east line of said Deed, South 01º32’54” West 989.74 feet 
to the south line of the Southwest One-Quarter of Section 28; thence along said south line, North 
88º50’36” West 824.61 feet to the True Point of Beginning. 
 
The above described tract contains 10.9 acres, more or less. 
 
 
 

06/09/2020 

 

LU 2020-010 Exhibit G
Ordinance 2020-008, Exh to Staff Report 
September 1, 2020, Page 58 of 127

257



SW
 O

REG
O

N

STR
EET

SW
 TO

NQ
UIN

RO
AD

CITY ANNEXATION AREA B

LU 2020-010 Exhibit G
Ordinance 2020-008, Exh to Staff Report 
September 1, 2020, Page 59 of 127

258



 

 

AKS Job #7971 

 
EXHIBIT A 
Legal Description 

Clean Water Services Annexation 
 
A tract of land located in the Southwest One-Quarter of Section 28, Township 2 South, Range 1 
West, Willamette Meridian, Washington County, Oregon, and being more particularly described 
as follows: 
 
Beginning at the southwest corner of said Section 28; thence along the south line of said 
Southwest One-Quarter of Section 28, South 88º50’36” East 651.35 feet to the southwesterly 
right-of-way line of SW Tonquin Road (variable width right-of-way) and the Clean Water 
Services district boundary line and the True Point of Beginning; thence along said boundary line 
and said southwesterly right-of-way line on a non-tangent curve to the left (radial bearing South 
50º32’27” West) with a Radius of 1412.56 feet, Delta of 04º10’05”, Length of 102.76 feet, and a 
Chord of North 41º32’35” West 102.74 feet; thence continuing along said southwesterly right-of-
way line and said boundary line and the northwesterly extension thereof, North 43º37’37” West 
116.00 feet to the centerline of SW Oregon Street; thence along said centerline and continuing 
along said boundary line, North 46º47’23” East 466.48 feet; thence continuing along said 
centerline and said boundary line, along a curve to the left with a Radius of 1312.33 feet, Delta 
of 05º31’00”, Length of 126.36 feet, and a Chord of North 44º01’53” East 126.31 feet; thence 
North 41º16’23” East 562.79 feet; thence North 41º05’27” East 8.35 feet; thence leaving said 
centerline and continuing along said boundary line, South 49º05’29” East 37.00 feet to the 
northeast corner of Document Number 2008-025922; thence along the east line of said Deed, 
South 01º32’54” West 989.74 feet to the south line of the Southwest One-Quarter of Section 28; 
thence leaving said boundary line and along said south line, North 88º50’36” West 657.70 feet to 
the True Point of Beginning. 
 
The above described tract contains 10.5 acres, more or less. 
 
 
 

06/09/2020 

 

LU 2020-010 Exhibit G
Ordinance 2020-008, Exh to Staff Report 
September 1, 2020, Page 60 of 127

259



SW
 O

REG
O

N

STR
EET

SW
 TO

NQ
UIN

RO
AD

CWS ANNEXATION AREA B

LU 2020-010 Exhibit G
Ordinance 2020-008, Exh to Staff Report 
September 1, 2020, Page 61 of 127

260



  

 

  

Exhibit D
: Boundary Change Data Sheet     

Exhibit D: Boundary Change Data Sheet     

 

  

 

LU 2020-010 Exhibit G
Ordinance 2020-008, Exh to Staff Report 
September 1, 2020, Page 62 of 127

261



BOUNDARY CHANGE DATA SHEET 
 

  I. EXISTING CONDITIONS IN AREA TO BE ANNEXED OR WITHDRAWN_________________ 
 
 A. General location: ________________________________________________________ 
 
 B. Land Area: Acres ___________________ or Square Miles ___________________ 
 
 C. General description of territory.  (Include topographic features such as slopes, 

vegetation, drainage basins, floodplain areas, which are pertinent to this proposal.) 
 

  ______________________________________________________________________ 
 
  ______________________________________________________________________ 
 
  ______________________________________________________________________ 
 
 D. Describe Land uses on surrounding parcels.  Use tax lots as reference points. 
 
  North:  ________________________________________________________________ 
 
  ______________________________________________________________________ 
 
  East: __________________________________________________________________ 
 
  ______________________________________________________________________ 
 
  South: ________________________________________________________________ 
 
  ______________________________________________________________________ 
 
  West: _________________________________________________________________ 
 
  ______________________________________________________________________ 
 
 E. Existing Land Use: 
 
  Number of single-family units ______  Number of multi-family units ______ 
 
  Number of commercial structures ______ Number of industrial structures ______ 
 
  Public facilities or other uses _______________________________________________ 
 
  What is the current use the land proposed to be annexed: ________________________ 
 
  ______________________________________________________________________ 
 
 F. Total current year Assessed Valuation:  $_____________________________________ 
 
 G. Total existing population:  _________________________________________________ 

LU 2020-010 Exhibit G
Ordinance 2020-008, Exh to Staff Report 
September 1, 2020, Page 63 of 127

262



II. REASON FOR BOUNDARY CHANGE____________________________________________ 
 
 A. The Metro Code spells out criteria for consideration (Metro Code 3.09.050).  Considering 

these criteria, please provide the reasons the proposed boundary change should be 
made.  Please be very specific.  Use additional pages if necessary. 

 

  ______________________________________________________________________ 
 
  ______________________________________________________________________ 
 
  ______________________________________________________________________ 
 
  ______________________________________________________________________ 
 
 B. If the property to be served is entirely or substantially undeveloped, what are the plans 

for future development?  Be specific.  Describe type (residential, industrial, commercial, 
etc.), density, etc. 

 

  ______________________________________________________________________ 
 
  ______________________________________________________________________ 
 

III. LAND USE AND PLANNING____________________________________________________ 
 
 A. Is the subject territory inside or outside of the Metro Regional Urban Growth Boundary?   
 

  ______________________________________________________________________ 
 
B. What is the applicable County Planning Designation?  ___________________________ 

  Or City Planning Designation?  _____________________________________________ 

Does the proposed development comply with applicable regional, county or city 
comprehensive plans?  Please describe. 

 

  ______________________________________________________________________ 
 

  ______________________________________________________________________ 
 
 C. What is the zoning on the territory to be served? 
 

  ______________________________________________________________________ 
 
 D. Can the proposed development be accomplished under current county zoning? 
 

  _____ Yes     _____ No 
 

 If No, has a zone change been sought from the county either formally or informally? 

  _____ Yes     _____ No 

Please describe outcome of zone change request if answer to previous questions was Yes.  

__________________________________________________________________ 

LU 2020-010 Exhibit G
Ordinance 2020-008, Exh to Staff Report 
September 1, 2020, Page 64 of 127

263



 E. Please indicate all permits and/or approvals from a City, County or Regional 
Government which will be needed for the proposed development.  If already granted, 
please indicate date of approval and identifying number: 

 

 
APPROVAL 

PROJECT 
FILE NO. 

DATE OF 
APPROVAL 

FUTURE 
REQUIREMENT 

Metro UGB Amendment    
City of County Plan Amendment    
Pre-Application Hearing (City or 
County) 

   

Preliminary Subdivision Approval    
Final Plat Approval    
Land Partition    
Conditional Use    
Variance    
Sub-Surface Sewage Disposal    
Building Permit    

 
Please submit copies of proceedings relating to any of the above permits or approvals 
which are pertinent to the annexation. 

 
 F. If a city and/or county-sanctioned citizens’ group exists in the area of the annexation, 

please list its name and address of a contact person. 
 

  ______________________________________________________________________ 
 
  ______________________________________________________________________ 
 

IV. SERVICES AND UTILITIES_____________________________________________________ 
 
 A. Please indicate the following: 
 
  1. Location and size of nearest water line that can serve the subject area. 
 

   ___________________________________________________________________ 
 
   ___________________________________________________________________ 
 
  2. Location and size of nearest sewer line which can serve the subject area. 
 

   ___________________________________________________________________ 
 
   __________________________________________________________________ 
 

 3. Proximity of other facilities (storm drains, fire engine companies, etc.) which can 
serve the subject area. 

 

   ___________________________________________________________________ 
 
   ___________________________________________________________________ 
 

LU 2020-010 Exhibit G
Ordinance 2020-008, Exh to Staff Report 
September 1, 2020, Page 65 of 127

264



  4. The time at which services can be reasonably provided by the city or district. 
 

   ___________________________________________________________________ 
 
 

  5. The estimated cost of extending such facilities and/or services and what is to be the 
method of financing.  (Attach any supporting documents.) 

 

   ___________________________________________________________________ 
 

  6. Availability of desired service from any other unit of local government.  (Please 
indicate the government.) 

 

   ___________________________________________________________________ 
 
   ___________________________________________________________________ 
 

 
 B. If the territory described in the proposal is presently included within the boundaries of or 

being served extraterritorially or contractually by, any of the following types of 
governmental units please so indicate by stating the name or names of the 
governmental units involved. 

 
  City ____________________________ Rural Fire Dist.  ________________________ 

 

  County Service Dist. _______________ Sanitary District ________________________ 
 
  Hwy. Lighting Dist. ________________ Water District __________________________ 
 
  Grade School Dist. ________________ Drainage District ________________________ 
 
  High School Dist. __________________ Diking District __________________________ 
 
  Library Dist. ______________________ Park & Rec. Dist. ________________________ 
 
  Special Road Dist._________________ Other District Supplying 
                Water Service ________________________ 
 
 

C. If any of the above units are presently servicing the territory (for instance, are residents 
in the territory hooked up to a public sewer or water system), please so describe. 

 

  ______________________________________________________________________ 
 
  ______________________________________________________________________ 
 
  ______________________________________________________________________ 
 
  ______________________________________________________________________ 

 
 
 
 

LU 2020-010 Exhibit G
Ordinance 2020-008, Exh to Staff Report 
September 1, 2020, Page 66 of 127

265



V. APPLICANT INFORMATION____________________________________________________ 
 
APPLICANT’S NAME __________________________________________________________ 
 
MAILING ADDRESS __________________________________________________________ 
 
      __________________________________________________________ 
 
      __________________________________________________________ 
 
TELEPHONE NUMBER __________________________________________________ (Work) 
 
       __________________________________________________ (Res.) 
 
REPRESENTING _____________________________________________________________ 
 
DATE _______________________________________________________________________ 
 
 

  

LU 2020-010 Exhibit G
Ordinance 2020-008, Exh to Staff Report 
September 1, 2020, Page 67 of 127

266

southerlandg
Typewritten Text
Phone: 503-563-6151Fax: 503-563-615212965 SW Herman Road, Suite 100Tualatin, OR 97062

southerlandg
Typewritten Text
Applicant's Consultant



  

 

  

Exhibit E: Annexation Questionnaire     

Exhibit E: Annexation Questionnaire     

 

  

 

LU 2020-010 Exhibit G
Ordinance 2020-008, Exh to Staff Report 
September 1, 2020, Page 68 of 127

267



ANNEXATION QUESTIONNAIRE 
 

It is the applicant’s responsibility to obtain the information requested on the attached annexation 
questionnaire. The information is used by the Center for Population Research and Census 
(CPRC) at Portland State University to update the estimate of the population for the City of 
Sherwood after annexations.  
 
The information collected is confidential and is used for no other purpose. Please obtain the 
information prior to submitting the annexation petition. It is your responsibility to update this 
information if changes are made between the original application filing and the effective date of 
the application.  
 
Fill out one sheet per property that is being annexed.  

 
Address:__________________________________________________________________ 
 
Housing type:  

Single-family home  

Multi-family residence  

Manufactured home  

 
Occupancy:  

Owner occupied  

Renter occupied  

Vacant  

Seasonal  

 
Resident Information: 

Last Name  
First Name  Sex  Age  

 

LAST NAME FIRST NAME SEX AGE 

 
 

   

 
 

   

 
 

   

 
 

   

 
 

   

 
 

   

 
  

LU 2020-010 Exhibit G
Ordinance 2020-008, Exh to Staff Report 
September 1, 2020, Page 69 of 127

268

southerlandg
Typewritten Text
- Currently used as office for business onsite.



  

 

  

Exhibit F: W
orksheet for Annexation to the City of Sherw

ood     

Exhibit F: 
Worksheet for Annexation to the City of Sherwood     

 

  

 

LU 2020-010 Exhibit G
Ordinance 2020-008, Exh to Staff Report 
September 1, 2020, Page 70 of 127

269



WORKSHEET FOR ANNEXATION TO THE CITY OF SHERWOOD  
Please list all properties/registered voters included in the proposal. (If needed, use separate sheets for additional listings.) 
 

**Property Information** (ALL METHODS) 

 PROPERTY 
DESIGNATION  

(Tax Lot Numbers) 
NAME OF PROPERTY OWNER 

TOTAL 
ACRES 

ASSESSED VALUE OF 
THE PROPERTY 

SIGNED 
PETITION 
YES NO 

       

       

       

       

       

       

Totals:       

 
**Registered Voters** (DOUBLE MAJORITY METHOD ONLY) 

 
ADDRESS OF REGISTERED VOTER NAME OF REGISTERED VOTER 

SIGNED 
PETITION 
YES NO 

     

     

     

     

     

     

Totals:     

**Summary** 
 TOTAL NUMBER OF REGISTERED VOTERS IN THE PROPOSAL: _____ 

NUMBER OF REGISTERED VOTERS WHO SIGNED PETITION:_____  

PERCENTAGE OF REGISTERED VOTERS WHO SIGNED PETITION:_____  

TOTAL ACREAGE IN THE PROPOSAL:_____  

ACREAGE SIGNED FOR:_____  

 

PERCENTAGE OF ACREAGE SIGNED FOR:_____  

TOTAL NUMBER OF SINGLE-FAMILY UNITS:_____  

TOTAL NUMBER OF MULTI-FAMILY UNITS:_____  

TOTAL NUMBER OF COMMERCIAL STRUCTURES:_____  

TOTAL NUMBER OF INDUSTRIAL STRUCTURES:_____ 

 

LU 2020-010 Exhibit G
Ordinance 2020-008, Exh to Staff Report 
September 1, 2020, Page 71 of 127

270

southerlandg
Accepted



  

 

  

Exhibit G: Certification of Property Ow
nership     Exhibit G: Certification of Property Ownership     

 

  

 

LU 2020-010 Exhibit G
Ordinance 2020-008, Exh to Staff Report 
September 1, 2020, Page 72 of 127

271



LU 2020-010 Exhibit G
Ordinance 2020-008, Exh to Staff Report 
September 1, 2020, Page 73 of 127

272



LU 2020-010 Exhibit G
Ordinance 2020-008, Exh to Staff Report 
September 1, 2020, Page 74 of 127

273



  

 

  

Exhibit H
: Certification of Legal Description and M

ap     

Exhibit H: Certification of Legal Description and Map   

 

  

 

LU 2020-010 Exhibit G
Ordinance 2020-008, Exh to Staff Report 
September 1, 2020, Page 75 of 127

274



LU 2020-010 Exhibit G
Ordinance 2020-008, Exh to Staff Report 
September 1, 2020, Page 76 of 127

275



LU 2020-010 Exhibit G
Ordinance 2020-008, Exh to Staff Report 
September 1, 2020, Page 77 of 127

276



LU 2020-010 Exhibit G
Ordinance 2020-008, Exh to Staff Report 
September 1, 2020, Page 78 of 127

277



LU 2020-010 Exhibit G
Ordinance 2020-008, Exh to Staff Report 
September 1, 2020, Page 79 of 127

278



LU 2020-010 Exhibit G
Ordinance 2020-008, Exh to Staff Report 
September 1, 2020, Page 80 of 127

279



LU 2020-010 Exhibit G
Ordinance 2020-008, Exh to Staff Report 
September 1, 2020, Page 81 of 127

280



LU 2020-010 Exhibit G
Ordinance 2020-008, Exh to Staff Report 
September 1, 2020, Page 82 of 127

281



  

 

  

Exhibit I: Ow
nership Inform

ation     

Exhibit I: Ownership Information     

 

  

 

LU 2020-010 Exhibit G
Ordinance 2020-008, Exh to Staff Report 
September 1, 2020, Page 83 of 127

282



 

Public Record Report for New Subdivision or Partition 
Page 1 of 6 (Ver. 20080422) 

  

 

First American Title Insurance Company 
 

121 SW Morrison Street, Suite 300  
Portland, OR 97204 
Phn - (503)222-3651    (800)929-3651 

Fax - (877)242-3513 

  

PUBLIC RECORD REPORT 

FOR NEW SUBDIVISION OR LAND PARTITION 

THIS REPORT IS ISSUED BY THE ABOVE-NAMED COMPANY ("THE COMPANY") FOR THE EXCLUSIVE USE 
OF: 

AKS Engineering & Forestry LLC  
12965 SW Herman RD STE 100  
Tualatin, OR 97062  
Phone: (503)563-6151  
Fax: (503)563-6152 
  

Date Prepared : March 02, 2020 
Effective Date : 8:00 A.M on February 21, 2020   

Order No. : 7019-3402741  

Subdivision :   
  

The information contained in this report is furnished by First American Title Insurance Company (the 
"Company") as an information service based on the records and indices maintained by the Company for 
the county identified below. This report is not title insurance, is not a preliminary title report for title 
insurance, and is not a commitment for title insurance. No examination has been made of the Company's 
records, other than as specifically set forth in this report. Liability for any loss arising from errors and/or 
omissions is limited to the lesser of the fee paid or the actual loss to the Customer, and the Company will 

have no greater liability by reason of this report. This report is subject to the Definitions, Conditions and 
Stipulations contained in it. 

REPORT 

A.  The Land referred to in this report is located in the County of Washington, State of Oregon, and is 
described as follows: 

 
As fully set forth on Exhibit "A" attached hereto and by this reference made a part hereof. 

B.   As of the Effective Date, the tax account and map references pertinent to the Land are as 
follows: 

  
As fully set forth on Exhibit "A" attached hereto and by this reference made a part hereof. 

C.   As of the Effective Date and according to the Public Records, we find title to the land apparently 
vested in: 

  
As fully set forth on Exhibit "B" attached hereto and by this reference made a part hereof 

D.   As of the Effective Date and according to the Public Records, the Land is subject to the following 
liens and encumbrances, which are not necessarily shown in the order of priority: 

  
As fully set forth on Exhibit "C" attached hereto and by this reference made a part hereof. 

  

LU 2020-010 Exhibit G
Ordinance 2020-008, Exh to Staff Report 
September 1, 2020, Page 84 of 127

283



First American Title Insurance Company 
Public Record Report for New Subdivision or Land Partition 
Order No. 7019-3402741 

 

Public Record Report for New Subdivision or Partition 
Page 2 of 6 (Ver. 20080422) 

EXHIBIT "A" 
(Land Description Map Tax and Account) 

  
THE SOUTHWEST ONE-QUARTER OF THE SOUTHWEST ONE-QUARTER OF SECTION 28, TOWNSHIP 2 
SOUTH, RANGE 1 WEST OF THE WILLAMETTE MERIDIAN, IN THE COUNTY OF WASHINGTON AND 
STATE OF OREGON. 
 
EXCEPTING THEREFROM THAT TRACT CONVEYED TO JOHN CAMPBELL BY DEED RECORDED IN BOOK 
56, PAGE 232, WASHINGTON COUNTY, OREGON, WHICH TRACT IS DESCRIBED AS FOLLOWS: 
 
PART OF THE SOUTHWEST ONE-QUARTER OF SECTION 28, TOWNSHIP 2 SOUTH, RANGE 1 WEST OF 
THE WILLAMETTE MERIDIAN, IN THE COUNTY OF WASHINGTON AND STATE OF OREGON. BEGINNING 
AT THE SOUTHWEST CORNER OF SAID SECTION 28, AND THENCE NORTH ON THE WEST SECTION 
LINE 16.41 CHAINS TO THE CENTER OF THE DITCH; THENCE UP SAID DITCH SOUTH 21° 1/2" EAST 
7.92 CHAINS AND SOUTH 26° EAST 10.01 CHAINS TO THE SOUTH LINE OF SAID SECTION 28; THENCE 
WEST ON SAID LINE 7.32 CHAINS TO THE POINT OF BEGINNING. 
 
ALSO EXCEPTING THEREFROM PART OF THE SOUTHWEST ONE-QUARTER OF THE SOUTHWEST ONE-
QUARTER OF SECTION 28, TOWNSHIP 2 SOUTH, RANGE 1 WEST OF THE WILLAMETTE MERIDIAN, IN 
THE COUNTY OF WASHINGTON AND STATE OF OREGON, DESCRIBED AS FOLLOWS: 
 
BEGINNING AT THE NORTHWEST CORNER OF THE SOUTHWEST ONE-QUARTER OF THE SOUTHWEST 
ONE-QUARTER OF SAID SECTION 28; THENCE SOUTH 0° 08' 14" EAST ALONG THE WEST LINE OF SAID 
SECTION 28, 241.02 FEET TO THE MOST NORTHERLY POINT OF THAT PARCEL DEEDED BY P.P. BAILEY 
AND WIFE TO JOHN CAMPBELL, RECORDED BY DEED DATED MARCH 9, 1901, RECORDED MARCH 26, 
1901, IN BOOK 56, PAGE 232, OF WASHINGTON COUNTY DEED RECORDS, SAID POINT ALSO BEING IN 
THE CENTER OF A DITCH DESCRIBED IN SAID BAILEY DEED; THENCE SOUTH 21° 43' 30" EAST 
FOLLOWING SAID DITCH CENTERLINE 523.00 FEET (522.72 DEED); THENCE CONTINUING ALONG SAID 
DITCH CENTERLINE SOUTH 26° 13' 30" EAST 530.95 FEET TO THE NORTHERLY RIGHT OF WAY LINE 
OF COUNTY ROAD NO. 492; THENCE NORTH 45° 19' EAST ALONG SAID COUNTY ROAD RIGHT OF WAY 
LINE 664.92 FEET; THENCE CONTINUING ALONG SAID COUNTY ROAD RIGHT OF WAY LINE NORTH 38° 
09' 44" EAST 723.79 FEET TO THE EAST LINE OF THE SOUTHWEST ONE-QUARTER OF THE 
SOUTHWEST ONE-QUARTER OF SAID SECTION 28; THENCE NORTH 0° 08' 44" WEST ALONG SAID EAST 
LINE OF THE SOUTHWEST ONE-QUARTER OF THE SOUTHWEST ONE-QUARTER OF SECTION 28, 218.67 
FEET TO A STONE AND THE NORTHEAST CORNER THEREOF; THENCE SOUTH 89° 52' 44" WEST ALONG 
THE NORTH LINE OF THE SOUTHWEST ONE-QUARTER OF THE SOUTHWEST ONE-QUARTER OF SAID 
SECTION 28, 1309.43 FEET TO THE POINT OF BEGINNING. 
 
AND FURTHER EXCEPTING A PART OF THE SOUTHWEST ONE-QUARTER OF SECTION 28, TOWNSHIP 2 
SOUTH, RANGE 1 WEST OF THE WILLAMETTE MERIDIAN, IN THE COUNTY OF WASHINGTON AND 
STATE OF OREGON, DESCRIBED AS FOLLOWS: 
 
BEGINNING AT A STONE AT THE NORTHWEST CORNER OF THE SOUTHEAST ONE-QUARTER OF THE 
SOUTHWEST ONE-QUARTER OF SAID SECTION 28; THENCE SOUTH 0° 08' 44" EAST ALONG THE WEST 
LINE OF THE SOUTHEAST ONE-QUARTER OF THE SOUTHWEST ONE-QUARTER OF SAID SECTION 28, 
218.67 FEET TO THE NORTHERLY RIGHT OF WAY LINE OF COUNTY ROAD NO. 492; THENCE NORTH 
38° 09' 44" EAST ALONG SAID COUNTY ROAD RIGHT OF WAY 281.47 FEET TO THE NORTH LINE OF 
THE SOUTHEAST ONE-QUARTER OF THE SOUTHWEST ONE-QUARTER OF SAID SECTION 28; THENCE 
SOUTH 89° 08' 16" WEST ALONG THE NORTH LINE OF THE SOUTHEAST ONE-QUARTER OF SAID 
SECTION 28, 174.49 FEET TO THE POINT OF BEGINNING. 
 
NOTE: This Legal Description was created prior to January 01, 2008. 
  

Map No.: 2S128C-00500  
Tax Account No.: R1492192 and R547466  

  

LU 2020-010 Exhibit G
Ordinance 2020-008, Exh to Staff Report 
September 1, 2020, Page 85 of 127

284



First American Title Insurance Company 
Public Record Report for New Subdivision or Land Partition 
Order No. 7019-3402741 

 

Public Record Report for New Subdivision or Partition 
Page 3 of 6 (Ver. 20080422) 

EXHIBIT "B" 
(Vesting) 

  
Bruce D. Polley and Karen M. Polley, as tenants by the entirety  

  

LU 2020-010 Exhibit G
Ordinance 2020-008, Exh to Staff Report 
September 1, 2020, Page 86 of 127

285



First American Title Insurance Company 
Public Record Report for New Subdivision or Land Partition 
Order No. 7019-3402741 

 

Public Record Report for New Subdivision or Partition 
Page 4 of 6 (Ver. 20080422) 

EXHIBIT "C" 
(Liens and Encumbrances) 

  

1. The assessment roll and the tax roll disclose that the within described premises were specially zoned 
or classified for Farm use.  If the land has become or becomes disqualified for such use under the 
statute, an additional tax or penalty may be imposed. 

2. A Potential Additional Tax liability is due in the amount of $2,896.94 for the tax year 2019-2020 
(Affects APN #R1492192) 

3. A Potential Additional Tax liability is due in the amount of $367.19 for the tax year 2019-2020 
(Affects APN #R547466) 

4. Statutory powers and assessments of Clean Water Services. 

5. The rights of the public in and to that portion of the premises herein described lying within the limits 
of streets, roads and highways. 

6. Easement, including terms and provisions contained therein: 
Recording Information: January 14, 1954 as Book 352, Page 329  
In Favor of: Portland General Electric Company, a corporation of Oregon  
For: Electrical lines, telephone lines and appurtenances  
Affects: Exact location not disclosed  

  
  

7. Easement, including terms and provisions contained therein: 
Recording Information: April 07, 1959 as Book 416, Page 167  
In Favor of: Portland General Electric Company, an Oregon corporation  
For: Electric power transmission lines  
Affects: Exact location not disclosed  

  
  

8. Unrecorded leases or periodic tenancies, if any. 

NOTE:  Taxes for the year 2019-2020 PAID IN FULL  
  
Tax Amount: $3,575.87 
Map No.: 2S128C-00500 
Property ID: R1492192 
Tax Code No.: 088.13 

  

NOTE:  Taxes for the year 2019-2020 PAID IN FULL  
  
Tax Amount: $100.74 
Map No.: 2S128C-00500 
Property ID: R547466 
Tax Code No.: 088.09 
  

NOTE:  This Public Record Report does not include a search for Financing Statements filed in the Office of 
the Secretary of State, or in a county other than the county wherein the premises are situated, and no 
liability is assumed if a Financing Statement is filed in the Office of the County Clerk covering Crops on 
the premises wherein the lands are described other than by metes and bounds or under the rectangular 
survey system or by recorded lot and block. 

LU 2020-010 Exhibit G
Ordinance 2020-008, Exh to Staff Report 
September 1, 2020, Page 87 of 127

286



First American Title Insurance Company 
Public Record Report for New Subdivision or Land Partition 
Order No. 7019-3402741 

 

Public Record Report for New Subdivision or Partition 
Page 5 of 6 (Ver. 20080422) 

  
  

LU 2020-010 Exhibit G
Ordinance 2020-008, Exh to Staff Report 
September 1, 2020, Page 88 of 127

287



First American Title Insurance Company 
Public Record Report for New Subdivision or Land Partition 
Order No. 7019-3402741 

 

Public Record Report for New Subdivision or Partition 
Page 6 of 6 (Ver. 20080422) 

DEFINITIONS, CONDITIONS AND STIPULATIONS 

 
1. Definitions.  The following terms have the stated meaning when used in this report: 

(a) "Customer": The person or persons named or shown as the addressee of this report. 
(b) "Effective Date": The effective date stated in this report. 
(c) "Land": The land specifically described in this report and improvements affixed thereto which by law constitute real 

property. 

(d) "Public Records": Those records which by the laws of the state of Oregon impart constructive notice of matters relating to 
the Land. 

  

2. Liability of the Company. 
(a) THIS REPORT IS NOT AN INSURED PRODUCT OR SERVICE OR A REPRESENTATION OF THE CONDITION OF TITLE TO 

REAL PROPERTY.  IT IS NOT AN ABSTRACT, LEGAL OPINION, OPINION OF TITLE, TITLE INSURANCE COMMITMENT OR 

PRELIMINARY REPORT, OR ANY FORM OF TITLE INSURANCE OR GUARANTY.  THIS REPORT IS ISSUED EXCLUSIVELY 
FOR THE BENEFIT OF THE APPLICANT THEREFOR, AND MAY NOT BE USED OR RELIED UPON BY ANY OTHER 
PERSON.  THIS REPORT MAY NOT BE REPRODUCED IN ANY MANNER WITHOUT FIRST AMERICAN'S PRIOR WRITTEN 
CONSENT.  FIRST AMERICAN DOES NOT REPRESENT OR WARRANT THAT THE INFORMATION HEREIN IS COMPLETE OR 

FREE FROM ERROR, AND THE INFORMATION HEREIN IS PROVIDED WITHOUT ANY WARRANTIES OF ANY KIND, AS-IS, 
AND WITH ALL FAULTS.  AS A MATERIAL PART OF THE CONSIDERATION GIVEN IN EXCHANGE FOR THE ISSUANCE OF 
THIS REPORT, RECIPIENT AGREES THAT FIRST AMERICAN'S SOLE LIABILITY FOR ANY LOSS OR DAMAGE CAUSED BY 
AN ERROR OR OMISSION DUE TO INACCURATE INFORMATION OR NEGLIGENCE IN PREPARING THIS REPORT SHALL BE 

LIMITED TO THE FEE CHARGED FOR THE REPORT.  RECIPIENT ACCEPTS THIS REPORT WITH THIS LIMITATION AND 
AGREES THAT FIRST AMERICAN WOULD NOT HAVE ISSUED THIS REPORT BUT FOR THE LIMITATION OF LIABILITY 
DESCRIBED ABOVE.  FIRST AMERICAN MAKES NO REPRESENTATION OR WARRANTY AS TO THE LEGALITY OR 

PROPRIETY OF RECIPIENT'S USE OF THE INFORMATION HEREIN. 
(b) No costs (including, without limitation attorney fees and other expenses) of defense, or prosecution of any action, is 

afforded to the Customer. 
(c) In any event, the Company assumes no liability for loss or damage by reason of the following: 

(1) Taxes or assessments which are not shown as existing liens by the records of any taxing authority that levies taxes 
or assessments on real property or by the Public Records. 

(2) Any facts, rights, interests or claims which are not shown by the Public Records but which could be ascertained by 
an inspection of the land or by making inquiry of persons in possession thereof. 

(3) Easements, liens or encumbrances, or claims thereof, which are not shown by the Public Records. 
(4) Discrepancies, encroachments, shortage in area, conflicts in boundary lines or any other facts which a survey would 

disclose. 
(5) (i) Unpatented mining claims; (ii) reservations or exceptions in patents or in Acts authorizing the issuance thereof, 

(iii) water rights or claims or title to water. 
(6) Any right, title, interest, estate or easement in land beyond the lines of the area specifically described or referred to 

in this report, or in abutting streets, roads, avenues, alleys, lanes, ways or waterways. 
(7) Any law, ordinance or governmental regulation (including but not limited to building and zoning laws, ordinances or 

regulations) restricting, regulating, prohibiting or relating to (i) the occupancy, use or enjoyment on the land; (ii) the 
character, dimensions or location of any improvement now or hereafter erected on the land; (iii) a separation in 
ownership or a change in the dimensions or area of the land or any parcel of which the land is or was a part; or (iv) 
environmental protection, or the effect of any violation of these laws, ordinances or governmental regulations, 

except to the extent that a notice of the enforcement thereof or a notice of a defect, lien or encumbrance resulting 
from a violation or alleged violation affecting the land has been recorded in the Public Records at the effective date 
hereof. 

(8) Any governmental police power not excluded by 2(d)(7) above, except to the extent that notice of the exercise 

thereof or a notice of a defect, lien or encumbrance resulting from a violation or alleged violation affecting the land 
has been recorded in the Public Records at the effective date hereof. 

(9) Defects, liens, encumbrances, adverse claims or other matters created, suffered, assumed, agreed to or actually 
known by the Customer. 

3. Charge.  The charge for this report does not include supplemental reports, updates or other additional services of the 
Company. 

LU 2020-010 Exhibit G
Ordinance 2020-008, Exh to Staff Report 
September 1, 2020, Page 89 of 127

288



 

Printed On: 03/02/2020, 2:49 PM Requester:  DL Page: 1 

   

   

 

 
 

First American Title Insurance Company 
121 SW Morrison Street, Suite 300 

Portland, OR 97204 

Phone:  (503)222-3651 / Fax:  (877)242-3513 
 

PR:  NWEST Ofc:  7019 (1011) 

  

Final Invoice 

  
 

To: AKS Engineering & Forestry LLC 

12965 SW Herman RD STE 100 

Tualatin, OR 97062 

 

Invoice No.: 1011 - 7019153171 

 Date: 03/02/2020 

   
 Our File No.: 7019-3402741 

 Title Officer: Dona Lane 

 Escrow Officer:  

   
  Customer ID: 994563 

     
 Attention: Michael Kalina Liability Amounts  

 Your Ref.:    

RE: Property:  

21720 SW Oregon Street, Sherwood, OR 97140 
  
  

  
   
 Buyers:  

 Sellers: Bruce Polley, Karen Polley 

 

Description of Charge Invoice Amount 

Guarantee: Subdivision/Plat Certificate $275.00 
 

INVOICE TOTAL $275.00 

  
Comments:  

 

Thank you for your business! 

 

To assure proper credit, please send a copy of this Invoice and Payment to: 

Attention: Accounts Receivable Department 
 

PO Box 31001-2281 

Pasadena, CA 91110-2281 

LU 2020-010 Exhibit G
Ordinance 2020-008, Exh to Staff Report 
September 1, 2020, Page 90 of 127

289



LU 2020-010 Exhibit G
Ordinance 2020-008, Exh to Staff Report 
September 1, 2020, Page 91 of 127

290



LU 2020-010 Exhibit G
Ordinance 2020-008, Exh to Staff Report 
September 1, 2020, Page 92 of 127

291



LU 2020-010 Exhibit G
Ordinance 2020-008, Exh to Staff Report 
September 1, 2020, Page 93 of 127

292



LU 2020-010 Exhibit G
Ordinance 2020-008, Exh to Staff Report 
September 1, 2020, Page 94 of 127

293



LU 2020-010 Exhibit G
Ordinance 2020-008, Exh to Staff Report 
September 1, 2020, Page 95 of 127

294



LU 2020-010 Exhibit G
Ordinance 2020-008, Exh to Staff Report 
September 1, 2020, Page 96 of 127

295



LU 2020-010 Exhibit G
Ordinance 2020-008, Exh to Staff Report 
September 1, 2020, Page 97 of 127

296



LU 2020-010 Exhibit G
Ordinance 2020-008, Exh to Staff Report 
September 1, 2020, Page 98 of 127

297



LU 2020-010 Exhibit G
Ordinance 2020-008, Exh to Staff Report 
September 1, 2020, Page 99 of 127

298



  

 

  

Exhibit J: Additional Referenced Docum
ents     

Exhibit J: Additional Referenced Documents     

 

  

 

LU 2020-010 Exhibit G
Ordinance 2020-008, Exh to Staff Report 
September 1, 2020, Page 100 of 127

299



LU 2020-010 Exhibit G
Ordinance 2020-008, Exh to Staff Report 
September 1, 2020, Page 101 of 127

300



LU 2020-010 Exhibit G
Ordinance 2020-008, Exh to Staff Report 
September 1, 2020, Page 102 of 127

301



LU 2020-010 Exhibit G
Ordinance 2020-008, Exh to Staff Report 
September 1, 2020, Page 103 of 127

302



LU 2020-010 Exhibit G
Ordinance 2020-008, Exh to Staff Report 
September 1, 2020, Page 104 of 127

303



LU 2020-010 Exhibit G
Ordinance 2020-008, Exh to Staff Report 
September 1, 2020, Page 105 of 127

304



LU 2020-010 Exhibit G
Ordinance 2020-008, Exh to Staff Report 
September 1, 2020, Page 106 of 127

305



LU 2020-010 Exhibit G
Ordinance 2020-008, Exh to Staff Report 
September 1, 2020, Page 107 of 127

306



LU 2020-010 Exhibit G
Ordinance 2020-008, Exh to Staff Report 
September 1, 2020, Page 108 of 127

307



LU 2020-010 Exhibit G
Ordinance 2020-008, Exh to Staff Report 
September 1, 2020, Page 109 of 127

308



LU 2020-010 Exhibit G
Ordinance 2020-008, Exh to Staff Report 
September 1, 2020, Page 110 of 127

309



LU 2020-010 Exhibit G
Ordinance 2020-008, Exh to Staff Report 
September 1, 2020, Page 111 of 127

310



  

 

  

Exhibit K
: W

ashington County-Sherw
ood Urban Planning Agreem

ent     

Exhibit K: Washington County-Sherwood Urban 
Planning Agreement      

 

  

 

LU 2020-010 Exhibit G
Ordinance 2020-008, Exh to Staff Report 
September 1, 2020, Page 112 of 127

311



3CL t7- R6o
ngton County - City of Sherrvood
Ulban Planning Area Agreentent' 

Page I of l0

Washi

Washington County - Sherwood
Urban Planning Area Agreement

THIS AGREEMENT is entered into by WASHINGTON COUNTY, a political subdivision of
the State of Oregon, hereinafter referred to as the "COUNTY", and the CITY OF SHERWOOD,

an incorporated municipality of the State of Oregon, hereinafter referred to as the "CITY".

WHEREAS, ORS 190.010 provides that units of local government may enter into agreements for
the performance of any oi all functions and activities that a party to the agreement, its officers or

agents, have authority to perform; and

WHEREAS, Statewide Planning Goal #2 (Land Use Planning) requires that city, county, state

and federal agency and special district plans and actions shall be consistent with the

comprehensive plans of the cities and counties and regional plans adopted under ORS Chapter

197; and

WHEREAS, the Oregon State Land Conservation and Development Commission (LCDC)

requires each jurisdiction requesting acknowledgment of compliance to submit an agreement

setting forth the means by which comprehensive planning coordination within the Regional

Urban Growth Boundary (UGB) will be implemented; and

WHEREAS, following the Urbanization Forum process, the COUNTY through Resolution &
Order 09-63, and the CITY through Resolution 2009-046, agreed that all future additions to the

UGB during or after 2010 must be governed and urbanized by the CITY in the COIINTY and

also agreed to urge Metro to expand the UGB only to such areas as are contiguous to

incorporated areas of Washington County;and

WHEREAS, the State legislature, with House Bill4078-A in2014 and House Bill2047 in 2015,

validated the acknowledged UGB and Urban and Rural Reserves established through the Metro

Regional process involving both the COUNTY and the CITY; and

WHEREAS, the COUNTY and CITY desire to amend the Urban Planning Area Agreement
(UPAA) to reflect the changes to the UGB, the CITY's Urban Planning Area, and the need for
urban planning ofthe new urban reserve lands; and

WHEREAS, the COUNTY and the CITY, to ensure coordinated and consistent comprehensive

plans, consider it mutually advantageous to establish:

An Urban Planning Area Agreement incorporating both a site-specific Urban

Planning Area within the UGB within which both the COUNTY and the CITY
maintain an interest in comprehensive planning and an Urban Reserve Planning Area

outside the UGB where both the COUNTY and the CITY maintain an interest in

concept planning; and

Agreement amended by
Washington County Land Use A-Engrossed Ordinance No. 821

Adopted September 26, 2017

LU 2020-010 Exhibit G
Ordinance 2020-008, Exh to Staff Report 
September 1, 2020, Page 113 of 127

312



Washington County - City olShenvood
r Jrban prannin g 

^*iåi ;ïïii
A process for coordinating comprehensive planning and development in the Ur-Uan

Planning Area and concept planning in the Urban Reserve Planning Area; and

Policies regarding comprehensive planning and development in the Urban Planning

Area and concept planning in the Urban Reserve Planning Area; and

4. A process to amend the Urban Planning Area Agreement.

NOW THEREFORE, THE COUNTY AND THE CITY AGREE AS FOLLOWS

I. Location of the Urban Planning Area and Urban Reserve Planning Area

The Urban Planning Area and Urban Reserve Planning Area, mutually defìned by the

COUNTY and the CITY, include the areas designated on the Washinglon County -

Sherwood UPAA Map "Exhibit A" to this Agreement.

II. Coordination of Comprehensive Planning and Development

A. Amendments to or Adoption of a Comprehensive Plan or Implementing Regulation

Definitions
Comprehensive Plan means a generalized, coordinated land use map and policy
statement of the governing body of a local government that interrelates all
functional and natural systems and activities relating to the use of lands,

including, but not limited to, sewer and water systems, transportation systems,

educational facilities, recreational facilities, and natural resources and air and

water quality management programs. "Comprehensive Plan" amendments do

not include small tract comprehensive plan map changes.

Implementing Regulation means any local government zoning ordinance, land

division ordinance adopted under ORS 92.044 or 92.046 or similar general

ordinance establishing standards for implementing a comprehensive plan.

"lmplementing regulation" does not include small tract zoning map

amendments, conditional use permits, individual subdivision, partitioning or

planned unit development approvals or denials, annexations, variances, building
permits and similar administrative-type decisions.

The COUNTY shall provide the CITY with the appropriate opportunity to
participate, review and comment on proposed amendments to or adoption of the

COUNTY comprehensive plan or implementing regulations. The CITY shall
provide the COUNTY with the appropriate opportunity to participate, review
and comment on proposed amendments to or adoption of the CITY
comprehensive plan or irnplementing regulations. The following procedures

shall be followed by the COUNTY and the CITY to notify and involve one

another in the process to amend or adopt a comprehensive plan or implernenting
regulation.

Agreement amended by
Washington County Land Use A-Englossed Ordinance No. 821

Adopted September 26 - 20 l7

2

3

2

LU 2020-010 Exhibit G
Ordinance 2020-008, Exh to Staff Report 
September 1, 2020, Page 114 of 127

313



a.

*^n"',3',i;"t;ìii,"rtii:li:'J,ï.""i

Page 3 of l0

The CITY or the COUNTY, whichever has jurisdiction over the proposal,

hereinafter the originating agency, shall notify the other agency,
hereinafter the responding agency, by first class mail or as an attachment
to electronic mail of the proposed action at the time such planning efforts
are initiated, but in no case less than thirty-five (35) days prior to the first
hearing on adoption. For COUNTY or CITY comprehensive plan updates

with the potential to affect the responding agency's land use or
transportation system, the originating agency shall provide the responding
agency with the opportunity to participate in the originating agency's
planning process prior to the notif,rcation period, such as serving on the

originating agency's advisory committee.

For COUNTY or CITY comprehensive plan updates with the potential to
affect the responding agency's land use or transportation system, the
originating agency shall transmit the draft amendments to the responding
agency for its review and comment before finalizing. The responding
agency shall have ten (10) days after receipt of a draft to submit comments
orally or in writing. Lack of response shall be considered "no objection" to
the draft.

The originating agency shall respond to the comments made by the
responding agency either by a) revising the final recommendations, or
b) by letter to the responding agency explaining why the comments cannot
be addressed in the final draft-

Comments from the responding agency shall be given consideration as a

part ofthe public record on the proposed action. Ifafter such
consideration, the originating agency acts contrary to the position of the

responding agency, the responding agency may seek appeal ofthe action
through the appropriate appeals body and procedures.

Upon final adoption of the proposed action by the originating agency, it
shall transmit the adopting ordinance to the responding agency as soon as

publicly available, or if not adopted by ordinance, whatever other written
documentation is available to properly inform the responding agency of
the final actions taken.

b.

c.

d

e.

B. Development Actions Requiring Individual Notice to Property Owners

l. Definition

Development Action Requiring Notice means an action by a local government

which requires notifying by mail the owners of property which could potentially
be affected (usually specified as a distance measured in feet) by a proposed

development action which directly affects and is applied to a specific parcel or
parcels. Such development actions may include, but not be limited to, small

Agreement amended by
Washington County Land Use A-Engrossed OldinanceNo. 821

Adopted September' 26, 2017

LU 2020-010 Exhibit G
Ordinance 2020-008, Exh to Staff Report 
September 1, 2020, Page 115 of 127

314



* 
" 

n' 
"$:o:,f ;ii:i, ;r'i'å : liä;i:i

Page 4 of l0

tract zoning or comprehensive plan map amendments, conditional or special use

permits, land divisions, planned unit developments, variances, and other similar
actions requiring a quasi-judicial hearings process.

The COUNTY will provide the CITY with the opporlunity to review and

comment on proposed development actions requiring notice within the

designated Urban Planning Area and Urban Reserve Planning Area. The CITY
will provide the COUNTY with the opportunity to review and comment on

proposed development actions requiring notice within the CITY limits that may
have an effect on unincorporated portions of designated Urban Planning Area or
the COUNTY's transportation network.

The following procedures shall be followed by the COUNTY and the CITY to
notify one another of proposed development actions:

a. The CITY or the COUNTY, whichever has jurisdiction over the proposal,

hereinafter the originating agency, shall send by fìrst class mail or as an

attachment to electronic mail a copy of the public hearing notice or
comment period notice with no public hearing which identifies the

proposed development action to the other agency, hereinafter the
responding agency, at the earliest opportunity, but no less than ten (10)

days prior to the date of the scheduled public hearing or end of the
comment period. The failure of the responding agency to receive a notice
shall not invalidate an action if a good faith attempt was made by the
originating agency to notify the responding agency.

b. The agency receiving the notice may respond at its discretion. Comments
may be submitted in written or electronic form or an oral response may be

made at the public hearing. Lack of written or oral response shall be

considered "no objection" to the proposal.

c. If received in a timely manner, the originating agency shall include or
attach the comments to the written staff report and respond to any
concerns addressed by the responding agency in such report or orally at

the hearing.

Comments from the responding agency shall be given consideration as a

part ofthe public record on the proposed action. If, after such

consideration, the originating agency acts contrary to the position of the

responding agency, the responding agency may seek appeal ofthe action
through the appropriate appeals body and procedures.

C. AdditionalCoordinationRequirements

The CITY and the COUNTY shall do the following to notify one another of
proposed actions which may affect the community, but are not subject to the

Agreement amended by
Washington County Land Use A-Engrossed Ordinance No. 82 I

Adopted September 26, 2017

2.

-)

d

LU 2020-010 Exhibit G
Ordinance 2020-008, Exh to Staff Report 
September 1, 2020, Page 116 of 127

315



Wasllinglon County - City of Shenvood
Urban Planning Area Agreernerrt

Page 5 of'l0

notification and participation requirements contained in subsections A and B

above.

The CITY or the COUNTY, whichever has jurisdiction over the proposed

actions, hereinafter the originating agency, shall send by first class mail or
as an attachment to electronic mail a copy of all public hearing agendas

which contain the proposed actions to the other agency, hereinafter the

responding agency, at the earliest opportunity, but no less than three (3)
days prior to the date of the scheduled public hearing. The failure of the

responding agency to receive an agenda shall not invalidate an action if a
good faith attempt was made by the originating agency to notify the

responding agency.

The agency receiving the public hearing agenda may respond at its

discretion. Comments may be submitted in written or electronic form or an

oral response may be made at the public hearing. Lack of written or oral
response shall be considered "no objection" to the proposal.

c. Comments from the responding agency shall be given consideration as a

part ofthe public record on the proposed action. If, after such

consideration, the originating agency acts contrary to the position of the
responding agency, the responding agency may seek appeal ofthe action
through the appropriate appeals body and procedures.

ilI. Concept Planning for Urban Reserve Areas

A. Definitions

I Urban Reserve means those lands outside the UGB that have been so designated
by Metro for the purpose of:
a. Future expansion over a long-term period (40-50 years), and

b The cost-effective provision of public facilities and services when the
lands are included within the UGB.

Urban Reserve Planning Area means those Urban Reserves identified as

ultimately being governed by the CITY at such time as the UGB is amended to
include the Urban Reserve Area.

Urban Reserve - Planning Responsibility Undefìned means those Urban
Reserves that the CITY and at least one other city may have an interest in
ultimately governing, but no final agreement has been reached. These areas are

not considered part of the Urban Reserve Planning Area.

B. The CITY's Urban Reserve Planning Area and the Urban Reserve - Planning

Responsibility Undefined are identified on "Exhibit A" to this Agreement.

w ash i n gto n ." 
" ",rTguiïî",1t;i'¿Î.:i,:ä o rd i nan ce No. 8 2 r

Adopted September 26. 20 | 7

a

b.

2.

J

LU 2020-010 Exhibit G
Ordinance 2020-008, Exh to Staff Report 
September 1, 2020, Page 117 of 127

316



C

Washinglon County - City of Sherwood
Urban Planning Area Agreement

Page6oll0

The CITY and COUNTY shall be jointly responsible for developing a concept plan

for the Urban Reserve Planning Area in coordination with Metro and appropriate

service districts. The concept plan shall include the following:

An agreement befween the COUNTY and CITY regarding expectations for road

funding, jurisdictional transfer over roadways to and from the CITY and

COUNTY, and access management for county roads in the Urban Reserve

Planning Area. The agreement should describe any changes to the CITY and/or
COUNTY Transportation System Plans, other Comprehensive Plan documents,

or codes that have been adopted or will be necessary to implement this
agreement.

An agreement between the COUNTY and CITY that preliminarily identifies the

likely providers of urban services, as defined in ORS 195.065.(4), when the area

is urbanized.

2

D The concept plan shall be approved by the CITY and acknowledged by the

COUNTY.

E. Upon completion and acknowledgement of the concept plan by the CITY and

COUNTY, and the addition of the area into the UGB by Metro, the affected portion

of the Urban Reserve Planning Area shall be designated as part of the Urban Planning
Area. Inclusion in the Urban Planning Area is automatic and does not require an

amendment to this agreement.

IV. Comprehensive Planning and Development Policies for Urban Planning Areas

A. Definition

Urban Planning Area means the incorporated area and certain unincorporated areas

contiguous to the incorporated area for which the CITY conducts comprehensive
planning and seeks to regulate development activities to the greatest extent possible.

The CITY's Urban Planning Area is designated on "Exhibit A" to this Agreement.

The CITY shall be responsible for comprehensive planning within the Urban

Planning Area.

The CITY and COUNTY will implement the applicable Urban Reserve concept plan

and related agreements as the comprehensive plan is prepared for the Urban Planning
Area to ensure consistency and continuing applicability with the original concept

plan. If modifications to the original concept plan are made during the comprehensive

planning process, the parties will update the related agreements to reflect these

changes, which may include transporlation, access and funding.

The CITY shall be responsible for the preparation, adoption and amendment of the

Agreement amended by
Washington County Land Use A-Engrossed Ordinance No. 82 I

Adopted Septembel 26, 2017

B

C

D

LU 2020-010 Exhibit G
Ordinance 2020-008, Exh to Staff Report 
September 1, 2020, Page 118 of 127

317



*^n"'$å'1"';iåi,"rîå:li:'åx"i

Page 7 of l0

public facility plan required by OAR 660-01I within the Urban Planning Area.

As required by OAR 660-011-0010, the CITY is identified as the appropriate
provider of local water, sanitary sewer, storm sewer and transpor-tation facilities
within the Urban Planning Area. Exceptions include facilities provided by other
service providers subject to the terms of any intergovernmental agreement the CITY
may have with other service providers; facilities under the jurisdiction of other
service providers not covered by an intergovernmental agreement; and future
facilities that are more appropriately provided by an agency other than the CITY.

The COUNTY shall not approve land divisions within the unincorporated Urban
Planning Area that are inconsistent with the provisions of the Future Development
20-Acre District.(FD-20).

The COUNTY shall not approve a development proposal in the Urban Planning Area
if the proposal would not provide for, nor be conditioned to provide for, an

enforceable plan for redevelopment to urban densities consistent with the CITY's
Comprehensive Plan in the future upon annexation to the CITY as indicated by the

CITY Comprehensive Plan.

H. The COUNTY will not oppose any orderly, logical annexation of land to the CITY
within the CITY's Urban Planning Area.

V. Amendments to the Urban Planning Area Agreement

A. The following procedures shall be followed by the CITY and the COUNTY to amend

the language of this agreement or the Urban Planning Area Boundary:

The CITY or COUNTY, whichever jurisdiction originates the proposal, shall

submit a formal request for amendment to the responding agency.

2. The formal request shall contain the following:

a. A statement describing the amendment.

A statement of findings indicating why the proposed amendment is

necessary.

E

F

G

I

b.

c. If the request is to amend the planning area boundary, a map that clearly
indicates the proposed change and surrounding area.

3 Upon receipt of a request for amendment from the originating agency, the

responding agency shall schedule a review ofthe request before the appropriate

reviewing body, with said review to be held within forty-fìve (45) days of the

date the request is received.

Agreement amended by
Washington County Land Use A-Englossed Ordinance No. 82 I

Adopted September 26. 20 l7

LU 2020-010 Exhibit G
Ordinance 2020-008, Exh to Staff Report 
September 1, 2020, Page 119 of 127

318



*'*'"å"i:"t;ìä?ùt;'#ijl:äi:,i
Page I of l0

The CITY and COUNTY shall make good faith efforts to resolve requests to
amend this agreement. Upon completion of the review, the reviewing body may
approve the request, deny the request, or make a determination that the
proposed amendment warrants additional review. If it is determined that
additional review is necessary, the following procedures shall be followed by
the CITY and COTJNTY:

a. If inconsistencies noted by both parties cannot be resolved in the review
process as outlined in Section V. A. (3), the CITY and the COUNTY may
agree to initiate a joint study. Such a study shall commence within thirty
(30) days of the date it is determined that a proposed amendment creates
an inconsistency, and shall be completed within ninety (90) days of said
date. Methodologies and procedures regulating the conduct of the joint
study shall be mutually agreed upon by the CITY and the COUNTY prior
to commencing the study.

b. Upon completion of the joint study, the study and the recommendations
drawn from it shall be included within the record of the review. The
agency considering the proposed amendment shall give careful
consideration to the study prior to making a fìnal decision.

The parties willjointly review this Agreement periodically, or as needed, to evaluate
the effectiveness of the processes set forth herein and to make any necessary
amendments. Both parties shall make a good faith effort to resolve any
inconsistencies that may have developed since the previous review. If; after
completion of a sixty (60) day review period inconsistencies still remain, either party
may terminate this Agreement.

C. Any boundary changes due to annexation into the CITY or updates to the UGB are
automatic and do not require an amendment to "Exhibit 4".

VI. This Agreement shall become effective upon full execution by the COUNTY and the CITY
and shall then repeal and replace the Washington County-Sherwood Urban Planning Area
Agreement effective March 3,2010. The effective date of this Agreement shall be the last
date ofsignature on the signature page.

Agreement amended by
Washington County Land Use A-Engrossed Ordinance No. 821

Adopted September 26- 2017

4

B

LU 2020-010 Exhibit G
Ordinance 2020-008, Exh to Staff Report 
September 1, 2020, Page 120 of 127

319



Washington County - City of Sherwood
Urban Planning Area Agreement

Page 9 of 10

IN WITNESS WHEREOF the parties have executed this Urban Planning Area Agreement on the

date set opposite their signatures.

CITY OF SHERWOOD

By Date 0 l-Ì t1
-¡la¡ôr üt^.{c.Hqçít, (\uaciI /

Approved as to Form

By Date a J]

By Date

WASHINGTON COUNTY

C

sv 4O ', AndYDwYck
Chair, Úoard of Commissioners

Dut" tt^ 1_ l7
fio n'q I ?'zo' t7

Approved as to Form

By ¿ ).= Date ll 3 I

By Date

Agleement amended by
Washington County Land Use A-Engrossed Ol'dinance No. 821

Adopted September 26, 20 17

Recording Secretary

LU 2020-010 Exhibit G
Ordinance 2020-008, Exh to Staff Report 
September 1, 2020, Page 121 of 127

320



A-Engrossed Ordinance No. 821

Exhibit A
Page 10 of 10

City of Sherwood
Urban Planning Area

Washington County - Sherwood
Urban Planning Area Agreenrent

Exhibit A

t\WqtsouFsGlSPlffi hilqCf ROJE ÇTs\æi 7-PdedsuPS€ha@d_UPM-WR _Ol nxd
¡l¡ w^qûcrGcou{rv'fl v@h

tili,;iìrl;rij c¡ty r¡m its

X Urban PlanningArea

ffibif#åî::'
Urban Reserve. -
Planning Responsi bi lity
Undefíned

lrttl¡¡ Urban Crorvth Boundary

fl:Ï3 county Boundary

Railroad Rightof Way

Future SW 124th Ave

- 
Alignment

1 inch = 2,000 feet

0 1,000 2,000 3,oo0 4,000
- F€et

,.,4ir--l--
rs:,sHERwóÀ*.

d-.t

r- r

.-.i
i'- .J

-Ìl
:li,¡ ¡

i.J:-'

\

L.í

I
I

I'J

r f--_
_-...'''*.. ¡ ;. .-'

()l¿ckarx¿s (.Jou*.í¡

LU 2020-010 Exhibit G
Ordinance 2020-008, Exh to Staff Report 
September 1, 2020, Page 122 of 127

321



  

 

  

Exhibit L: Public N
otice Inform

ation     

Exhibit L: Public Notice Information     

 

  

 

LU 2020-010 Exhibit G
Ordinance 2020-008, Exh to Staff Report 
September 1, 2020, Page 123 of 127

322



Sherwood, OR 97140
Po Box 820
Pride Properties Investments Llc
2S128C0-00100

Vancouver, WA 98665
8320 NE Highway 99
Orwa Sherwood Llc
2S128C0-00102

Seattle, WA 98108
6900 Fox Ave S
Sherwood Road Industrial Llc & Bldg B
2S128C0-00200

Seattle, WA 98108
6900 Fox Ave S
Sherwood Road Industrial Llc
2S128C0-00200

Sherwood, OR 97140
21433 SW Oregon St
J & L Rink Llc
2S128C0-00201

Sherwood, OR 97140
21433 SW Oregon St
J & L Rink Llc
2S128C0-00201

Sherwood, OR 97140
21433 SW Oregon St
J & L Rink Llc
2S128C0-00201

Sherwood, OR 97140
21433 SW Oregon St
J & L Rink Llc
2S128C0-00201

Sherwood, OR 97140
21433 SW Oregon St
J & L Rink Llc
2S128C0-00202

Sherwood, OR 97140
22560 SW Pine St
Sherwood City Of
2S128C0-00204

Hillsboro, OR 97124
169 N 1st Ave # 42
Washington County Facilites Mgmt
2S128C0-00400

Hillsboro, OR 97124
169 N 1st Ave # 42
Washington County Facilites Mgmt
2S128C0-00400

Sherwood, OR 97140
Po Box 1489
Bruce & Karen Polley
2S128C0-00500

Sherwood, OR 97140
Po Box 1489
Bruce & Karen Polley
2S128C0-00500

Sherwood, OR 97140
Po Box 1489
Bruce & Karen Polley
2S128C0-00500

Albany, NY 12207
66 S Pearl St FL 8
Key Equipment Finance Inc
2S128C0-00501

Albany, NY 12201
Po Box 22055
Keybank National Assoc
2S128C0-00501

Sherwood, OR 97140
21433 SW Oregon St
Allied Systems Company
2S128C0-00501

Gladstone, OR 97027
15 82nd Dr STE 210
John Niemeyer
2S128C0-00600

Portland, OR 97219
4825 SW Evans St
Kenneth & Carol Vandomelen
2S128C0-00700

Portland, OR 97267
4677 SE Concord Rd
Dahlke Lane Properties Llc
2S128C0-00701

Hillsboro, OR 97124
169 N 1st Ave # 42
Washington County Facilites Mgmt
2S129D0-00600

Sherwood, OR 97140
22560 SW Pine St
Sherwood City Of
2S132AA-00190

Sherwood, OR 97140
22210 SW Murdock Rd
Michael D & Lawrence D Kay Llc
2S132AA-01101

Sherwood, OR 97140
22560 SW Pine St
Sherwood City Of
2S132AA-06200

Sherwood, OR 97140
14602 SW Brickyard Dr
Keith Beaumont
2S132AA-06500

Sherwood, OR 97140
14616 SW Brickyard Dr
Jean Almond
2S132AA-06600

Sherwood, OR 97140
14616 SW Brickyard Dr
Jean Almond
2S132AA-06600

Sherwood, OR 97140
14630 SW Brickyard Dr
Bonnie Miller
2S132AA-06700

Sherwood, OR 97140
14642 SW Brickyard Dr
Cindy Nevill
2S132AA-06800

LU 2020-010 Exhibit G
Ordinance 2020-008, Exh to Staff Report 
September 1, 2020, Page 124 of 127

323



Sherwood, OR 97140
14650 SW Brickyard Dr
Orfilio & John Naranjo
2S132AA-06900

Sherwood, OR 97140
14658 SW Brickyard Dr
Audrey O Leary & Dawn Leary
2S132AA-07000

Sherwood, OR 97140
14672 SW Brickyard Dr
Meghan Jackson
2S132AA-07100

Sherwood, OR 97140
14680 SW Brickyard Dr
David Krempley
2S132AA-07200

Sherwood, OR 97140
14694 SW Brickyard Dr
Abdallah Salame
2S132AA-07300

Sherwood, OR 97140
14706 SW Brickyard Dr
Zeb & Alyssa Menle
2S132AA-07400

Sherwood, OR 97140
14718 SW Brickyard Dr
Stanley & Roxane Risner
2S132AA-07500

Carlton, OR 97111
707 N 7th St
Donald & Renate Liss
2S132AA-07600

Sherwood, OR 97140
14738 SW Brickyard Dr
Paul & Stephanie Spath
2S132AA-07700

Sherwood, OR 97140
14723 SW Brickyard Dr
Colleen & Debra Clemens
2S132AA-09000

Sherwood, OR 97140
14723 SW Brickyard Dr
Colleen & Debra Clemens
2S132AA-09000

Sherwood, OR 97140
14685 SW Brickyard Dr
Daniel Goodyear
2S132AA-09100

Sherwood, OR 97140
14673 SW Brickyard Dr
Kenneth & Patricia Higgason
2S132AA-09200

Newberg, OR 97132
32055 NE Corral Creek Rd
Holly Jackson & William Lewis
2S132AA-09300

Sherwood, OR 97140
14645 SW Brickyard Dr
Thomas & Penny Wade
2S132AA-09400

Sherwood, OR 97140
14637 SW Brickyard Dr
James Mcburnett
2S132AA-09500

Sherwood, OR 97140
14625 SW Brickyard Dr
James & Gail Mcgill
2S132AA-09600

Sherwood, OR 97140
14619 SW Brickyard Dr
Carol Riggs
2S132AA-09700

Sherwood, OR 97140
14615 SW Brickyard Dr
Blake & Joan Elison
2S132AA-09800

Sherwood, OR 97140
14603 SW Brickyard Dr
Dennis & Kristen Titko
2S132AA-09900

Ridgefield, WA 98642
2909 NE 166th Way
Mary Consani
2S132AA-10000

Sherwood, OR 97140
22106 SW Orland St
Orland Villa Llc
2S132AA-10000

Sherwood, OR 97140
14673 SW Brickyard Dr
Atley Estates Homeowners Assoc
2S132AA-10200

Sherwood, OR 97140
22115 SW Chesapeake Pl
Sandra & Richard Miles
2S132AA-11000

Beaverton, OR 97007
16980 SW Red Rock Way
Thomas & Suzanne Feller
2S132AA-11100

Sherwood, OR 97140
22095 SW Chesapeake Pl
Rebecca Osmond & Jason Berg
2S132AA-11200

Sherwood, OR 97140
22085 SW Chesapeake Pl
Samuel & Stesha Powers
2S132AA-11300

Sherwood, OR 97140
22075 SW Chesapeake Pl # 22077
Rose & Shawn Mcgrady
2S132AA-11400

Sherwood, OR 97140
14596 SW Oregon St
Robert & Amanda Taylor
2S132AA-11500

Sheridan, OR 97378
13751 SW Rock Creek Rd
Empyrean Real Estate Llc
2S132AA-11600

LU 2020-010 Exhibit G
Ordinance 2020-008, Exh to Staff Report 
September 1, 2020, Page 125 of 127

324



Daly City, CA 94015
59 Margate St
James & Colleen Buckner
2S132AA-11700

Sherwood, OR 97140
Po Box 1626
22060 Chesapeake Place Llc
2S132AA-11800

Sherwood, OR 97140
22070 SW Chesapeake Pl
Calla Lilly
2S132AA-11900

Sherwood, OR 97140
22080 SW Chesapeake Pl
Lisa & James Burton
2S132AA-12000

Sherwood, OR 97140
22090 SW Chesapeake Pl
Preston & Rochelle Griffin
2S132AA-12100

Sherwood, OR 97140
22100 SW Chesapeake Pl
David Hiser
2S132AA-12200

Sherwood, OR 97140
14260 SW Tonquin Rd
Gertrude Barnard
2S13300-00200

Sherwood, OR 97140
14260 SW Tonquin Rd
Gertrude Barnard
2S13300-00201

Sherwood, OR 97140
14250 SW Tonquin Rd
Wayne & Karen Depriest
2S13300-00300

Woodburn, OR 97071
395 Shenandoah Ln NE
Woodburn Industrial Capital Grou
2S13300-00400

Sherwood, OR 97140
14240 SW Tonquin Rd
Martin & Cynthia Walker
2S13300-00401

Sherwood, OR 97140
14250 SW Tonquin Rd
Wayne & Karen Depriest
2S13300-00403

Portland, OR 97232
911 NE 11th Ave
United States Of America Dept Of
2S13300-02500

Portland, OR 97232
911 NE 11th Ave
United States Of America & Dept Of The 
2S13300-02500

Woodburn, OR 97071
Po Box 1060
Woodburn Industrial Capital Grou
2S133BB-00100

Portland, OR 97232
911 NE 11th Ave
United States Of America Dept Of
2S133BB-00200

Sherwood, OR 97140
22560 SW Pine St
Sherwood City Of
2S133BB-00300

Portland, OR 97232
911 NE 11th Ave
United States Of America Dept Of
2S133BB-00400

LU 2020-010 Exhibit G
Ordinance 2020-008, Exh to Staff Report 
September 1, 2020, Page 126 of 127

325



6/16/2020Report Generated:

21720 SW Oregon St, Sherwood, OR 97140

1000 ft Buffer

The present data and maps are intended for informational purposes only. Some information has been procured from third-party
sources and has not been independently verified.  Individual parts are owned by their respective copyright owners and not by First

American. First American Title Company makes no express or implied warranty respecting the information presented and assumes no
responsibility for errors or omissions.

LU 2020-010 Exhibit G
Ordinance 2020-008, Exh to Staff Report 
September 1, 2020, Page 127 of 127

326



DRAFT 

Ordinance 2020-008 
September 1, 2020 
Page 1 of 3, with Exhibits A-D (4 pgs)   

 
 

ORDINANCE 2020-008 

 
APPROVING ANNEXATION OF 10.90 ACRES TO THE CITY OF SHERWOOD AND 10.50 ACRES TO 

CLEAN WATER SERVICES WITHIN THE TONQUIN EMPLOYMENT AREA, COMPRISED OF ONE 

TAX LOT AND THE ADJACENT SW OREGON STREET AND SW TONQUIN ROAD RIGHT-OF-WAY 

 

WHEREAS, Bruce and Karen Polley, property owners of 21720 SW Oregon St. (TL 2S128C000500), have 

applied for annexation of certain land, as described in Exhibits A, B, C, & D to this Ordinance, to the City 

of Sherwood; and  

 

WHEREAS, the property owner initiated this annexation in accordance with ORS Chapter 222 and SB 

1573 (2016); and  

 

WHEREAS, SB 1573 requires City approval without submission to the electors, regardless of any local 

charter or ordinance requirements to the contrary, of annexation requests submitted by all owners of land 

in the territory proposed to be annexed, when:  

 

(a) The territory is included within an urban growth boundary adopted by the city or Metro, as 

defined in ORS 197.015;  

(b) The territory is, or upon annexation of the territory into the city will be, subject to the 

acknowledged comprehensive plan of the city;  

(c) At least one lot or parcel within the territory is contiguous to the city limits or is separated from 

the city limits only by a public right-of-way or body or water; and  

(d) The proposal conforms to all other requirements of the city’s ordinances; and  

 

WHEREAS, the Tonquin Employment Area Concept Plan, which includes the territory proposed to be 

annexed, was brought into the Urban Growth Boundary in 2004 by Metro via Ordinance 04-1040B; and  

 

WHEREAS, the City of Sherwood developed a concept plan for that area and adopted the concept plan 

and implementing ordinances in 2010 via Ordinance 2010-014; and  

 

WHEREAS, the lot (the territory) that is proposed to be annexed is contiguous to the current city limits; 

and  

 

WHEREAS, the total land proposed to be annexed to the City of Sherwood is 10.90 acres which includes 

a 9.53-acre parcel and 1.37 acres of adjacent right-of-way and; 

 

WHEREAS, a portion of the subject territory is not currently within Clean Water Services boundaries and 

10.50 acres will be added to the Clean Water Services district boundary upon annexation under the 

authority of ORS 199.510(2)(c); and  

327



DRAFT 

Ordinance 2020-008 
September 1, 2020 
Page 2 of 3, with Exhibits A-D (4 pgs)   

 

WHEREAS, the City does not presently have any other ordinance requirements applicable to this 

annexation request; and  

 

WHEREAS, the properties proposed to be annexed are currently in unincorporated Washington County 

and part of the Washington County Service Districts for Enhanced Law Enforcement; and  

 

WHEREAS, Washington County and the City of Sherwood have entered into an agreement acknowledging 

that the City of Sherwood should be the ultimate provider of urban services in the Tonquin Employment 

Area; and  

 

WHEREAS, these properties must be within the City limits in order to be developed for the urban uses and 

densities planned for in the Tonquin Employment Area Concept Plan; and  

 

WHEREAS, after proper legal notice, a public hearing was held on the proposed annexation by the City 

Council on September 1, 2020, at which public comments and testimony were received and considered; 

and  

 

WHEREAS, the Council reviewed and considered the staff report with proposed findings and conclusions 

for the decision which is included as Exhibit 1 to the Council staff report. 

 

NOW, THEREFORE, THE CITY OF SHERWOOD ORDAINS AS FOLLOWS:  

 

Section 1.  The territory proposed to be annexed to the City of Sherwood is specifically identified in a 

legal description (Exhibit A) and map (Exhibit B), and the territory proposed to be annexed 

to Clean Water Services is specifically identified in a separate legal description (Exhibit C) 

and map (Exhibit D),each of which are attached to this Ordinance.  

 

Section 2.  The subject territory annexed by this Ordinance and described in Section 1 and Exhibits C 

and D will be added to the Clean Water Services district under ORS 199.510(2)(c).  

 

Section 3.  The applicant has demonstrated that the annexation all of the territory proposed to be 

annexed meets all applicable requirements, as documented in Exhibit 1 to the City Council 

Staff Report.  

 

Section 4.  Upon annexation, the Comprehensive Plan zoning designation of Employment Industrial 

(EI) adopted via Ordinance 2010-014 implementing the Tonquin Employment Area Concept 

Plan, will apply to all of the territory proposed to be annexed.  

 

Section 5.  Pursuant to ORS 222.520 and 222.120(5), the City Council declares that upon the effective 

date of the annexation, all of the annexed territory will be withdrawn from the Washington 

County Service Districts for Enhanced Law Enforcement.  

 

Section 6.  All of the territory proposed to be annexed is hereby declared annexed to the City of 

Sherwood.  

 

Section 7.  This Ordinance shall become effective 30 days from its adoption. 

328



DRAFT 

Ordinance 2020-008 
September 1, 2020 
Page 3 of 3, with Exhibits A-D (4 pgs)   

 

Duly passed by the City Council this 1st of September, 2020. 

 
 
 
       _______________________    
       Keith Mays, Mayor   Date 
 
 
 
Attest:   
 
 
      
Sylvia Murphy, MMC, City Recorder  
           AYE NAY 

Scott  ____ ____ 
Griffin  ____ ____ 
Brouse  ____ ____ 
Young  ____ ____ 
Garland ____ ____ 
Rosener ____ ____ 
Mays  ____ ____ 

 
 
 
 
 

329



A II~ AKS ENGINEERING & FORESTRY, LLC 

AKS Job #7971 ~ 12965 SW Herman Road, Suite 100, Tualatin, OR 97062 
- P: (503} 563-6151 F: (503) 563-6152 

ENG1NEE!lfNG &FORESJ'RY - O-FF-IC...;ES- IN- : -TU_A_LA_TI-N,- 0-R-- -VA- N-CO_U_V-ER-, W- A- -- K-EI-ZE-R,- 0-R-- -BE-N-0,-0-R ---------' 

EXHIBIT A 
Legal Description 

City of Sherwood Annexation 

A tract of land located in the Southwest One-Quarter of Section 28, Township 2 South, Range 1 
West, Willamette Meridian, Washington County, Oregon, and being more particularly described 
as follows: 

Beginning at the southwest corner of said Section 28; thence along the south line of said 
Southwest One-Quarter of Section 28, South 88°50'36" East 484.43 feet to the southwest corner 
of Document Number 2008-025922 and the True Point of Beginning; thence along the westerly 
line of said Deed and the northerly extension thereof, North 24°57'57" West 110.53 feet to the 
centerline of SW Oregon Street and the City of Sherwood city limits line; thence along said 
centerline and said city limits line on a non-tangent curve to the left (with radial bearing North 
34°03'55" West) with a Radius 236.00 feet, Delta of 09°08'42", Length of 37.67 feet, and a 
Chord of North 51 °21 '44" East 3 7 .63 feet; thence continuing along said centerline and said city 
limits line, North 46°47'23" East 515.84 feet; thence along a curve to the left with a Radius of 
1312.33 feet, Delta of 05°31 '00", Length of 126.36 feet, and a Chord of North 44°01 '53" East 
126.31 feet; thence North 41 °16'23" East 562. 79 feet; thence North 41 °05'27" East 8.35 feet; 
thence leaving said centerline and said city limits line, South 49°05'29" East 37.00 feet to the 
northeast corner of said Deed on the southeasterly right-of-way line of SW Oregon Street (3 7 .00 
feet from centerline); thence along the east line of said Deed, South 01°32'54" West 989.74 feet 
to the south line of the Southwest One-Quarter of Section 28; thence along said south line, North 
88°50'36" West 824.61 feet to the True Point of Beginning. 

The above described tract contains 10.9 acres, more or less. 

ANNEXATiON CERTIFIED 

BY. -v==-
06/09/2020 

~ 
,,. JUN 1 5 2020 REGISTERED 

PROFESSIONAL 
LAND SURVEYOR 

WASHINGTON COUNTY A & T 

falt-1:_J__ CARTOGRAPHY 

OREGON 
JANUARY 12, 2016 
MICHAEL S. KALINA 

.... 89558PLS ~ 

RENEWS: 6/30/21 

330



EXHIBIT B 
A TRACT OF LAND LOCATED IN THE SW 1 / 4 OF SEC. 28, 

T2S, R1 W, W.M., WASHINGTON COUNTY, OREGON 

SCALE: 1
11= 200 FEET 

1 ~ 

ANNEXATION CERTIFIED 

BY. ~ 

JUN 1 5 2020 

WASHINGTON COUNTY A & T 
CARTOGRAPHY 

DOC. NO. 
94-047965 

200 0 4-0 100 200 
DOC. NO. 

201a-on469 

06/09/2020 , 
REGISTERED 

"'I 

PROF'ESSIONAL 
LAND SURVEYOR 

fa,,i 1:_...<_ 
OREGON 

JANUARY 12, 2018 
MICHAEL S. KALINA 

"- 89558PLS j 

RENEWS: 6/30/21 

Dl\\'.l: 79 \ ANNEX 

DOC. NO. 
2008-025922 

AREA: 10.9 ACRES± 

CURVE TABLE 

CURVE RADIUS DELTA LENGTH 

C1 236.00' 9'08'42" 37.67' 

C2 1312.33' 5'31'00" 126.36' 

CITY ANNEXATION AREA 

AKS ENGINEERING &; FORESTRY, LlC 
12965 SW HERMAN RD, STE 100 
TU ALA TIN, OR 97062 
503.563.6151 WWW.AKS-ENG.COM 

CHORD 

N51'21'44"E 37.63' 

N44'01 '53"E 126.31' 

11311 

B 

331



A II~ AKS ENGINEERING & FORESTRY, LLC 

AKS Job #7971 II'\.., 12965 SW Herman Road, Suite 100, Tualatin, OR 97062 
- P: (503) 563-6151 F: (503) 563-6152 

ENGINEERING &FORESTRI' .....;.O.;.:FF..;IC..:ES.;.IN;.;:.,.T,_UA.;;,,LA.;.T;.:,;IN;.;., 0.;;..R.;.;· ;;.VA.;.N;;.CO;;..U_V_ER-, W- A- - K- E-IZE-R-, 0-R- - -BE- N-D,-0-R---------' 

Exhibit C 
Legal Description 

Clean Water Services Annexation 

A tract of land located in the Southwest One-Quarter of Section 28, Township 2 South, Range 1 
West, Willamette Meridian, Washington County, Oregon, and being more particularly described 
as follows: 

Beginning at the southwest corner of said Section 28; thence along the south line of said 
Southwest One-Quarter of Section 28, South 88°50'36" East 651.35 feet to the southwesterly 
right-of-way line of SW Tonquin Road (variable width right-of-way) and the Clean Water 
Services district boundary line and the True Point of Beginning; thence along said boundary line 
and said southwesterly right-of-way line on a non-tangent curve to the left (radial bearing South 
50°32'27" West) with a Radius of 1412.56 feet, Delta of 04°10 ' 05", Length of 102.76 feet, and a 
Chord ofNorth 41°32'35" West 102.74 feet; thence continuing along said southwesterly right-of
way line and said boundary line and the northwesterly extension thereof, North 43°37'37" West 
116.00 feet to the centerline of SW Oregon Street; thence along said centerline and continuing 
along said boundary line, Nmth 46°47'23" East 466.48 feet; thence continuing along said 
centerline and said boundary line, along a curve to the left with a Radius of 1312.33 feet, Delta 
of 05°31 '00", Length of 126.36 feet, and a Chord of North 44°01 '53" East 126.31 feet; thence 
North 41°16'23" East 562.79 feet; thence North 41°05'27" East 8.35 feet; thence leaving said 
centerline and continuing along said boundary line, South 49°05'29" East 37.00 feet to the 
northeast corner of Document Number 2008-025922; thence along the east line of said Deed, 
South 01°32'54" West 989.74 feet to the south line of the Southwest One-Quarter of Section 28; 
thence leaving said boundary line and along said south line, North 88°50'36" West 657.70 feet to 
the True Point of Beginning. 

The above described tract contains 10.5 acres, more or less. 

06/09/2020 
, 

REGISTERED 
PROFESSIONAL 

LANO SURVEYOR 

µi-t:_.z_ 
OREGON 

JANUARY 12, 2016 
MICHAEL S. KAUNA 

89558PLS 

"I 

ANNEXATION CERTIFIED 

BY. -lF 
JUN 1 5 2020 

WASHINGTON COUNn A & T 
CARTOGRAPHY 

332



Exhibit D 
A TRACT OF LAND LOCATED IN THE SW 1 / 4 OF SEC. 28, 

T2S, R1 W, W.M., WASHINGTON COUNTY, OREGON 

SCALE: 1 "= 200 FEET 

~-~ i 
200 0 40 100 200 

r 

CLEAN WATER 
SERVlCES DISlRICT 

BOUNDARY 

06/09/2020 
REGISTERED 

PROF'ESSIONAL 
LAND SURVEYOR 

fa,,i~--<._ 
OREGON 

JANUARY 12, 2016 
MICHAEL S. KALINA 

89558PLS 
RENEWS: 6 30 21 

"II 

ANNEXATION CERTIFIED 

-v::-BY. _____ _ 

JUN 1 5 2020 

WASHINGTON COUNTY A & T 
CARTOGRAPHY 

DOC. NO. 
94-047965 

DOC. NO. 
2008-025922 

AREA: 10.5 ACRES± 

CURVE TABLE 

CURVE RADIUS DELTA LENGlH 

C1 1412.56' 4'10'05" 102.76' 

C2 1312.33' 5'31'00" 126.36' 

CWS ANNEXATION AREA 

/// 
S49'05'29•E 
37.00' 

DOC. NO. 
201a-on469 

CHORD 

N41'32'35"W 102.74' 

N44'01 '53"E 126.31' 

EXHIBI 
B 

AKS ENGINEERING & FORES1RY, LLC 
12965 SW HERMAN RD, STE 100 
TU ALA TIN, OR 97062 A~q °'""' MHJ CHKD, MSK 

AKS JOB: 

7971 503.563. 6151 WWW.AKS-ENG.COM 
333


	01 City Council Packet Cover 09.01.2020
	02  City Council Mtg. Agenda 09.01.2020
	03  08.18.20 City Council Minutes - DRAFT
	6. RECESSED:
	5. ADJOURN:
	9. ADJOURN:
	6. ADJOURN:

	04  Resolution 2020-056 Appoint Brian Dorsey to Police Adv Board - STAFF REPORT
	05  Resolution 2020-056 Appoint Brian Dorsey to Police Adv Board - DRAFT
	06  Resolution 2020-057 Auth OTAK Contract (JS edits) - STAFF REPORT
	07  Resolution 2020-057 Auth OTAK Contract (JS edits) - DRAFT
	08  Resolution 2020-057 Auth OTAK Contract - EXH A
	08.1 Proclamation National Preparedness Month Sept 2020
	09 Ordinance 2020-007 Woodburn Industrial Cap Grp Annex 2020-012 AN- Staff Rpt
	10 Ordinance 2020-007 Woodburn Exhibit 1 Staff Report
	Exhibits A-H.pdf
	Exhibit F.pdf
	02
	03
	04
	05
	06



	11 Ordinance 2020-007 Woodburn Industrial Cap Grp Annex 2020-012 AN
	12 Ordinance 2020-007 Woodburn Exhibit A B to Ordinance
	13 Ordinance 2020-008 Polley Annexation Council Staff Report rev8-24-20
	14 Ordinance 2020-008 Polley Annexation Council Staff Report - Exhibit 1
	LU 2020-010 Staff Report w Findings DRAFT_epedits
	A Map of Project Area
	B Legal Descriptions and Map
	C Zoning Under TEA
	D Sherwood Engineering Comments
	E Fire Email Comments
	F Department of Revenue Preliminary Review
	G Applicant Submittal
	Exhibit B: Washington County Assessor’s Map    
	Exhibit C: Legal Description and Map    
	Exhibit D: Boundary Change Data Sheet    
	Exhibit E: Annexation Questionnaire    
	Exhibit F:Worksheet for Annexation to the City of Sherwood    
	Exhibit G: Certification of Property Ownership    
	Exhibit H: Certification of Legal Description and Map  
	Exhibit I: Ownership Information    
	Exhibit J: Additional Referenced Documents    
	Exhibit K: Washington County-Sherwood Urban Planning Agreement     
	Exhibit L: Public Notice Information    
	7971 ANNEX-CITY 20200609.pdf
	7971 ANNEX-CITY EXH A
	7971 ANNEX-CITY EXH B

	7971 ANNEX-CWS 20200609.pdf
	7971 ANNEX-CWS EXH A
	7971 ANNEX-CWS EXH B

	7971 20200529 Ex K WaCO CoS Agreement.pdf
	1
	2



	15 Ordinance 2020-008 Polley Annexation Ordinance - DRAFT
	16 Ordinance 2020-008 Polley Annexation Exhibit A-D to Ordinance

	Conditional Use: Off
	Partition  of lots: Off
	Subdivision  of lots: Off
	Other: Off
	Zone: 
	Annexation: On
	Plan Amendment Proposed Zone: Off
	Planned Unit Development: Off
	Site Plan square footage of building and parking area: Off
	Variance list standards to be varied in description: Off
	Number of Lots: 
	Other action: 
	Applicant: Tim Kerr
	Phone: 971-235-5003
	Applicant Address: 395 Shenandoah Lane N.E., Woodburn, OR 97071
	Email: tkerr@kerrcontractors.com
	Owner: Woodburn Industrial Capital Group, LLC
	Phone_2: 971-235-5003
	Owner Address: 395 Shenandoah Lane N.E., Woodburn, OR 97071
	Email_2: tkerr@kerrcontractors.com
	Contact for Additional Information: Read Stapleton, DOWL (971) 280-8648
	Street Location: No Site Address, Sherwood, OR 97140
	Tax Lot and Map No: 2S133BB00100 & 2S1330000400
	Existing StructuresUse: No structures / vacant
	Existing PlanZone Designation: Employment Industrial (EI) / FD-20 (County)
	Size of Propertyies: Approximately 28.17 acres
	Purpose and Description of Proposed Action 2: The applicant is proposing to annex an approximately 28.17-acre territory plus adjacent ROW into the City of Sherwood and into the Clean Water Services District.  
	Proposed Use: Employment Industrial (EI) uses once annexed into the City boundary
	Proposed No of Phases one year each: Site development is not proposed at this time
	Check Box2: Yes
	Check Box3: Yes
	Check Box4: Yes
	Check Box5: Yes
	A General location:   South of SW Oregon St., East and west of SW Tonquin Rd.
	B Land Area Acres:   ±9.53 acres
	or Square Miles: 
	vegetation drainage basins floodplain areas which are pertinent to this proposal 1: Partially developed and vegetated property. Western portions of the property feature wetland
	vegetation drainage basins floodplain areas which are pertinent to this proposal 2: and riparian habitats. Some areas of the property have >10% slopes and upland habitats.
	vegetation drainage basins floodplain areas which are pertinent to this proposal 3: 
	North 1: TL 501 - General Industrial
	North 2:              TL 400 - Vacant General Industrial
	East 1: TL 600 - Vacant Employment Industrial  
	East 2:           TL 300, 401, 403 - Residential, FD-20
	South 1: TL 100 - Vacant, Unincorporated FD-20
	South 2:             TL 2500 - Vacant Unincorporated SFR (Rock Creek wetland and riparian areas)
	West 1: TL 400 - Light Industrial  
	West 2:   
	Number of singlefamily units:  
	Number of multifamily units:   
	Number of commercial structures:   
	Number of industrial structures:  2
	Public facilities or other uses:   
	What is the current use the land proposed to be annexed 1:   Industrial Service
	What is the current use the land proposed to be annexed 2:   
	F Total current year Assessed Valuation:   231,020
	G Total existing population:   
	made Please be very specific Use additional pages if necessary 1:   Please see attached narrative.
	made Please be very specific Use additional pages if necessary 2:   
	made Please be very specific Use additional pages if necessary 3:   
	made Please be very specific Use additional pages if necessary 4:   
	etc density etc 1:   Annexation for future industrial development and city services. Please see attached narrative.
	etc density etc 2:   
	A Is the subject territory inside or outside of the Metro Regional Urban Growth Boundary:   Inside Metro Regional UGB
	undefined_4:   FD-20
	B What is the applicable County Planning Designation: EI-Employment Industrial
	comprehensive plans  Please describe 1: The area to be annexed is consistent with the TEA Concept Plan, an adopted part of the City of
	comprehensive plans  Please describe 2: Sherwood Comprehensive Plan. For more detail, please see attached narrative.  
	C What is the zoning on the territory to be served: EI - Employment Industrial
	Check Box16: Off
	Check Box17: Yes
	Check Box18: Off
	Check Box19: Yes
	Please describe outcome of zone change request if answer to previous questions was Yes:   N/A
	PROJECT FILE NOMetro UGB Amendment:   
	DATE OF APPROVALMetro UGB Amendment: 2004  
	FUTURE REQUIREMENTMetro UGB Amendment: -
	PROJECT FILE NOCity of County Plan Amendment: TEACP  
	DATE OF APPROVALCity of County Plan Amendment: 10/2010
	FUTURE REQUIREMENTCity of County Plan Amendment: -
	PROJECT FILE NOPreApplication Hearing City or County: -
	DATE OF APPROVALPreApplication Hearing City or County: 4/30/2020  
	FUTURE REQUIREMENTPreApplication Hearing City or County: -  
	PROJECT FILE NOPreliminary Subdivision Approval: 
	DATE OF APPROVALPreliminary Subdivision Approval:   
	FUTURE REQUIREMENTPreliminary Subdivision Approval: 
	PROJECT FILE NOFinal Plat Approval: 
	DATE OF APPROVALFinal Plat Approval:   
	FUTURE REQUIREMENTFinal Plat Approval:   
	PROJECT FILE NOLand Partition: 
	DATE OF APPROVALLand Partition:   
	FUTURE REQUIREMENTLand Partition:   
	PROJECT FILE NOConditional Use: 
	DATE OF APPROVALConditional Use:   
	FUTURE REQUIREMENTConditional Use:   
	PROJECT FILE NOVariance: 
	DATE OF APPROVALVariance:   
	FUTURE REQUIREMENTVariance:   
	PROJECT FILE NOSubSurface Sewage Disposal: 
	DATE OF APPROVALSubSurface Sewage Disposal:   
	FUTURE REQUIREMENTSubSurface Sewage Disposal:   
	PROJECT FILE NOBuilding Permit: 
	DATE OF APPROVALBuilding Permit:   
	FUTURE REQUIREMENTBuilding Permit:   
	please list its name and address of a contact person 1:   Washington County CPO 5 Sherwood-Tualatin S1 - Inactive
	please list its name and address of a contact person 2:   
	Location and size of nearest water line that can serve the subject area 1: 24" and 12" water line within SW Oregon Street
	Location and size of nearest water line that can serve the subject area 2: 
	Location and size of nearest sewer line which can serve the subject area 1: 15" sanitary line Oregon St./Murdock Rd. Roundabout - ±380 feet southwest of property
	Location and size of nearest sewer line which can serve the subject area 2: 
	serve the subject area 1: 12" storm water line within SW Oregon Street 
	serve the subject area 2: TVFR Station 33 - less than one mile southwest
	The time at which services can be reasonably provided by the city or district:   Services will be available upon annexation to the City.
	method of financing Attach any supporting documents:   The cost of extending necessary utilities will be paid upon future site development.
	indicate the government 1:   All requested services are available.
	indicate the government 2:   
	City: N/A  
	Rural Fire Dist: TVF&R  
	County Service Dist: Washington Co.
	Sanitary District: N/A
	Hwy Lighting Dist: N/A
	Water District: N/A
	Grade School Dist: SSD 88J
	Drainage District: N/A
	High School Dist: SSD 88J
	Diking District: N/A
	Library Dist: WCCLS
	Park  Rec Dist: N/A  
	Special Road Dist: N/A
	Water Service: N/A
	in the territory hooked up to a public sewer or water system please so describe 1: TVF&R currently serves the area and will continue to do so once annexed.
	in the territory hooked up to a public sewer or water system please so describe 2:   
	in the territory hooked up to a public sewer or water system please so describe 3:   
	in the territory hooked up to a public sewer or water system please so describe 4:   
	APPLICANTS NAME: Bruce & Karen Polley
	MAILING ADDRESS 1: PO Box 1489
	MAILING ADDRESS 2: Sherwood OR 97140  
	MAILING ADDRESS 3:   
	TELEPHONE NUMBER: Please Contact Applicant's Consultant
	Res: 
	REPRESENTING: AKS Engineering & Forestry, LLC - Mimi Doukas, AICP, RLA
	DATE_5: 5/12/20                                              mimid@aks-eng.com
	Address:   21720 SW Oregon Street, Sherwood, OR 97140
	LAST NAMERow1:   N/A
	FIRST NAMERow1: N/A - NO RESIDENTS ON PROPERTY
	SEXRow1: N/A
	AGERow1: N/A
	LAST NAMERow2:   
	FIRST NAMERow2:   
	SEXRow2:   
	AGERow2:   
	LAST NAMERow3:   
	FIRST NAMERow3:   
	SEXRow3:   
	AGERow3:   
	LAST NAMERow4:   
	FIRST NAMERow4:   
	SEXRow4:   
	AGERow4:   
	LAST NAMERow5:   
	FIRST NAMERow5:   
	SEXRow5:   
	AGERow5:   
	LAST NAMERow6:   
	FIRST NAMERow6:   
	SEXRow6:   
	AGERow6:   
	Check Box20: Off
	Check Box21: Off
	Check Box22: Yes
	Check Box23: Off
	Check Box24: Off
	Check Box25: Yes
	Check Box26: Off
	PROPERTY DESIGNATION Tax Lot NumbersRow1: 2S 1 28C Lot 500
	NAME OF PROPERTY OWNERRow1: Bruce & Karen Polley  
	TOTAL ACRESRow1: ±9.53  
	ASSESSED VALUE OF THE PROPERTYRow1: $231,020  
	SIGNED PETITION YES NORow1:   
	SIGNED PETITION YES NORow1_2:   
	PROPERTY DESIGNATION Tax Lot NumbersRow2: 
	NAME OF PROPERTY OWNERRow2: 
	TOTAL ACRESRow2: 
	ASSESSED VALUE OF THE PROPERTYRow2: 
	SIGNED PETITION YES NORow2:   
	SIGNED PETITION YES NORow2_2:   
	PROPERTY DESIGNATION Tax Lot NumbersRow3:   
	NAME OF PROPERTY OWNERRow3:   
	TOTAL ACRESRow3:   
	ASSESSED VALUE OF THE PROPERTYRow3:   
	SIGNED PETITION YES NORow3:   
	SIGNED PETITION YES NORow3_2:   
	PROPERTY DESIGNATION Tax Lot NumbersRow4:   
	NAME OF PROPERTY OWNERRow4:   
	TOTAL ACRESRow4:   
	ASSESSED VALUE OF THE PROPERTYRow4:   
	SIGNED PETITION YES NORow4:   
	SIGNED PETITION YES NORow4_2:   
	PROPERTY DESIGNATION Tax Lot NumbersRow5:   
	NAME OF PROPERTY OWNERRow5:   
	TOTAL ACRESRow5:   
	ASSESSED VALUE OF THE PROPERTYRow5:   
	SIGNED PETITION YES NORow5:   
	SIGNED PETITION YES NORow5_2:   
	PROPERTY DESIGNATION Tax Lot NumbersRow6:   
	NAME OF PROPERTY OWNERRow6:   
	TOTAL ACRESRow6:   
	ASSESSED VALUE OF THE PROPERTYRow6:   
	SIGNED PETITION YES NORow6:   
	SIGNED PETITION YES NORow6_2:   
	PROPERTY DESIGNATION Tax Lot NumbersTotals:   
	NAME OF PROPERTY OWNERTotals:   
	TOTAL ACRESTotals: ±9.53  
	ASSESSED VALUE OF THE PROPERTYTotals:   $231,020
	SIGNED PETITION YES NOTotals:   
	SIGNED PETITION YES NOTotals_2:   
	ADDRESS OF REGISTERED VOTERRow1: N/A - NO REGISTERED VOTERS  
	NAME OF REGISTERED VOTERRow1: N/A - NO REGISTERED VOTERS
	SIGNED PETITION YES NORow1_3:   
	SIGNED PETITION YES NORow1_4:   
	ADDRESS OF REGISTERED VOTERRow2:   
	NAME OF REGISTERED VOTERRow2:   
	SIGNED PETITION YES NORow2_3:   
	SIGNED PETITION YES NORow2_4:   
	ADDRESS OF REGISTERED VOTERRow3:   
	NAME OF REGISTERED VOTERRow3:   
	SIGNED PETITION YES NORow3_3:   
	SIGNED PETITION YES NORow3_4:   
	ADDRESS OF REGISTERED VOTERRow4:   
	NAME OF REGISTERED VOTERRow4:   
	SIGNED PETITION YES NORow4_3:   
	SIGNED PETITION YES NORow4_4:   
	ADDRESS OF REGISTERED VOTERRow5:   
	NAME OF REGISTERED VOTERRow5:   
	SIGNED PETITION YES NORow5_3:   
	SIGNED PETITION YES NORow5_4:   
	ADDRESS OF REGISTERED VOTERRow6:   
	NAME OF REGISTERED VOTERRow6:   
	SIGNED PETITION YES NORow6_3:   
	SIGNED PETITION YES NORow6_4:   
	ADDRESS OF REGISTERED VOTERTotals:   
	NAME OF REGISTERED VOTERTotals:   
	SIGNED PETITION YES NOTotals_3:   
	SIGNED PETITION YES NOTotals_4:   
	TOTAL NUMBER OF REGISTERED VOTERS IN THE PROPOSAL:   0
	PERCENTAGE OF ACREAGE SIGNED FOR:  100
	NUMBER OF REGISTERED VOTERS WHO SIGNED PETITION:   0
	TOTAL NUMBER OF SINGLEFAMILY UNITS:   0
	PERCENTAGE OF REGISTERED VOTERS WHO SIGNED PETITION:  N/A
	TOTAL NUMBER OF MULTIFAMILY UNITS:   0
	TOTAL ACREAGE IN THE PROPOSAL: 9.53
	TOTAL NUMBER OF COMMERCIAL STRUCTURES:   0
	ACREAGE SIGNED FOR: 9.53
	TOTAL NUMBER OF INDUSTRIAL STRUCTURES:   2


